& HARINGEY COUNCIL

Summons to Attend

Full Council

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent
broadcast via the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting
the Mayor will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.
The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes
within the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you
are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those
images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training
purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Principal
Support Officer (Committee Clerk) at the meeting.

To: The Mayor and Councillors of Haringey Council.

Dear Sir/Madam,

A meeting of the Council of the London Borough of Haringey will be held at the Civic Centre,
High Road, Wood Green, N22 8LE on MONDAY, 5TH FEBRUARY, 2007 at 19:30 HRS, to
transact the following business:

AGENDA

1. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY LATE ITEMS OF
BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority at
which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature
of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the interest



10.

11.

12.

13.

becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgement of the public interest.

TO ASK MEMBERS WHETHER THEY NEED TO MAKE A DECLARATION IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 106 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE
ACT IN LREATION TO UNPAID COMMUNITY CHARGE OR COUNCIL TAX
LIABILITY WHICH IS TWO MONTHS OR MORE OUSTANDING.

Members to whom this applies must make a declaration if they are present at any part
of the meeting and must not vote on any matter relating to the budget. It is not
sufficient for such members to refrain from voting or to absent themselves from the
chamber for particular parts of the meeting.

TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF
THE COUNCIL HELD ON 8 JANUARY 2007 (PAGES 1 -8)

TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY BEFORE THE
COUNCIL

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

TO RECEIVE THE REPORTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND HEAD OF
LEGAL SERVICES

TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR PETITIONS
AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM

TO CONSIDER A "STATE OF THE BOROUGH" REPORT BY THE LEADER OF
THE COUNCIL

TO RECEIVE THE EXECUTIVE REPORT NUMBER 13-2006/7 - FINANCIAL
PLANNING 2007/08 TO 2010/11 (PAGES 9 - 120)

TO RECEIVE THE EXECUTIVE REPORT NUMBER 12-2006/7: (PAGES 121 - 134)
In accordance with Council Rules of Procedure No. 12(1), the Chief Executive will

submit a report, if appropriate, listing any recommendations from the Overview &
Scrutiny Committee requiring policy change of executive action.

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL
RULES OF PROCEDURE NO. 13



MOTION P (2006/7):

Councillor Mughal has given notice that he will move in the following terms:

“This Council recognises the vital role played by private sector businesses towards the
present and future economic well being of Haringey and its residents, and believes
that more work needs to be done to make Haringey an attractive place to do business,
and to foster an enterprise culture within the Council.

This Council therefore resolves to make 2007 the 'year of business' for the Council,
pursuing with greater vigour the promotion of enterprise in the borough wherever
possible, including through the production and promotion, through council publications,
of business directories for the borough; the creation of a business services desk in the
Council, with the establishment of identified business champions in appropriate council
departments, and the development and promotion of a brand for Haringey as a great
place to do business”.

MOTION Q (2006/07):

Councillor Whyte has given notice that she will move in the following terms:

This Council believes that the Freedom of Information Act 2000, which came into force
on 1% January 2005, is a significant and most welcome piece of legislation in
empowering citizens and ensuring all forms of government and public bodies are
effectively scrutinised and held to account. This Council celebrates the significant
benefits of this legislation to the public which far exceed its administrative costs.

This Council believes that it is vital that the Freedom of Information legislation is better
publicised throughout Haringey and that every step should be taken to ensure that this
Council meets all relevant requests for information within the specified time
requirements set out by the legislation.

This Council also opposes current proposals to significantly change, after a very short
period of time, the administration of this significant legislation, especially relating to the
dangerous proposal that unrelated requests by the same individual or organisation to
an authority should be aggregated and refused if the aggregated cost exceed the
specified financial limits. This Council believes this proposal could severely ration use
of the Act by the local media and campaigning organisations.

This Council urges Haringey’s two Members of Parliament to defend the basic
principles of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and to ensure that the harmful
proposals as set out in the current consultation by the Department of Constitutional
Affairs are opposed.

Dr Ita O’'Donovan



Chief Executive
River Park House
225 High Road
Wood Green
London N22 8HQ

Monday, 29 January 2007



Page 1 Agenda Item 5

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 8 JANUARY 2007

Councillors Adamou (Mayor), Adje, Aitken, Alexander, Amin, Baker, Basu,
Beacham, Bevan, Beynon, Bloch, Bull, Butcher, Canver, Cooke, Davies,
Demirci, Diakides, Dobbie, Dodds, Dogus, Edge, Egan, Engert, Gorrie,
Griffith, Haley, Hare, B. Harris, Hoban, Jones, Knight, Kober, Lister,
Mallett, Meehan, Mughal, Newton, Oakes, Oatway, Peacock, Portess,
Rainger, Reid, Reith, Santry, Stanton, Thompson, Vanier, Weber,
Whyte, Williams, Wilson and Winskill

Apologies Councillor C. Harris, Rahman Khan and Patel

Also Present: Councillor

MINUTE
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION

CNCL67. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (AGENDA ITEM 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Rahman Khan,
Patel and C Harris. Apologies for lateness were received from
Councillors C Baker and Hare.

CNCL68. TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY
LATE ITEMS OF BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AGENDA ITEM 2)

The Chief Executive reported that there were four late items of business
(Items 8, 10, 11a, and 11c) which could not be available earlier, and
which would need to be dealt with at this meeting.

See minute numbers 74, 76, 77 for reasons for lateness and urgency.

In respect of Item 11a, Councillor Jonathan Bloch moved that the item
be deferred to another meeting date due to a lack of time to consider as
a result of its lateness. This was seconded by Councillor Neil Williams
and was put to the vote and declared LOST there being 28 against
deferral, and 24 for it.

CNCL69.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (AGENDA ITEM 3)

Members were asked by the Mayor to declare any personal interest in
respect of items on the agenda. In accordance with Part 2 of the
Members Code of Conduct set out in the Council Constitution, any
Member disclosing a personal interest which was also prejudicial would
be asked to withdraw from the Chamber during consideration of the item
and neither were they to seek to improperly influence a decision on the
said item.

Councillor Adamou declared a personal and prejudicial interest in



Page 2

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 8 JANUARY 2007

respect of Item 12 Motion L. Councillor Adamou advised that she would
withdraw from the Council Chamber during consideration of this item.

Councillor Haley declared a personal interest in respect of Item 11a.

Councillor Thompson declared a personal interest in respect of ltem 12
Motion L.

Councillor Davies declared a personal and prejudicial interest in ltem 12
Motion L because he worked for an organisation campaigning on
transport issues and climate change.

Councillor Ranger declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Item 12
Motion L.

CNCL70.

TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER 2006
(AGENDA ITEM 4)

Councillor Davies pointed out that he had declared a personal and
prejudicial interest in Motion H and had withdrawn from the meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 13 November
2006 be signed as a true record subject to Councillor Davies being
shown as having declared a personal and prejudicial interest under
Minute 51 and leaving the meeting prior to discussion of Motion H.

CNCLT71.

TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY
BEFORE THE COUNCIL (AGENDA ITEM 5)

1. The Mayor took the opportunity to thank all those members of
staff, voluntary organisations and groups who invited her to join
them over the festive season. A great many people gave their
time during November and December to help the elderly and
disabled and to raise money for charities, including the Mayor’s
Special Fund — Building for Babies. The Mayor enjoyed meeting
so many people over this busy period and looked forward to
continuing to represent the Council throughout the Borough.

2. On behalf of the Council, the Mayor extended her warmest
congratulations to Councillor Carolyn Baker who had a baby girl
on 27 November 2006. Our good wishes to Mum and baby
Jenna.

3. The Mayor congratulated the Head of Adult Learning, Libraries
and Culture, Diana Edmonds, who was honoured with an MBE in
the New Year’s Honours List. The Mayor stated that It was very
well deserved and a credit to Diana and her Team.

4. The Mayor congratulated Councillor Brian Haley on his




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 8 JANUARY 2007

appointment to the Thames Regional Advisory Committee of the
Environment Agency.

5. The Mayor wished all councillors a Happy New Year!

CNCL72.

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE (AGENDA
ITEM 6)
There were no matters to report.

CNCL73.

TO RECEIVE THE REPORTS OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES
AND MONITORING OFFICER (AGENDA ITEM 7)
There were no matters to report.

CNCL74.

TO MAKE APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES (AGENDA ITEM 8)

The Mayor agreed to admit the report as urgent business. The report
dealt with matters considered at Party group meetings within the last few
days. It was urgent in order to permit changes to be made to outside
body appointments.

Councillor Dobbie requested that Mr N Makaniji be shown as the deputy
in respect of Local Authority Action for Southern Africa.

RESOLVED

That the appointments to outside bodies, as set out in the appendix be
approved subject to the above amendment.

CNCL75.

TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR
PETITIONS AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM (AGENDA
ITEM 9)

A deputation from Dan Evans of the Queens Road Neighbourhood
Watch in relation to a no left turn near Bounds Green tube station was
received.

Questions were then put to Mr Evans.

The Mayor thanked Mr Evans and the deputation for their attendance.

CNCLY76.

TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, IF ANY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE NOS. 9 & 10 (AGENDA ITEM 10)
The Mayor agreed to the admission of this report as urgent business.
Under Standing Orders, notice of questions was not requested until eight
clear days before the meeting, following which matters raised had to be
researched and replies prepared, in order to be given at the meeting.

There were nine oral questions and 27 written questions.




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 8 JANUARY 2007

Oral questions 5 to 9 were not reached in the allotted time and written
answers would therefore be supplied to these questions.

CNCL77.

TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING BODIES (AGENDA
ITEM 11)

The Mayor agreed to the admission of the Executive report number 11
following a vote (see minute number 68). The Executive report was not
available at the time of dispatch as the matters contained in it were not
considered by the Executive until 19 December 2006 and potentially
subject to call-in up to Tuesday 2 January 2007.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee report was not available at the
time of despatch on 21 December 2006 as the meeting had only recently
been held. Consideration of the recommendations were urgent as they
required the establishment of a joint body.

RESOLVED
1 That reports 9, 10, and 11 of the Executive be received.
2 That the preparation of the Joint Waste Development Plan

Document be approved.

3 That the preparation of the Central Leeside Joint Area Plan
Document be approved

4 That the Residential Involvement Agreement (Compact) be
launched in March 2007.

5 That report 3 of the General Purposes Committee be received.

6 That the Council adopt the changes to Contract Standing
Orders as set out in the appendix one of the report and that
Part G.3 of the Council’s Constitution be amended accordingly
with effect from 5 February 2007.

7 That the Council adopt the amendments to the Statement of
Licensing Policy as set out in the appendix three of the report.

8 That report 1 of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be
received.
9 That a joint scrutiny committee with the London Boroughs of

Barnet and Enfield and Hertfordshire County Council be set
up. This joint committee would consider the forthcoming NHS
consultation exercise on the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey
Clinical Strategy.

10 That Councillors Bull and Newton be appointed as Haringey’s
representatives, with Councillor Jones as nominated Deputy.




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 8 JANUARY 2007

CNCLY78.

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE NO. 13 (AGENDA ITEM 12)

The Opposition Chief Whip moved to withdraw Motion O from the
Agenda and this was unanimously agreed by Council.

At this stage in proceedings, the Mayor and Councillor Rainger left the
Council Chamber having declared an interest in Motion L.

The Chief Executive invited Members to elect a chair in the absence of
the Mayor. Councillor Dobbie, nominated Councillor Griffith as Chair.
There being no other nominations, Councillor Griffith was duly elected as
Chair for this item of the agenda.

MOTION L

It was moved by Councillor Jones and seconded by Councillor Reith
that:

“This Council notes that air travel is an exceptionally
environmentally damaging form of travel, resulting in far
larger quantities of carbon dioxide released into the
atmosphere than alternative rapid surface travel by train or
coach.

This Council notes that with 1600 more train services each
year than in 1997, 1850 new railway vehicles with better
access for disabled people since 2002, greatly increased
speeds of travel by rail from London, a 36% increase in the
amount of freight moved by rail in the United Kingdom since
1997, and the Channel Tunnel Rail Link opened on time, the
current government has worked hard to improve surface
transport in Great Britain and to improve our links to cities in
mainland Europe.

This Council believes that it has a duty, individually and
corporately, to support the UK government in reducing
carbon dioxide emissions and to secure the future of the
planet for future generations.

This Council therefore resolves that, in order to help meet
local, national and global targets for the reduction of CO2
emissions, Council members and officers will henceforth not
travel by air on Council business within mainland Great
Britain, or when representing the Council in Paris or
Brussels.

This Council further resolves to make greater use of
communications technology, such as video conferencing, in
order to reduce the need to travel. Where travel is
necessary, this Council will accommodate to the needs of
members and officers by ensuring that sufficient time is
allowed either side of an engagement in order to travel on




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 8 JANUARY 2007

land.”

An amendment to the Motion was moved by Councillor Butcher and
seconded by Councillor Newton:

Delete all after "on time” in the fifth line of paragraph 2 and replace with

". Nevertheless, the current government has failed to curb
the 120% increase in CO2 emissions from international
aviation originating from the UK since 1990.

The Council notes with regret the procurement of a luxury
Series 7 BMW as the official vehicle for the Mayor of
Haringey. It is disappointed that the Labour administration
has missed the opportunity for Haringey's first citizen to lead
by example through its choice of a vehicle with high CO2
emissions instead of a greener alternative. The car's arrival,
coming only weeks after the leader's signing of the
Nottingham Declaration, is emblematic of the Labour
administration's continued failure to provide vision and
leadership to the residents of Haringey in fight against
climate change."

The amendment was then put to the meeting and declared LOST. There
being 24 for and 27 against.

The substantive Motion was then put to the meeting and declared
CARRIED. There being 27 for and 0 against.

MOTION M

It was moved by Councillor Wilson and seconded by Councillor Baker
that:

“This Council notes the damning Commission on Social
Care Inspection (CSCIl) report on the worsening
performance of Adult Social Services in Haringey, which:

= Found that Haringey Social Services are only serving
‘some’ people well, and failing the majority of
vulnerable adults in the Borough

= Gave Haringey 1 star — the lowest star rating awarded
this year — putting the Council in the bottom 22% of
English authorities.

» Found Haringey is one of just 11% of social services
departments actually getting worse, dropping down
from 2 to 1 stars.

= Determined that Haringey’s capacity to improve is
‘uncertain’ — the worst rating on ability to improve
awarded by CSCI this year.

= Scored Haringey worse than every other London
Borough except one, with 30 London Boroughs




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 8 JANUARY 2007

getting a better star rating or capacity to improve
rating.

This Council regrets that rather than taking action to improve
social services, the Labour Executive has instead brought
forward proposals for multi-million pound cuts to social
services, with plans to close day centres, cut care beds and
increase charges; and believes these cuts will further
damage social services’ ability to help the most vulnerable
elderly and disabled people, leaving many more without the
access they need to essential help and support.

This Council therefore calls on the Executive to urgently take
action to halt the decline in social services performance and
abandon plans to cut vital services; and demands that the
Executive commit to improving care services, and set a
target for gaining a higher star rating in its next inspection”.

An amendment to the Motion was moved by Councillor Bob Harris and
seconded by Councillor Bull:

Delete all after “This Council notes” and replace with;

“the CSCI report on the performance of Adult Social
Services in Haringey, carried out in the last municipal year
2005-06, which gave it a one star rating of serving some
people well with uncertain capacity to improve.

This council welcomes the Executive’s commitment to
improving Adult Social Services and to gaining a higher star
rating, as well as the appointment of a new Director of Adult
Services with a proven track record of improving
performance.

In particular it welcomes the increased emphasis on
performance management and the results that are already
accruing from this. It is our intention to improve services to
meet the needs of individuals in an increasingly diverse and
demanding society.

It further welcomes the intention of the Executive to
recommend to Council that the decision be taken to invest
another £2 million in adult social services this year and
resolves to build this into the base budget next year so that
more people can be enabled to live independent lives and
the most vulnerable in our society can be better supported,
such as by the building of Osbourne Grove Residential
Home.”

The amendment was then put to the meeting and declared CARRIED.
There being 28 for and 25 against.




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 8 JANUARY 2007

The substantive Motion was then put to the meeting and declared
CARRIED. There being 28 for and 0 against.

MOTION N

This remaining Motion was not heard due to the lack of time

The meeting finished at 10:03pm

Councillor GINA ADAMOU
Mayor

The meeting finished at 10:03pm

Councillor GINA ADAMOU

Mayor

Date:




Page 9 Agenda Iltem 11

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 13/2006-07 Page |
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

Chair: Deputy Chair:
Councillor George Meehan Councillor Lorna Reith
INTRODUCTION

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Council has reserved to itself the exercise of certain functions including the approval
of the budget, levying Council Tax and setting the non-domestic rate multiplier. The full
list of functions of the full Council are specified in Part E.1 of the Constitution — The Full
Council Article.

The budget process timetable provides for consideration by the Council of the
Executive’s budget package prior to the approval of the final budget and the Council Tax
on 19 February 2007.

This report covers the budget package which we considered at our meeting on 23
January 2007.

ITEM FOR DISCUSSION

Finance

2.

2.1

2.2

FINANCIAL PLANNING -2007/08 TO 2010/11

Following our meetings on 4 July, 31 October and 19 December 2006 we reported to the
Council on the key financial planning issues facing the Council and proposed a process
for the detailed consideration of our budget package. We have now considered a report
which set out the medium term financial strategy for the four-year period of the current
administration and which would be reviewed on an annual basis. The initial financial
planning report in July identified a budget gap of £13.6m over the four year period. The
business planning process this year has aimed to close this gap as well as reviewing the
pre-agreed savings totalling £8.2m.

The report we considered on 23 January (attached at Appendix 1) proposed a budget
package for the period 2007/08 to 2010/11 which was in 12 sections:

government support
changes and variations

strategic approach

consultation

savings options

investment options

the children’s service budget within the dedicated schools grant
the Housing Revenue Account budget
the capital programme

the treasury management strategy
council tax

key risk factors.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 10
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 13/2006-07 Page 2
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

The report was supported by various appendices as follows:

« appendix A set out the gross budget trail

« appendix B tracked the resource shortfall over the planning period

« appendix C was the budget report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
Executive response

« appendix D set out proposed investments

« appendix E set out proposed efficiency savings

o appendix F was the proposed budget for children’s services within the dedicated
schools grant (DSG)

 appendix G was the Housing Revenue Account budget

o appendices H, | and J related to the capital programme

o appendix K was the treasury management statement.

22  We noted that it was expected that the Council Tax increase for 2007/08 would be 3.0%
and that the report proposed a budget for the schools element of children’s services
within the ring-fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG) with the remainder of children’s
services included in the Council’s mainstream budget plans. The report also proposed a
balanced budget for the HRA based on an average rent increase of 5.0% and a capital
programme based on the existing policy framework for capital expenditure.

2.3 We report that we adopted the recommendations contained in the report which, in
accordance with the agreed budget timetable, we refer to the Council for discussion in so
doing noting that the final decision on the budget and Council Tax for 2006/7 would be
made at the meeting on 19 February 2007. We also agreed that, with regard to the
efficiencies proposed as a result of the merger of the Winkfield Road and the Haven
Road centres, officers carry out an early review of day care provision to determine
whether the buildings were the most appropriate way of delivering these services. We
also noted that with regard to implementing charging policy the charges for those social
services which were to be increased over time would be phased over a period ofupto 3
years.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 11

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda ltem

Executive On 23 January 2007

Report title: Financial Planning 2007/08 to 2010/11

Report of: The Acting Director of Finance

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1.1

Purpose

To consider the Executive’s proposed budget package for 2007/08 and later years.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

2.1 This report details the process we have undergone and we are now able to
recommend the attached budget plans to the Executive. It shows that although we
have an overall balanced position for 2007/8, over the following 3 years, we will still
need to identify nearly £5m of further savings.

2.2 This is in the light of the extremely tight financial settlement which we have
received from the government this year, which has necessitated some tough
decisions to deliver the savings necessary to continue to protect front-line services
at the same time as keeping Haringey’s share of the council tax increase to no
more than 3%.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To agree the changes and variations set out at paragraph 9 and appendix B.

3.2 To note the outcome of the consultation processes set out at paragraph 11.

3.3 To agree the new savings and investment proposals set out in paragraphs 12 and
13 and appendices D and E.

3.4 To agree the proposals for the children’s services (DSG) budget set out in

appendix F.

10of 24

\Wpk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\B\S\NAI00006 395\ Executive23Jan07..doc




Page 12

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

To agree the proposals for the HRA budget set out in appendix G.
To agree the proposals for the capital programme set out in appendices H and J.

To agree the treasury management strategy and policy and prudential limits set out
in appendix K.

To agree the proposed general fund budget requirement of £384.602m, subject to
the final settlement and the decisions of precepting and levying authorities, and the
consequences for council tax levels

To note that the final decision on budget and council tax for 2007/08 will be made
at the Council meeting on 19 February.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth, Acting Director of Finance

Contact officer: Gerald Almeroth, Acting Director of Finance, 020 8489 3823

4. Executive Summary

4.1 The report sets out the Executive’s budget package for recommendation to
Council. It is expected that the council tax increase for 2007/08 will be 3.0%.

4.2 The report proposes a budget for the schools element of children’s services within
the ring-fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG) with the remainder of children’s
services included in the Council’'s mainstream budget plans.

4.3 The report proposes a balanced budget for the HRA based on an average rent
increase of 5.0%.

4.4 The report proposes a capital programme based on the existing policy framework
for capital expenditure.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if
applicable)

5.1 The budget is designed to deliver the Council’s existing policy framework.

20f24

\tpk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\\3\AI00006385\Executive23Jan07 .doc




Page 13

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 The following papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Report of Acting Director of Finance to Executive on 19 December 2006
The draft local government finance settlement 2007/08 issued 28
November 2006

Report of Acting Director of Finance to Executive on 31 October 2006
Report of Acting Director of Finance to Executive on 4 July 2006

7 Background

7.1 My reports to the Executive on 4 July, 31 October and 19 December 2006 set
out the key financial planning issues facing the Council and proposed a
process for the detailed consideration of the Executive’s budget package. This
report sets out the medium term financial strategy for the four-year period of
the current administration and this will be reviewed on an annual basis. The
initial financial planning report in July identified a budget gap of £13.6m over
the four year period. The business planning process this year has aimed to
close this gap as well as reviewing the pre-agreed savings totalling £8.2m.

7.2  This report proposes a budget package for the period 2007/08 to 2010/11 and
is in 12 sections:

® & & o ¢ ¢ o ¢ o ¢ o o

government support

changes and variations

strategic approach

consultation

savings options

investment options

the children’s service budget within the dedicated schools grant
the Housing Revenue Account budget
the capital programme

the treasury management strategy
council tax

key risk factors.

7.3  The report is supported by various appendices as follows:

appendix A sets out the gross budget trail

¢ appendix B tracks the resource shortfall over the planning period
appendix C is the budget report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
the Executive response

e appendix D sets out proposed investments

e appendix E sets out proposed efficiency savings

3of24

\\pk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\S\A\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan07 .doc




7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

Page 14

e appendix F is the proposed budget for children’s services within the
dedicated schools grant (DSG)
appendix G is the Housing Revenue Account budget

e appendices H, | and J relate to the capital programme
appendix K is the treasury management statement.

The Council will consider the budget package and the limits under the
prudential code on 5 February and the final council tax (including the GLA
precept) and the policy and decision on reserves on 19 February.

Government support

Members will recall that there were major changes to grant distribution in
2003/04 when Standard Spending Assessments (SSA) was replaced by
Formula Spending Shares (FSS). Those changes removed £18m from the
Council's base allocation and meant that we received the floor (or lowest
possible) grant increase for 2003/04, 2004/05 and 2005/06.

There were a number of significant changes in the local authority settlement
last year, which provided a two year settlement position for 2006/07 and
2007/08. There were also a number of significant changes in the formula.
This followed a consuiltation on the formula grant review in 2005. The key
changes are as follows:

e the transfer of schools’ resources from formula spending shares (FSS) to a
ring-fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG);

e an alternative grant system based on separate blocks for relative needs,
resources, a ‘basic amount’, and damping, replacing the previous formula
spending shares by service (FSS);

o three-year settlements for individual local authorities based on frozen or
projected data and linked to government spending review periods
(therefore for two years in respect of 2006/07 and 2007/08, following three
years to be announced after the Comprehensive Spending Review in
2007);

e use of projected population and tax base information, and,

e reduced weighting for deprivation in the formula for Children's Services
and Younger Adults Social Services resulting in a significant shift of
resources away from Haringey and London generally.

The draft grant settlement for 2007/08 is broadly as announced last year.
The national total increase in government grant support is 3.8% in 2007/8
excluding DSG. Grant floors are retained to guarantee a minimum increase in
government support for each authority and this is paid for by scaling back
increases from all authorities above that level. The floor increases for
authorities with education and social services responsibilities is 2.7% in
2007/8.

4 of 24

\pk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\8\3\AI00006 395\Executive23Jan07 .doc



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

9.1

Page 15

Haringey is on the floor for 2007/8 for the fifth consecutive year. Two thirds of
authorities in London are on the floor in 2007/08 and there is an average grant
increase in the capital of 3.4%. The grant in the formula will increase by
£3.484m (2.7%) on the adjusted base; however the actual cash increase will
only be £2.284m (1.8%). As previously reported this adjustment to the base
has been challenged. The underlying damping position after taking into
account the separate floors for Children’s Social Care and Younger Adults is
that the formula suggests resources of £6.247m less that the actual grant
received. This is an improvement of £0.487m on 2006/07. This represents an
underlying 2.1% reduction against the adjusted 2006/07 base compared to the
2.7% floor increase actually received.

The DSG is in respect of the money that goes directly to fund schools and the
pupil led services within the LEA. Haringey has received an increase of 6.9%
per pupil for in 2007/08, which is above the national average increase of 6.7%.
The final cash sum available will depend on the number of pupils as recorded
in the January 2007 count. This is estimated by the DfES to rise by 1.7%
which would result in an overall cash rise of 8.6%. The higher level of
resources available are designed to fund the minimum funding guarantee for
all schools of 3.7% as well as additional initiatives such as personalised
learning. The implications for children’s services budgets are explored later in
the report.

Under the Council’s policy on capital expenditure, increases in grant in relation
to capital financing are earmarked to fund the revenue consequences of
supported borrowing. The estimated increase in this part of the formula is
£0.8m and this will be required to fund the increased costs of borrowing.
However, due to the way the grant floors operate, the Council will not receive
any actual additional cash grant to support this cost. The significant majority of
the approvals relate to the capital programme in the Children’s Service for
schools.

Following the draft settlement, and taking account of the capital financing issue
raised above, the key changes compared to previous assumptions are:

¢ areduction in the general fund position of £0.1m next year, and;
* anincrease in dedicated schools grant of £0.7m next year.

The draft settlement reflects function changes in respect of social services
specific grant (preserved rights). There is also a new specific grant of £178k in
respect of enforcement of smoking bans, which members can consider
proposals for at a later date. The final settlement is expected in late January.

Changes and variations

The 2006/07 budget was set as part of a process, which covered the previous
four year planning cycle. A number of budget changes and variations were
recognised in the 2006/07 process. During this year financial planning reports
to the Executive in respect of 2007/08 onwards have agreed further changes
and variations.

5 of 24

\pk-mag-002YmgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\\3VAI00006395\Executive23Jan07.doc



9.2

Page 16

The changes and variations already agreed by the Executive are as follows:

the triennial valuation of the pension fund was received in 2004. The .
funding level had fallen from 88% to 69%, the main reason being that
investment returns have been less than anticipated at the last valuation.
This, of course, reflects the fall in stock markets which took place during the
period. It was recommended that the total employer’s contribution rate
would increase on a phased basis from 18% in 2004/05 (including the
current funding levy for early retirement) to 22.9%. This required additional
funding of £1.6m in each of the three years up to 2007/08. We have
assumed a continuation of this for 2008/09 with further increases of 1%,
which will be reviewed on completion of the next triennial valuation due this
year,

waste disposal budgets were adjusted to reflect an anticipated increase in
the waste disposal levy and the estimated impact of moving to using actual
tonnage as a basis for charging phased in over three years from 2006/07.

The preparation for the implementation of the NLWA waste strategy will

result in further additional costs and provisional sums are included in future
years; V

pay budgets were adjusted to reflect the three-year pay deal agreed for
non-teaching staff up to 2006/07 and an assumption of 3% was made for
later years. The government has signalled their intention to work towards
settling pay deals at the target inflation level of 2%. A prudent assumption
of 2.5% has been allowed in the budget plans going forward. Work is
progressing on the local negotiations for ‘single status’ pay arrangements
review (incorporating former manual staff) by April 2007 and a base budget
contingency sum was provided; there may be significant costs arising from
backdated payments and these will need to be contained within either
unsupported capitalisation (subject to government approval) and the
subsequent additional revenue costs and or the risk reserve;

the annual deficit provision for Alexandra Palace will be reduced as the
Trust finalises a long-term arrangement with Firoka. In addition the historic
overspend will have been fully provided for after 2008/09 thereby releasing
almost £7m to support mainstream services;

subsidy arrangements in respect of temporary accommodation for the
homelessness are likely to change with the government stating their
intention to introduce a reduction of 5% in 2007/08 with further more
significant cuts from 2008/09 onwards. The budget variations agreed
provide for the implementation of a strategy to reduce the overall numbers
in temporary accommodation in line with government targets and includes
additional resources for incentives for landlords to move to assured short-
hold tenancies as well as an expanded preventions and options service;

there are significant costs in respect of asylum-seekers not covered by
grant, in particular for unaccompanied asylum seeking children that are 18
years of age or over and are still in the education system. Despite some

6 of 24

\\tpk-mag-OOZ\ngataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\9\3\AI00008395\Executiv92BJanO74d0c



9.3

Page 17

lobbying from key authorities this year there appears to be no additional
resources forthcoming and therefore a further £2m has been added to the
£0.5m included in last years process, and,;

e the additional cost of energy price increases above inflation is also
included, although still an increase, the improved rates secured through
new procurement arrangements are significantly less than the position
reflected by the national price indices.

The additional changes and variations reported now are as follows:

e recognition of the additional base cost pressures of £2m in respect of
Social Services as reported in budget management during this financial
year;

o estimated future year increases in the costs of concessionary fares above
inflation as reported to the GLA Transport Committee on 8 December;

e additional PFI contract costs of £90k arising from the approval of the
outline business case for BSF;

e recent changes to the latest financial projection for the waste disposal levy
as proposed by the NLWA including a reduction against previous increases
for 2007/08 and allowing a base budget saving of £0.5m now included;

e the use of one-off LPSA grant in 2007/08.

These changes and variations are summarised at appendices A and B.

10 Strategic approach

10.1

10.2

10.3

The key drivers for the strategic context in business planning process have
been derived from the current Community Strategy, the majority party
Manifesto and the previously approved Council priorities as follows:

Better Haringey;

Achieving excellent services;

Raising educational achievement;

Building stronger and safer communities; and,
Putting people first.

It is recognised that the current Community Strategy lasts until 2007 and
therefore is undergoing a review. There is a clear link between the key
emerging priorities and the existing priorities, which means that the planning
process is not undermined. The final Community Strategy and Council Plan
(which will contain the Council’s activities required to deliver its part of the
Community Strategy and its own priorities) are due to be agreed in March 2007
and this will allow time for review before individual business plans are
published.

There will be other national issues that may affect the planning process in
2007, including the publication of the Lyons report and the Comprehensive

7 of 24

\Wpk-mag-002imgDataRoot\AgendaitemDocs\S\\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan(7 .doc



1

11.1

11.2

Page 18

Spending Review in July 2007. The Council will need to have regard to these
issues as part of a wider review of its strategic approach.

Consultation
Consultation on budget options is as follows:

e consideration of financial strategy and the pre-business plan reviews
(PBPRs) by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee;

e a discussion of the Council's medium term financial plans at the Haringey
Strategic Partnership;

¢ consideration of Children’s Service budget issues by schools;

e consultation with tenants and leaseholders on rent and service charge
increases;

e a presentation of the Council’'s strategic plans at an event for local
businesses;

¢ trade union representatives; and,
e other stakeholders.

Scrutiny

11.2.1The Overview and Scrutiny Committee have met a number of times during

November and December to consider the Council’s financial strategy and the
PBPRs for each of the business units. The conclusion of the process
discussed at Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 December and finalised
on 10 January is captured in the final report attached at appendix C2.

11.2.2 The Executive has given careful consideration to the specific budget issues

11.3

that have been raised as part of the process and the responses are set out in
appendix C1. The Executive concur with many of the recommendations made
by Overview and Scrutiny Committee and therefore this is subsequently
reflected in the budget proposals attached or there is a commitment to take
further action in the future.

Haringey Strateqic Partnership

11.3.11t is proposed that the Council will report to the Haringey Strategic Partnership

11.4

(HSP) in the spring of this year to discuss the Council’s medium term financial
strategy in the context of the wider review of the funding, commitments and
targets included in the Local Area Agreement.

Schools

11.4.1 Budget planning issues were discussed at head teacher meetings and at the

Schools Forum during the autumn term and more recently in detail at the forum
meeting on 22 December 2006.

11.4.2 Further details on schools funding are set out later in this report.

8 of 24

\Wpk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\S\Q\NAI00006395\Executive23Jan07 .doc



Page 19

11.5 Tenants and leaseholders

11.5.1 A meeting of the Residents Finance Panel discussed the budget proposals in
detail. Tenant and leaseholder representatives are members of the group.

11.5.2The rent increase is driven by the government's rent restructuring guidance.
Consultation was through the Residents Finance Panel, Residents
Associations, and participants in the Residents Consultative Forum. Other
tenants were also be made aware of the consultation and are able to respond.
The consultation period closed on 12 January. The general feedback from
tenants’ responses is that the rent increase should be structured so that a
maximum increase of about £3.60 is applied in order to ensure that increases
are as affordable as possible for all tenants.

11.5.3 For leaseholders, the proposals on the HRA reflect the recovery of leasehold
management and overhead costs as previously consulted upon and approved.

11.6 Business event

11.6.1 A business event is being held on 30 January 2007 at which a presentation will
be given on the Council’s financial strategy and the increase in business rates
by the government.

11.7 Trade unions

11.7.1 Meetings at the end of November and the middle of January have been held
with representatives of the trade unions to discuss the financial strategy and
the pre-business plan reviews. The key views expressed are set out in the
following paragraphs.

11.7.2We recognise that this is a time of financial restraint for Local Authorities in
common with the rest of the public sector. There is more than one way in which
Authorities can respond to such restraint and we have a clear view on how we
would wish to see Haringey respond. We are opposed to the quick and easy
options such as cuts in staff and services or offloading the problem by
outsourcing to the private sector. In our view, the best approach is to look at
what genuinely facilitates service delivery and what obstructs it and to move
towards more efficient and productive ways of working. This delivers value for
money as something tangible rather than as the abstract concept that it too
often remains. In establishing what enhances performance and what impedes
it, the views of those responsible for delivering the service need to be taken
into account more than they have been. Someone who is responsible for
performing a particular task will have a better notion of what does and does not
work than someone several steps up the hierarchy who is primarily planning
and managing processes. The effective working of a large organisation such
as Haringey Council requires input from both the wide ranging strategic
perspective and the hands-on practical perspective, as well as from
intermediate levels. These perspectives need to be balanced and we feel that
an imbalance has arisen in favour of those from the higher levels of the
structure. The problem with this kind of imbalance is that it results in decision
making that is inadequately informed by an understanding of the practical

9of24

\pk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\9\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan07.doc



Page 20

consequences of what is decided. There is a further advantage to giving due
weight to the views of staff. When people feel that they have been heard and
taken seriously, they perceive themselves as part of the organisation and can
better identify with its aims and achievements.

11.7.3 The intention should be to find ways in which staff can work more productively
and with greater job satisfaction. Simply cutting jobs or expecting people to
invest ever-increasing levels of effort in inefficient work methods will simply not
deliver what the Council wants and needs and will degrade the quality of life of
its employees thus increasing problems of staff retention.

11.7.4 In examining the details of the Pre Business Plan reviews we were concerned
to note the seriousness of the financial problems in Social Services, especially
in Adult Services and Older People’s Services. We were pleased to hear, in the
second consultation meeting, that the Council has agreed to put £2m into the
base budget for Social Services and would urge that every effort should be
made to prevent a recurrence of problems on this scale.

11.8 Other stakeholders

11.8.1 Views of other stakeholders have been sought and received as part of the
budget process including specifically with partners such as the Primary Care
Trust, the Mental Health Trust and voluntary organisations.

12 Savings options

12.1 Proposed savings totalling £8.2m over the planning period were agreed as part
of the 2006/07 budget process. These savings have been reviewed through
the PBPR process against the notional savings targets set and either
confirmed as sound and achievable or have been deemed as not achievable
and are replaced with new items. Some savings proposals have been re-
phased including customer services and corporate procurement (£0.5m moved
to 2008/09), which reflect a more realistic delivery profile.

12.2 Through the PBPR process new savings options have also been identified and
these are included at appendix D alongside the re-stated and re-profiled
existing proposals. In total the appendix sets out those savings in respect of
the general fund, which are recommended by the Executive for agreement,
totalling £19.3 over the next four years.

12.3 Members are aware of the government’s plans to generate efficiency savings
as set out in the Gershon review. The £6.45bn target for local government to
2007/08 is equivalent to 2.5% per annum against the 2004/5 base. It was
recommended that at least 1.25% is to be ‘cashable’ and is to be retained (i.e.
releasing funds to spend elsewhere or to keep the council tax down). Each
local authority has to report progress to the government in Annual Efficiency
Statements (AES). Currently Haringey is progressing well against the target.
The savings included in the AES can only relate to those delivered through
efficiency as defined in the government’s criteria and will therefore not include
all budget savings that the Council will deliver in its financial planning.

10 of 24

\Wtpk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\S\S\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan07 .doc



12.4

12.5

Page 21

The government's pre-budget report in December 2006 has set more
stretching targets for the future and these will be confirmed in the CSR 2007.
A target of 3% has been stated, all of which should be cashable. It is possible
that this will feature in the calculation of future available resources.

The Council’s ability to deliver budget savings is confirmed as a key aspect of
the response to the strategic agenda. The plans set out in this report include
significant identified savings which can be summarised as follows:

Budget 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

£m % £m % £m % £m %
General fund 7.879| 4.0% |6.837| 3.5% | 1.847 | 0.9% |2.745| 1.4%
DSG 1.050| 5.6% [0.800| 4.2% | 0477 | 2.5% | 0.457 | 2.4%
HRA 2667 | 26% | 1.550| 1.5% 0 0% 0 0%
Total 11.596 | 3.4% | 9.187 | 2.7% | 2.324 | 0.7% | 3.202 | 0.9%

12.6

13

13.1

The staffing implications of the savings proposals include the deletion of a
number of posts. All efforts will be made to minimise the impact on permanent
staff. The Council has well established processes for managing workforce
reductions and these will apply. Redeployment, retraining, and the review of
vacancies/temporary employment will assist to minimise the impact of
reductions in the staffing establishment. The Council's trade unions have been
consulted during the budget making process and will be closely involved in the
actions described here.

Investment options

The PBPR process has identified new investment opportunities which align
with the Council’s strategic agenda. These are set out in appendix E, together
with those recommended by the Executive for acceptance totalling £1.9m in
the general fund revenue budget. This is in addition to the £2m growth on the
homelessness service. The Council’s priorities provide the rationale for the
allocation of investment resources as set out in the appendix. The key areas
for investment are as follows:

recycling;

street cleansing;

enforcement;

youth service;

leisure and recreation;

homelessness prevention and reduction, and;
management of community buildings.

® & & o o o o

11 0of 24

\itpk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\S\S\\AIO0006395\Executive23Jan07 .doc



Page 22

14 Children’s services budget - dedicated schools grant (DSG)

14.1 Attached at appendix F is the position for the DSG funded budget. The DSG
covers all delegated schools expenditure, known as the Individual Schools
Budget (ISB), plus any pupil led expenditure incurred by the local authority.
Haringey received an increase of 6.8% per pupil in 2006/07 with a further
increase of 6.9% per pupil guaranteed for 2007/08. The minimum funding
guarantee for schools (MFG) is still in operation and for 2007/08 it is 3.7% for
all types of school. There are also additional earmarked resources again of
£2.63m for initiatives such as personalised learning.

14.2 The total cash sum available will not be finally known until June 2007 when the
official January counts at all of the schools have been checked by the DfES;
however, the LA will ensure that resource predictions are based on the most
up to date information. Schools will still be able to set a budget in early
February 2007 which will be based upon their guaranteed unit of resource
applied to their January pupil number count.

14.3 The overall four year position in respect of the DSG is set out in appendix F
and summarised for 2007/08 in the table below:

2007/08 — Estimated DSG - DSG - Total
increase in DSG ISB Non ISB DSG
£m
£m £m

Estimated grant increase 10.871 1.549 12.420
Transfer of resources -0.148 0.148 0
Total 10.723 1.697 12.420
PBPR estimated net budget 10.723 1.697 12.420
growth

Headroom 0 0 0
Total 10.723 1.697 12.420

14.4 The total DSG position is balanced and this follows the statutory consultation
with Haringey’s Schools Forum. The Forum is strongly in favour of holding a
contingency centrally to fund the impending settlement of the equal pay claim
(single status) which is significant. The current initial estimate of the direct
impact of backdating of the equal pay implementation is estimated at £1.5m
and this sum has now been earmarked for central retention from the additional
DSG resources made available to the Council in 2007/08. The final cost will
not be known until negotiations have been concluded so there is a risk that the
figure could be significantly higher. Any additional costs above those
estimated above, including any indirect impact, will need to be met by the
individual schools concerned from their delegated budgets.

12 of 24

\Mpk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\S\S\3VAI00006395\Executive23Jan07 .doc



Page 23

14.5 The final position also includes part funding the additional costs to schools of
the PFI contract from the recent benchmarking exercise, the running costs of
funding the new autism provision at Campsbourne School and a provision set
aside to support the transition costs around the opening of the new Sixth Form
Centre.

14.6 The ‘transfer of resources’ of £0.148m shown in the table above will represent
the direction of travel of the service whereby more funding (and costs) held at
the centre will be released to schools. In 2007/08, however, due to the Single
Status issue, resources will transfer to the centre. The trend is reversed in
future years as the service becomes more of a commissioner of services rather
than a provider.

14.7 The use of ‘Headroom’ (residual funding available following allocation of DSG
to priorities) was also discussed with the Schools Forum, however given the
equal pay issue, there is no headroom available to allocate in 2007/08.

15 Housing revenue account

15.1 The housing revenue account (HRA) subsidy determination has been received
and the Council is consulting on a 5.0% average rent increase. The actual rent
increase for each property is determined by the application of the government’s
rent restructuring formula. In 2007/08 this would have led to an average 6.2%
increase, however, average increases are capped by the government at 5.0%
and the rent consultation is specifically around how that increase is applied.

15.2 Tenants service charges will increase by 2.9% in line with the prevailing rate of
inflation, except for gas (16.46%) and electricity (14.8%) where larger
increases are required to cover higher market prices.

15.3 In financial strategy terms, the key issues for the HRA are:

e managing the increase in repairs costs, particularly in gas maintenance
(mitigated in later years by increased planned maintenance);

e dealing with continued real terms reductions in subsidy levels and the
impact of rent restructuring; ‘

e delivery of savings from the value for money reviews conducted by Homes
for Haringey;

o delivery of further efficiency savings including as a result of the repairs
procurement process, from 2008/09 onwards, and;

e ensuring that improved performance initiatives are adequately resourced
and managed in order to achieve the necessary two stars.

15.4 The subsidy position continues to worsen on an annual basis. The final
subsidy determination for 2007/08 shows a national increase of 3.96%, but
only an increase of 1.34% for Haringey. Financial planning assumptions had
assumed an increase near inflation so there is a shortfall against our plans.
This is partially offset by a reduced number of right to buy sales and therefore
increased rent income.

13 of 24

\\tpk—mag-OOZ\ngataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\9\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan07.doc



Page 24

15.5 The current approved HRA budget position in 2006/07 is set out in the table
below, together with the proposed changes to give an overall position for the
HRA. This table is shown in more detail in appendix G.

£000 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10 | 2010/11 | 2011/12
Opening (3,878) | (3,432) | (4,527)| (5,013)| (5,025)
balance

In year budget 445 | (1,095) (487) (12) 740
Proposed (3,432) | (4,527)| (5,013)| (5,025) | (4,285)
closing balance

15.6 The target level of balances for the HRA is £56m and this is broadly achieved
over the planning period. The future years also contain challenging efficiency
savings in particular in the housing repairs service and against corporate
overheads and includes an estimate of any other inter fund issues. A
significant proportion of this has been re-phased to 2008/09. A further £0.5m
of savings yet to be identified is included in 2008/09. The impact of potential
claims for equal pay is not fully estimated yet and therefore are not included in
the projections at this stage.

16 Capital programme

16.1 A capital programme has been developed, driven by the Council's agreed
policy framework for capital expenditure, the approved capital strategy and
underpinned by asset management plans across the Council. The overall
proposed programme is attached at appendix J.

16.2 The existing resource allocation strategy adopted by the Executive on 21
October 2003 uses the Community Strategy and Council’'s Corporate Plan as
its framework for determining priorities and is delivered through the Council’s
business planning process. This is attached at appendix I.

16.3 The main resources for capital expenditure are provided through borrowing
approvals i.e. supported capital expenditure (revenue) or SCE (R) and through
grant, mainly supported capital expenditure (capital) or SCE (C). Both forms of
funding can be ring-fenced by the government. Corporate resources comprise
non-housing and education borrowing limits, non-ring-fenced grant and all
capital receipts. The estimated resources available for capital investment are
set out in the table below over the next four years. The estimates for the
investment for decent homes and BSF are shown separately.

14 of 24

\pk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan07 .doc



Page 25

Original Budget 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10 | 2010/11 Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

* *

Supported (Earmarked)
Expenditure

Homes for Haringey (HRA)

SCE® Single Capital Pot 6,233 6,233 6,233 6,233 | 24,932
SCE® Separate Programme Element 0| 43,056 | 58,737 | 55951 | 157,744
Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) 11,991 12,133 12,366 | 12,644 | 49,134

18,224 | 61,422 | 77,336 | 74,828 | 231,810

Children & Young People’s

Services

BSF (SCE®, SCE® & other finance) 36,712 55,271 49,760 | 26,539 | 168,282
Targeted Capital Fund 125 70 4,300 4,495
Other SCE® (excluding BSF & TCF) 7,820 4,111 5,000 5,000 | 21,931
Other SCE® (excluding BSF & TCF) 7,958 2,808 0 0 10,766
Other Grants & Contributions 144 0 0 0 144

52,759 | 62,260 | 59,060 | 31,539 | 205,618

Environment

Tfl Grant (Local Improvement Plan) 4,215 6,000 6,000 6,000 | 22,215

Corporate Resources

SCE® (corporate applied) 191 191 191 191 764
Capital Receipts (corporate applied) 8,216 8,432 5,499 3,981 26,128
Local Public Sector Agreement

(LPSA) Reward Grant (applied) 1,506 0 0 0 1,506

9,913 8,623 5,690 4172 | 28,398

Other Grants & Contributions 12,381 3,548 1,421 822 18,172
Prudential Borrowing 592 0 0 392 984
Total Capital Programme 98,084 | 141,853 | 149,507 | 117,753 | 507,197

16.4

*figures for 2008/09 onwards are estimates — these are subject to announcements in 2007
including the CSR in July.
Resources figures in above table are shown as applied.

It should be noted that under the previous FSS formula grant system the
translation of SCE (R) into a revenue stream in the FSS and then grant does
not reflect the actual cost of borrowing. This is partly because a notional rate
of interest of 5.9% is used compared to the actual average Haringey rate of
7.24% and the figures are also scaled down to the national total resources
available. Under the new formula grant system, the capital financing element
is included in the Council’s relative needs factor and there is now less certainty
about that amount of grant that finally finds its way through to the Council. This
is particularly true for authorities on the grant floor in that the revenue grant
support for capital borrowing will be added to the formula but will not result in
any actual additional cash being received by the Council. As the table above
shows for Haringey this is largely in respect of spending within the Children’s
Services and the capital programme for schools. The revenue cost of this,
borne by the council tax in 2007/08 is approximately £0.8m.

150f 24

\tpk-mag-002\mgDataRootAgendaliemDocs\5\O\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan07.doc



16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

16.9

Page 26

The strategic context for housing is the investment gap to deliver decent
homes by 2010. The Council has now successfully set up the Homes for
Haringey ALMO and has submitted a bid for investment funding for £231m.
The estimated resources for the ALMO are shown separately in the above
table. Confirmation of the actual resources and phasing should be known early
this year and the release of this will be subject to the Council achieving two
stars in the inspection in May 2007.

For children’s services, the key strategic issues are in respect of the Building
Schools for Future (BSF) programme (including the new 6™ form centre) and
the primary places expansion. A total of £194m is planned to be spent on BSF
(made up of £179m of central government resources, £10m from the Learning
Skills Council contributing towards the cost of the new 6" form centre, a
specific capital receipt and revenue contributions from the DSG). Only the
profiling in respect of the 6™ form centre is agreed so far, but indicative figures
in total have been included in the programme.

The Department for Education and Skills has advised that the funding
arrangements for 2008/09 and beyond will not be known until after the
Comprehensive Spending Review in 2007. However, the government has
announced that capital investment in schools will increase. Formulaic funding
is based on pupil number projections, which remain high. Similar projections in
recent years have resulted in over £7m per year for basic need formulaic
funding, plus funding for modernisation and access. A prudent estimate of
future funding allocations of £56m has been included within the programme
which will be updated when actual allocations are known.

A small amount of prudential borrowing (£150k) is included in respect of autism
provision at Campsbourne School, which will result in revenue savings over
and above financing the revenue cost of the capital. This has been agreed by
the Schools Forum and will be charged to the DSG.

There are three major projects already approved that form the primary
expansion programme and are included in the capital programme. In two of
those schemes there are significant cost variations from the approved budget
as follows:

Project Budget Budget | Revised | Forecast | Variance
(April 2005 | Revisions | Budget Total
Executive) | (January Spend
2006)
£m £m £m £m £m
Coldfall 3.75 0.80 4.55 5.50 0.95
Coleridge 5.50 0 5.50 6.50 1.00
Tetherdown 5.50 0.40 5.90 5.80 -0.10

16 of 24

\itpk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\ARAI00006395\Executive23.Jan07 .doc




Page 27

Coldfall -

The project is now completed, but the final account is still under discussion
between council officers, our cost consultants and the main contractor. There
are also unresolved concerns about fees charged by the design team.
Additional costs and fees have been incurred due to additional works,
compliance with planning conditions and an outstanding classroom fit-out. The
forecast total spend is a worse-case estimate. The additional overspend will
be met through re-phasing of the formulaic funding in future years and has the
effect of reducing the amount available for other projects.

Tetherdown

Phase 1 (new build) is progressing to the revised timetable. Phase 2
(refurbishment and adaptation of current accommodation) is pre-tender and
current forecasts suggest this project will come in within budget.

Coleridge
Invitations to tender were scheduled for the first stage of a two stage

procurement process on 12 January 2007 from five contractors from the
Council's framework agreement. Return of the tenders is due on 2 February
2007. These will provide overheads and profits percentages based upon a
cost model prepared by the consultant quantity surveyor.

Following evaluation of tenders and subject to planning approval, a single
construction partner will be recommended to procurement committee. With
this partner the second stage of the tendering process will be progressed. This
will include the contractor inviting sub contract tenders for all pre agreed
packages of works. The sub contract tender returns will be evaluated and
measured against the cost model leading to commercial certainty, and the
agreement of a lump sum contract with the main contractor in June 2007.

The increased estimate shown is a prudent assumption given the need to
comply with planning conditions and the likely need for additional works on the
TUC site.

Programme contingency

The programme from 2008/09 onwards now includes a programme
contingency, in recognition of the inherent unpredictability of construction
costs, given the impact of the Olympics and the Mayor's housing targets.
Arrangements for ‘gate-keeping’ this contingency will be developed.

16.10 Detailed consideration has been given to how the variances shown in the table
above should be managed. The proposed plans show reductions in the general
schools modernisation and maintenance programmes, which may cause some
difficulties. This can be reviewed later in 2007 if the announcement of future
year's funding is above current assumptions.

16.11 The requirements for streetscene were set out in the Local Implementation
Plan (previously known as the borough spending plan), which was agreed by
the Executive on 4 July 2006 as a draft (final version delegated to the Lead
Member for Environment and Interim Director of Environment) and submitted
to the Mayor as a bidding document. A letter from Transport for London (TfL)

17 of 24

\tpk-mag-002\mgDataRootiAgendaltemDocs\5\3\3VAI00006 395\Executive23Jan07 .doc



| Page 28

on 19 December confirmed the grant approval of £4.184m compared to the
total bid in 2007/08 of £6m. The grant approval is an increase of £776k
(22.7%) on 2006/07; the overall increase in London was only 0.6%. The
additional sums are mainly in respect of schemes for walking and cycling.

16.12 The utilisation of corporate resources for capital investment has been
considered through the pre-business plan reviews.
considering bids for corporate resources include how investments support the
community strategy priorities and the asset management plan. The proposed
schemes, attached in detail at appendix H will give an overall utilisation of
corporate resources as follows:

The process for

£000 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10 | 2010/11 Total

Resources available (9,828) (8,191) (7,691) (2,691) | (28,401)
Proposed programme 9,913 8,623 5,690 4,172 28,398
Shortfall / (surplus) 85 432 (2,001) 1,481 (3)

16.13 The assumption on income from capital receipts includes £10m over 2008/09
and 2009/10 in respect of disposals of strategic sites. This is most likely to be
delivered through the Hornsey Depot site. The shortfalls within the first two
years can be managed through the financing reserve.

16.14 Key elements of the proposed programme for investment are as follows:

expansion of the recycling service;

e continuation of street lighting and highways improvements;
improvement of our parks and opens spaces, including additional tree
planting;

e investment in our property assets, and,

e continued investment in our IT systems.

16.15 It should be noted that some significant exclusions or reductions due to lack of
resources are as follows:

e replacement of central telephone and switchboard systems — further
work will need to be done to see how investment could be self-financing
through revenue savings;

e corporate IT capital programme — the latter two years resources reduce
significantly and this may impact on the Council’s ability to effectively
upgrade or replace key systems, and,

e Ward's Corner regeneration scheme — as a straight request for
corporate resources this scheme is too expensive for the programme,
further work is being done on options to progress this with a lower
overall Council contribution.

16.16 There is a small amount of new unsupported borrowing in the proposed
programme as set out in paragraph 16.8. The remainder relates to existing
approval in relation to the investment in Leisure facilities passed the

18 of 24

\\tpk-mag-ODZ\mgDataRoot\Agenda!(emDocs\5\9\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan07.doc



Page 29

affordability test where the cost of borrowing is being met by additional revenue
income and expenditure savings.

16.17 The Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Prudential Code introduced a
new prudential system for local authority capital finance and came into effect
on 1 April 2004. The key objectives of the code are to ensure:

e capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable;

e treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice; and,

o fulfilment of the above objectives by setting out prudential indicators that
must be set and monitored.

16.18 The prudential indicators are included for approval within the Treasury
Management Statement see below and in appendix K.

17 Treasury management strategy

17.1  The Council is required to consider an annual Treasury Strategy under the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, which was adopted by the
Council in May 2002.

17.2 The Local Government Act 2003 also requires the Council to have regard to
the Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to
ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and
sustainable. We have also set out our Prudential Indicators for year four of our
financial planning process.

17.3 In line with the suggestion in the ODPM'’s investment guidance we have
combined the Treasury Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
into one document. This is set out in full in Appendix K and includes the
proposed prudential indicators for 2007/08 to 2010/11.

17.4 The strategy is based upon the Council’s Treasury officers’ views on interest
rates, supplemented with leading market forecasts provided by the Council’s
external treasury advisor. The strategy covers:

e treasury limits for 2007/08 to 2010/11, which will limit the treasury risk and
activities of the Council;

prudential indicators

the current treasury position and borrowing requirement;

prospects for interest rates;

the borrowing strategy;

the extent of debt rescheduling opportunities;

the investment strategy including the treasury management policy.

17.5 The proposed authorised limits for external debt in 2007/08 to 2010/11 are
consistent with the authority’s current commitments, existing plans and the
proposals in this budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with

19 of 24

\\pk-rag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\S\\RNAIC0006385\Executive23Jan07 .doc



Page 30

its approved treasury management policy statement and practices. They are
based on the estimate of the most likely forecast position, but with sufficient
headroom over and above this to allow for operational cash flow management.

17.6 In the Council’'s 2007/08 to 2010/11 budget plans the capital programme is
mainly based on the amount of supported borrowing and grant from central
government and a projection of potential capital receipts. However there are
three relatively small unsupported borrowing schemes with spend totaling
£984k that will be funded within available resources and are ‘spend to save’
projects. Therefore there is no increase in council tax or housing rent to fund a
higher level of spend above the level of resources available.

17.7 The capital financing requirement (CFR) is planned to increase in 2007/08 by
£13.8 million as a consequence of the capital programme proposed. The new
borrowing requirement for 2007/08 was borrowed in 2006/07 due to the
opportunity to take up some long term borrowing at very advantageous rates
as reported to Executive on 31 October 2006. The net borrowing will be
funded within the resources available.

17.8 The CFR is planned to increase significantly from 2008/09 onwards primarily
because of the anticipated additional supported investment in respect of
Housing decent homes — potentially up to £158m of capital investment
additional resources in housing stock from 2008/09 onwards. This will be
financed by supported borrowing. The supported borrowing in revenue impact
terms will be in the housing revenue account. The costs of borrowing will be
met by actual government support and this will be kept under close review.
The total bid for investment funding for the decent homes scheme is £231m
over the duration of the whole scheme.

17.9 The Building Schools for the Future programme (BSF) has a total of £194m
planned to be spent on BSF (made up of £179m of central government
resources, £10m from the Learning Skills Council contributing towards the cost
of the new 6™ form centre, a specific capital receipt and revenue contributions
from the DSG). It is envisaged this will be largely grant with only about £8m
financed by supported borrowing.

17.10 Sector, our external advisers, have indicated that some debt restructuring
could potentially bring about a financial benefit. There is also a possibility of
rescheduling some debt, which could improve our risk profile measured over
the next 50 years. These opportunities will be reviewed and form part of the
strategy.

17.11 CIPFA issued a draft accounting standards document (SORP 2007) on 18
October 2006 which includes major potential changes in the treatment of the
valuation of debt and investments, the calculation of interest and the treatment
of premia and discounts arising from debt rescheduling. There will be a three
month consultation period before proposals are finalised. It is also expected
that these proposals, once finalised, may make necessary the issue of
legislation by the Government to take effect from 1 April 2007. The authority’s
treasury management strategy will be reviewed once the final decisions in this

20 of 24

\\tpk-mag-002imgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\9\3\AI00006395\Executive23Jan07.doc



Page 31

area are known to see whether any changes will be required in borrowing,
investment or debt rescheduling strategies.

17.12 The annual investment policy forms part of the appendix. There are no
suggested changes to the types of specified investments permitted, but a
review will be carried out during the year with Sector and will be reported back
for approval during the year should any changes be proposed.

18 Council tax

18.1 The planning assumption following the conclusion of the 2006/07 process was
that the council tax would increase by 2.5% in 2007/08 and each year
thereafter. The revised assumption is now an increase of 3% each year in line
with the majority group Manifesto commitment. Members are aware that
Ministers wish to see low council tax increases, and this was reiterated with the
announcement of the draft settlement when Ministers stated that they expect to
see a national average increase of less than 5%.

18.2 Ministers made use of capping powers in respect of the budget decisions of a
number of authorities for 2006/07. The powers are framed in terms of both tax
and budget increases and can take account of a number of years. The
Executive and Council will need to be mindful of Ministers’ views, and the
capping powers available to them, as the budget is finalised.

18.3 | have considered the position with regard to the Council’s tax base for 2007/08
and have updated the figure for the latest estimate in line with our recent return
to the government. | have also decided that the collection rate remains
unchanged at 96%. In respect of the position on the collection fund | consider
any projected surplus or deficit at this stage is not significant enough to impact
on the levels of council tax.

18.4 Appendix A to this report shows a general fund budget requirement generated
by the various factors set out in this report and the executive’s budget package
at £384.602m. The final budget requirement is subject to:

e changes in resources arising from the finalisation of the local government
finance settlement;

e the determination of funding requirements by the various precepting and
levying authorities.

18.5 The council tax for 2007/08 will be set formally by Council on 19 February.
Subject to the factors set out above, and the provisional plans for future years
including identification of a further £56m of savings in 2008/09 onwards, the
proposed increase in Haringey’s council tax will be as follows:

2007/08 3.0%
2008/09 3.0%
2009/10 3.0%
2010/11 3.0%

21 0f 24

\\tpk-mag~002\ngataRoot\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\A100006395\Executive23JanO74doc



Page 32

18.6 The council tax would need to increase by approximately another 5% should
those additional savings not be identified.

18.7 The Council's current plans assume that any increase in the GLA precept will
be passported through to taxpayers. The Mayor is consulting on an increase
of 5.3%, which would give an overall band D increase of 3.5%. The GLA base
precept includes £20 at band D from 2006/07 for 10 years to contribute
towards the 2012 Olympics. There is no further addition to this in 2007/08.

19 Key risk factors

19.1  The management of risk is a key part of the Council’s business and budget
planning processes and is fully reflected in the PBPRs. The most significant
financial risk factors are as follows:

e the Council’s financial reserves remain strong, continuing to attract a good
score within the CPA process. This financial strength plays a vital part in
enabling the Council to respond vigorously to the strategic and
performance agendas whilst managing the financial risks inherent in the
operation of a large and complex organisation. The latest budget
management information indicates no significant overspending and this is
to be welcomed. The cost pressures in Social Services are recognised in
these budget plans, but it is essential, however, that the budget
management process remains challenging and robust so that any issues
which do arise can be resolved effectively. The current policy and plans
allow for general reserves to be maintained at the minimum level of £10m. I
will be reporting formally on the adequacy of reserves in the final tax setting
report to Council;

» the position in respect of homelessness direct costs is set out in
paragraph 9.2 of this report. The continued high number of clients and
further demand within Haringey against the strategy to meet the
government reduction targets, together with the uncertainty associated with
the subsidy regime mean that this will remain a key risk area for the Council
requiring careful monitoring. A further risk is the potential for the
government to claw back subsidy from previous years subject to the
justification of rent setting policies and given the considerable size of this
service in Haringey this could be a significant financial impact;

» the implementation of ‘single status’ pay arrangements incorporating
manual staff by April 2007 is nearing conclusion and for the ongoing cost a
provision in the plans has been made. The issue of backdating is less
certain, but the financial sums could be considerable depending on the
outcome of negotiations, as much as £15m, and any costs arising will need
to be met from reserves and unsupported capitalisation if allowed. This
impacts on schools, the HRA and general fund services:

* the supporting people programme is a key area of service delivery for the
Council with grant funded expenditure of £21.8m in 2006/07. Haringey’s
allocation has been reduced by £1.1m (@ maximum 5.0% for 2007/08).

22 of 24

\\tpk-mag-OOZ\ngataRoot\AgendaltemDocs\5\9\3\A100006395\Executive23JanO7‘doc



Page 33

Such reductions were not unexpected, and plans are in hand to manage
the impact on the level of services which can be commissioned;

* uncertainty still remains in respect of funding arrangements for asylum
seekers. Despite recent announcements on settlement of previous years
special claims by the Home Office, there may be a reduced chance of
special circumstances claims being agreed in the future and there is a lack
of clarity in respect of the medium term incorporation into the mainstream
revenue grant system;

* the capital programme confirms that the Council anticipates a requirement
to provide an increased number of school places. For the secondary
phase, our BSF programme will, in principle, deliver resources for a new
secondary school and a new sixth form centre. For the primary phase, the
proposals to deliver the expected requirement for new places are currently
funded, but there are still significant risk factors in the schemes;

* commissioning strategies for looked after children and social services
clients are demand driven to some extent and therefore remain a volatile
and high risk area;

e the HRA medium-term strategy requires significant savings to be delivered
and that for some of those plans for this are not yet fully implemented.
Detailed work and implementation in this regard will need to continue into
the start of 2007/08. The estimated impact on the general fund has been
provided in the budget plans. The longer term strategy and securing of
capital resources for the decent homes investment is subject to the
inspection achieving two stars:

» the Council manages a number of complex projects both to support change
within the organisation and to deliver service outcomes. The Council's
project management framework has been further improved this year to
recognise and manage risks in respect of these projects, and the Council
operates a programme board structure to ensure that risk is appropriately
managed and mitigated. In addition the delivery of the further £5m budget
savings over the next four years through the achieving excellence
programme is a key risk factor and will require significant corporate effort to
deliver; this will need to be managed closely through these project
governance arrangements;

» the BSF programme and the additional housing capital resources will
constitute a capital programme of exceptional magnitude. The
procurement and delivery of these investment programmes will need to be
carefully and effectively managed to ensure value for money.

23 of 24

\Wpk-mag-002\mgData Root\AgendaltemDocs\5\9\3\A!00006395\Executive23Jan07.doc



20

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

21

21.1

21.2

21.3

21.4

21.5

21.6

21.7

21.8

21.9

22

22.1

Page 34

Summary and conclusions

This report sets out the Executive’s budget proposals for 2007/08 and the
plans for the subsequent three years. The budget is balanced with council tax
increases of 3.0% in each of the four years. The plans include a further £5m
savings target to be delivered through a corporate programme of projects. The
profile of these savings will need to be managed carefully with a view to
minimising the call on balances, in particular in 2008/09.

The plan for the HRA is broadly balanced within the ringfenced resources
available.

The DSG financial plans will require Schools Forum agreement in order to
balance the overall position between delegated and non-delegated.

A capital programme is proposed in line with asset management plans and the
existing policy framework for resource allocation.

Recommendations

To agree the changes and variations set out at paragraph 9 and appendix B.
To note the outcome of the consultation processes set out at paragraph 11.

To agree the new savings and investment proposals set out in paragraphs 12
and 13 and appendices D and E.

To agree the proposals for the children’s services (DSG) budget set out |n
appendix F.

To agree the proposals for the HRA budget set out in appendix G.

To agree the proposals for the capital programme set out in appendices H and
J.

To agree the treasury management strategy and policy and prudential limits
set out in appendix K.

To agree the proposed general fund budget requirement of £384.602m, subject
to the final settlement and the decisions of precepting and levying authorities,
and the consequences for council tax levels

To note that the final decision on budget and council tax for 2007/08 will be
made at the Council meeting on 19 February.

Comments of the Head of Legal Services

The Head of Legal Services confirms that this financial planning report is part
of the budget strategy and fulfils the Council’s statutory requirements in relation
to the budget.

24 of 24

\itpk-mag-002\mgDataRoot\AgendaitemDocs\5\9\3VAI00006385\Executive23Jan07 .doc



Page 35

Gross Budget Trail

Budget brought forward

Changes and variations

Inflation

Agreed in previous years budget process
Changes and variations agreed 4 July 2006
Changes and variations agreed 19 December

Changes and variations in this report (see appendix b)
Changes arising from 2007/08 grant settlement

Investments

2005/06 process

2006/07 process

Proposed new investments

Savings
2005/06 process

2006/07 process
Proposed new savings
Additional 2% savings
Less pre-agreed savings
Savings to be identified

Dedicated schools grant (DSG)
Passporting of DSG
Prior year adjustment

Balances

Contribution to / (from) balances 2005/06 process
Contribution to / (from) balances 2006/07 process
Contribution to / (from) balances 2007/08 process

Gross Council budget requirement
Less dedicated schools grant (specific grant)
Net Council budget requirement

Funding
Council tax (see below)
Government support - formula grant and NNDR

Resource shortfall/(excess)

Council tax

Council tax (LBH)

Council tax base (after provision for non-recovery)
Precept

Rate of council tax increase (Haringey element)
GLA rate of council tax increase

Combined council tax increase

£ per week increase (Haringey element)

Appendix A
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
366,511 384,602 397,311 409,500

8,000 8,420 8,840 9,260

8,752 2,547

2,750 800 (4,355) 2,648
(1,261) 4,250 (750) (750)
(1,566) 3,170 52 0

106

(325)

(3,911) {75)

1,168 668 0 40
(3,068) 593 0 40
(2,892)

(2,208) (3,123)
(5,887) (6,907) (1,775) (2,815)
(1,992) 70 (72) 70
5,100 3,123
(3,000} (2,000) 0
(7.879) (9,837) (3,847) (2,745)
12,420 6,273 6,524 6,785

(186)

12,234 6,273 6,524 6,785
360 (642)

(337)

(2,865) 5,725 (2,645)
384,602 397,311 409,500 422,093
(156,829)  (163,102) (169,626) (176,411)
227,773 234,209 239,874 245,682
95,265 98,123 101,066 104,099
132,508 136,086 138,808 141,583
227,773 234,209 239,874 245,682
0 0 0 0

£ £ £ £
1,127.83 1,161.66 1,196.51 1,232.41
84,468 84,468 84,468 84,468
95,265,544 98,123,097 101,066,807 104,099,208

3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

5.3% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

3.5% 3.4% 3.4% 3.4%

£0.63 £0.65 £0.67 £0.69



Page 36

Resource Shortfall Tracker

Position at end of 2006/07 process

Update for 2007/08 process

Inflation

Capital financing costs

Estimated increase in revenue support grant
Assumed increase in council tax of 2.5%

Changes and variations 4 July 2006

- increase in pension contributions (1%)
- waste disposal

- contingency items

- Alexandra Palace

Target savings previously reported to be identified
Position as at 31 October 2006

Changes and variations 19 December 2006

- reduce inflation assumption for future pay awards
- homelessness reduction

- asylum seekers base underfunding

- energy price increases above inflation

Council Tax
- assume increases at 3%
- actual increase in tax base at November 06

Impact of provisional grant settlement (28 Nov 2006)
Position as at 19 December 2006

Changes and variations now reported
- Social Services base cost pressures
- concessionary fares increases

- additional PF1 contract costs

- NLWA waste disposal levy

- use of LPSA grant

Investments
Proposed investments

Savings
Proposed savings

Additional 2% savings
Less pre-agreed savings
Savings to be identified

Use of balances
Contribution to / (from) balances

Position as at 23 January 2007

Appendix B
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
0 0 0 0 0
8,840 9,260 18,100
750 800 1,037 1,078 3,665
(2,722) (2,776) (5,498)
(2,409) (2,468) (4,877)
750 800 4,746 5,094 11,390
1,060 1,070 2,130
500 500 1,000
3,000 3,000
(1,000) (6,952) (7,952)
2,000 0 (5,392) 1,570 (1,822)
2,862 1,200 4,062
5,612 2,000 (646) 6,664 13,630
(750) (750) (750) (750) (3,000)
(3,000} 5,000 2,000
2,000 2,000
489 489
(1,261) 4,250 (750) (750) 1,489
(458) (484) (509) (538) (1,989)
(822) (25) (25) (26) (898)
(1,280) (509) (534) (564) (2.887)
106 0 0 0 106
3,177 5,741 {1,930) 5,350 12,338
1,957 1,957
57 52 109
90 90
(1,127) 627 (500)
(2,486) 2,486 0
(1,566) 3,170 52 0 1,656
1,168 668 0 40 1,876
(5,887} (6,907) (1,775) (2,815)  (17,384)
(1,992) 70 (72) 70 (1,924)
5,100 3,123 8,223
(3,000) (2,000) {(5,000)
(2,779) (6,714) (3,847) (2,745)  (16,085)
0 (2,865) 5,725 (2,645) 215
0 0 0 0 0



Page 37

FINANCIAL PLANNING 2007/08 — 2010/11

Appendix C1

Overview and Scrutiny — Budget Consultation — Executive Response

Recommendation by Overview & Scrutiny

Suggested Executive response

That the use of differential and individual
departmental efficiency targets be
considered for future years.

Agreed. This will be considered for
future business planning.

A very simple ranking system is developed to
indicate the priority a department puts on a
specific proposal.

Agreed.

That all future Capital and Revenue stream
investment bids for ICT matters are shown
together in one place in the budget and that
more information is provided in the PBPR
documents on the benefits and efficiencies
likely to accrue as a result. ,

Agreed. All individual service
department IT bids are initially
rejected, but will be considered as
part of the single corporate IT
budget, subject to sufficient business
case justification.

The Executive give an indication of how
great they perceive the risk of withdrawal of
HfH funds to be for corporate overheads,
services and systems.

Potentially a sizeable impact and a
contingency provision for fixed costs
and other HRA / General Fund
issues arising has been made.

That Homes for Haringey contribute a
realistic and market rate for Council services
provided to it.

The Council is working closely with
HfH to ensure that individual
services are provided at reasonable
costs.

The Executive continue to make the
strongest representations to Government,
the London Strategic Health Authority and
HTPCT to ensure that either the appropriate
funding level to the PCT is maintained, or to
recognise that the Council requires additional
funding to deal with resultant unmet need.

Agreed. The Executive will continue
to lobby on this issue. Leader
recently wrote to the Health
Secretary on this matter. Some of
the impact of direct cost changes
has been reduced by working with
the PCT. The base budget addition
for Social Services includes
provision for the remainder of the
known direct shortfall.

Consideration is given to the feasibility of
providing a match between Executive
Portfolio areas and departmental
responsibilities, when practical.

The Executive will keep this under
review.

That all efforts be made to ensure that local
businesses are making an appropriate
funding contribution to Town Centre
Management.

Agreed.




Page 38

Wards Corner redevelopment be
reconsidered and/or re-profiled.

Appendix C1

9 | That the proposed efficiencies in relation to Agreed. £40k of the total £69K is not
the Youth Offending Service be recommended for acceptance.
reconsidered.

10 | That the proposed investment in relation to Not agreed, however, alternative
the Youth Offending Service be supported. funding (e.g. NRF) should be

sought.

11 | That Pest Control fees reflect the ability to Not agreed. A new charging policy
pay and that there be free treatment for should be introduced reflecting
disabled and elderly persons who are in ability to pay across all domestic
receipt of means tested state benefit. clients.

12 | That Pest Control fees for all commercial Agreed.
premises reflect the full market rate.

13 | That Homes for Haringey contribute a HfH contribution to service cost will
realistic and market rate for Noise Control fully reflect the added service value
and Enforcement services provided to it. arising from this service

improvement.

14 | That more advertising income is generated Agreed. This will be reviewed,
by the sale of space in Haringey People. however, it is recognised that we

need to consider carefully
| associating advertisers with the
Council.

15 | That the proposed level of investment (in Agreed. Executive recommend that
support posts) to the Haringey Strategic NRF funding is sought via the HSP.
Partnership be reconsidered and that funding
be secured from other partnership agencies.

16 | That the proposed level of investment to It is considered necessary to make a
support the Value for Money programme be | substantial one-off provision to
reconsidered. support this programme, which will

need to deliver £5m of ongoing base
budget savings.

17 | That the proposed level of investment to Agreed. Will need to be considered
support the SAP system be reconsidered alongside other bids for the
and/or re-profiled. corporate IT funding.

18 | That the proposed level of investment for The level proposed is a minimum
essential maintenance of Council building be | acceptable level of essential repairs,
reconsidered and/or re-profiled. including DDA and health and safety

works.

19 | That the proposed level of investment for Agreed. Not recommended for

funding in this way, other options to
be explored.




Page 39

Appendix C1

20 | That the proposed level of efficiency in Agreed. Savings re-profiled.
Customer Services be reconsidered and/or
re-profiled.

21 | That HR and line managers collectively Agreed. Already a management
reduce the absentee rate to below the level target and monitored monthly.
of the national average.

22 | That the IT Department run a seminar for Agreed. This will be discussed as
Members to provide information on how and | part of the review of IT being
where investments will be made and the prepared for Overview and Scrutiny.
likely efficiencies and service improvements
that can be expected as a result.

23 | That the Executive minimise the savings in The Executive will prioritise savings
Health and Social Care at the expense of that have minimal impact on all front
firstly new growth and secondly more line services, for example the
savings from elsewhere savings option for closure of drop-in

centres is recommended not to be
accepted.

24 | That the proposed efficiencies proposed as a | This proposal will be the subject of a
result of the merger of The Winkfield Road more detailed review that will look at
and Haven Road centres are not supported | the cost effectiveness of the current
and are requested to be reconsidered. service provision and will produce

options to ensure that improved
value for money and use of assets is
obtained.

25 | That the proposed closure of the Keston Not agreed. The services would
Road Centre be reconsidered. continue to be provided in a

different, more modern way.

26 | That the proposal to reduce the Meals on Partly agreed. Further work to be
Wheels subsidy be reconsidered. done on the proposals before

implementation. The subsidy
reduction has been re-phased to
limit the impact of increases in the
first year.

27 | That the proposed investment in the Asylum | Agreed, however, the direct cost of
team be reconsidered. asylum provision is recognised in the

budget plans.

28 | That the proposed level of efficiency in Not agreed. Minimal impact on the

respect of employment and skills
programme be reconsidered.

whole programme.




Page 40

Appendix C1

29 | That the proposed level of efficiency in Not agreed. Saving will be achieved

respect of Pest Control be reconsidered. in conjunction with plan to reduce
overall level of Council subsidy on
this service.

30 | That the proposed efficiency in respect of Not agreed. Proposals for overall
increased income from parking permit charging policy on parking to be
charges be reconsidered. considered by the Executive.

31 | That the proposed efficiencies to The Not agreed. Savings required so
Community Clear Up Scheme be recommend this, protecting basic
reconsidered. core service. Also separately there is

investment in Street Cleansing.

32 | That the proposed efficiency to the Planning | Not agreed. Minimal impact on
(Development Control) Service be overall service performance.
reconsidered. '

33 | That the proposed efficiency to the Planting | Not agreed. Can be achieved
and Maintenance of parks and green open without significant impact on overall
spaces be reconsidered. service.

34 | That the proposed efficiency to the Benefits | Not agreed. Savings can be
and Local Taxation Service be reconsidered. | implemented alongside other service

improvements to ensure minimal
impact on customers and
performance indicators.

35 | That service users be consulted and there Not agreed. Current use of
views be considered before a decision on electronic mail means that the
the proposed efficiency in the internal post internal post service can be reduced.
collection/delivery is taken.

36 | The proposed efficiency to the Social Work | Not agreed. The service could not

Trainee Scheme is reconsidered.

find other efficiencies to compensate
and are, overall, in favour of the
saving being made on this budget.
There is still a sufficient programme
in place after this saving.




Page 41
Appendix C2

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda ltem

THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
23" January 2007

Report title: BUDGET SCRUTINY — PRE BUSINESS PLAN REVIEW DOCUMENTS

Report of: Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Ward(s) affected  ALL

1. Purpose

1.1 To report on the issues raised by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on
departmental Pre Business Plans and Executive budget proposals.

1.2 To comment on some general themes identified in respect of the budget scrutiny
process.

2. Recommendations

2.2 That the Executive consider the recommendations contained in this report made by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, as part of the Council’s budget making process.

Report authorised by: Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Contact officer: Trevor Cripps — Overview and Scrutiny Manager

Telephone: 020 8489 6922

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The report contains the results from detailed scrutiny of Pre Business Plan Review
documents and proposals for budgetary savings and investments for 2007/08. The
detailed work has been completed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
report is a reflection of the issues raised.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for policy development




Page 42

Appendix C2

None

5. Access to information:
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
5.1 The background papers relating to this report are:
Financial Strategy 2007/8 to 20010/11, report of Director of Finance
Pre Business Plan Reviews 2007/8
0&S Committee, minutes for meetings on 20th, 28th and 29th November 2006,
18 December 2006, and 10 January 2007.

Copies are available on request, from Jeremy Williams, Members Services (non executive
Committees), on telephone 020 8489 2919.

REPORT

6. BACKGROUND

Pre Business Plan Reports 2007/08 were released by the Executive in early November

2006. The Executive Portfolio Members were invited to Overview and Scrutiny

Committee to explain the rationale behind, and to justify their proposals. The proposals

were in respect of investment and efficiency proposals in relation to both Capital and
Revenue expenditure for the four year planning period commencing in 2007/8

As part of the scrutiny process some issues have been identified that the Committee
wishes to bring to the attention of the Executive. This report identifies items which the

Committee considered and where it wished to make comment on the proposals, or where

the Committee would like the Executive to take account of it's recommendations.

7. GENERAL ISSUES IDENTIFIED

In carrying out the budget scrutiny exercise the Committee has assimilated a large
amount of budgetary information and there are issues and risks that have become
apparent as a result. The Committee wishes to draw these to the attention of the
Executive.

741 Council Targets and Departmental Priorities




7.2

Page 43
Appendix C2

As part of the budget scrutiny process the Committee wished to weigh the relative impact
of the proposals put forward overall, on Council services.

The Committee came to the conclusion that the method of setting a blanket target for
efficiencies was not totally satisfactory as it did not necessarily take account of the impact
on front line services to the most needy local people. These are areas that the Council
should seek to protect when achieving efficiencies. It was felt that the proposals impacted
disproportionately across departments and that as a result some of the proposals were
for reductions in services to the most needy and vulnerable local people. For this reason
the Committee was not in favour of some of the proposals put forward by the Executive
Member for Health and Social Care.

However the Committee was mindful that to request that the Executive reconsider its
proposed efficiencies, would require the burden to either fall elsewhere in the same
department, the impact of which might be even less palatable, or to shift the burden on
to other departments. The Committee found itself in a dilemma about asking the
Executive to reconsider specific efficiency proposals, as to do so may increase the
financial “gap”. The Committee did not feel it had the level of knowledge required to
recommend specific efficiencies in other areas to compensate, or to suggest a shift in the
level of burden between departments. However | did think a case could be made to do so
and that the Executive was in a position to consider it..

The Committee accepted that the stark choice was, less investment, greater efficiencies
and perhaps weighted departmental efficiency targets. However, it recognised that
budget setting was too far advanced to change the process this time round, but the
Committee would like to suggest to the Executive that for future years a more
sophisticated method of setting differential efficiency targets for departments be
considered.

Recommendation 1

That the use of differential and individual departmental efficiency targets be
considered for future years.

Another area which the Committee found challenging was making sound judgement on
the merits and relative priority to the Council of the specific proposals put forward. The
written impact assessment in the PBPR documents was brief in the extreme and,
although there was rigor in the questioning of Executive Members on some specific
items, others were not covered. Currently there is no systematic and objective way to
weigh the merits of one proposal against those of another. The Committee was of the
view that a very simple ranking system, that rated the priority of the proposal to the
department, would be of great assistance.

Recommendation 2

A very simple ranking system be developed to indicate the priority a department
puts on a specific proposal.

Information Technology Investment Bids.




7.3

7.4

Page 44
Appendix C2

One of the main issues in the Technology Refresh project was the discovery of many
unsupported and outdated IT systems that were in use throughout the council. As part of
the budget scrutiny process the Committee has encountered, peppered throughout
departmental Capital and Revenue investment bids, items for new or replacement
systems, systems upgrades and system support not provided centrally. The Committee
understands that there is central control and that a business case will have been made
and that systems must be technically compatible etc. However it makes it difficult to
determine the relevant priority and total in year investment proposals in Information
Technology. Many of the bids allude to improved service provision or potential efficiency
savings in future as a result, however, despite specific requests for information from the
Committee, the detail of what these are was not given in many instances .

The Committee wish to suggest to the Executive that in future years the possibility of
presenting all the investment bids together in one place, under the Corporate IT budget
proposals be considered. Also that there be much more information given on the benefits
and detail of efficiencies likely to accrue in future years as a result of proposed
investments. To assist in this regard, a retrospective analysis of the benefits accrued
from past spending would be very useful.

Recommendation 3
That all future Capital and Revenue stream investment bids for ICT matters be
shown together in one place in the budget and that more information be provided

in the PBPR documents on the benefits and efficiencies likely to accrue as a result.

Homes for Haringey (HfH)

Several departments have identified risks attached to the withdrawal of funding of posts
by HfH. The Committee understands that HfH is carrying out Value for Money Reviews
and as a result is fully entitled to choose not to use Council provided services and to
switch to more competitive suppliers. In most instances departments will need to budget
accordingly. It does however raise the question of fixed overheads and the fact that any
significant withdrawal of HfH funding will lead to increased overheads for corporate
support services and systems e.g. SAP for other council services.

Recommendation 4

The Executive give an indication of how great they perceive the risk of withdrawal
of HfH funds to be for corporate overheads, services and systems and sets out its
contingency plan to deal with significant marginal increases in overheads and
their impact on business units.

Recommendation 5

That Homes for Haringey contribute a realistic and market rate for Council services
provided to it.

Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust (PCT) — budget reductions

The Committee was informed that as a direct result of withdrawal of funding by the PCT



7.5

8.1

Page 45
Appendix C2

there will be an overspend to the Social Services budget this year. Next year, further
withdrawal of funding (understood to be a 3.6% budget top-slice by the London SHA) will
have a significant impact on Social Services provision and to a lesser extent on
Children’s Services.

The Committee is concerned that the Council is picking up an additional burden in
providing support to local people, as a result of action by the PCT, nevertheless it
recognises that local need cannot be ignored. It accepts that the gross PCT budget
shows a small increase, the budget overall growth was smaller than anticipated. The
Committee would like to be assured that the Executive is making the strongest possible
representations to the PCT and Central Government, to ensure that either the
appropriate funding level to the PCT is maintained, or to recognise that the Council
requires additional funding to deal with resultant unmet need. At the same time it was
anxious that every effort is made to strengthen partnership working with the PCT.

Recommendation 6

The Executive continue to make the strongest representations to Government, the
London Strategic Health Authority and HTPCT to ensure that either the appropriate
funding level to the PCT is maintained, or to recognise that the Council requires
additional funding to deal with resultant unmet need.

Executive Portfolios and Departmental Responsibilities

Currently Executive portfolios and Departmental responsibilities do not match entirely as
some portfolio areas are cross departmental. The Committee was of the view that it
would be advantageous and bring greater clarity to the budget process if a match could
be achieved.

Recommendation 7

Consideration be given to the feasibility of providing a match between Executive
Portfolio areas and departmental responsibilities, where practical.

ENTERPRISE AND REGENERATION - EXECUTIVE PROTFOLIO AREA

Regeneration

The Committee raised concerns over the proposed Capital bid of £6m for Wards Corner.
It was informed of the strategic importance of the site that the council had been trying to
develop the site since 2003 but that there were major challenges. The site was in multiple
ownership, straddled the tube line and was likely to need complete demolition and
rebuilding. The site needed investment of £60/70m in total and would not be redeveloped
without public subsidy. The £6m reflected the worst case scenario as alternate funding
sources may develop. The Committee queried the need for the £6m in one year and how
it would be spent and when. The Committee wished the Executive to revisit this bid to be
sure that the level of investment by the Council was essential and that as a minimum, the
bid should be profiled over a longer period.

Recommendation 8



8.2

8.3

10.

10.1

Page 46
Appendix C2

That the proposed level of investment for Wards Corner redevelopment be
reconsidered and/or re-profiled.

Communications

- efficiencies

The Committee noted the proposed cumulative efficiencies of £107k in respect of Town
Centre Management. It heard that this was achievable by the deletion of the Wood Green
Deputy Manager post which was currently vacant, with some work disappearing and
other being redistributed. The Committee was very keen to ensure that local businesses
were making an appropriate funding contribution to a service which benefited them. They
were assured that the Council was seeking a greater contribution from those businesses
directly benefiting from Town Centre Management.

Recommendation 9
That all efforts be made to ensure that local businesses are making a realistic and

appropriate funding contribution to Town Centre Management.

Planning Policy and Performance

- efficiencies

The Committee noted the proposed cumulative efficiencies of £410k.

It welcomed the fact that consultancy and temporary agency staff had been further
reduced and are now at a very low level. The Committee sought and was given
assurance that the proposals to reduce planning support staff would not be detrimental
to planning performance and were pleased to note that the redeployment procedure
would be used for displaced staff so that redundancy would be kept to a minimum. It
noted that planning fees were set nationally.

- investments

The Committee welcomed the securing of £14.2m growth funds for infrastructure projects
in respect of Tottenham Hale and Haringey Heartlands and noted the £350k revenue
growth proposed delivery in these areas.

In respect of the revenue and capital growth bids for Information Technology systems,

equipment and support, the Committee noted the proposals but would like to see all bids

in future directed through IT. There is general comment on IT issues earlier in the report.

CRIME AND COMMUNITY SAFETY — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO AREA

Safer Communities




10.2

Page 47
Appendix C2

- efficiencies

The Committee was informed that the service was heavily reliant on external funding.
The point was made that savings targets were imposed on the net level of spend and that
there was limited scope to spread the savings. Therefore they would have a detrimental
impact on service delivery. The Committee was unhappy with the cumulative savings
proposals of £69k in the Youth Offending Service, as it was viewed as counter productive
and would impact on performance of a vital and effective service. They therefore wish to
refer these proposals back to the Executive with a recommendation that the proposals be
reconsidered.

Recommendation 10

That the proposed efficiencies in relation to the Youth Offending Service be
reconsidered.

- investments

For similar reasons the Committee supported the cumulative revenue growth bids of
£115k for this service.

Recommendation 11

That the proposed investment in relation to the Youth Offending Service be
supported.

Enforcement

- efficiencies

The Committee noted the proposed cumulative savings of £100k in respect of Pest
Control, by removal of the subsidies in preparation for market testing in 2009. While
supporting the proposal the Committee was concerned that the charging policy, which
had yet to be developed, needed to reflect the ability to pay. It sought free treatment for
disabled and elderly persons who were in receipt of means tested state benefit with
charges, possibly banded, which reflected the ability to pay. It also wished all commercial
premises to be charged a full market rate for any work carried out.

Recommendation 12

That Pest Control fees reflect the ability to pay and that there be free treatment for
disabled and elderly persons who are in receipt of means tested state benefit.

Recommendation 13

That Pest Control fees for all commercial premises reflect the full market rate.

- investments



1.

12.

Page 48
Appendix C2
The Committee raised concern over the proposed growth of £300k in respect of the Out
of Hours service. It was informed that Homes for Haringey were reviewing its investment
in this service. While the Committee supported the further investment in this service it
was of the opinion that HfH must contribute a realistic market rate for the service in

respect of noise control and enforcement. It wished the Executive to ensure this was the
case.

The Committee was also concerned to see another item of revenue growth of £100k and
a Capital bid of £405k for IT systems upgrade and support.
Recommendation 14

That Homes for Haringey contribute a realistic and market rate for Noise Control
and Enforcement services provided to it.

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL - PORTFOLIO AREA

- efficiencies

All savings proposals were noted.

- investments

The Committee was concerned at the proposed revenue bid for £31k in respect of
postage costs in relation to Haringey People, which was explained as necessary due to
the introduction of new Royal Mail size based postage charges. This comes on the back
of an £161k increase last year. They wished to see more advertising income generated
to offset the costs of production and delivery.

Recommendation 13

That more advertising income be generated by the sale of space in Haringey

People.

The Committee was also concerned at the bid for £150k for support posts to the
Haringey Strategic Partnership. It suggests to the Executive that this be reduced and
funds to support the partnership be secured from the other partnership agencies.

Recommendation 16
That the proposed level of investment in support posts to the Haringey Strategic

Partnership be reconsidered and that funding be secured from other partnership
agencies.

FINANCE — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

- Investments



13.

Page 49
Appendix C2

The Committee expressed concern over the Capital bid of £2m to support the Value for
Money programme. It was informed that the bid was to cover a 2 year budget gap and
that external resources were required to ensure the council set up and was delivering
value for money studies. After this period the programme would be supported in house. It
was anticipated that the studies would achieve savings in excess of the investment
made, although there was no detail at this stage of how or where. The Committee was
sceptical that this large level of investment (equivalent of 12 senior accountants), was
necessary and would like the Executive to revisit it.

Recommendation 17

That the proposed level of investment to support the Value for Money programme
be reconsidered.

The Committee queried the necessity for the proposed Capital bid of £2m for ongoing
investment in the SAP IT system. It was informed of the benefits SAP brought and that
the level of savings in excess of £1.5k achieved. SAP was not considered to be exploited
to its maximum potential and could bring further future savings. The level of saving or
where they may accrue was not identified.

Recommendation 18
That the proposed level of investment to support the SAP system be reconsidered

and/or re-profiled.

The Committee recognised that well maintained council buildings are desirable, but
wished to ensure that the level of Capital investment of £2m was for essential works. It
was informed that the bid was made as a result of detailed property condition surveys
that had been carried out on the Councils building portfolio and that the bid covered
essential works to that portfolio. The Committee thought there might be some room to
manoeuvre here and wished the Executive to revisit this bid.

Recommendation 19

That the proposed level of investment for essential maintenance of Council
building be reconsidered and/or re-profiled.

-efficiencies

Were noted

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT — EXECUTIVE PORFOLIO




131

14.

141

14.2

14.3

Page 50
Appendix C2
Customer Services

Customer Services was identified as a area where the potential withdrawal of HfH from
the call centre or customer services centres could have significant implications for those
services. The Committee raised a query regarding the responsibility of HfH funding and
were informed that the Leader was investigating and that it was important to establish the
correct relationships. In terms of the £562k of saving identified, it would seem that this
was not without risk. The Committee suggested that a re-profiling of the saving over 3 or
4 years might be beneficial.

Recommendation 20
That the proposed level of efficiency in Customer Services be reconsidered and/or

re-profiled.

ORGANISATION DEVELOPMENT — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

Human Resources

The Committee was informed that up to 30% of posts within the Council may be vacant
at any one time, but the only way that this would show on the budget would be as an
under-spend or by increased use of temporary or agency staff.

The Committee noted the savings identified in respect of improved absence management
and welcomed further initiatives to reduce the employee absence average figure of 10.4
days per year, to 8 or less. This was considered to be a prime example of the type of
area where the Council should be setting tough departmental strategies and targets to
bring about reductions to below the national average.

Recommendation 21

That HR and line managers collectively reduce the absentee rate to below the level
of the national average.

Leqgal Services

The Committee was informed of the likely loss of income from Land Charges search
fees. The service makes a surplus and currently contributes £600k to the council’s
budget. There was no figure in the budget to reflect this and it is unclear how any
reduction to income would be made up in future.

HfH was a large customer of Legal Services, if HfH ceased to use council provided

services, the Legal Department would need to downsize and restructure accordingly.

Although there were service level agreements in place the Committee was informed that
HfH could opt out of these. The Committee asked if binding contracts could be used, and
it was informed that service level agreements gave the same level of protection.

Information Technology

10



15.

15.1

15.2

16.

17.

Page 51
Appendix C2

The Committee was informed that the council must continue to invest in ICT for the
foreseeable future if it wished to take advantage of future developments, which when
implemented would potentially increase performance. The Committee asked what would
happen if we didn’t invest at the proposed level. The effect for a number of services was
highlighted. The Committee was mindful that it had just commissioned a Scrutiny review
Panel to look at the service. However, it felt there was a significant lack of information on
how and where money would be spent and, more importantly, what benefits would
accrue to the council in terms of efficiencies and to residents in terms of better value for
money services. It therefore requested that Member briefing sessions be arranged by the
IT Department to explain.

Recommendation 22
That the IT Department run a seminar for Members to provide information on how

and where investments will be made and the likely efficiencies and service
improvements that can be expected as a result.

ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

Recreation & Leisure

The Committee noted the high level of Capital and Revenue investment proposed some
of which attracted match funding from other sources. It recognised that investment in this
area had been neglected in the past. The proposed Leisure Transfer was felt to be a
pragmatic method to achieve savings estimated at £ 404k . The Committee noted a
revenue investment bid of £176k for IT&S upgrades.

Streetscene

The Committee noted an revenue investment bid of £167k for IT projects.

HOUSING — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

The main issue was HfH and the need for a speedy resolution to Service Level
Agreements being in place and the increased corporate costs and overheads that will
result from any withdrawal of HfH income to other council services.

Also to ensure that HfH had the level of support required and would achieve it's goal of
being evaluated as a 2 star service at the March 2007 inspection, by the Audit
Commission.

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE —EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

11



18.

Page 52
Appendix C2

The Committee welcomed the fact that the proposal to achieve savings by the closure
the Drop In centres and Luncheon Clubs had been withdrawn.

It noted the impact that the Primary Care Trust proposals were likely to have for the
council, although it had no sense of whether this would have any effect on clinical
outcomes for residents.

After a delegation and public debate at the proposals to merge the Winkfield and Haven
Day Centres, the Committee did not support the merger and would like the Executive to
consider further it's proposal to achieve savings by this action.

Recommendation 23

That the Executive minimise the savings in Health and Social Care at the expense
of, firstly, new growth and ,secondly, more savings from elsewhere

Recommendation 24

That the proposed efficiencies proposed as a result of the Merger of The Winkfield
Road and Haven Road Centres are not supported and are requested to be
reconsidered.

The committee raised concern on the proposals for Keston Road Centre
Recommendation 25

That the proposed closure of the Keston Road Centre be reconsidered.

The Committee would also like the Executive to reconsider it's proposal to reduce the
subsidy to Meals on Wheels as it felt this would affect take up and hit those in poverty the
hardest.

Recommendation 26

That the proposal to reduce the Meals on Wheels subsidy be reconsidered.

The Committee did not support the proposed revenue investment bid of £225k for the
Asylum Team. It did not wish to see the team re-established as it had been disbanded
and the functions have been mainstreamed. It did, however, express concern at the
Government'’s funding regime and its support for and treatment of Haringey on this issue.

Recommendation 26

That the proposed investment in the Asylum team be reconsidered.

CHILDREN’S & YOUNG PEOPLES — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

12



18.1

18.2

18.3

19.

191

20.

Page 53
Appendix C2
Children & Families

The Committee was informed that the proposals put forward were not without risk and
that they would be monitored closely. The Committee noted risk to the savings proposed
if foster care and adoption was not increased and children were taken into care.

Youth Service

The Committee welcomed the proposed investment in the youth service.
Schools

The Committee noted that a large proportion of the budget was ring-fenced directly to
schools, however they welcomed the investments proposed.

ADDENDUM

ENTERPRISE AND REGENERATION - EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

Policy & Regeneration

- efficiencies

The Committee was concerned at the proposal to achieve efficiencies of £73k in respect
of funding to the Voluntary Sector, as it was of the opinion that it would impact on some
of the most vulnerable and disadvantaged members of our community.
Recommendation 27

That the proposed level of efficiency in Voluntary Sector funding be reconsidered.
The Committee was also concerned at the proposed efficiencies of £15k in respect of the
employment skills training programme. Although this is a small amount the Committee
thought it was hard to justify as it may potentially lead to a loss of matched funds and in
effect be to double the impact on the unemployed who were seeking training or
retraining.

Recommendation 28

That the proposed level of efficiency in respect of employment and skills

programme be reconsidered.

CRIME AND COMMUNITY SAFETY — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

- efficiencies

13



20.1

21.

21.1

21.2

Page 54

Appendix C2
Enforcement
The committee supported the proposal to achieve efficiencies of £52K in respect of street
wardens. However it wished to query whether the Pest Control Service could become
fully self financing from fee income and thereby negate necessity to achieve the
efficiency of £28k proposed. It was keen to ensure a full market rate was charged to
commercial and HfH.

Recommendation 29

That the proposed level of efficiency in respect of Pest Control be reconsidered.

ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

- efficiencies
Streetscene

An increase in the revenue from parking permits charges and parking fees and
increasing pay and display bay of £300k over 4 years, profiled as £75K in 2007/08 and
£225k in 2008/09, has already been proposed. The Committee would query whether a
further 20% increase in charges and the generation of a further £136K in 2007/08 is
sustainable.

Recommendation 30
That the proposed efficiency in respect of increased income from parking permit

charges be reconsidered.

The proposed efficiencies of £113K by restricting the Community Clear Up scheme to
NRF areas would seem on the face of it to be counter productive. It may lead to more fly
tipping and less clean streets in those non NRF areas. The community clear up scheme
is valued by residents and has been successful.

Recommendation 31

That the proposed efficiencies to The Community Clear Up Scheme be
reconsidered.

Planning, Policy and Performance

The Council has a good record in respect of dealing with planning applications. The
Committee has previously been informed of the issues of recruitment and retention

14



21.3

22.

221

22.2

Page 55

Appendix C2

(R&R) of experienced planning officers. It is of the opinion that the proposal to achieve
efficiencies of £50K by reducing the number of planning posts and increasing the
workload of those posts remaining is likely to adversely effect R&R and the processing of
planning applications.

Recommendation 32

That the proposed efficiency to the Planning (Development Control) Service be
reconsidered.

Recreation

There was no explanation on the impact that efficiencies of £100K in respect of
Maintenance and Planting would have on our parks and green open spaces. Open space
renewal is a council priority and commitment. It is a strand of the greenest borough
strategy and is linked with the proposed Local area Agreements.

Recommendation 33

That the proposed efficiency to the Planting and Maintenance of parks and green
open spaces be reconsidered.

FINANCE — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

- efficiencies

Benefits and Local Taxation

The Committee is of the opinion that it would be counter productive for efficiencies of
£36k to be made, that may have a high risk of delaying Housing Benefit support to
claimants (many of whom are vulnerable members of the community). It is mindful of the
impact this may have on homelessness, indebtedness and to a lesser extent landlords.

Recommendation 34

That the proposed efficiency to the Benefits and Local Taxation Service be
reconsidered.

Property Services

The Committee view the internal courier post collection/delivery service to all council
building as an important and intrinsic part of the council’s communication network.
Although there are now many alternative electronic means of communication and

15



23

23.1

Page 56

Appendix C2
processing there still remains a significant traffic in hard copy. The Committee would like
users of the service to be consulted on the level of service they require and the impact on
their services before a final decision is taken.

Recommendation 35
That service users be consulted and there views be considered before a decision
on the proposed efficiency in the internal post collection/delivery is taken.

HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES — EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO

efficiencies

Social Services

The council has experienced recruitment and retention problems in the social work area
in the past. As part of the solution to this problem the trainee scheme was developed to
attract staff and to ensure that the training they experienced was not only extensive but
also relevant and tailored to local circumstances.

Recommendation 36

The proposed efficiency to the Social Work Trainee Scheme be reconsidered.

16



Page 57

L e

¥Z6'L L 0L 661 T deoay

] ] , @ W IS SBUIAES [EUGHIPPY
S — li,ﬁ T e e ”1’ S, [,’“f’ [[’MJ — [[[[Tn[].l S .,el S [_7][ jljrkwlil:‘:[![iw‘i J,[.![.:‘i»lﬂ:;[i]v[!:[«.[ Rl . . A
6817 €LL6L e v6€ S SIL 768 15602 5269 100€9

. Wmf.l — l:J‘l‘JLM‘l,fiélzl‘w[,fi\ ,l.!;rf ] — l;

E1E's  oes 62- 6211 5 0 181 !
98" £8€°L1

, Tlesl T i
oy si8'e 0 G1l'L 899 206'9 891L°L
000.3 000.3 B 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 T
Yimoin sbujaeg o YIMmoin sBuiaeg yimouin sbujreg yimolo sBuireg ymoln sbuiaeg e
aAljeinuInY Lioioz 01/6002 60/8002 80/.002

su

o T
ondo sbui

@ xipuaddy

AebBuireH jo ybnolog uopuoT]

suodQ sjusunssAuf pue sBuiaeg jo sishjeuy Alewwng

ABS DUE SJUSLL}SaAUL Jo sisKjBue Kiewuwing



Page 58

“apm UbnoIoq S81e15a|

U0 SDIOYBSRoY 000'G1 12 0} pepuedxs eq o} eoinas

S 10} Mojie jum Buipuny sy 'g/200z pue tmooww
Buunp sejeise uo spioyasnoy goog 10430 pay k_

Buiaq s1 uoyosljon BuioAnss Ayue-igau pue deysioop v! §62

W (wewsbeueyy sisep) .mm_tmao._&

‘ 000S1 01 0009 WOy ‘seje)se uo|

_wu_ocww:o: e 01 60/8002 Ut SUORDSYI00 | ! AIBSUOD B >cm_
Buyohses dejsioop jo co_wcmaxm~ mcmom_mm:ﬂ JUBLLIUOHAL JAquBp dex3| g

I e e E e B e e

AsBuen ..msmmmi 1deooy

“18U985 JUSWUONAUS INO - D}SBUBW

4NOGET "UOHOBJSHES JOWOISNO PaACIdW] UOROBISHES
JBLI0ISND paosdl  uoROB(I0Y peiBuiuwod e Bul 12084
SIBY JO $3D0Jq PUE SBSNOY j{e M ‘Seoies BuioAsey !

w
|

w
|

H

|
|
|

|
|
_q
|

uo oedw aamisod e saey M 1osfosd sy .m:_uce_ ::mEmmm:mE, ; AJBSUOD 9 AU
ydeooy 1epded jo jeaosdde uo Juepuadap st Buipun) siyy | 662 QISEAN) BoIMIBS Bulfohos: 40 uoisuedxgy BUdDsIEBS EmE:QS:ﬁ Jaquisy dexg! 4
Ueusesbl T e lfl Ry R i toshf i i did F e

JUBLUUGIIAUS JNO - OJSBYUEY JNOqET ...maEmamm_
B18) Ul 8SNoY U1 1yBnoIg s1 BOIAIBS BU) JUN UMOUNUN
G 1M $1S03 jeRusiod JBUID) "9sNoY Uj SadiAIes mc__gum:‘

|
i i
|
i H
| |

AIBSUOD B >=w_

e - Jewden,0 encucde uo uepuadap 1 Bupury
|
|

AsbBuuey soneg jdedoy Buibuig wouy Buynses sis0o uoisued paseasou}| 08 BSNOY-ut sao1nes BuipAoces Buibung BUIOSIPBNS | JUBWILOIAUT | LBqUIBy 99xg; 9
(3] {EJ01 UOReaIDeY
1S1 m_aomn: i "SPIEMUO 80/200¢ WOl SULEIBOId me\/_ i i ] V
Sumng / mm_gc:EEoo_, f -G UBpIDY [eRuSlod J0 suoyeoydiu uoneBay Auoygnd | H i i ABSUOD B AU
| 08uong g ojes buping,  jdesoy _ 3su5npe snid spunoif Ajsjes pue wieay uo sy ubik| 09 * frotes ieuowsy UoneSIooy | Emsces:mq Joquon 093 g
IR, St E — S Sttt et it TR e R B T e
1814 31doad mcEDL Jd8ooy ‘uoneyobeuy uogesyeussixe _Emwmoo:mwi - _ MBIABY Jofsuel | Binsio ; :o.amm._owm:ﬁ JUBWIUOIAU L 14
2203 PR DU e OO TONESIER R [081 S S S i e TATEVEdL | ddswuolay - Y.
15414 9)doay m:_n:M ydsooy | o-¢ J0f wnuue sod) 9700 Woy yatew 3.3 ﬁu@:<,._ 0L | Buipuny 8100 3uoMpUNoJ _ UOEaI08Y | uswuonaug|  uequepy 09X3; ¢
00 18101 Juawiansogugy
, “90UBJIOAINS mc._QE:L | _ ‘
_ pue Buiddy Ay se yons 8nssi 0} puodsai 0} sjge _ ‘ ,
8Q 0sje (Im BoIAI8S “asuodsas NINS J0 Juswdojensp! i i _
”f Hoddns osje jm sy} pue 9SBBIOUI M SfED suoydas; i i H
ﬁ 0} 8SUOASB1 SBIAISS IBWIOISND PEdIOJUS DI | ; ‘
SUONIPUOS S5UBDY ‘suoRIPULD Buiuueld ‘sinoy Buiwad | M i ,
| 1ey; Buunsus ‘siepew ‘Buipes Jayio Joy wocm.._anJ | f ;
; 1030sU1 O] UBHE} BY I XIOM BAIOE-0ld “UOINED | i f _
M €10 uoynassoud ul ynses Auo jsow Agusung .wocmm_:i ‘ i |
, Buisneo juswidinbs azies pue sispusyo auy o) cmxﬁ ; | { i
| 94 lim UoROE BSNEIBY BSIOU WOJ Jaljal 8pircsd o) yBiu! JUBWBIIONS | ; | ;
8U) U0 suonuaAIBlU| 'Z Jesk Aq.noy 2 uyum mE_m_anL | pasessour woy Buisue mwwooﬁ i i _
‘ i HE 10 %001 01 pue seak 181y um 1eiduwod Jo Jnoy| W woddns pue jefig] jeuonippe _m>oo_. ‘ f ;
18414 adosg | ? UM %001 0} pajebysanul sied jurgidwos asiou jo %! ,ﬁ "SIN0Y (eosun Joj sjuswaiddns Jeaod| ; , b&mL
Buming / mm:_c:EEoo_ [BSEBI0U JiM JUBULSBAU] ‘MBIABI O} 108{ans st yoiym xvouv _ pue BupUsKo JBPEO.q JBA0D 0} ﬁmoa‘ ; | Wwod g awwy|
1obuons 3 Jejes Buiping| deooy 4O JUBLLSBAUL Hi4 Uodn Juapuadep aie s1ebpng JUBLND L 002 i asjou Bupsixe yidn — sunop 1010 JuBBIoUT | EmE:ES:& JOqUIBiy vax3g | g
001 0 9 0§ 0s ® Spiepuelg jooyosg
I | g12'v sieak z uf yoes: posodord 290"t 1snBny-judy | ; | ] i @ !
JUSWIBABIYOY UoBa: JUBLNG OIS0 oM yinok oeushb jo Ayenb dvid EmE‘ uoisnou ‘ aidd’A 8 uaIpYD
uoneonp3 Buisiey 1dsooy oy Buinouduwi uo pusdap 1M dyid au o Asaeg 001 05 ] PUE UOISIA0JD B0IAIBS UINOA BA0sdull 3 SPiepuels [00UdS | B0IMSS SUBIDIYD!  Laquisyy oex3| |
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
uosesy uoHEPUsWWIOseY yeduyseduspusdeg aAleinWING amw%mcmmm %M“_ mmcwmm ww%p umcwmm s Mw\n omcwmm jusunseau pasodold Jo spejeq Jiun ssauisng aeiojdaig ofjopog way
4BAC LL/OLOZ J10A0 01/600Z 18r0 s0/g00z frono 80/2002

L1/0102-80/£00C
SjuBLSBAUf pesodold meN
a xipuaddy AeBuuen jo yBnosog uopucy




Page 59

og

T 3

w9 -'ABsieng Buisnoy

18414 8dosy mcaam‘

adIBS puedxs _:O:NUOEEOOUE

uoisuedxs auoisypes *

BUISHOH |

1dsooy Aseiodwie) 89npal ‘ssaussajeoy Jusaasd dioH| 09 09 | spoaN g ABejeng mc_m:ozi SBOINIBS |BID0G USQUIBN 38X3| )
0sk 0 S~ i14 081 1230 | SadjAleg Alladold
T ‘BIgeiBAR JOU] T
V S} UOHEPOUILIOIOR BABIBHE DIGRINS ,Eman_m>moh g i i _
mmo_zme | IleH umo Assulon i osieal 0) punoy jou st ;wctma‘, V ‘ SXBULY B UIdISOM / Xeuuy | aoueuld
juBleIXg m:_>w_:o<ﬂ dedoy ‘ 8iqenns e se psuoo.d jou op sjesodosd Eman_muwD, 08 | | Aempeoug wouj yeys 1oy uorst o‘amw:ﬁ _ SBOIABS >tmao&ﬁ, _4equiepy .onm,v\m.m.\
i H
, | ‘Papiacsd seoines U O Bineu m>a_mcmm_ ; i ‘ !
‘ i pue sjueus) sy jo sbpamouny Aadosd pue b_omawoi/ 7 7 7
SONUNUILIOD) | 1BIOUBLY 4O 510} BY) 0} 8NP Peyeolduwiod st ofjojuod | i i i
1sBuong p Jejeg| SIU 40 JuewsBeuey ‘mairal JueBin Jo pasu Ul c:m_. i ; “oljogHod sBuiping bE:E;:x..Vm ‘ BouRU4
Buiping / AaBuuey sopeg| 1dedoy ; payeisun Agusuno s oyojuod sBuipiing Ayunwiwos oy Ll 0L | GG~ | 34} Jo Juswabeuepy pue MINDY | Saoneg Auedosd| LBqUB oexg|  zt
9€T’L or 55 1EJO] duvdsiaailg
i ! U3e0idae ALDD [EIBAC 10 MBIAG] T13981ang | 7 T 7ﬂ T I
_7 | Pmieyded o} payur ‘Sesewes ALDD jEuoppE oul| V | (Bubped) esoweo| ! | mesuop g >cm_
Aabuuen umzmmf_ 1deooy | _Jo soueuiUtew ay) poddns o pasinbau s Bugpuny siy L 08 or or M8U JO UOREIIEISUI PUB 8SeURING ALOD)| * . OUSOSBAG| judWLOUAUT QT Jequepy oexal 1y |
A ! * “UesS pue UBLY| ] I
i | S}994S IN0 - OISOHUBY JNOGET "UMOUNUN BJe 108U0D| _ ‘
H ; PJODDY B} JO Bwile) BY} puoAaq sj1S07) “Jeah :maw ! | 7
V 104 Auo aue eiu0s BU} JO JBBA fRUY B} 10} $1500 owVN i 7 | AIBSUOD § AU
Aebuue sepeg| ooy 7 ‘6002 J8GWBIBQ Ul PUS 0} BNP § ORJUOD PIOIJY Y, 1) 051 i PUNO UG PIEBUM JO LIONRIOISS susdsjeeng | JuowuoALg | aquie W_mmi oL |
T i “UES[ pueg yblig 518855 Jno _ ;
V - OISajluRL UNOQET,,, "UOHORISHES JOWIOISNT) ' SIVINIDG | i j
| Buisnop uo 10edwy Aposap 1w yoym Buisnoy * *
‘ Ausuep yBiy se yons 10BJUOD JuBLIND B Ul PBIBADD i i
Anusroyns jou tey sabesn pue payisseld ssaippe ‘ i ABSUOD B AUD
Aabuue syeg ydaooy 01 19618} vdO € S Ydlum 66LAg UO 1oeduw M 9se 002 9GL Buweas 1ang BUB0SIBNS! JUBUIIOHAUT Jequispy oexg| g
000.3 0003 000.3 000,3
uoseay uofEpHOwILIoosy Joedwysepuspusdeq sAfejnwnyg mwwm wmowmm m\mzmﬁ. wmomwm wmmp Nucwmm cu.nov““ mmewmm juBwWIsaAu] pasodoid jo sjeleq Hun ssauisng 8jrI0}2841g oljofI0g woy
H8A0 L1/0LOZ 18A0 01/800Z J19n0 6078002 fiaro gorLooz
1110402-80/L002
SJUBWISBAL} pasodoid MmN
a xipuaddy AebBuuer Jo yBnosog uopuon




Page 60

oo

iz 0 0 {344 B0} uoyeINUILC)

OUNG3 B4 U0 SMaU 10j]
| 95N SjUBPISEL ISOW BUO BU) PUB JOUNGD BU) JO YoM mi

UO UORELLIOJUL BJRINDDE JO 82IN0S ABY B St gH ajdoad |
ﬁ {Asbuuer 1oy 51500 abeisod oy st juswainbay uwwmm_u:;
i Sty asmonus Buibieyd sy BuiBueys pepy {eAoy 0) Bumo | L
- I =Tt -
uoyoury Buvoyuow Bunsixe ayy uim A19S0D stiom ued |
i 1BU1 pa1eB.D St uonouny Buponuow sBuping ZE:EESN

e jey) Aiesseoau i sBuippng Ayunwiwon 4O j08U0D pue;
i wewebeuew ay) o} yoeoudde sagosye alow e E:m:L

O} 2rowt 8y} 4o ped sy “sBuping Ajunuiwios j0 wm:_

* BY} JOJIUOLL 0} B2INOSAL PEIEDIPIP OU ARUBLIND Stasmsyy ) ev:}.[‘
| "WOdans SARERSIUIIDE pue
; 18040 Aood “isBeuews Jouss B 10} S1S0U J9A0D JjiM 1SO3

i (ABayeng) Japesa
UOHBOINWIWOYD | §,8AIN08XS Joiy

e LT

obeysod dH |

f ”,
| (ABareng) ‘ Jopes f
ORESNINUILIOD|  S,8AND8XT JaIyD)]

PSS SR, a0

| |

yaley

1sod sU8o10 Buuoyuow jeuonIPPY

| N woi Bupuny L eyL ueehisuy u Bupuny JyN Jof uonesidde ue ucm_ | | (ABoreng) ..mumml_wi
| 1998 0] -108fod | MBIABI JSH BY JO BLICOING BU UO jJuapuadap sisiiL| 0S) 1BUERI08S JSH MON | UOHEOIUNUALIOD | S,8AIN08X3 JaIy0)! LoqQueN 08x3| oz
21Z 18101 18G0
7 T SUOHE[NDal BruBAs] ucm_c; ] f !
140 1502 3} JoADD 0} SNid “sieak 3IMNY W sjgeuEsnsun | i ; [ i
_ 99 fim yolum 126png 1 pue o sy ut spusds umUc:v DUBYDS: _ S.mQO: Had ® Aeg wgow
‘ 109008 | W0y 1ow ase Si500 pue papunun Auawno s swouo HUENPRUOINWIONNOY]_ 13Q0 Spmmooxaend equen 99x3| ol
e IO DB TR0 PLE opUTY ~SBUpE0S SE B Ine i . — R B
7 7 ULUBSLISBAUL = $1S00) JuswdofeAap 4oy Injesn aq pino: f
i + o8ty ‘pakoidepas Ayrysssoons jood juswiholdpad jo $wl H i
7 90/50 Ul ‘pakojdepas siequuiny sejesib = jeyuaiod oy | ; |
i uspeouq pinom Buiyoeos Jsaien ejod Juaund um:_mmmm f i
; UDJEDS 0) DajiLLl} SUBWISI I} OO uose) Emgoamcm; Eman_mEL (18A0)|  Had % req 90”
i 18loy | unueunsoaus o anp 2AIOBYS BI0W 5 Ew:&oi[mvm a e 4 nmﬂ.:m@oﬁ%& 104 nc_comoo jesiey| Sennoexg EEJ Jaquiapy omxm; 81
j ‘SBHIAIOR BAROROIT BI0LW JO) BLUY BSINU! | | i
7 Ppe ‘sjuewsAcidl Jue.Lnd vindss o} esnoy ul 5601 !
Buug = suondO ‘uoyowiold yyesy sayoeosd 10} B NYo| | ! {1900, Had g ARG muoﬁ
100fey 1 baseauour ypm joelosd Butegnam yejs poddns 0} cm_L s¢1 €l ‘Bursqom tmjﬂ $,8AN00X3 EEO_ {
e D (T AT WIS TSN 5T ,u}cm;cﬂmmcm:.; - — R A A m:\‘ L N ,? A S
! | yosfoid 0} uonelss v suoRepUBLILLOsas ueld; , , i i
ﬁ * UOHOY UOISSIULLOD Jiphy 8y} meEm_aM_ @_E __uc:oo* W ! i f
! | 8L 12U} BINSUB 0} PuE 80K swiueiBoud a1eindiod ] i 1000 | i
| 108fey | 8y} usLpbuBYS 0) feuassa st 1sod {euoippe sty .L 05 | | | 05 i Woddns swweiBoud jeuogppe X | | gooh S,OM08XT BIYD JBgUeN oexg| g
or 0 0 0 oy 16101 82iAl0g JoluoIsSny
] | ] , SBOIMISS JOWOISND U Lies] | ] i
GNTD Ag paasbe Buteq toam; | | , | UBWAOIBAB(] BVIAIDS BU) UIIM us f {ssa0y)| AU WLOD
peley 104 8u) U sabueyd pauued au; U0 Juspusdsp st SiyL| OF ; oy 01 JBOBI0 JO PRIESIPap € 10} a0inosey BOIAIBS JBWOISNY|  s,8AIN08X3 JBIyD Joquisiy 09x3| gi
000.3 000.3 000.3 0003
uoseay uoHEpUSWIIoIsY Joedwysspuspusdeq sapeInwnG mmku macwm." &MM““ wmowmn mmnﬁ nmoww_m s Mwmﬂcwmm JusunseAul pasodold o sieleg nun 1sng j09aQ oljogI04 wayy
13A0 L1010T 14940 518002 J19n0 so/g00z fisno 80/2002

L1/01L02-80/2002
SIUBLISBAL] PBSOUCIY MON
a xipuaddy AKebBuuen o ybnosog uopuoT




Page 61

ozl

Tejo ] Uorsniou]

"Job1e) Yy Aiojepuew euy|
1osye pinom ¢ abers Aey 1e sebier 109 1eew o) aunped

i

8 Spiepuelg jooyss
| T f

| aidd'A 3 usipyo |

'80IN0S3I [eUOIPPE JNOYIM JaBIel 09 sy} 19w _ i S108IQNS 8102 Ut %05 E, f
weloy lou Aewl "panunuoosIp sem JuN yBnosy; Buipun) oy 5l ozL ; 106ue} 109 10aw 0} sjuswaoIdw [ '® SPIBPUBIS J00yog|  eoineg w.cm‘ﬁ_Eo,‘ JsquiBy 09X3| gz
- 08 ] 0 08 1ej0] saljiuey 9 :w.ﬁ___._u,
I I I 7 I ] ] 7
| | ! i |
.7 ; "Wes) siu} Woy $e0nosal| v | f |
Vu _ 34inbai Jim XSpul S,UBIPILO/EIB, BOUBLY |M S SB no:L ﬁ i _ ‘A
! i saAgeul BuiwooyLo “sassesosd mou uo yeis Bupsixe ! : | ; , | i
w i pue mau Lioddns pue uies o) pesu au s i ey | i ‘ i SI90H0 toaaswi ; ; i
{ * ‘uoneuaWwRIdLL LOoWS ainsua of woddns pue m:_c_mi ! H , weshs g sueayO poddns sseuisng H f i
; ut Bunsaaut jo eouepodun sy pejensuowsp aaey || i i i 4 Jabeuepy | mc_mcanL | f |
i ,_ aseyd wol JuIes| suossaT) "SBDIAIBS [BI00S Yum Apui L i V | wea] noddng ssauisng ‘omawely _ i j
; ‘ pajuaweidwi Buleq st eloid ay) awwesboid .m_ocmcc_ 7 | _ 40 it eseyd jo uonejusweidu | i i Sidd’A B UBIPRYD |
| 108foy 21 30 uonejuBwRld B} 0) SRR [ JO 2 oseyd; - log- log [0l uonesal ut sjs09 Buiyess jeuonippy | SeyLue B USIDIUD|  SOMDS S,UBIDIYD| JBqUB oax3| 4z
1e10 1 WadoieAsq
SL 0 0 23 g woddng ssaujsng
‘N ] el _ i f 7 ; T
! f UOHOBS Ul UMOUS BIE Wea) au) uiupm sBuines pojejaiun| | § | | ;
‘“ ybnow) Buines JsLINduGd Ou 1 8184] 08 ‘Bonpal «oci. ‘ | i | |
i i i SUGISSIUDY J0) DBOPHOM BY} ING ‘801A108 Buitaoadiuy ; i !
7 | SN} ‘pesamsue aq jim SjjeD oyl Jnses e sy ‘pebebus| i ! | |
H i Buul sjjes jo 9,08 0} dn sewy yead je ‘Jesasd )y -ouen| i | _ "SUOISSHUPY 10§ sabieyn | juauidopreq)| add AR :m‘.n__coi
| Jo8fey | Buoyd eIl SUDISSILIPY 18 aX8) jim SIS _mEQm:o_ [ | 93 SBOIAISS JBLUIOISTIO JO IS0 [EUOYIPPY | ¥ Hoddng sseuisng!  somsg m.:m..n__co.i Jquian 9ex3| 9z
SLi 0 Sii 1BjoL safpunuiwo? iajes
, i I 7 W NEIES
H JUBULIULIOD OJSBlULRW BU U i | 9@9@&@: wwop g m:.._..owW
108y anssy Juepodw Ue s1 INOABYSq fewos-nue Buissaippy: ¢¢ lsg B0YG BouBgIBAING 1YESY| _daquisy 08xg| gz

|

‘ "SWLD PUR JNOIABYBQ |B00S-fiue 8onpal Buidjey Aqj
‘ Jajes saiunuIWod Jno axeu iw Buipuny siyy AeBuuer;
| UM INOINBS] |8100S-JUB DUB BWLD 4O Jesy oy
,_

Buionpa 1 pawie suom u uoyonpas e u nsal ym oy .L

e 2220 2OURONY

SBRIUNWIWOY JBjeg L S8MIN0eX3 JaIuD)|

A;
|
|

i | '4/9002 48y dnunuod jou [m Buipuny 1ewy; pauuyuos | i * | ambmﬁ”
7 Buipun) sanewsye | Apeaue aaey oum AeBuueH Joj sawiop woy Bupuny uo| ; | ] Wwop 3 swyy!
| M09S "¥0lY | wuspusdap Aisnomaid sem ing ‘wey Lol e jou 5 swyov | 1 % ®WoMIodiso| s Unuwog Jajes QUi 00x3| pz
B o adoad ‘.mmcao\& | |

Aq sousjoin pue Jnomeysq 1enos-gue Buonpas Jejes i , , i

SSUNWWIOD Jno @xew diey (m Buipuny siyp “Buipuny; _ | f ;

.ﬁ ULIBI-HOYS Uo Juspuadap sf SOA 8U) slexoss E:Swl _ i i

i. BunoA yym stom SOA J9A00 0} 80IIBS WNAsY By EE:, | ! | Aiojes|

Buipuny aajewoye Buipuny jo $50) & UBSS SEY SOA 8y ‘Buipuny jewes o | $J2)408S wnjAse Bunok | Smwugw: wwon g mE.:o_

189S - 308fay  |uoneujuwe) 1800 0f Joyjei Ing ‘wiey ymosb ejou st sy | of ! oF UIIM SLOM BAOD 0] SISO [BI90S SOA SSMUNUWOY Jajes|  s,eApn0eXg Jeiun LUBQUIBIN 99XT| €2
0003 0003 000.3 000.3
uoseay uoiEpuBWUIcIeY edwysepuapusdeq sABINWING amk_wowmm amnpwuemmm ammm. nmommm an.%m mmcwmm jusllseaul pesodosd Jo siijeg Hun sseuisng sjeio}denq ofoji0d way
1340 L1/010Z J32A0 01/600Z J4aA0 60/8002 fieno 80/2002

a xipuaddy

L1/0102-80/2002
SIUBUISBAL| PBsSOdold mop
AsBuuen jo ybnosog uopuo




Page 62

g8

9C4 0 0 0 9L 1EJ0 | Uoiealoay
T "SjUBUIBAGIG 508dS USd0 T T T
Busuressns uodn joedwt jjw sBuines Aiojesuaduiog j AJBSUOD B AUZ
18ley “olsijeal Jou JabJe} BL0dUI [BIDJOLILIOD Wed Aingsuld| 0s) 051 1eb.e} awodul UBOUD pasnpey uofeanoy UBWILOHAUT JBQUIBH D8x3 | Op
'600¢ U1 winuue Jad ¢ wod uopeindod
30 peay sod sysiA Josn aacidul Buidlog AunwioD Ayoedes Buyers soedg AJBSUOD %9 AUZ
1afey 10 JNO (|04 PUE SUOHOUN) JUSWADIOMIZ JOpIm O} yurt 0SL oSt usdQy Aleingejsucy) syed souryug uonESINSY JUBWLOIAUT Jequiey oex3| eg
1|bpng NBSUOD g AlIQ ]
weley anuaaa Bugsixe wos YGEF Syl 1L 231900 ind| 941 91 suoinjog /epesbdn 9911 uonessoay JUBLILOHAUS equisly 08X3|  ge
"S8IMdNIS buluoisSitito/dilsiauped Souielboid 880Xy AI@SUGD g ALY ]
1080y Busixo ubnosys peBeuews aq ued pue ‘yyesy srciduy 061 0S1 1e015A4d pue ansivT Jnpy pejebier U031y JUBLIUOAAUD Jequisiy oexl e
"9oeds USdo JO Bsn 5SEaiou] SalUOMT saoelg ! ; i AJBSUDD % AU
peloy Joneg/ AsBupe sayeg + awweiBoldg leudeD o wuryl ol | | 00} SoUBUBIUB B __mawmv uoneasay| JUSLUUOIALT Jequiap vexg!  gg
1210 eauBwIIOOd
018 0 0 0 oLs 'g Aatjod ‘Bujuueid
] 7 BOUBLLIOPSg uebsy g Aug
efoy “uit jepod Buiuued sy sayung dojorag; o ov BAOQE SY » Aajjod ‘Butuuelq JUBLUUOHAUT Jequispy 09x3| g
paAsIyoe 8q PINod SBuIAes ASUBIoe ESNETTIER uabay ¥ [u3
wafey aWos ‘weysks oy 03 woddns Buipinoud o 515001 02 0z BunpIopA argow g Aood 'Buiuuelg WBWUOHAUT SOQUIB 08X3|  bg
"SSIPMS JoYi0 pue ECITTER uabay ¥ jug
ooy lestesdde Ageuersns ‘Buess sog pasnbes Buipund| ool 00} “melaas Aojjod Buluueyd Buisnop 9 Ao ‘Buiuuely JUBWILOHAUT Jequiepy oaxg| ¢f
"WeusHo | pue Spueesy ]
Buipuny saneweye 'saYs Ao JO AIaARD BU) UIM PIBIDOSSE $1503 [eBay i SoUBULIONE] uabay g qu3
003 - 108fey | 901S pue ‘Jels [RUONIPDE 3IOM ADUBJNSU0D ac_o._:owmm‘ 0S¢ ﬁomm epuabe soys As) jo Aeageq » Adtjod ‘Buluueld JUBLILOBAUT BQUIB 08Xy | ze
S9¢ [} [ [ <9t 19101 JUBIISDIOIIS
“BUiqLien
pue Bupjows 0} SeIqISU0dsal JUBWIBIIoJUS MaU ! Asjes
Jenyep ‘@ouabyieiul seuyel o) sassaooud Buiddew jo WHUOD 8 BWU)
el 8SN asuuIXew ‘SwaysAs J0 Buptiom aAlosye uluRwW 01| 0Z1 Al syuatuancsdu 11 swasoug JUBWILOHAUT JOqUIBN 29%3| 1§
PO YmoIB siy; asseAss o uohBluBWaIdUR
10 Z Je8A Ul passyo aq pinoo sBulaes Jey) pajedonue
St} 'S]ORHUOD YIUOW g UO SISO JUBLIBIIOIS 19045 b
10§ BUILIBAO SB JuBdS 8q pinom Buipung “siqissod asouym
SUCHOBUSUL BIOIBLILOD OJUI POUOSAR o] v AyeLBIU
souendwio? "syuow g Isiy sy ut uopeluBWSIdU
BUIMOIIO} JUBLIBDIOMID JOADD IV JUBLUIBDIONS
199418 "Buipes 19848 pUE JBRY JENN(D 10} anss|
UB 8q UBD S1994$ U0 Jordwt 8} Jey) SULU0D pue)
lenosdde siequiaw pue puelong Ul aousuadxs ‘Janemoy “Bunenbas
0} slgns juesd Jos Apbier q pinous 1 pue [euuL Bq M ueg au jo Apjeg
U108ds Aq papuny | JUBLIBNIOJUT "SISOD UBWBIIONUB JBADD 0} 0L Z O} 2007 SUIIOW 9 JUBWIBNIONT WiaD) 3 swugy
3G0L-393f8y | 40} $S4 OIUI PSPNIOUL BY JIM WINS B 18U pajedioque s1 ! 08 08 18948 — JuBwsdIouT Bupjows swessouy JUBLULOIAUT Jequiepy oaxg3!  og
‘Aiqein pesesioul pue aoiases apim ybnoioq
B0} 8SBD B SEM 218Y) 18U} pue a0nes seindod e s sy
1BU} PBPNIOUOD MBIABI SILL "SUSPIE JOBAIS JO MBIADY
AUniog s1equisyy O) Padulj 80IAISS B Buueyurews Kojeg
10 a0y Joedus 8u AIBqYO) PUB BLULD JUBIOIA ‘BUILD JuawsaAul DAN WOY B BLLD
peley 189118 10} SUOHONPSL BUWILD pue 661 AG Ul Siusworosdwi| 91 501 80B)dal O} SUBPIBA SIOISIS UBASS JUBWRdI0UTZ UBLILOHAUS Jequieiy oexy| 6z
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
uoseay uoHEpUBIILIODSY jordwysspuspusdag sApeinwIng wmwn. mmowmm amm%%wmw amm\n\.%wmm a M%%%WM« jususseAy] pasodold §o speleq Jup ssauisng 8jeI0)9811Q] oloIog way
HBA0 L 1/010Z J49A0 01/600T J19A0 60/800Z |4OAO 80/2002
L1/0102-80/L002
SluBUNSaAU) pasodold MaN
a xipuaddy KeBuueH jo ybnosog uopuo




Page 63

i

ejor
JUdWDINI0IY vjesodion

_ ‘Wouaq Jepim 10y ABsiens 1 s ounog ay) ur Em:;mm_ﬁ

_ﬂ pakojdap oq osie ueo asemalppiW By | ‘suooesuel |

| |
| |
|

souBUY i

|
mocm:_u__ i 1S

|uUBOSIPaNG

,, pefey $5800.d Juowaunoold psonpas yBnoy) parsiyoe eIk (] lg SIEMIIPPIA TAIX|  JUSWSIND0I 81eI0dI00)| JBQUIBI DOXT
iz X
08 0 uonexe] 8207 g sjyouag
i i : ! BoueUL|
waley _ $1S00 @duBUBUIRW puR poddns [enuuy aseqeleq] pneud juswaoeiday|  uoyexey (8001 3 syousgy| soURULY|  uBqWeyy 99X3] 05
; S =t — o ST IO B Oeue|  Soueu|  uequ 3 0e |
efey SIS00 souBUBUIBW pUE pPoddns enuuy! 62 uofexey (80079 w&mcw@_, oouBul|  uequsy omxﬁ, [
abubut aid . - e 2 e TR PqUBN o9xE| 6y
"BUIODUI PASEBIOUE PUB PNEY JO LORDBISD ,wmmnsmn,_ ; i *
XE} Jtounod jo Aoeinane paaosdiu o) mSoEcoo_ ‘ i i
1M MBIABL BU | "SMIIS WIBPIBOSE 0} JOBAIP JOLIOISTD ﬂ ﬁ _i .i ;
BUL IOBJUOD [IM UOISIID B4 UDUL UDIBL B JOU &) Blay) ‘ i i
BIBYM 'SSNUKLOD JUNOOSIP BUY} UBY) yojew pesibe ue| ; ! _ i
St aJay) 819U "SOSEQEIED PJOYSSNOY [eUO)BU gmc_mmm_ MBIASS JUNOOSIP ((1dS) :o@mu_ _ ‘ aoueuly|
efey pasedwios si ads Buiiep siswoisno uo eseqelep ay L [-13 dBuIS D1UoLBIB JO BoINISS _mco_:vn,% uogexe| (2207 g syousg eoueuld]  squeap oexg! gp
- "~ eoUBWLGLIBd B8iEl U LI i SIBpUOOSGE buel] plie ASidriniueq] T ﬁ T ﬁ\. T eouen: Qr!l.
jo8loy 40 599188 JUBLIBOIOMS [BUOKPDY|  uoRexe) |Bs0T B sjyouag| aouey JOQUIBN 08X 4y
9.1 12101 suaosjeong
| | | | | |
|
1843 J0 fleyaq uo Ainp Juswebeuew oiey oy sbeuew 9_" a‘ i _ ; 7
Wwes) Juswabeuews oMBU ay) SIGBUS [IM PUE SOOIAIDS * ; 7 f ‘
Bupyed uo spuewsp aseasoul poddns jm ..m_:u_:muv | "SBJINIBS m.j { | ABSUOD B AUT!
waley Ul ‘siuawidojaasp 8BS Jo Jaquiny e spoddns siy 1! 291 | ssose woy sjuswdoeaap 108l0sd 1h ocmoﬁmm:mV JusWwuoHAUL | equspy 05 ; oF
T “UInd sie S5 v o T .\ i N S S
MoU se s1eak g 8y) J9A0 §500 paonpa e je RTINS * * 7 i i
| @y uru pinom Asy) i 985 0} Buiies 08 ym payoess | i H : |
8q 0} aAeY pinom Juawaasbe uy ul ind sie 5,04y Meu| ‘ * ‘ i * i
Se Jeak yoes peanpal 8q pinoys SHp mmmocm_cm\,:oo* * i ody sod Jesh sad g3 S s0dy ho*_ _ ; AIBSUOD B AUT|
) Peley aand jo Buiues Joj Jesh Jed a3 Aed >=c9::0“ 41 | ez _rwoo aoueUBIUIBY mmucw_:m?oofo”__mam i e mmmwww@m. [ jewuosauz| Jequiaiy uwxw_ S
- - \ ‘Jodep AesuiOH J0 peol wisisapy| T - ST _J I R
1o 1@Bpnq sjesedes ou Apuauno sy aseyy Ammc_zw_ i f 7 ﬁ i f
pue sBuipyng yo abe o} anp sjodsp sy jo siedal! * ‘ 1800 BouRUBIUEW _ i AIBSUOD B AUZ|
108fey Buiuuru Aep o} Aep ayy 10} JusRYNS jou sijabpng «oam&- oy i | / sdiedas Aep o) Aep senyoey yodey BUBOSIPBNS T JUBWIUoHALD |
I , b bt i - S — | ——— i S Aukvsbtiot =
| JauseIb JueuIUONAUS ING - o1s8UBW IN0gE .chz.ml ; ‘ | i i
8G JOU PINod 80188 SPO0B ajuM JUB.LIND JBY) UeBW ! ; ;
| Bupuny einoes o} sanped “enuyuod 0} $1 801AL9S BU} | ; i i _
[} spiemuo 60/800¢ W0l pasinbas aiojeioy) 1 Bupuny ‘ | ﬁ i
| Buipuny sagewsye _,moom UOJBN Ul SPUB YOIUM ‘JURIS) DIBMBY S5UBLLIOYS, ! "BOIAIBS SPOOD) BUYM BU) mtoaa:m_ | i AIBSUOD B >:mi
I _ |

m ay} Ag pepuny Buteq Apusuno s VRS SIY ._._ sl
| ‘epusbe ASusinge

7, 8t 0} YUY OS)Y USSP BDINIBS U0 Bugoedun se _.ws_

| se sBuiaes [euonippe JeAep Jim siy L MmaiAey \Gcm_oEw_ *

SiuL lemeipyim Bupung eygeq|

‘Bupued ul souasqe yois Auejnoed; H

!

%
|
L
_

JUBWUONALT T v%mﬁwémmmﬁw. L

i ABSUDD) @ AUT|

F Bupiied 94 ut uogepUBLILICOSI KoY B Sem sy | 2y | 'S3NSS! MH YiM (e3P o} JeBeueyy| susosealg | uswuonAuz|  usquisy omxwh v
A . B — Um\/m_zUmA e — I o H - e .v‘tl,, I
8Q 0} WOOJ JORUOD ALDD BY JO SBUSY [Ny BY} BIGELD , ; (uonesedo Eooi | AISSUOD B AU
waloy I}% SIL JBJES SBIUNWIWIOD INO - CISBUEN JnogeT| Ly Iy abeuew) ajo1 Jebeuew PeAUY X | EIEEEET WBWUOIAUT|  UequBp 98X3| ¥
000,3 0003 000.3 000.3
0118002 60/8002 80/2002 10/8002
uoseay uogepuswosey 1oeduiysejouspusdag anneinung f L o onoge pue | sroge pue | enoqepue | 1UPUISSAUL PesOdoid Jo seleq Jun ssaugsng sjei010311q ofjoj0g wey
18A0 L1/010Z J19A0 BLIS00T 11240 60/8002 fianro 80/2002
$1/0102-80/L002
SIUBUISAAU) PBSOA0Ig MON
a xipuaddy AaBuuen 10 ybnoog uopuoT




Page 64

ofey

“S0IAIBS JUBLIND INO U PBIEPOWILLIOIDE ION

sz

wea) E:&wi

108fey

‘Ud U

or

BOIAIBS |BIUBPISOI BSNOK wctmmgmL

ANBS'S 8 UBoH]

SBOIAIBS [BD0S Jaquspy dexg |

]
&52'm

19 ]

SADINIBG |BIDOS

IBGUIB owxw_ 09

pofay

81doad 10} UOIBPOWILIOOOE. |BRUBPISal BAISUDIXD m;os_‘

“souspuadepur Bunowoid Agaisyy Apaoays mEmE\nm&_

H

| wang sey; eBeuew o siesn sejqeus aoInes Joddns V|

00T

mu_%&f
| |

|
; ABSS R uNesH]
|

sy

"safueyd sy jo uoneuswedul 8y} 98SIBA0 9_,,

x0M 109104d B J0 1500 BU} SIoA0S fesodousd JUBWISBAU
SIYL Jeak xou 1o} PeINPaYDS S1 BOIAIBS LOISEY ‘
8y} *s$8001d Wdgd B} JO BUICINC By} 0} PYBlaNg |

10afoy

i UM $82IN0Sa Wioy
Hoddns aunbal m SNAZ/XEPU! S,UBIPINS/EREoURY]
MHOMBLWEI ] SE LONS SeAlEnul Buooyuod sessaood

MBU UO yels Bunsixe pue yeis mau poddns pue;
uien o} Juswalnbes e ins st asey peonpas sey toaa:m_
(40} pB3U By ISPYM oAl 0B 8ous poddns jo swiwesboid

MSUBIXE Ue pauinbal BBy YoMBWeld Jo Ewmn‘

o¢

* eoeg uoddng syusuiked joanq - ad|

oM se se0IAISS Aep Jepircid o) spefoid

weansuew |

anuanal ey Buizisumop jo co_«mc_EL
~00 88S4BA0 0} JBOIO 10901y ~ ay

AI9S'S g Lyeak|
USQUION 08X3|  gg

{M
|
|

{-UOMBWIRLY JO si9sn poddns o

10afey

! ‘BuuoliuoW 10BHU0S |
7 Ul SBUIODINO PBIISOP JOSN S0IAIBS 'SMBIAB. 1ORIUOD
i aaoud

i Yoty s0erd U BuiioISSILIOD 1$ngos Biopy|

wes, ﬁtoaa:w ssauisng e ysngese o L
|

BuIoISSRUWO:

HooR o

J3quispy vex3
AIBS'S B E_mmL
JBQUIB 29x3| g5

sy

[BIOYBUSG BQ OSE PINOM DIEMIOS UDJEN|EA _man_mva
“043 ABUOW IO} eNjeALINBY feouely B sjussasdas Apadas

B IBUIoUMm Spetl 8q OSJE PINOD JUBLUSSASSE Uy ...Qomm_

4oes uiyim sanedord Buuedwios se jom se siseq 101008 Aq
401098 £ U0 pasAjeur aq ued suogene “olopod jeuopesado
~UOU BUL JO MBIAB) BL) UF ISISSE PINOM LUNY U1 YDIYM *SILINGas
40 Bjed {eLISIU) SE 4INS SI0EDIP douBLLOSd apiAid

djay PINOM MOYYSED PAIUNCOSID B ‘sidwexs jo4 sishjeue|
apirosd pue ssa00sd uogeneA JusUlSaAUl sadosd B Byo __i
Ssemyos maN 's100f0sd [RSOdSID S oM yons 1oy suoyebigo
Kieyess Ayspes disy pue sesodind Bugunoooe 10} uSNELDPUN
suogeniea poddns osfe jm i “aoiape Ayenb Burpiacud |
Pue AIDAHBP 90IAIBG 10} BINUD S| BIBMOS uogenieA|

1oafey

©

S90IMIBS \Em@i

soueUl JBUIBN D9x3

“WiBJSAS BULGHiiow:!
sy dnjes pue Juswaidw 0} yeis feuonippe pue|
sHodal J0 1500 (sebieyo seoinss Jepun ajgesanooal;
2q [l SHIOM JSON) "PBYNUBP] SHIOM mv_m%uc:_

Ol PaJEIOR 8¢ O} PEBU SPUN} PUB SB)EISE [BI0IBLIWIOD |
SHOUN0D By 40 PaINDaI B1e SHOdSI UOKIPUOD um«muaa_
"UOHESIBS] JUBLILOAAUT S'9H PUE 814 MBU JO wesy
1BI0JBUILO B} 81ONPD 0} paau Buissesd e s) auay L|

‘,
ﬁ"

i

aouenduwo) Ausdosg 1RIOIBUILOD |

sa0ieg Apadoid

o T«mm\

Buipuny aAeuByE

1983 - josfoy

joefey

“Aumadsod ut pepuenBojes pue Ansiboy
ﬁccm._ By ybnouyy pepiosas Ajleuuio) sy diysioumo $HIOUN0Y ayy,

1B 84nSUB OSIE im §f “paamnbay s1 uonoesues Ausedoid B :wzs_
som jebop oy Aduns sseooud pue sauinbus Auadoud Apyduns
4 SS8003d Asotepuew Sy AIRUOIIPPY YOOE ©q JjiM 1802 oty
| "UIPESP 2102 84} 1UN Ja1EU Y J) "G Oq fim SSB00: BN O
ed Jey) 10§ sebieyd soy) obes Aues s 1e poddns pue sayjo
feu) dn axe; em J) -asuadxs siey 1e SUGM 8L jsoul mc_xm.twucaw
.JOlid, B SB SN 9SN 0} PUBIUF PUB SN YIM SUOISSNOS)
Ul ueaq aey AnsiBay pue eyl si pue Ansibas pue|
OUL U Yiom 0} 1894 8U0 Joj uossad [euoyppe auQ ‘z10z|
Aq puey sun jje so)sibal o} inbas Aoymeys !
Siapjoyese;s|
W0 $$8008 9|qRUS PUB SUOOUN AJUNJBs 8ouBYU
0} wesAs ayy 4o juawidosasp BuoBug Amgeden
Bunodel juspusdapu pue spode Jo UOISIADLY |
'S8y 8ses| Woy Jndut ejep Joj Saoinosal apinoid Q‘
uonejuBWadw UBJBYUBK [eI0IBWIWOD) B JO 2 vseyd

pue| passysiBasun jo @wm&m_mmm

0s

05~

004

sjuswdojanep wesAs ueneyuep

SBOINSS Apadoiy

soueuly

@oueUy Jequisiy 08x3|  7g

uosesy

uoHBpUBWLcIeY

yeduwysapuspusdeq

sAjeInuWING

0003
04/600Z
aAoqe pue
4840 L1/0102

0003
60/8002
aroqe pue
18A0 (178002

000.3
80/4002
B8AOqE puE
19A0 §0/8002

000.3
10/900Z
aAoqe pue
HOAC 80/2002

wawisaAu} pasodoud Jo speleq

Hun ssauisng

EILENT) oljopiog wsy

H1/0102-80/2002
SIUBISDAU| pasSOdCid MON

@ xipusddy AeBupe jo ubnoiog uopuo




Page 65

089

3

0 0 089 18101 18P0
T "WiEa] STUT UIUit Se0In0sa1 Uiol]] T ] ] ! ! ]
Hoddns aanbaJ jim SazXepUl m.:@n._co\_wom\mo:mcﬁ f _ | | | |
SHOMBWELY SE U4ONS saAieniur Buiwooyuio, sassesosd| ! i S18010 poddns; ; i ;
! MBU UO Jess Busisixe pue yejs meu woddns pue , f wajsAs om) pue s1eowo toaa:L f ! .f
ﬁ uien 0} yusweanbas e s st asoy; peonpey sey :oq%m_ H i. ssauisng om ‘Jebeuews suo mcﬂﬂa&oo, ,
{10} pBaY BYL ISIUM "OA OB 80Ul poddns jo swweiboid| | ! ‘I“{IoMBWRI JO S19sN oddns 0y i | AIS'S Y ylesH;
1oley SAISUBIXD UE PaUNbaL BARY PHOMOWEI J0 S1sn)| OF L | wesiyoddns nq e usiqess o | R ;%@&.. __SOOMOg jeiR0g | uaquisy ooxg| gs
T T Sovg o emeipuim EVGEEIERERES CIEETD ‘@?ﬂ R B i ; i i i
€ 1d2008 JOU I BUIOY 8183 BYL "80/200Z UI ssens_\s_‘ | | . * f f
8q Im sy (ssnoH suubisjad) swoy nuopisas i i “Buipun} ds Jo remeipyim MBG'S B UieaH
& 0} pajedojie useq sey Buipuny ds _ e .| W04 Ousue BINssaud Bunossioy| — _ SPOMBS[ER0S|  SeqUIB 09x3| by |
T N | (L0; i
M SN0 10! , | ,.m::E paeisutal 19Bpng siy spesu >>o£ ;
|PuE saunssaud jexiew o anp 1o6png BuuoissIwLIoD au| , | BLIOY BIBD MU BYJ "SIUBPISAS n@ﬁoo:W
i U $81nssaud JBYI0 OSje BJIE BlBy ) ‘PemLIWOD Apeaye| * | i ; -2 10j Aed 0} jabpng mc_cc_wm_EEou% L
,m SBOIAIBS Ul UORONPAS B UO Salfal SIy) se wanwOHi ; f | | ; 8U) 0} paLjsues sem (sebieyo| , f
1ebpng _ 0} 30eq 196pnq Buluoissiuwios syy wou m:_uce_ _ ! f ‘ leydea Bupnioxa) %009 40 1@bpng wj_ * , ABS'S B yijesHy *
J9)sURY) - Joofoy | Joysued; 0} ajqe Buiaq ui aunssasd Buiug e st asey LI 009 | | 1009 | paustiowap sem s0in swogSO UBUYM ! 18pI0 | SS0IMOS BIO0S | UBQUIBW 9axT| ¢/
T SPooN ™
€9z . . - §9Z 2 ABojeng Buisnoy
f f 7 T T T , ‘SUIn SIGY 18 BGEEAE] !
| | | i : St LOHBULIOJU! PBJILUT ‘SUOISYLIES | |
| paonpoid aq o} sishleue Jauung ‘000'58Z3| ; f ; 40 uoisuedxa ay) o) mc__m_m; , i Buisnoy|
18foy Aierewixoudde snjen jossy Apisqns Jo sso) g Ewm% 0s | suoneoyduw snuas. aq jim 818yy, speeN g ABajens Buisno 22 210 __JBquieN oaxg: z
eS| TISTATDIUCT OTHEA 19SS APISQNS 40 SS0F G juoy | e DI T LA IR B ERL, SPUON 8 ADBIEAS Duisnop =S Sl RO
w9l luoweBevew uiusesbo.d pue ofoid panoduw| ge e L seoyoyoddns polosy speong fojens Busnon| _seomos jenos| uequapoaxa| s |
I A [ T BoINEs mel 10 / , T | ,
onand paseasoul pue sewg punose winy Apadosd pIoA | H i msm:oIf
PoRY | voedu . suwoeg aieiodiog uwm Aol pobeuen| 1z S “J,‘J.!M“u@.@@@m@@@mﬁ{@ﬁm@ﬁ%ﬁ@@@f” PN oexs os
s T T T ushesiuebio fnz\{[ T | T | i ; | 6 ,
8U} 4O Joquuaw Jepunoy e st AsBuien) SUOROBULOD | | i * | c_w_sozm
eley BWIOH ‘Auedwiod 780D woy uy WBnog aq o 0IBS | 061 * f , 051 ‘ SUNO . [BNUIA SUOIOBUUOYD SUIOH| SpasN ¥ ABajeng Buisnop | SOVINIBS 1B100G | UGB 98x3| 69
2ici 0 Q 81 [ 211) iEj01 sjinpy
T I T ¥ | T Sefadosd 18pIACIT ‘_o: [ ; WEINE) E_wmI.,
,ﬂ 1oafoy Jh 8ok sy) $186png Ut uoisincid Juasedde op| _ mew $1509 BoueUBUIRW puE Buuny - | e (mw_ﬁwﬁ! _ S9oInBg | Mm.w%éluw@wg 29x3 g9
2 T T T s i g S T WJ ! I A8S°5 % ijesiy |
Paley 2 | 80InBg Loddng sjusluAed 10eaQ - Od| sunpy/| SBIAIBS [B10S IDqUIBN omxm.f 19
A 1500 puy 0) paanbas T [ B — T e RNV POONURS (R0 Y YR TT=- W —
SIS00 puy 6] palnGsl| ! | ; [
1aloy ! aie om podsuel) paseq edines 40 dn jos Bumolioq: 09 r log V 81509 Buuuni peol >mE 4 e __Sedineg lepog -
S N T L SIS AR RS Dumoiod | 08 —— e T T PR O | .
ﬁ , "UOISTIOUE {B100S 9Ses.ou) | - wodsues peseq soinies panbyuosss|
1o8fey | _daAyep 0} e Jno Jo suuey u pajoedw q pinom apn | 8 ez - P 01 8np SivAUp 40§ §82UBIY A 3m|j e - mw\EQWm.@unM
J T T T T  ShsE B s J | - CTTTTTTTTTTTTSAd0 Keq eAiso63 o7 8 "Aepliiig]
, 0} SNUGUOD [Im OUM spueweoeld uj uslpy V , U0 IBJSUBA M 9 ‘1esh 1xeU g mc_E:: |
! 100y ¥ se uaddey m siy) ~ 1ays Jeak [} S Jeak 1Sii4| 69S k /81 Uapt - WWoD g + m,:.u{,_T SAOINIBS B0
O e e S S I T e S ANBSSR UNEsH T
108foy N0 8q pm ueo Aewud Buipiaosd HEIS JO junowy ; L JUS1 pROY coEoQ SHnpY | SBAIBS [BI00S J3quIBpy Daxg | €9
e 25 TR R R PERT LR DUIBINGIG JBIS JO JUNOLLY , — e S e SRV SBOIMBS 100G AR B
paley %01 40 5SBIOUL AT " L00Z D8() Ul anp MBINBY | £ L 8,061009 1S 10} JuBs U wmmm_oc: sinpy SBOIAISS [B100G Jaquispy vexg!  zg
000.3 000,3 000,3 000.3
uoseay HofepUstILossYy 1ordwyseouspusdeg sajeInuINg mm wm mmowmm mmm.“_ m«owmn mwwn \.mcnmm o mwpomcwmm uBUISaAU| Pasodoud Jo sieleq jun ssaujsng sjeio}deNq olopiog way)
4940 110102 [4840 01/600Z J4040 e0/800z Jiaro 80/L002
L1/0402-80/L002
SIUBUISOAL| PASOdold MBN
a xipuaddy AabBuueH jo yBnosog uopuo




Page 66

PUFR

R WIS IV

AIBMIBP 90IAIBS BUI-UOH , k SajAUL Juawabeuepy (ss800vy)/|
U0 Jordi jeliuRY 10 ON daoy [ Vo_, 0l -8 Buisn asuuxew o) - S9ljqUIassy ealy poounoquBitsN;  s,@Annoexy LIyn € ]
aoueLuloLad pue !
AJ2Aljap 801AISS BUI-UOL V 1bpng juswabeuepy (ssao0y)
U0 J0RAW [BLLIURL JO ON ydaooy | - ‘ 08 0z 0z 0z 0z 2109 goe|dal 0] - Buipuny [euseixg poouinoqubienN SBAINOSXT JaD| ZL B
“BoUBLIOHRd pUE
Aioniep 90198 Bul-jUoYy i uswabeuepy Awmmou,&m
U0 JoedWl Jewiuiw Jo ON ydasoy 08 [0}4 0C 0Z 0C pgers >ocmmm 10 asn paonpay | poownoqubieN SPANOSXT BIYD| |}
‘douewlopad pue ;
A1aAljop 9210188 BUI-UOLY 7 | awwelboid juswebeueyy (ssao0y)
U0 Joeduw| [ewiuL 1o oN jdeooy | 08 08 HOM AN JO MBIARY - sjsod 2 mosnmmﬁ, vooE:on:m_mz;, Sieaunoex3 oIyy o4 |
‘aouewLopad pue 7
AIaAIop 8DiAI9S BU-UOl ¢ | i EmEmamcmE {ssadoy}
UO 10BdLU JBLIULL JO ON | ydacoy i paInaas ussq sey pund AsyoT ebejusH| £l | W_, | auwy geys ab.ieyo o} spuny _mEExﬁ poouinoqubioN|  s,ealnoex3 jeyd| 6
1ejo
00t 0 0 0 oot SWNasn g saueiqn)
f "80/£002 Ul 84njdNis8) S8LIRIGH Y] JO UonBjUBLUB|dWI |
‘@oueuLioped pue sy Bumoyjoj sBuines Aousioye peieiss yeis i _
AIBAIBP SOIAIDS BUIIUOY ; BASHIOE 0] J0BUXS BMN "SOLIRIGH UIBLL INO JO B8] e ‘ w i i3 {sse00vy);
UO Joedu jeLiu Jo ON| 1dsooy Ui PalEISUl uaag sAByY (1M Ql4Y 209002 JO pus aul Ag| 001 | | loot Js wioy Buyinsal sbumes Aousoy3 | SWNSSNN P SBLBIGHY),  S,0AINDaxT bm_co; 8
298 vel 99¢ 1ej04 301AIag Jowiolsny
A |
ﬁ, ‘Buines auy) 4o pedw
i 3y} yjootus o} pajsnipe useq sey a1j0jo.d sBunes |
| 8y "sif op 0} sugjd wiy ou ale asey) Juesesd Je pue !
! 'SOOIAIOG JBWI0ISNT UBNOIY) B|GBJIBAE SBOIAISS JOYJO JO
7 BWN{OA 8y} aseaour AeBuuey 1of sawoy sseun m:_>mm__ "S[BUUBYD BOIAISS Jjos 0] uogeiBiu
10 [9AB] SIU} JaAIBP 0} Aljiqeden ay) yoedw Ajpsonss | ‘PUBLLIBP BONPaI pUE Spesu &mzmwi,
i . 1M sy 1 “Bunodas siedal Jo Juswale asyuen __mo_ 0} uofoe Buniey pue puewep sejes.n _
‘aoueLopsd pue| i 8y} Jo BUIINOSING U} Ul YNSBI PINCD sheda) AsbBuney 1eum Buipugisispun juswsaoidws
Asonysp adinies mc__.uco.i 10} s3WOH JO Bullse) JoNBW By ‘$80Npas wnuenb , $5200.d :AdUBIOe PaAOId Awmouoé
U0 10BdWI [RUIUIL 1O ON | ydaooy ‘ BOIAIDS BY) 41 %su Je s| 3jqissod sBuines Jo [eas) ay | | 295 1892 ! ut Buninsal Juswdoeasp pgaig| S0JBG JBUIOISNY | SPARNDeXT o) | 4
1E9 9z fe10] 1} 8jei0dioy
“8oueltiopsd pue 7 ] ] T
AIBMIBP 821AI8S BUl-jUCYy 7 7 (sso00y)
U0 JoBdu [BLIUIL 1O ON 1dedoy 001 0S 0S uohestieuoel Loleoiiddy | 11 ®jesodion SOAINoeXT BN 9
‘aduBtLIoed pue ‘
AIBAHBP 801188 BU-JUO. ; uoBonposUl Awmoouim
U0 1oEdwW jBLUIUIL JO ON 1deooy 0s 05 S0IAIBS 1J9s 180d uoHINpal yeg 1 m«mgo&ooV SPAINOXT JaD| ¢ N
B ‘gouelouad pue i
AsaAifop ©21AI8S BUl-LOL i | Awmwou<:
U0 Joediul JewumL 10 oN daooy 7 99} | a9 SBIOUBIIYD |BIBUBS) 11 81es0dion _SBMINJeXT eIy |
“eouBwIopad pug i !
AIBAIOD BOMIBS BUIFIUOY , suojieondde 2102 10j sjuswebuelie | Ammmouc\vwi
U0 Joedwi jewiuiw 1o oN deaoy | Ayoedes aunpnasesur pue $80inossi 11 J0 Aujqepeny! 0sz 001 i | uswdopasp pue Hoddns jo maney 1 Q@o&oo,T $,8AIN09X] hmfoi £
i sBuines Aousioye Jayjo| ; | i
‘souBuLIoNed pue i ybinoays spm ounog pessiyoe aoUSH  Juswelels| | i i i !
AJeAlep 9IS BUl-LOY | 196png 90, udy By) w1 JojeouRYD BY) Aq sobueys oy V _ 7 Gmmou(:
U0 JoBduWl JRWIIW JO ON 1deooy | @np pauopueqe sem swsyIs Sy "Bumes spim funod| g1 | s1 | aageniul Bunndwiod awol spm 11Punog | 11 Em;o&b@[:@@%@ﬁ meﬁ z
B "eouewojied pue | | i ! i
AsAep 80MI9S Bul-uoly | ‘PIABIYDY anporuisesul steiodiod H ysoual 1s0d uoponpau| (sse00y)
U0 Joedul fewiui 1o oN 1dsooy MBU By} JO S)BUBYG U} UO paseq jebiel spm jpunod! o | | 05 1senbas sBueys apm jpUNoD | Listeodion|  seannoex3 o) |
00,
003 01/600z000.3 0/2002f000.3 8012007 203 Bunnes
uoseay uollepUSLILIOISY Jedwysaisuspusdsg sAnenung | saoqe pue | aaoge pue | saoqe pue anoge puz | pesodosd | paaiby-aid jo siielag Jiupn ssauisng BT T way
48AC 11/01.02 J19A0 01/600Z J49A0 60/8002 10A0 8012002
L 1/0102-80/L00C
sjesodoig sBuineg moN pue peaiby-aid
3 xtpuaddy AKebuieH jo yBnoiog uopuo-




Page 67

"SOUBULO}ST pUe]

Kianlep voiALes aul-uou!

5043 wnuwiuy|

|

SBOIAIBS HH jeuonoBsUes;

|
300
_

(1900

S@ANDaxg EEO_ [

| _
U0 joeduwi [ewu Jo oz‘ daooy | sonop i M Buines | /0| sjewnsg "pedoos aq o} fo>>,‘ 0L | e Joj Assniep SoiAI8S JO [opoLU Bws\mm,_ o | _SeApnoexy 1_1’
“aoueliiopad pue; | | | |
Kioaiap 218s sul-uo. | | SYOMBWEL) B 5[0} jUswaBEUERW O V sieah g \cm>m_ | (1200}
uo Joedui jewiuu JooN| 3deody | asn pue sapminje yers jo Buipueisiapun; aimoid Jsiood| 9L S ——— LS Y | I 800| SEAINOX3 SIS 62|
"BOUBULOYSd pUE] | B - R I | | A._vmooi
AJBAl[Op 9IS BUI- U0 | | Bunes vdd/dy o) sisu tyers 10 sdnosb abiej o) Aooip| | [ :
uo edw jewUL IO ON|  jdeody f feads o} diysiapesy (1ounod 104 senunpioddo Lo;mmTw _ deahiad | o) swere ﬁw%%%mmr;J-rJ . T8Q0|  SEMINISX3 jauO| gz
1 H s H ; i, AL A U H ! H
‘souewLopad pue| ; 1 b * i ‘
! BI00S 10} SJORIILIOD JO UOHESHRUORES | (1900}
AIBAHOD 92IADS BUI-UOL | f !
uo pedwi lpwiu 0 0| 1dedoy | UIEB} 3L} UM SIoM JO uonesole | 04 | Wwoyysod poddns e 40 906 j0 co_m_ma_ . T800| !m@%@mﬁﬂ@«\@ |
‘Bouewopad pu i H i
AieAiep somses wc_IcoL i 19pous Aionjep aoues BuiBueys >nw~ AV f A._.m.moovw_
U0 JoRduwl jewiuny 1o oN | decoy | fousinye ssayep jim 61081 se papaye aie sjs0d slow| 08 . TRQ0®BUUCSIB] BmpnisRY) T3A0;  seApnodxd PIO| 92 |
¥ leLut N| ¥ i -
“50UBLLLIGLISA puE| _, - w bw%mmwm_uwwwmm%m Wwwwmmﬂmw i S.moo:,
Kianiap 9o1niss sul-juoly| | aanjonys| 1 |
U0 J0BdWI [BUILIL 10 oz_ 1desoy * o ssjepuiisse g sod dn syoid 1eBpng somieg| 01 __peloid pue mmcmhcmw WH%MM | \M._,)B@T.vw@._.«%mumw_:[u# §2
"aouewIOlad pue| | i |
KiAlep 821188 BUN-UOL ' "UOHMSUOD BY) JO MIIASL pUB SBUlBBW _mctow_ xoudde Aq sBuyes jeuso) ut co_ﬁSuE_ S,moovv
’ ‘ . * | B adap st UoKoONPaI SIYL| Op wouj 3s0d poddns 31 44 Jo uonsjag SOAIN0EXT JPID| $Z
U Joeduwl [ewiui Jo op| dadoy 40 Jaquinu sy Budnps. uo juapuadep st uononp .c._.m | - =i }[.}[4.\
‘90UBULIG[Sd ncm‘ | | , I | !
iy ! Hun spqow ‘Ajaoeieiul se yons 1580/ ! (1800),
A3nip Boinies auy o V . oM Jo Juswidoaaap aimny uy uogonpay| T800|  saapnoexg ey | ez
U0 peduw ewiuw 10 oN| ydeooy i _'tenusiod uonessual swooul Jo uogesiesy| 02 q9m 4 | Uol | IO | L ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ SN
- “souBtLOpad pue| , $BI04 PUB Sd(d ‘senARde| Qr , ‘ ( )
AIBAHED SOIAIBS BUI-UO Buiuies) usamag syuif ssesio Yim Aojod eouspuse] siequaiy Ag pepuspe SeaUBIBjU0D| i 1300
1[@p 891 10| nu 9onpe; | SPARNDSX3 e1yn
U0 B[R JO ON| 1800y |40 MaIABYy "paleoIpap $80In0sal (TN # mEmc_mE@* 01 [BUISIXS 4O Jaquunu 80 mn m“ e T8AO| _ spamnaexy jeiy
aw>._mu.ww,._>m%~%mmm“ﬂ _ _ 1 Buguten siow seayep pue mEﬂ_mm.—Muw (1200
U0 JRdwWI B 10 | 1dasoy _ Pasieas uogesush auiodu; ‘eainosal jeuselul Jo Asq| 0F feusspe Jo asn 0npar g9 JSquIsly| _S2Mnosx3 jayd)| 1z |
| uo yoeduw e N | ol D SO ! |
. _ ,D d owonoele Buisn saidod soded| |
DoueuLIOpaed pue| stoded 10 yojeds) _ UOISIAO |
Asoayep somias m.c_IcEr‘ 404 elpal paseq gam uo AdJ o AJigy “saulepinG, leljuassa jng jje 0} sepusbe ssp oo S.mDO:
U0 Joedwl fewiuiL Jo o& 1denoy Bugum vodas c@@&c%m@ 4o voeyUBw|dwi .I_ oL o Buguud Adoo piey sonpas Lm.ct‘:m_ | SAMINOSXT Ja)| 07
T T “pouad seak sauu| ; |
| 7 £ 1910 pajyoid-a1 89 0} pesu (m swiweboid s BJM | ; ,_
“aoueunopad ncmw i Bupuny sy, juswes 1oefoud 80npoJjul pue suwiwesfosd| awwesBoud jo cozw_am:om, ; ( ) _
Aianysp aoinies aul-uol| ‘ ubisapa. 0} uoisiep B1es0dIed JO asnedsq o:mo_ pauugd pue 13G0 Aq swwesbou _ | 18GO)|
U Jordw! [BLiuw JOo oﬂﬁ daooy Lv 03 paseyd-a1 5q 0} pe3U |im g0/.0 405 SBUIES pauuely! /1 diysiapen) jo Aisallep asnoy-uy! ___1®Q0; -Mw@mwww.@;ofmv\
S UBILGIBd Bl P91 80 O] PISU M fhbulido L , 4 !
SouelLIoLiad pu | | * i i SwQO:
AIBALOD BOIMIBS DU | !
Uo Joedul fewiuiL J0 10830y | poaIude 9q 0} e} uo 80/40 J0j Buihes posibe ald| _ Buum umoy _l%J.v\;;J.,l,@ob#éw&@mwm.@w_!mr;
| ! o o 3 | | |
-gouBuLIOpad ucw_, V Hoddns 0} pepasu aiManss sy} pUE soInios sanjenba _ , ‘
Asontiop 821A18S BUI-UOY| i Jo Aisanep ay) Bumaines AQ passalep aq {jim sBuines| ; S,maov.‘
U0 Jordw fewiuw 10 oN| Jdagoy | poaibe aud gg/20 panaioe Bunes paaibe 2.d 20/90| 8§ wies) sanienby Jo xiom oy shoopd| 18Q0| _spamnoexy Rm,._bf 1]
3 ‘@oueunoped ple| ‘ _ f ‘ S.moovm
AIBAISD 9OMISS DU : i i
U0 JoBdL! WUy JO ON| 1dedoy |__PaiaAap 8q 0} ¥orJ} uo aie sBunes peaibe aid 90/20| 8% uoouny sauinbus Jaquispy | - 1300| _ spAnoexg piuy. 9|
18301 Juswabeuen
20p 0L 142 Poouinoqybion.
“80UBWIGHSd pue i I i , , i ;
AIsAop 801AIBS BUl-jUoy! | f ‘ ; EmEmmmcms_mi (ssa00y)
U0 BN [WluL 10 ON| 3800y s | o 1S0d SOUBUMLIPE | B910|  PooWinoquBeN|  seainoexa iy
T sbuewmofed pue] T T T i T | i
AIBAIBP 8DIAIBS BU-UOLY i aoeyd us sebieyo| ewebeuey ?wmou(:
U0 Joedu [BLuL 1o ON dasoy 001 Diom 84U MBU ~ O3 uise 4 Jejempenug poouInoqubiaN|  seapnoexg ey 143
000.3
00.3 01/600Z)000,3 60/8002}000,3 80/200Z 10/800Z Buineg
uoseay uofepusiLuIoaay yoedwysapouspuadeg aajeiung | saoqe pue | saoqe pue | sroqe pue anoqe pue | posodosd / poaiby-aig Jo siereq Bun ssauisng LIS LY ] woayy
42A0 1110102 [40A0 01/600Z |49A0 50/8002 1910 807,002
L1/0102-80/£002
sjesodoly sBuneg map pue psasby-aid
3 xipuaddy KeBuue Jo ybnosog uopuo




Page 68

€Liog

[~ souewionsd pus "SEHINUALD,) JBJEg 0 PESI ou) 10 T
KIBNIBD B0IAIBS BUI-JUOL soueLiopusd HEiaA0 8y uo edwl A WU sseuisng SBHUNWILIOYD) JSJES (Abereng)
U0 JoBduil jULIUIL JO ON jdsooy By} UIIIM 8JB8UMas|D aigejieae Jou s Loddns jeuonippy | § S 10 PEBH 0} Wd JO SINCY Ut UORINPaY NWWOD J2J8g|  S,8ANNDSXT PIYD! Zp
“@oueuLIO)ad puB
Aianep 9o1A19s Bul-juoly Buipun) sAneusoye Buipua Buipuny wiiey Loys Jayio usaib SOA UIyIm (ABeresg)
U0 joedwi jeuluiw Jo ON|  39eg - Jdesoy papirid 8q 0} 9588D UBY) PINOM YIOM Loddns WidIA| 0Z 02 180d SN0 [BIDOS € JO UOHONP3I 60 SSHIUNUILIOD JoJeg|  §,8AIN0aXT JOIyD| Ly
9 102 i3 p14] k344 B30 uogeIuNUILO)
7 "8)50d gejs budnpad i
| i Aq epew oq |jm sBuines uay) pansiyoe 8q JouuEed
SiU} §) *ABUOLU IO} SN{BA JORBQ JOYO YIIUM SBDINIBS
“BouBULOled pue Buiseyound Aq passiyoe aq M SI) *Jnyssaoons vie
AIBAHBP 321AI9S BUI-UOL NOD 8y ybnoiyy puads Juud pue uBISep BpIM [IDUNCD (ABoress)
U0 Joedu [BUIIUILL JO ON ydaooy aJouwl 1oauip o) sueyd j) “sauadiys wud ybnony sbumes| /g [T 6l SUOREIUNLILLIOD UOHEDUNWIWOYD|  $,8AIN08X3 JBIy)| of
‘sourLLIoed pue
AIBASP 891AISS BUH-UOL 1eBpng (ABejesg)
U0 Joedul [BuitL JO ON daooy Butes pue sesy Aougyinsuod woy usxey aq o) sbumeg | 62 31 l oL Asod UOIBJIUNWWIOD|  S,8ANN03XT JOIYD| 68
“douewsopad pue
AJBAISP S2IAI8S BUI-UOL (pauLBiep 8q 0} 184) syun sseuisng {ABojeng)
U0 Joedull [BUULL JO ON jdesoy uiyim s196pnq SNOLBA Wosy usxe) aq |im Buines| vy 124 Hoddns pue Juswabeuepy UOIBOIUNWIWIOD| S @ARNDaXT IBIYD! 8¢
‘@oueuLIOpad pue \
AIBABP BOIAISS SUI-UOCY (yoeauod Aousbe {ABajens)
4O JoBdull BunuiW JO ON ydeooy uo Ajuauno) peraiep oq fim JoBeueyy Aindeq jsod seig| 204 8¢ i 89 uonesuabay UONEDIUNULIOT) S,PAN0OXT JBIYD . JE
‘sBuiaes Aousoiys
Jeyuny arsiyoe o spomaweyy ubisep pue juud 820 Bunsixs
1no Bumaual aq 0sjE Jim oA “BUIAES BpIM 1DUNOD B Bupiew
sooud 2)giss0d 159G S} JB SHIOMBWRY [[RUSIUM parcidde
o ying ut sedpues juud eseyoind o) NDY Bugeus NoD
ybBnosy sewoo Juud Buuinbal suom g ey Buunsus anIo
01308[aNS "NDD YBNOIY} BLIOS JOU S0P PUE PSIINOSING
Buiaq s1 18t suom juud aimdes o peskieue B fjiM UONBULIOIY
“esueuLoped pue SHIL HOUNOD SI0UM BU) WOy uoReILO Bueel Bulos|od
Asanijep 801AI9S BUI-UOY 10} $53001d BU} paaibe oABY GNIO 'SIIOULIYS ubSap (ABajeig)
U0 1oeduw feunul 10 ON 1daooy /3uud yBnouy 18w o4 jIm 60/800Z PUB 0/L00Z 10j sBuineg| b 14 14 SUOHEJILINUALISD UOHEDIUNWILIOD | S, 9AINDDXT JBIyD| o¢
‘eoueuwioped pue 190pnq sa8) ASUBYNSUOD UY UOKONPaL YBNOIY) PaABIIE 3G
AIBAIOP BOINIBS BUI-JUOLY 1M 8072002 W sBuies "Buunionnses wes; e ybnosy) ‘seuges {ABaieng)
U0 JoRdus JBWIUIL JO ON jdeooy yiets Buionpai Aq pensiyoe useq SABY 10/9002 Jop sBuneg| 0Z 0z Adljod uoneUNUIWoYD $,89A0N08XT BIYDT GE
‘(JQIN) s19Bpng syuesb jjews sy Buonpa
PansILOE 84 M (MZ1) 60/800Z PUE (MZ1) 80/L00Z Ul SBuineg
"sdnoub J0j09s Aejunioa 0} 1aBpnq swuelb oy uf asEBIOUI
Aseuoneyur sy uo Busssed Jou Aq paasiyoe a4 fim (M6g)
+HL/0L0Z PUB (329) 04/600Z (M1 1) 60/8002 Ul SBuieg ‘sdnosb
O} Butpunj Ut uoRINpaI B sueBL AJSAROSHS YDIYM ‘SdNoIb
J0308s Asejunjoa 0) 196png sjuesb ey ut asessou; Areuonejsus
‘@dueuLiopad pue au} uo Bussed j0u Aq pansiyoe aq (M (409) 60/80 Pue
AIBALSP BOIAIBS BU-ILOL} (112} 80720 Ur sBumes  sjueib puny Juswdopaap seARBhIL (ABojeng)
Uo JoBdW [RUBUIL JO ON ydeooy #wu ay; Buionpas Aq passiyor ueaq 8ARY /0/90 J03 sBuneg! LZE 88 9 08 (A wes} 10j38g ABJUNIOA sjeiodion UCHEDIUNWILWIOD S, 8AIN0BXY JBID| e
196png Asejes up uoponpas )
€ yBinoiy} paasiyoe oq jiIm pue poddns pue juswebeuew
"souewioped pue UM DSUIEIDE ST Y01 BI0)8104 1 L SAD Joj sBuines sjgeyses
AsaAlfep 201IBS BUI-UOY |MOU B} UI PBIOBIES SI SIY) PUB L SAD SU O} 49A0 passed usaq ‘Buines (ABajeng)
UO Joedw [Bului SO ON| ydeooy | BABY MOY JO SBUIABS HING SEM 80//00T 40} 1088} Buibug | 0L 0l 212400100 7 Loddns pue juawsbeuepy UOHEOIUNUALOD | S,8AIN0SXT JOIYD| €8
. 0L 084 99 601 L5¢ 1E10L 1800
“93UBULICHSd PUE| _ T T
AIBAT[OP BIAISS SUI-JUO | [PuUUOSIBd B (18Q0O)
U0 j0eduil [BWIURL JO ON deooy Bioa. sjeiodios uodn yuspusdap| 094 031 ‘A0 ‘seniienba ui SBIOUBIEA |Jif Jou 0Q TRAC|  s@pAnnoexdg BiyD| Ze
“@douewojiad pue sisyio uym diysisuped
KISAIBP BOIAIBS BUIJUIOL NOLF WUy Ut oM — Aoniisp jejuswdoieasp (1200)
Lo ed) jeun 1deooy JoAIBP |M BUIABS | 1/0| olewnss padoos aq o MIoM| 04 0/ ' AIOSIADE 10} [9POL DIAIOS MBIASYH 19A0|  seapnosxy P! 1e
0003
00,3 01/6002)000,3 60/8002§000,3 80/200Z 10/9002 Bujaeg
uoseay uclEpUBLILIOIaY joedusysaiouapuadag aanenung | sAoqe pue | saoqe pue wﬂonm pue aroge pue pasodouq / paaiBy-sid o sHEIRQ 3un ssauisng 8jeI0}00.1() wayj
4BA0 L1/0102 [19A0 0175002 }48A0 60/8002 1910 80/2002
11/0102-80/2002
$1es0d0.d SBuABg MBN puE PeaiBy-aid
3 xipuaddy Aebuien jo yBnosog uopuo




Page 69

gLioy

[ eouBwiopaed pug T
A1oAlBp 80IAIBS BUIFUC “B0IAIOS By} Buusalep sanued |
U0 13Eduw [BLUIURY SO ON ydaooy UBJPjiyd 4O Juaidoeaap Jayuny jo Jnsal e se sBuneg| 16 16 s1e) Aeq B4 ® UaIpiyd| someg suaippyn| 8g
‘8duewIopad pue
AJOAOP BDIAISS BUY-UCY
U0 JordWi [BLIIUL JO ON 1deooy uonRINBYUOIDI SDIAIBS UBNOIL} PEABIYOE G 0L | LOL 101 SBIUBRIS LILIPY SAYIWBS B UBIPIIYD|  eDIAIBS SUBIPIYD| 4G
“goueIcisd pue
AISAHBP BOIAISS BUIUOY
UO Joedul jELTURL JO ON 1deony L b1l uone.nByuos-as aoinieg Loddns Ajwe BOINIOS S,UBIPIYD| 9g
‘goueuLIOpad pue ‘suondinsse [euibld au papésixe
AIBNISP BOIJSS DUI-JUCI Sey Jaye payoo} Builiodaq usIpHIYd JO JBqunu ay) Inq ; ‘uopdope Buisesiout)
U0 oBdWl [BUNULL JO ON Jdsooy 13w uaq sey suoydope ioj Jabie) ysu JE s eale sy | 768 |z68 Aq uoneindod Dy ut :o:u:ummi SRS 9 UBIPIYD | BDIAIBS S,UBIPIYD| S5
fejo juadolarsg
[444 (444 0 (443 9eT ’ Hoddng ssauisng
"PIUBULIOLRT pUE i
AsaAlBp S2IAI0S BUILOY SAIBA S} uawdoieasq
U0 JoRdLWI [BLLURL JO ON jdeooy 0z vt 05 2z 0} paynuep! eq 0} sBuines Aousiolys '® Hoddng sseuisng|  90IBS SUBIPIND! bg
“goueuliopad pue
AIBASP BOIAIBS BUIFUCH SIS0) SEINSS wewdosaa()
uo oedun fewnuiu JO oN desoy J8UI0)SNY Ul 8SESI0UL QU puR JusWAo|depas SBwNssy . bE ve juawabeuey Loddng juspnig ’® Hoddng ssauisng  9918S SUBIPIYD| €5
souelulopsd pue ]
AISAIBP B3IAJSS BUI-UOI Jswdopne
U0 JoedW! el JO ON 1decoy “sBuines Aousiowye Joun Jo Jaquinu i L 1z UORBASIUALPY PUB 35U DAd ® Hoddng ssauisng|  92IMRG SUBIPIYD| 25
‘seblieys Jayjo pue Buuado
-souewoped pue IBUILNG IO BIODUT {BUOHIPPE
AIDAOP BIIAIDS BUI-UOS wosns Buiked uswsaAul Juedas ybiy oy anp swdoasq
U0 JoBdW! (BWIULL 10 ON Weooy Bugoee up 8jued Jo SS80ONS PaNURUOD Uo spuadaq| 81 3 o1 PUEB ¥ U} UONONPaY "9SNOH UBLIEPUSY ' Hoddng ssauisng;  8JIM9S SUBIPIUD| LG
"@ouBlLIONad pue ]
AIBAISP BOIAIDS BUH-UCH swwesboid ssieles jo uogesie)des jeuonppe wawdopasqg
U0 10BdLU} [BUIUIL JO ON ydsooy rendes jo az1s Aq pauwusiep Apbie; s Buyeis! o8 oy oy ~ juswebeuey Ausdoig uoneonpy ’p Hoddng ssouisng | eowIBg SUBIPIUD| 0g
XBPUL JUSHD UO YIOM 0} JUEIB
‘@ouBULIONSd pue sjusuiuiodde eueued BuipuswLIooss §3K] “pucheq VS WOT wodj 1s0d suo Buipun; juerny
AIBAIBP BOIAISS BUL-UCH uonenuiuod Jo Auqeqold yBiy Yim 800z UdIBw asindw Aq suue) aoeideys Ajuc juewdoasq
10 ordwi [BUWIULL 10 ON 1desoy 0} pedjuesend Buipun yg| "JUBJEA AjUBLND Si1S0d| L9 19 BLUI LB} O] JoquIaW HElS JUQR 19| '® poddng sseuisng|  82IAIRS SUBIPIND| 6
"X01dde JO SLIoDU] 8S0] (1M OUM ‘SdIAIBE JaqUIBH 205 7]
‘goueunopad pue AQ BUOP AJUBLIND SUOM  "SJOOUDS PALIBIUIBL |jB WO} 40 pud pue sjgadde jo uoheNSIUILDE
AIOASP B0IAISS BUIUOY dn ubis wepusdaput SaNbas YoM oooj0id JUSpMS 8y} ssnoy-ut Bupey  suoissiupe juswdopereq
U0 JoediLl [ewius Jo ON daooy 8oeid 0] piey JO uolBUBWSIdWI (NISSBONS Lo Spusdaq| &b e 51 lensed uo sBuines gels  suoissiupy ' Hoddng sseuisng 910G SUBIDIUD| gp
"gouBuLIoed pue
AJBAISP 931MI9S DUI-JUCI SuejNSUod juswdoasq
U0 JoBdL JBLIUIL JO ON ydeaoy oL oL 40 85N Ul UOKONPaY $40}08IIT ’® Woddng sseuisng|  @oineg susIpud| 29
@duelopsd pue .
AJOAISP 221AJBS BUI-UOY "SaYOURIG O} POAJOABP 94 0} jeBpng "sonpas JuswdoersQ
U0 JordW! [BLIUL 10 ON 1daooy DINOUS JUBLAINIOB] ‘SIUIBASBS [BIDUBUY ({EISA0 JO MBIA U}| 0T oz Buisipsape juswiiniosy ® Hoddng sseuisng|  eomieg susIpIYD| op
‘SBOIAIS [263] O} WSt
‘gouswoped pue 10 SS0] |enuslod "a3iape jebst 10} sied o joiues yBL
AloAlSD B2IAIBS BUI-UOY $2JMbaJ 081y "SIC0YDS 40} BLIBYDS BouRINSUYY, [efie] jusdopEasg
U0 Joedw [BuiuiL JO ON Jdeooy Injssanons e Buidofenap seoines |eBa| uo Juepusdaq| 02 0z sabreyo jeban ’® Hoddng sseuisng ! eoweg susIpuD| oy
‘9oueuLIoyad pue
AJBAIOp BOIAISS BUI-JUOY i wswidopnag
Uo Jordli [BWIUIL JO ON deooy | SJom jo Bulueansuey | g ,_ G AobuLieH Jepeg| B Loddng sseuisng|  eomnieg m_cmhu__:ov, by
62 0 0 [] {EJO 1 sagiunmuwioy) Jajeg
“Buipuny WIs}-10US uo juspuadep
Apneoy AIoA 51 SOA 8UL  "aidoad BunoA yum suom
‘sourtopad pue sy uo Bunoeduit Agalay) sannp sABENSIUILIDE BWOS
AIDAIBP S9IAISS Bul-jUCH U0 8xe} 0} Buiey s1oNJOMISED UO JoRdWY M SIy ) SOA 84U} uiypm (ABereng)
U0 JoBdWI {BRHUIL JO ON ooy 'SOA 2y} uiim poddns urupe peju) Apeasje sisiayy | b i JOJENSILILPY JO SINOY U LoRoNpey SONILUNWILIOD JBJES|  S,8ARN0XT JOIUD| ©F
000.3
00,3 01/6002)000.3 60/800Z)000,3 80/.002 10/900Z Bupeg
uoseay uOHEpUBLLILICIRY jordwysatouspuadag SAREBINWNG \ M>Mna pue ' Mhonm pue ' MMMam pue aA0Ge pue posodol / paeiBy-aid Jo sEreq Hun sseuisng ojes0)08I] way|
AC |1/010Z C 0176002 6o/8002 o 20/2002
1 1/0102-80/L002
sjesodoly sBuneg maN pue pasiBy-aid
3 xipuaddy Aabuuen jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 70

g ! , )
I | | "dojsAsp SyIoMIaN SUBIPIYD ay| |
| , H‘ SE S30IAISS Jo uoneiBayul Joea.b m,j. uoisnouy|

: ! , I
‘souelioMed vcm‘ ; i * | ‘

Aanyep soimes QUI-JUO | ; | | i ,_
U0 Joeduwl jBuiuL 10 ozfi 1danoy Lv e A seh L,mwe o F o “J _ ; | ubnouy Paynuap) 8q o) sbuimes mwmy._‘aﬁ ® Spiepugig _on\r_ww,f 90IMBG S,URIPIYD Tmu
“gousluGiied pug| e e A — [ R ] ! B [ A —— T
oo e G| | * | | f ! _ sues)| co_m:_oc:‘ ‘
U0 Jorduw B Jo onﬁ jdeooy JueoeA Ajusiing 104! 09 P %m Lﬁ | 30 Swis) uiypm so1ases memu__OmcooAm 9 spiepuelg _ooﬁm_ ESIVETS m.cm:n:coir v
T uBiiod plg st I | T L 30 THIISH UMM BOIAISS S1EpIOSU =t ‘,\lix:\,;J;\:Js\s\z[zJ.,J-. i
Assatep soinses sul-juouy! i | , ! 6-8002 wioJy jsod| cc_m:_o:."_ f
U0 edw feuuuil Jo o_ﬁ 1dsooy UBINSUOD g AQ payjy pue jueseA AjuoLing umom,‘ 9 r i | % SpJepuesg Aiepuoseg Jo pesH :m_.mmﬁr R SpiepuBlg _occow.i SDIAIDG S,UBIPIYD * [
T SsuBLiopad g e D T2 PR LT VRN ARURLIND 380d | i S S R Sl D PEOH TR —— [‘.i\..re,l_(.[.éJialr:,, Bl
Asanlep aoimes mEEcEL JataA0duwi 1ooYds Joj oddns jeuonippe mnsoami ‘ spiepues| oISy | i

|

8 spiepugg _occuw__ SANBG SUBIPIND; 2/ |

#l

03 Ayoedes jo soe; 0} enp swejgoud aimny asnes >m_\i 1)
Asonyep eoses auluoy| f

U0 1oedW jBUUIL JO ozmT 1daooy 488 UBnosy) ejqeyrene Butaq spunj uo spuadag| og i
T eoummiiopsd ple| T T T T e e TI\ T
Aianyep aomnies mc__.ucoi ;

U0 JoRdWI [BULIUL JO ON' 1deooy

:oﬂumaE:mE_EE_o oz%

1daooy
“souBLGHad pue|

Asewd ssouoe jsod e JO uononpay
e .J!anwm.mu\m@%@szl.!\‘ DALY TEES WO
ybnoiy puny pue jsod SUCHEAOUL| |

uoisnuy| |
'8 SpJepuRlg j0OYog|  BoIneg SuBIPIYD| L2

o ...?mucoomw 10 peaH Joj Buipury ssjsuel

wEme |

, * 1s0d somnseg noonn_fo% uosnpu f
1oddns o) ajqe Bujaq sese aoies Jayjo uo spuadaq| 59 i

| Aue3 jo pesy jusiins y} B1eplosucD | » Splepur)g _oocuw._ 209G S,URIpHUD| 0/

6912 Q

B0 sofjjwe g udipiyo
T
|

"SOUBUIIONSA pUE]

¥

AsaAlBp 901AI8S BUI}-JUOY| |

Assnifep 901AI8S BUI-LOY | co:mk_:mccoom._mi *
U0 JoBdWI [RUUL JO ON | 1dasoy ! : ; 80inss Bupis)sog wouy sepusIS | SBYkUE P UBIDIYD|  BOINISS S,UBIp)
[(.J,Mmﬂaak%&\vc,m‘j S ANt SR S E— :iﬁn;J;[i]i\!l i i - Shwtta S

U0 joedu} [BUWiUIL JO ON | ydeooy V 62 | ‘ __ Uuupe zm& salueq g cEEEoA_ BOIAI9G S,UBID}
Biahela \..Ma%ot[wm.ncm_%,J.:J;},,.J, ﬂ;[éJsJ:\é\. S J\‘JIJIJJI\] — — o 7[ T NES, PB4 R L e
Assniep 821AI8S Bul-uoj| i i ! f | i 9oIARG! i
U0 pedwl (el 10 ON ! 1ds00y | | sz 5z r ‘ 8Jeg Buies) jo uoneinbyuoosy| SBYIIE P USIPID|  BDIAIBS m.ce_o__zo.‘ 29
- UBLORd puE J_T T R S U .. 2NN N e e L — —t— J]_[ e T T TR SPlEL R s, J+\ ‘\,.[,.l:l% L9
AsoAfjop 01nIBS BUI-UOLy ] ! ; i [ | i
uo Yedw FewtuL Jo oN| Jdaooy | | s | , ; ‘ SeuBIdle 8IS Woddns Apwe | solE 3 CEEE&F soneg w.cme_zom‘ 99
15]@&&@&?&[&&. e e S L S R R — T L S R SRR B UsipiiyC e R
Aisntep 81AI8s Bulj-JuOL | f | i ; |
uo joedun jeunung Jo OZH‘ jdeooy 1 ﬁ uodsues zmwi Saiitued P UBIPIND|  somies m_cmgu__cou 59

“eduelic|Sd ch
AisAtiop sointes Bul-juol!

{

unosde Bupes e ubnoayy pateAtjapal _

uo joedwi [BuiuL Jo ON| 1deooy ‘jsod Buures yuesea jo uoysipg | SOIIES R USIDIIYD|  8DIMBS SUBIPIYD . b9
T J.@UJC%O@M@IUQ@M I — - T [ 7 — .,;[I.»“‘f,[; T e T T e ,.IMT«II..I[S»‘.;[) T M_‘f,“
Asoniap soines suif-uoy | | | | ! | i
UO y3edLl fewituL Jo ON | ydaooy | L | f i yodsuen NIg| SBlWEL B UBIDIYD| @019 S,UBIp) _f €
e N ey e b wodsueanag|  sequedp _99NBS SUBIDID| £9
“80UBLLIOLBd puB! I i ! f T a | !

Asnijap aoinies sui-juoy|

M

| | |
U0 JoRdui JBUNUIL IO ON| 1dasoy R 2 i | i ; N3S soueuly pue som ases| Soljiwed 9 usip| ERIIVEN m‘co.a_fo% 29
T souBliGced pue’ B \+ ST T T N B |
Asenyap sonies suy-juoly| _f , | ; ,
U0 JoBdW (B 10 ON 1daooy = hwﬁ i % . sanuspYs :_Eu<, saljiwey 9 cma_foﬁ ERIINEYS mA:@n_EE,, 19
1 | § {

mmmj,
| ‘ D113 LE J& 3I0M SNJ0JD1 PuUe SSOIAISS UoHUBAIBIU]

|

A‘”

H |
"SHJOMIDU S uaIp) o,
40 1IN0 {j01 BY) puE 82118 $,5(d0a|

| 8Nk pue Isiielpads uo puads sonpa. o) ] 32@&

[eueuy jejeno 34} ley] suesy UOHM :o:c®>®;a_
pue uojusABIUl JBILES JO S|BAS] 18yBiy yonw sasiyoe |
0} swie 93183 s,81dosd Buno pue usipiyd m_E 806 |

| M

|
e K RS N e T it eni o £ -2 8 ORI
|
|

‘souBwouad ncmm
Aioatep soinies suil-juol|
U0 oRdul (B JO ON f deooy

"92uBWIIOped pUE|

‘N BunoA pue uaippyo ayy Jo uonesbauy !
saljiwey g cmhn__co_ ey w.cokv__:owi 09
7 e

iwmmm i Jayung ybnoayy Sauapye Buyeis |

7»
i 2 T T TENEE e T LT TR TR

i {

AKianyop oniss aul-uoy ; | |
U0 JORAW! B 1O ON 1dadoy 9DIIBS JO UOYBINBIUODRI JO JNsa: € S SeluspIT | 2 | uonEINBYUOTBI BoIIBg Salles 3 usipIyD|  somiss susipyD | g
000.3
00.3 01160020003 60/800zk000:3 s0rz00z| 2003 Buthes
uoseoy uonepusuILIOIsy 1oedw/saisuspuadag oapeinwng | aroqe pue | esoqe pue | eroqe pue onoqe pue | posodosd | pesiby-oid jo syeroq 3un sseuisng sjesopeng  |wey
48A0 1110102 J19A0 01/600Z Jsono 60/8002 1970 80/2007 )

LL/0L02-80/L002
siesodosd sBuneg maN pue pesiby-aiy
3 x1pusddy AsBupieH Jo ybno.og uopuo




Page 71

€109

1810 [ 95URLLIOLIDY

£8T L1 0s 06 92 '8 Adijod ‘Bujuueld
‘souBwoMed pug i ] i
AJBALBP BIINIBS BUI-UOH SOUBLLIOLIOY
U0 JoBdui lewiurL J0 ON ydeooy HNY JO ssuojseiw Buusaiep ul Anownig| ov o Heys Aonjod Bujuueld ui uononpay ® Aotjod 'Buiuueld jusluuosAug| 16
‘9dueliiiojad pug T
AJBAliBP BOIAIBS BUI-UOY souBwLOpad
U0 Joedwi JEUUILL JO ON Jdsooy Hejs woddns peonpay! g /1 Ge Jels poddng o uononpay R Adijod ‘Buiuuely USWLOIAUT | 06
‘gouewiiopad pue ]
AJaAijep 0IAIBS BUII-JUOY OJUBULIONBY
U0 jordul JeulurL JO ON ydaooy $8}1S A9 40 usWIdOPASD paLILEld. OF 0z 0z $98§ [05u0D) Bulpling peseauouy) ® Adljod ‘Buiuue|d wawuonAug! sg
"90UBULI0}ISd puE
AIBAISP B31A8S BUIHUOL - Aemuspun SoUBLIOPSY
U0 YoedW JEWIUIL JO ON ydaocoy Anueuino sas; Buiuueld jeuofieu Lo uOKE}NSUOD 0F 0g $89) Butuuelq ut asesou; 1§ Aotiog ‘Butuuelg JuswiuonAug; gg
"souewoped pue
AIBAIOD BOINISS BUI-UOY souBLLIopad
U0 JoBAWI [BLWIUIW JO ON deooy 20/9002 ui Juswaaaioe oy jebie) uo| Lg 0c 12 8seaIoul $98) Bujuuey 2 Aojod ‘Bujuuely wswuolAug| g
‘souewiopad pue
AIDAIBP 8DIAIBS BUI-IUOI} | i uoiNGLIUod SOUBLLIONDY
U0 yoBduWi [BUHUL 10 ON dedoy £0/9002 Ul Juswsnsoe Joj 1ebie) uo| ¥ 9 901 ybnouy) A1eA00as 1800 » Adijod ‘Buiuuey| EmEco_scmv 98
144 St 13 ££2 06 1230 judtuasioy
| “nedat dnoib 1oy aunuelboid I T 7
Bumpuny [enden oy peyuij osie 5§ Bupom feuoibas gns |
goueuLopsd pue pue Buusupied o} sAow pue AjARDE paseq piay 8anpas
AJBAISP S2IMDS BUIFIUOY o1 siqe Buteq uodn Juspusdep s "ABsiess 0) Alenuod ‘palejep sisod Jadiyo oMy ypm
U0 YordWI [BIWIUIW JO ON daooy 39 Aewi siy; pue sefuoud BULIBIEP M SHS auL ! 08 08 Paonpel 8q 0} swes | uonesausbay JUBLWBI0JUT JUBLIIOIAUT L g
‘goueluIopad pug Sedle 8002 Ul UdxE} 8 SBUInES
AKIDAIBP BOIAIBS BUYI-)UO) ARoud ur Buipusyo Ut uoRINPaS paureisns pey sAey d1esouab piNod jey) sjesodosd ypm om
U0 JoBdWI [BUHUIL JO ON daooy 1M apew ssaiboud jey) sawnsse — mainal 0} Joelgng | 08 08 JO MBIABI ~ SUORDAdSU] [BIDIBLILIOD JUawRDIoNT JUSWUOHAUZ| $g
B ‘goueuLIopad pue seale 010z ui udvey ag sbuines 1
AJSALBP B21AIBS BUI-UO Aoud ut Buipusyo U uoronpes paumsns pey aaey aeisuab pinod jey; sfesodosd ypm
U0 oedw JBWUIL JO ON decoy 1M apews ssaiBoud jey sawnsse — mainal 0} 18lgng| 0LL oLt SIOM JO MBINSI ~BUILID) [EJUBLILOIIAUS WBWa04U] wswuonAug| ¢g
3 “douewiiopad pue
Kioaiep 801AI8S BU)-UOY ‘sBuines Bupq pinom saaoe '1581 19)JeW 0}
U0 Joedwt [BUIUIL JO ON ydaooy S1qBSUIDY puR ABJIS J0} JOBNUOD B JBU) Selnssy| 62 [ Ind 1S0d UBPIBM (ewiuy aiejom jewiuy JUBWBIoMT JuswIUoIAUL | 28
3 “gouewLIoped pug
AIBAIBP B0IA1DS BUI-LOY qz| 89s "POABIYOE BUWIOOUI 9SEBIOU
U0 yedw! jRLIULL JO ON jdaooy ~ ®0IAI8s 40 Buipuny panunuod pue Aaijog Juswisdios | oy S o1 o1 S SN PasesIou| "Nd 4O 98N pasealnuy) JUSWIBNONT JUBWIUOIAUT ! g
‘gouBuLIo)ISd pug
A1BAHBP SIS BUIFUOY “SJUBIBAOICWI SIINIDS JBLIOISNY) "$99LB18dWI0D =TI HEY
U0 1oBdw [BUiUiI 10 ON ydaooy Hejs pue swayshs 1} ug sjuswoenoidus uodn Juspusdeq| €1 <l UBNOIY) PRONDaI SJS0D UOKENSILKUPY JUBWIBMIOIT JUSWIUOIIAUY | 0g
“Yifesy 2ygnd jos101d 0} AjAioe
‘ooueuLopad pue JUBLLIBIOMUR Ul BSEBIOU! [BYUSiod B 8Q M 818y “moina) ableyd aoines
AIBAIBP 9DINISS BUI-ILIOL i sebieyo pasipisqns penebie) 10} uoISINCID Buipnpul | yBnosy so1M8s JEANBU 1809 0) SA0W
UO JoRduwl JBUNIUIL JO ON 1dsooy Tﬂu__oa Butbieyo ui ebueyd e 2168 0} pesu |Im anEms:, 00} i ﬂom 05 onss8.60.d — sebieyo joauo) 1584 | JusWwsDIOUT | JUBUILOIAUG| 67
TeTO L SoUCIIONS g
Siy 29 £0Z oLz '8 Aseajag 8oineg
“adueWIosd pue| ]
AJBAIDP BOMBS BUIFILOY ABsieng sjooyos popuspy | ADUBLLLIONS ]
U0 1ordull [BUIURL JO ON 1decoy B} Yjim sul} ut S1 jusludoeasp oy uodn Ewu:wamg Sip z9 £0zZ 051 vonIeg Aejd % KisaipQg somieg  e0ineg SUIPILD 8/
“@ouewoad pue | ]
AISAIBP BIIAISS BUIILOY *SIBOYJO SOl PIY} JBUIO PUE SHIOMIBN | juawsBeuew 1sfoid oy Aoedes swos souBwLIONad
U0 Jordwl [BLWILIL 1O ON jdanoy S,UBIPIIYY) JO SPESH Uy} Jo SB|0J By} mc_ao_m>moV 09 | 09 UIgJa1 1N 1504 JB1J puoddg Yy a1efeq 3 Aenijeqg enineg|  eomieg susipiyy | 22
"~ 1EJO.L UOISNDU]
85¥ szl sz 602 '3 spiepuelg jooyng
‘aouellIcad pue] ] i
AsRAIDD BOIAIBS BUI-JUOY | | uoisnput
U0 1oBdWwt [BUIUKU JO ON ey injssaoons Bujeq uopeseusb awooul uo spusdeq| 0§ i | oS SiANOE uohessusb awoou) B SPIEPURIS 000G |  80IAIBS SUBipiyD| 9/
r 000.3
00.3 01/6002)000.3 60/2002J000,3 80/100Z 10/900Z Bueg
uoseay uofEpUBLILIOIDY joedwysserouapuadag aajenwng | saoqge pue ] m>Mnm pue ‘.m>Mnm pue aroge pue | pesodoid / pesiBy-aid 10 SiEIG Jun sseauisng ajei03994100 way
48R0 LL/0LOT HIBAD 1/600T J49A0 §0/8002 10n0 80/2007
L 1/0102-80/L002
Sjes0dold sBuneg maN pur psaiby-aid
3 xipuaddy Asbuuel jo ybnoiog uopuoT




Page 72

t41%4 0201 12)0 ) auadsioang
“2duewIopad pue ] * ; _ j _ ‘ ,
KivAep aoiases sul-juoy; | , ) * 10B.U0D Hodsuel .: ; ;
vo oeckul fewumy 10 o deooy | e JOBAUOO MU JO piEMY| 020} Jozov € _— e BiUSWEBRURN SisEN POjRIBEYY .e\%mowo@mT.‘\«,L@koﬁcm 80k
T “mlumwﬂﬁwm‘mafnomw[([‘ri\: ﬁ T ! ‘ i i ﬁ ] !
Asdnap Boines au-uoy| ; ‘ ! | , |
40 yoedu jeuituu Jo ON|  ydeady , [09 S S Q8 Bubbied U1 sBuines soussqe yoig | e SUROSIOBNG| | uBwuUOIALT| Jo
T esuetiiogisd pus! e R I : , ,
Kisaiep aownses w:__.wco& f i ECLITES co_«uw__ou.,ﬁ , g
uo Joedwi feunu 1o ozﬁ ydsooy Pig jeyides peaciddy ! og 05 Buiphoss e Bupuedxs pue mc_>EQE_,, 8usosPaNg| awuosAug ! 901
[— .}[&N%&H@»&Qvg@‘ T e 4 T T e T Jnﬁ\l[.s‘xnf.:.:\‘ M:lvl.[! e J,x:[ T e JM [ —— \AI:#« e
Assatiop eoinies sul-juosy) V I | i | ;
O joediu [BLUL 40 ON | eooy i me..mz_mo.ﬁmaw i sBuines Aouspye susosieang BYIO| 8uB0SIRaUS | EwE:oEch_ 501
T T esliellisogied pus| T e PlQBIBNIRQ) 80) e e R CUPOSIRRAS| JusliuoIL: LA
"@ouBlIoLad pug| ; i j I ! ; !
Kianep aoins9s sup-juoy; i _ ; ! i | _ A
uo edul I O ON | idesoy | smeemealzy | o Wouebevewooussquys|  susoseeng) _ wewwounug| 4oy |
o Q@&m&dﬂﬂ e st ; [ — [ | ! ! ! i ‘
&Mﬁﬂcawn_v_mwﬂwh_ﬁcmu ; Jdaooy m m.am_oz_ma_, o¢ ; ‘Kl mom LW L $8UBOI wos_om m:muﬂmm:ﬂ‘ ) EmEEEs:m_.ﬁ soL
T Ts3uBlliofed pug z][‘.[[i,_lk E e —— I B — [iﬂ#iJ:I- .J.. I I R S [ e T | T
Asonep somies w:__.«coi ‘ | | ,V _ ; | | ‘
U0 pedw jewiiuiu 1o op| 1dedy | Slaeisneq 08 | S S .wmaJ!ef.f.,.lf.i.F@m@ﬁﬁ%%wﬁf@@ﬁﬁ{&%ﬁ . PusOspRNg) .. Jusultionaug| zo)
T T esuBleled pus T T e i | | ; :
Asanjep aoinies wc:.«coc_ * ; | ! _ ‘Bunokoas ug mmmmbc; “‘ !
uo oedu fwuru Jo ony|  jdeooy | Sigedaegioor | | e ,l_.,;.@wum@m a%%ﬁ&%e%@@f,lfs\.{.&mwwm@.w%l.!.ﬁ&:ce_%m_ﬁmo.r
C T Teuewioped U T J“.[.;J:J:\é e [. ¥ I V |
Kisaijep soinies sujjuoy | _ | | i w
Uo poedw! jewum 0 on|  jdedoy ,k sigessnea) 08 ,__ M I 5 | ese) Buuonuow pesuos aisey . BUSOSIBANG _ . Juswuoinug) 0oL
T ssuBlted pue[ T T 0 f.v\:ltl[.[iq e — i o _ 4 T __
AsaAiBp 921188 BUI-jUOLY| | | | | | |
o Pe s oo, assoy | . esmwle | S ol e e stemugyy f PUSOSRONS|  uswuoiAuz| 66
B ‘\,f.:mﬂﬂmﬁgmddcm,. O o ] ! ! i
Asanaisp soimies mc__.ucoi | e Buisq ssjeosewy pue omw‘_am,‘ ; , 'sheq Aeidsip g Aed jo EDE:L
U0 Yedw e 0 ON|  jdesay | Buisq maima. sabueyo Suped o} palgns smessmpgioee | | ST B | PUeS3BiEYD Bunieq jo momsy| . ousospang|
T T T T e e T SUGHIBUO!
| | , , ; pue sinjonus Buyye)s o) sebueys |
I | | | “ pasodoud jo juswassibe o pue|
| i i | | SjuBLRACIdW) BoIIes U) juBwisaAul| | H
| | | ! | 1801085 Ul | !
‘gourULIOpRd ucmw., i ‘ ; ; jenden pue M::wﬁ: nmmoa%ﬁ ¥ , ,
AspAlsp BoinIes aun-juoyy| | : f | U UO JUBPUSAIP SIUBLLIBAOH E_,. ; *
U0 JoBdUf (Bl JO ON | deooy | * 192 | SWodul 853y} Bumaiyoy — Buppey| suadsjeRlg| uswuoALg | J6
wys oL {8301 uonestnay ,
.mucm:.:otmagm_,l[ ‘ ) I I i ; _ ,
AoAiep onias sul-uoy : 219002 10 jiey puooas u pasnuoud| _ | | i
U0 Peduwi jeunu Jo oz,_ 1dsooy ‘ 89 0} Iom uohesedald - JUSWSINI0IG _Emmwoosﬁ oy ;,.vop . _s . ’osues) sinsie o) suondo| . :%Jr@mfmw_wWM‘T :iclereEKon_Bm&: 96 |
— ..\‘IQQQQQQGMﬂVJ — .i\tﬁ T T e T e B e — P A w I ‘ 7
Aseayep somses mc:.Eo‘j. * *1/900Z ! | , , ‘
UO Joeduu jewiui Jo oN + idasoy i 40 Jiey puodss ui pesyuoud aq o} om uoneiedasd| 0z I w9 g oel) ey Aungsuiy ¢ eseey él_.@.mmwww_.Tfs u.c.w@re,@mw; 56 |
| sovewiroysd pugl T ST e, T | i ! !
Aisanep soinies wc__‘ucoﬁ "awelbold EmEm>EQE__._ ; ,, , ; | * _
U0 yoedut Jeuituiy so ON| ey | einpngseyu %Ecwehmﬁmmm.@_@m@m@%m LA J_f[:ll.[,.mll‘ —— % .‘J,,t..[...@J«.]‘,\LImw@@mg_\fm.ﬁf@“ol:«‘fnw%mmi,i;J-::J.‘Jc@mwmm\.ﬁ\:l awuoinuz| pe
T Teoueioped U, T _ - I ; ; 1 i
i i | | , |
Kisanap vomnaes mc__.wcot_ i * h‘ | ! sihg| ; ;
U0 JorduW fewluRL JO oN]| daooy ; "JobJe} uo awoous pue pajuswadl asessow 20Ud| §2 i ﬁ H WN. ) i _ 1870 %02 mfmémw_a 1eung A %W@m,wo,ﬁi e mm_.w.mmlmhmww‘., o wcw_.,cmm@mw f €6
J[?J.mﬁmmamgwalmcﬂ;!,-,} D — \«.Jm,qmﬁ%mﬁwd‘_mgmxmmlagﬂ.. J e Jfﬁ,;\ [ B — A 4 e 7 # ﬂ
Aisnjep eo1nies duluoly ‘ Jo Juswabeuey ejeodio) jo uswdoAsg "W4A Seeg , ; i | ewosbeuew| ﬁ |
U0 Joedwt feuiu Jo ozi deooy PUE JusaInd0.d $x0m 0} yoeoidde Juapiys .01 02 , ! | 0z Sapiiioe; sveds uedo pancidw uoijesiooy JuswiuoIAUg | Zg
00.3 01/6002}000.3 60/2002}000.3 80/2002] 9003
y y y 1019002 Buiaeg
uosesy uollepURLILIOISY Joedwysaiouspuadag arenwng | saoqe pue | saoqe pue BAOQR pue anoqe pue | posodosd / pesiBy-oid Jo siereq jun ssswisng RLIEEYTT ] wayy
43R0 L1/010Z [43A0 01/600Z J49A0 60/3007 1970 g0/2002 :

L1/0102-80/2002
siesodold sBuineg mep pue posiby-aiy
3 xipuaddy . AsBuuey jo ybnosog uopuo




Page 73

gL icg

“gouesuLouad pue 10618 WZ3 jo
AISAIOP BDIAJDS BUI-IUOY ped jo Buiseyd-a - saApeiul 81240d100
U0 Joedut [eLUIUL JO ON Jdoooy - 00S wioy 1ebiey sbuines Juswiamooiy jusWeIno01d sjelodio) soueULy| 221
“BouBWIGHSd pue
AIDAHSD B21USS BUI-UOI ‘SHOMBUWERLS SUOHN0G |
U0 Joeduw! JELIULL 10 ON ooy Buiing D90 ybnouy pejenobau Buteq zEwtgi 1 | _ SORIUOY JIBIRY 19948 YBIH| JUBWBIN00. BjeI0dion mu:m:_.,; ¥4}
LsE 0 Stl S¢ (742 18j0 1 8oueut ajeiodio
‘souelLIoued pue ]
AIDAIBP BOIAIBS BUI-IUOL ’ Aatjod soueinsu
U0 Joedus [eWIUIL JO ON ydasoy €L oL JuapIooe jeuosiad O |emauss UON soueul sjes0dion souewd| 0Z|
“ABojouyss}
‘goueuopad pue Asopy, Buisn saoinieg Jswioisny
AISAIIBD BOIAISS BUY-IUOL O} 90IAIBS JajsuBl} pue peoy ybiy
U0 oBdW [BLUILRL JO ON jdesoy SSVIAIBG JBLOISND O UOROUN JO JBjsuel) | §ZL Gzl LbZ UO 300 (SIBIYSED) SdH JO 3INSO}D) 8oueui4 sjesodion) soueuld| 614
“soueuliopiad pue swebeusty 1G8p JO [O1UOD [enUds
AIBAIISP SIAIDS BUH-IUOY 40 uononpal Buipnpus seunpesosd
uo Joedul [BLLIUL JO ON ydoooy gL Gl < jusuwebeurw 1qap Jo maney aoueul4 sjesodio) soueud! g1
-gouewsoyad pue “JUBILNOODY S8ulel | | PUE JUBUNOoJE
AKIDAHOP BOIAISS BUI-UOI yoafoud | jo jeaowas Buipnioul - ${pAd)
U0 Joedu feuwiur JO ON desoy “(s1s0d jueoen z Bunoaye) paasiyde aq M siuL| 62 G/ Buiyess soueul 91e40di07) JO MOINSY aoueuld sjeiodion) souBUILl /1)
(yuncaoe
‘gouewlodad pue BNUBARI BOIAIBS UON) UOISSIUGNS
KIBAIISP SOIAIBS SUI-JUOY | | wiep juesb ut suswsaodwi 0} |
U0 edu JBWUIL O ON desoy | 09 | 0Z oz loz DPoje2] 5834 JipNe [BLIIIXS Ui UORONPaY | soueuly ajesodio), aoueuld| g1
125 8
{424 0Z E14 £ 1413 uonexe] je207 g sjijauag
‘uveuepun Buppeyousq
pue pasAfeus aq [jim SHSIY
'PoIBPISUOISL BIIAISS BU} JO |BACWS B
pue uayepspun eq {im sedoeaus pred
-24d IM JUSS SJUBLUNIOP Y} JO MBIASL
¥ '{EOHLID S| $18UI0ISND WO BsuUodse!s 8
Buunsus pue sjuswnoop Aoy Jo Jequinu
‘souBIopad pue B yim juss Auauno ale sadojsaus
AIDAIBP BDIAISS BUl-LOL pred-ai4 "siseq asn paseyd e
U0 JoBdwt [eLILIL JO ON deooy "UOHDEBISIIES JOWOISND peonpal a|qIssod| o 04 01 oL i uo sadoaaus pied-aid jo asn sy} Jwiy|  uonexej oo g SyyBusg souBUL| Gt
“aouBLLIONed pue 7
AiBAiep 22IAI8S BUIFIUCY MO ADUOW
U0 1080w [BuiULl 1O ON daooy MOINBS N 4A JO JINSBY | S8 ¥ ov 403 enjeA ayj wio) sBuines [enuelod| uonexe] (007 B Sieueg souBULY| 11
‘@oueulouad pue ]
AKIaAII9P BDIAIDS BUIFIUOL ‘8ouejdaoe Jipne pue Hnod 0}
U0 JoBduwi Bl JO ON ydeooy IN| 0€ G oL S poduy sys00 abesoys saded uj uononpay|  uonexe] [esoT B seueg asueul4| 11
“gduewosad pue
AJAlap 8oinles Bul-jUoy "J0BIUCD BouBUSUIBW pue Joddns
U0 J0BdWI [BLIULL JO ON ydeooy SIe9A G 10} UI-Y00] JOBJUOD | LI ] G < ¥ £XS Y} JO JSOT BUY) UL UOKONPaY | UoREXE ES0T P SlBusy soueuLd| 211
“gouBiLiopad pue “HANN pue
AJOAISP SIS BUI-IUOY XB} JOUN0J J0j $}S03 1N03 JO UORIBI0D
U0 1oedult feuiurL 20 ON ydaooy “udeuspun Buiag menay | S G a3 40 Buyebue; pue Juswancudwy  Uoyexe] eoo B Slyeusg aoueuld| 1)1
‘@oueuLIOpad pue
AsoABp 9O1USS BUH-UOY
U0 Joedul [eWIUIL JO ON Wdeooy *Bujobuo suoissnosip pue pemaiass Buiaq speauoD | §2 52 "S1S00 JOISRIILIOD Ul LONONPaY ! LOHEXE |ED0T 9 S)jausg soueud| 041
‘gouewiiopad pue
AJBAIBD 931MBS BUI-UOH "poige} "Apisqns AqQ paienod
4O Jordwt [BuBUIL S0 ON 1dedoy SUOREPUBLILIONSS PUE UBMELISPUN MaIARI SIsAfeue 1991] 08 0c oL0oU) JusAed a0 Jyeuaq paseasou};  LOHEXE] 800 § SHBUSg soueul4| 601
r 000.3
00,3 01/600Z)000.3 60/8002)000.3 80/.00Z 10/900Z Buineg
uoseay uoHepUSWILcIDY 1oedwysaiouspuadaq sApEINULING M>Mnm pue I MMMnu pue I MM%nm pue ercqe pue pasodoid / peaiBy-sid 1o se1sq }un ssauisng 9)e10323.i(] way
IBA0 11/0102 0L/6002 60/8002} .o 80/00Z
g 11/0102-80/200C
sjesodold sbuineg meN pue pasiBy-aid
3 Xipuaddy AeBuueH jo ybnolog uopuo




Page 74

"BOUBWIOpSd PUE] T
Kionyap aonies auguoy| _

T "S9iuedwicd UONeduNtILIo8]5] ] ] ,
U0 joBdWw jeuiuL Jo oz% 1dasoy L sapijod pue sjeacsdde Alessasau o) uuoﬁnw,_ i

o} seys jenualod joxsew! | :

|
:

IT 0l |_PuUB su0neso| mau Ajjusp) seug _m_._mil SB0IAIBG >tmao.i., mocm:_L 8cl
e a4 . o TETE T ITRTERE AR se el O oegn: ——— [ R e TRNRs edod| R
“souewiopad pue| V i V "PUET 110UN0Y) 0} Bunelel Jou m“ommoam_ _ *
Asoniep 901188 Bup-UOIY | m ‘ uonesausbas Buioddng ccwEa2m>®o_ | !
uojoedwl jewui jo o) jdedoy e BUON _ e { UOWENIBA) SWIOOUL 93] jUONPDY|  seomisg Ausdoid|  eoueus| se ]
| sdusuiiogied p 4 a ,I %% O} 95€8J0Ul pasotod oz | i T
Ausayep eoinios BUI-JUOY| * 7m sieseyoind o} paBieyd ses) Apuaing| f i
U0 Jorduwi jeunu 1o o | idsooy e BUON/ O ; L QN\ ‘\Am.ﬁm\ommw_e‘\m‘m@mmu 994 paseasouy ;, _..__ Seomag Auedold| o 8oueuly; ge|
e T T | T ‘0% Op 0} BNufued M| T A R
|

pue sseah om} ise| U1 JeBpng suebe; * ‘
pasaiyoeIanc saey oojuod w4 m:r_ |
10 SjuBLIIS BWIOOUY JUB) , |EIDIBLILLIOD, f
.,ﬁ BU1 1BY) JUBBW SABY SBSERIOU Em;_ | |

| pue sBunis| [BUOMIPPY- BWOdU] 4| S8oIIeg \Emaoi_, mocmc_& =)

f
“soueuLOpad pue|
Kisnijep 901n18s BU-JUOLY|
U0 JoBdu fewiuL 1o ON: ydsooy
J.:J:.mucmugwaﬂoﬂ T
Aaatep aaimies suljuoy|

(R
! ‘PEOY UoRelS gp uo| i i

U0 Joedu fewiu Jo oy ! 1dsooy SUON .Tom ‘ sBuines jeuonippy-: juoy Buiobing Wd| SI0INBS >tmao_n__ souelly| pey
. .itﬂgﬁmm—mmw\ S A e S T e o e R L LA, S SR Al ML: — A “ﬂ‘t‘:‘[‘n:‘i e -
AAtep sopmies mcz.,coi 990 uonenje yum peasbe seiep jeadde _mco_msEa‘ ‘ 181 Bunes 500z jo uoyeangnd Bumoyioy| _ |

U0 Joeduwi {BLuiuRL 10 ON| Jdsooy pue ssaufo.d ut sjueynsuod feusexe yum suonenoBeN| 004 : mucmc_mb 38

jﬁ![. SRR SN ettt T RO I

R S — el -l

‘1o aq o) syebliey 6580 aigeus

,A Senien ajgesiey suiebe m_mmanﬁ . ‘sooneg Auadosg
AM m Pinoys ‘Ayifeuonoun; uepeyuep jo ssn iy ubnosy| ,
|

L
‘

,i uswabeuew jgep umsc‘.%,_;ﬂ ‘
‘. UM uepeyuepy Jo uonejusuwssidiu | ;
| pueoljojuod [e1seuwwoY jo sws@L S83IAIBg Aledoid|

.:1..;},’2" - L U S kit~ | S

‘doueuLopsd pue; Ajjeaypads seanoesd Bunpiom juspiye siow E_i
Kionljep sonies mc__.Eo.i SUl UL 'YIUM YmoiB swioout apiaoid pue spioa @onpays;

uo joeduy (eLunu 0 oN amoo<, ‘SMIINDL JUBJ ¥oeq Lo dn yoteD o} wesboud omccm_m_ 124 *

| [opedul w0 o) 1dedoy Jq‘..,tlsl LR pRw e ojweibod peunerd syz |

“SJUBWLIGHBd puE|
Asaniep aoinies ocfco.c_

suononpal tm.L |

ﬁ | w M
| uoedus jewiwsoon|  jdedy rﬁi..ll..,l. —_— . ®bemwo s | ‘,,L,L,mmy_ﬁf_mm@.w\__‘mﬁgﬁ.cm%mm@M‘;J.‘\«..,mm.oﬁmm%muo@ . Boueud]| el |
‘_ “uay fun spew| | | |
i ‘ 3 jou im sBuiaes yers awios ‘01/6002 01 Yoeq nw>oE_ ; .‘ |
‘eouBuLIOMed ucL f MOU sey [esodsip ay; sy ‘Absjeng :o:muoEEoouj. | f
Aioaysp eomies wc:.«coi ¢ 8Y) J2pun fieH umo | 2y Jo fesodsip ayy Yim| , i suoyoNpal |
U0 JoBdW [BLUIURL JO ON| 1daooy i SpiduLod 0 pauielBoid asem sBuires uoonpal tﬁmv 904 114 | i _4eEis jeuonesadQ ~ jjey umoy Aesuiop| SOIAIBG Alado.d |
T mslElinopad Pusl o O Paulieiboid siom sBumes uoonpai yers| soL - |zp o A P PO T IBH UNOL ASSUIOH| | seoimeg Apedosg|
"Boueliiofisd pue] I , , B T i

Asentiap sowniss suiuoyy|

| mco_ﬁznmg !
U0 Joedui e Jo oE 1daooy f sz L MIINDY Uy - peoy uoyelg soueul| gz1
JL :l;ﬂuﬂgﬂ:@wﬁcmﬂ T f e — . \Jfly\.lr e - :J;\f:.\s,ﬁre 7
KIBAIBP 80IAIDS BUI-UOL! | | | i suoonpa | i
U0 Pedwi jewiuiw 1o oN| 1daooy | ! lgp | MOIABI JUBY — PEOY puelBsqwNg op| S3oinieg Auadoid | wocmc_u_,_ gz
g0l
852 uawaindoug seiodion
“90uBULCHSd pUE] i [ ] _ i
AKianlap aoines suy-wouy| _ _ i * | |
U0 Joedu fewuiy Jo E,. 1dsooy | 4 BIBMBIPPIL JNX | JUBWIBIND0IY Emgo.&ook mocmcm_, x4
S .Iﬁx\ T e T [ A — ,I;.J.mmﬂmwmw_ﬁ@daﬁ‘w[;\ N e
“souewLopad ch i ‘ i ,_ | obejsem jeimey se sisod 10 uoysjap| , ,
KiaAlpp aoines aul-uoy| ; ‘sBuines no\mooA , | 1equeiod ayy pue sannp o co:mw_cmm._o‘» |
U0 1oBAWI [BUHURL IO ON| ydsooy _ puny 0} pasiuebio-as seinp pue pajeisp 1sod ZINS| £S1 I8g | -a1 BuioBuo ybnouuy pareiyoe aq i JuBWBIND0.Y mum‘_o&oo“f mucmci,, azL
T esteweEd gl et 01 FOSIUEDJ0-84 Saunp pue p — R A e B 781 DUIODUO UBnoy passiyoe aq i JT\..[: 2Td BiE0 .}qr.\}l:\,x\t[tq«,\.;\
Asoayep soinies o:__.«cotm, i | ‘ Buppiom swi-ued Buonposui| ; |
U0 yorduull fewiuL JO ON|  1deooy _ | 2 i Izt | | 40 Buipeib-ay “Bupom sjqixa)y| JUSBINDOIY thon‘.cog BOUBUIY| Gz
T souBLiGHed pug| T T T e e 8| 0 BuipeiB-ay B B T T T k=1 B4

f : BTV Tk!
i | 40 inoAey Ul Ausuoiels B 1509 Bunupd!
| Ul UoiaNpay “$8$5920Jd panoidwi

Aisalap aomies mE_.EQL i

‘
Lo peduw jeusuw o oN| 1d800 i e ]l..[;,’m‘\ o

WBLBINOO &Eo&oof_ @oueu)

TR+ S A A

‘souewlcysd Ucmﬁ T .m A . H I R 7 I ]

AIoAlep aoines au-uoLy; | H , i i | i
U0 JoeduwI [BWIUL JO ON daooy “PBMBINBI B {|iM SBjoUBDEA JOBRUBW JUBDB) & 6l 51 SUoldNpas mcEm@ jusLuaInooLd sjesodion mocmcE £2Z)
003 01/6002}000.3 6018002 000.3
I h 00,3 80/2002 10/9002 Buineg
uoseay udljepusiuuiosy uumaE.\mo_ucovcaama aapenng | sroqe pue | saoqe pue BAoge pue aroqe pue pasodoig / uao‘_.me..wi 10 symeq Jiun ssauisng 2)e10329.i(] wayy
49A0 11/010Z 14910 01/600Z J49A0 §0/800Z 1870 80/200Z :
L1H/0L02-807L002
siesodoig sBuireg maN pue posiby-ai

3 xipuaddy | d ABS MBN pue p: Y-3id

AabBuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo}




Page 75

LHIV UL

eousuLouBd pue
AJBAIBP BOIAISS BUI-JUOL)

"Sysi uedubis oN _mxm_m_

"SBHUOUINY JOLR0 Yim Buppiewyoueq ajqeinoney BJOW
*Asuow Joj enjen sa)eq soAvILoR oMNIES syyeueg
"HEIS JO SUORIPUOD PUE SWIB) JOBYE JOU [jiM SIY) "PoISyO
Apeaije Ajjenb pue Agixey auy Buiuejuiew w_EB_

Jnoy sed g3
Ag $1S00 9oNnpau 0] SUOHEPUBILIOS)

|
|
|
|

|
|
|

|
|

U0 Joedul JeLWiuiL Jo oN| 1doaoy .. 20INI8S 8] 40 1500 Hun 8y} Buionpai je pawie (esodosd| 00§ | 008 MIIABI A JuBWwadw| 18I0 SaVINIBG B0 261
1BJOL SpaeN
€92 %4 8ve g ABajeng Buisnoy
“aouewioad pue ] | ‘
AIBABP 801AIBS BUK-JUOY oS, ! !
U0 J0RduWl [BLILRL JO ON jdaooy +C $0 JusWanaIyoy | §61L 5G4 99140 0} Ut ybnouq yeis Jo asesioy; spseN B AbBalens Buisnoy SBOIAISG [Bog| 161
B ‘soueulIofad pug i ]
AJBAIIOD BOIBS BUY-IUO
U0 Joeduwl {Buiuw 40 ON 1daaoy Houneyl injsseoong| 09 09 uawaind0ud julof SUHIBULIOD SWOH| spasn 2 ABsjeng Buisnoy SBOINIDSG |ID0S! 0GL
‘@dueuLoyad pue | o —
AIBAIBD 921AIDS BUI-UOY
U0 J0RAWI [eWIUIL JO ON 1daooy 7 0z (o4 | uonesyeuones Buuies) | spesy 3 ABaieng Buisnoyy| SBOINISS [BIO0G| 6¥)
"SOUBLLIOJSd pue i | !
AIBAIIBD BOIAIOS BUI-IUOY ‘
U0 poeduwil fBliiuw 10 ON Jdeoy juswinos Jusuewlad nysseong| 0gZ 06 06 05 yeys dwsy Buonpeay| sposN  ABejeing BuisnoH $30MUBG [0S | gpL
B ‘2ouellioyiad pug |
AseAyep 92IM8S aul-juos SaoUEMOjjE| 7
U0 Joedul JBWIuIW 1o ON 1daooy [it4 0z 485 Je) [enuassa Jo MDY | spas| p ABajeng Buisnoy SOVIAISS |BID0S| Jp)
"8oUBULICHED pUE ) J,r:[‘
AssAlep 901AUS BUY- DY |
U0 JoRdLI JeLLIuLL JO ON 1dsooy [ g Buuspo sayddns jo uonesyenusn SpaaN P Abejeng Butsnoyy Sa0InBS ‘m_oow* ol
“gouBIG)iad pue T
AIBAIIOP BOIAISS BUN-ILIOY
U0 poedull [BUiug J0 ON 1deooy 1eBie| uo| syt e sBuineg Aousiyg - spsfosd ajeiodio]| spesN 1 ABejeng Buisnoy SBVIALSG [0S Gyl
- “9ouBlLICHEd pue \ 1
AIBAIBD 931AI8S BUH-JUOY i
U0 JoRdil LU JO ON | daooy ey up| szZ1L | S3I0UBIYS BOIAIBS SS01D)| SpasN ¥ ABsjeng Buisnoy| SO0INBS _w_uom.i fad)
(43 € £ igjoy febay
"SouBLLIcHSd pug , i SOILIOLIBIST SMOR] 7
Aiaallap 901A9s BUj-Lol; | JO |emaual pue Bulueu woly weans| | |
U0 JoBdWI [BLUURL 10 ON 1daooy V | 2L g | BWODUI MU Jefusod — whm;um_mmm,v ~mmwi _mmm.:. (=21
$a6 2L g6¢ Tie 8101 savinieg Apadolg
T I ] , !
i ‘ i f V ‘ *paiinbal 8q [IIM JUBLLISBAI (1 7
| _ | ; Ppapuny Ajjeusaiul sWOG "UOIONPB 103 ;
7" | * ‘ HE)S BASIUDE pUE Suondeval aanpes]
‘sousuLiopad pue i i | ‘Ainoes encudwi o} duesnua Ajuo|
AJBAOP BDIAIBS DUl ; ‘3S$NoH f 7 ye1s, e ubisspal WBlUSIGINSI 8y)
U0 Joedul [Bwiuw 10 ON ydaooy Eipuexs|y o] pajesoal Buieq sedmuas sul juocy oN! 0t i 51 S 40 Jed sy  uondeday asnoj espuexsly $80IAIBg Apadoid aouedld zy|
; l | i}
‘ 7 Buibieyo Aiqissod ;7 seoeds uj uononpad
‘souewopsd pue 2 Ut BuiBuug 0} Mo & ym uoisinod 7
Asdniep 801M9S BullFUoYy 7 8O1JJ0 JUBLIND MBINDY UOISINOI
U0 JoedW) jewiuiu 1o oN deooy “HH Y volelnsuod o pelgng | ¢9 se log ©D140 JUBLIND JOo MaIABY — Buped JeD) se0neg Auadold ooueuld| Lp|
J‘ i ! W 1 “SI9SILIGADE 0] S8)s MaU i
: i : Bumal Aq swioout aseauou 'z pue ses
"8oueuLouad pue| 7 f | 1eBajil sjeinbas pue sayis Bunsxe wouy
Asaniep aoinses wEE:o.i feroiddy Buiuueid o} 1efgng og Buonpoid weyueno, L i BUWOOUI BSIWIXELW 0} JOJORILOD [BLISIXS
U0 JoRdWI [BWILIL JO ON jdaooy ‘Aep pesuLIBiem, Buoe paynuspl Alleniui S8)Is MBU 9! 0S1 fom 05 05 40 981} | - sBuipseoH Buisiuenpy seoineg Ausdoig sousuld| Op)
‘@dueuLoliad pug | T
AIBABR 8IAIBS BUl-JU0Y | (pi1q jeyden
UO JOBdLWI [BUIUILW JO ON deooy piq [eyde) jyysseoons uodn juspuedsq| 09 ﬁ,om [ 89s) sBuireg uoneAasuo)) ABisug Sa0iAIeg Apadoly aoueuy| ggl
000.3
00,3 04/6002)000.3 60/8002§000.3 80/2002, 10/800Z Buireg
uoseay uohepusILDISY Jordulysaiouspuadag oAlEINWING M\\,,onw pue I MMMam pue I MMM:« pue anoqe pue | pesodosd | pasiby-e1d jo siereg jun ssauisng EIATOEEY way)
19A0 L1/0102 0l/6002 60/80021 o 20/2002
1 1/0102-8072002 5
siesodoud sBuineg maN pue pasiby-sig
3 xipuaddy AsBuyreH jo yBnolog uopuoT]




Page 76

“Pojoldi0s US3G SBy MotAsd T T T ]
| B4} 9UO payLieA ag AUo (m sBuIAes Jo jors) aswaid! i
‘ 8yi "aunby1eB1e} € ale sBuines papiaoid Yy sys: i
! ‘suoseas

‘ leouolsiy 1oy Ajpind usse.d 1e se fem suses sy u
,

|

| 8nuuD Jou seop oddns ey} pue Joyass Asejunion m.._r‘

Aq papinoid saweyos pue seoines uo 2inyipuadxa jo|

?m_>mg ubnosoy) e aq jim asau Jeus ansus jm ESECHENH

; f “HOUNOD BY) SSOUR J0IeS bm«c:_o\:,

‘soueuLoped ocmﬂ_ | Ui 0} Loddns [eloueUY Ul 9¥E) PINOYS MBIAG) BY) tey|
Aisaep somuss suijuoy| f pa8.by “suonesiuebio Aigjunjon wouy Buossiuuio|

m_nm__m>L

UOISIAGLG-81 JUBIOIYNS BINSUD — mgmm\@
40 idquinu e 10§ pemainay Ajiny ussq|

, ; 10U sey 10108 Alejun|on sy __oc:co_‘

.‘W,
L
|

1dasoy BIE SM JBUM JO MBIABI YoURIq 9 J00J B anbas ___E 000°% + 9y} SS0I0E MBIADY 10108S me:.oJ [EIINET _m_oowmf 151
| i ‘wayshs mau ay) o} dn ubls, o) uepnye| _ ‘T
, | BB SBPIACIT JUBLIND §i SANINOWP o)gissod “xmiﬁm * |
: | 'SSD.N0SL IO BSN UBIOYSD BIOW SYBW [|IM SjsLDg | | |
_ “Buisseso.d s010Au Ut paajoAl yejs Jo Jaquinu ey ui| | f
| uononpas yym ssyjebo; ‘siases sLoy Aq pasiom m_:op__ f sabieyo| |
"aoueuLopad pul f 40 Buips008) BjeIN00E Bs0W o Bsnedaq siepiroid wol| {40 Aorinooe sunsud pue i sjuswhed! ;
AsoAtop somnes wc__.«cocm_ i safiseyd peonpal yBnoayy pasapoe sBumeg Juaunssaur! ; SOI0AUI BA0IAW|  BIBIBWIOK U ‘
uo Joeduw feunul 1o oN| 1deoy ; 1eyded swos aunbai A Z aseyd "Josfoid mhmo.m,‘!omm | Bunonuopy suoydae | woy sspuslyg | SIVINBTG 1BI100S| 961
| ‘$OOIAIDS | i | I

osay} Buusaiep |
ljo Aem o«m_aoaa&
f, sowsy |
| aJe sBuipying sy
lioyroym suLLep!
, o} uossinoid aed
i AeQ jo mainel
| Aues uejno
‘sourIoped n:m‘m Auted o) paunbe | .mo\moow",
Aonifep sonies sulHUOl,  elesieOWO | uiyno pewed 84 JiIm jBY) S301IBS 98U} JO MBING) €|

'S3AUSD UBABRH |
uo uumu_u:_ JBWILIL JO ON| cms@, ﬁwmu( i

1308[gNs a9 jjm senuso Aep ey sBsous 0} fesodoud ay L] §81 PUE DRIBIUIM BU) 12 SB01AI9S MaInSy | 8pio| SBOIMIBG [B100G| 661

1L N . \e\!f;ﬂﬁl..!l,‘,l‘f?s.\‘,,Jf,,‘J..T.I..,\.,‘\;{.[;J.I .. 23098 Jeros | g1

| |
| | ;
ﬁ H

|

|
|
‘ |

|

dn-adjey]
H |mo/ parosfosd se syeyp Auew se Wele jouued 1sysiy |
.i “ABojeng Aajeg|
| Apunuwiod yim suy uy ‘uonuaAsid swun “méwcmm‘w

“@oueuLiopsd ncﬂ

|
,ﬁ
|
|

ﬁ
|
| 40 8612Yd B YiIm BwWodul [euoRIPP
W
|

M
SOVIAIDG _m_uow_ $S1

Assayep somias mc__.EE;" paJinbes %593 Jo $)500 dn jos fenden;

| _Uopedwi UL 0 ON)  jdsooy | 'sessauisnq ajenud pue $421dN330 J5UmO 0} JexsEw A ooy sy Aunuwio ey Bupse| — . JPIO]  s®OIg Epol 81N

A”I i 'SBOIAIBS .80 Ajunwwos ajeudosdd | ,7 | ; ;

Jo Aiddns sjenbape ue jou Sl 819y} ey ”wxmmm_ H ‘ ; | f

| 831049 B10W SjUBHO SIAIS| | f, i

f,b_::EEoo 3y} Ul 8180 ybBnouy; mc_commSoamm S)ysuag| , Ajunuuios ! i

W , "sieoh § 9y} Jono siualuaoed, , | U} W 1500 uoISIACIdeY mc.smm& [

ﬁ, |BAUSPISBI 57 BY) JO UOHINDSI 13U [BIBAQ ‘spuay/ ! suonduwnsse sbuines sy “sjuswooed| |

| | omdesBowsp wans poyas spedse ylog @5e8.I0U) 0} | i |enuspIsal g/ JO uononpal g oq __j | ‘

‘ f PasU jim enuswSp Uim sjdoad Joy uoisinod [enuspisas] 848y AHUNLILIOD BY) Ut SBOIAIBS B10Ws! i ;

‘eouruLopad pue| | BWIy BWes By} IV "S8oIAIBS Paseq Ajunwiwos xm:o:t_ * epiroid 01 Aeg ng ‘auen mno ‘E_mmx_i i ‘

Kiaaljep 92in19s BUI-UOL | | SpodU Jley) Bunsew pue sied jenuspissl ul aydoad | ! i 4NQ JO $8ARIBIGO By Buniepepun)| _ |
U0 10edU jeLuIui 1o ON ydaooy Alapie jiey jo sequinu ay) Bupnpss je pauwie jesodoid| 009 lost oSl 8IBD) [enuapisel SO sonpey BPIo SOOINBS [BIDOS| £5)

003 0L/6002[0003 G0/500zk000.3 8072002 9003 buines
uoseay HoEpUsIIcIYy 1oedwysarouepusdeq saneinung | saoqe pue | saoqe pue | asoge pue snoge pue | pesodosd s pasiy-sid jo syereq Jun ssauisng ojei0108HQ way
480 1 1/0L0Z 1490 (L/600Z 1190 60/8002 1980 80/2007

L1/0102-80/2002
sesodold sBuineg maN pue posiby-aid
3 xipuaddy AsBupiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 77

wr Ly

(444 133

18101 s}inpy.

BoUBLLIONST pue
AIOAYOP BOIABS BUI-UOY

{

1daooy

SI34ED pue S19SN 20MIes J0 ued By uo Alexue m«mw._oV
1M aBUBYD J0 $5000.d BU) ‘SIBSN IO} OIS Jag €
UOISINGID BU) B [[IM BUIOOING SJBWINN BY) ISIIYM 1SHS!
| “Kyioey Aep e se jeapi jou st yoium Buipping
i e Burses|as se [jam se 921As9S palien pue EmvoE_
; BI0W B 10 UOISIADID By U1 INSD PINOA “mEmcmmi
ﬁ “Aem ulspow siow ‘Jussayip e Ul papinosd aq isnf jim
1 - 80IAJRS B 9AI8081 oym 8)doad jo Jaquinu ay) moanw:
0} ue(d ou St 1By "SSNIIoR) POSEq AJUNWILIOD JBYI0]
Jo abues e ybnouy sayo ApusLino snusd sy Eel7¥E wri
i Bupueyue pue Buipinoida) pue uojsay Buisojo sanjoaur
lesodoud 8y “G6 4O ouepURRE Ajiep ebeiane cm.‘
; Wi $400q s,u0)s8) U0 aJe ajdoad g | bmme_xSaaﬁ og)

soueuLoped ucL

AIBAYBP DOINIBS BU coh_
UO 0BG [BUWHUIL JO ON |

ydasoy

!
|

I
,ﬁ
|
,%

|
_f,
|
| |
| |

"peocY UojSaY !
:m::n.q_

V (K19l paIBpISUOS jou §f w_ci
J00as Jepuadaput sy} ui peseymnd aq o) aaey ani
alidsas [enuspises Jof puewsp u asesIoul Auy ‘puewep,
10 $|9A3} [EOLIOISIY/IUBLING LD PISE] $1 JSANG IBYSIM
0} pecY J0gie ] WO 901AI0S B)dsal JO IBjSUBL] 1SSy
‘Buipiing paysiqunjes Ao |

B Je papinoid oq o 80iAies aidse sy} ojqeus om_mV

PUE $801N0S31 JO 98N BAOBYS SI0W SXBW |IIML SHaUSy
"PESISUI 183AS {{BUSIUM 1B BiqelieAE 8] 2-

SAURUOD (1M SOIISS S| "JeaAh ey Buunp aie0 apdsas;
104 peoy joqje) asn Auemnbal sidoad gz >=cmt=o_‘

{
i

wiol) uoisinoad 90118 40 Jsisues _.ﬁ

19848 |ieysium o}
qesip Buiusesy s
3ydsal jo sojsues)

|
i

“@ousuoued pue
AsBAiep 801AIBS DUl |

1desoy

*SIeak aa1y) 1on0 ummmc&
183w Jod 0Z'€3 03 6723 woy abIeyd spaum uo sjeaw |
8y Buiseainul “01/6002 Ul %59 0} %0/ woJj pyeBasi
aunppusdxy psieey Aliqesig Buibieys Jsiey sy)
Bunsnipy 1509 jiny Buiked sjusio 0014 08ye sy
noy Jad 09213 0 013 Wo 8180 Aselpiuop 1oj mmgmco‘i
ay) Butseanui ‘sieked 1500 iny Z1 aye M siy L
f3em 1ad /253 0} 88T LIOJ BIED [BIHUSPISS [euidlu
404 8bseyd Wwnwixew ay) Buiseasout - sepnjour _mwoao.i‘ 68¢

Apuauno >Emn:L

Weoyubis e spinosd jew) saomios| ‘

1 59618y JO JBQUINY B BSBSIOU 8OOz |
10} painpayds Apuaiino ‘premio; Buyg| |

Aotjod Buibeyo sy} jo uonejustuadu

|
U0 Joedwl [ewiuiw Jo ON|
T — T

‘soueuouad pue
AIBAIBP B2IAIBS BUY-UOY
U0 JoRdul feLIuIL JO ON

|
|
|

ydeooy

; SBOIAIBG JBUIOISNT) mcozuca_

“iomysiosfosd mau uo axe) o) Alpge Ajqissod pue
Apoeden jeuonesuebio P8onpas Ul YNsal JAA SYSIY
‘Apuspye pasn sie seonies poddns 10} pajesoje _

| seainoses jo esn 8U) j1BY) 81NsSLB 0} diBY M Siyeuag

sjuswAed soloaul puUB URLIDE Ui pajewss sBuneg; 00s

..,\;\ Vﬁl

$955820.d sS800E BUI
UIEBN)S PUB UONBASILIWLPY §S ;m_>mm‘

|
|
m::n<_

SABV A S

SOONIDG [B100g

_SWpY| _seomies ferog

SODIAIBG [BI00G

SNBSS 8100

_ Z91

|
191

|

091

|
|
_
|

651

|
|

§8i¢

“soueulouad pue
AIBAIOP B0IAIBS BUIUOY
UO JoRAWY [BuWiLIW JO ON

jdeooy

”‘a_:m:o_«m_mc inoge senss| "sidoad sigeIBUNA JOj mmcmcu‘m

“Anunuiwoes ay) ui sjuspisas Buysixs Yim|

Jo swue.Boid xs|dwod e o yuswabeuew 34} Upm!
pajeoosse swaiqoid auy oy sjejal Ajurew esey | ”xm_m‘
"8|doad (6 104 1500 Jemoj Je asinIss ajendosdde !

aJow e apinoud {iip S)ydusg
pajiuy swi pasnooy Buueyo Ag sepunpoddo

Aep ybnouy papoddns sjdoad jo Jsquinu aseasou

o} osly “(Buisnoy paisyjays 1o Joddns Uim mc_w:oi
Aieuipso) Buisnoy peyoddns o) sies fenuapises Woy;
J8jsuel} ypm pauiquiod ‘sidosd og Jof pesu Qm_Eo._aaL
8.8 Jey) sebexoed poddns Buipinoid/Bumaina) SBAJOAU}

0sh

18101 J9p10

Buisnon pepoddng

01 SUBID H11eaY [ejudp dAcH 48D

S80I BI0g

861

uoseay

uoHEpUBRUOITY

00.3 01/6002[000.3 60/8002)000,3 80/2002
aroqe pue | aroge pue | saoqe pue
1BA0 1 1/01.0Z 14920 0116007 }49A0 s0/8007

1ordysapuspuadeg aARINWNG

000.3
£0/9002
aAoqe pue
» 1BA0 80//00Z

Bujreg

pasodold / paeiby-aid jo s|ieleq uun ssauisng

ajesoydang

way

3 xipuaddy

L1/0102-80/2002
siesodoud sbuineg maN pue pesiby-sig
AeBuuey jo yBnosog uopuo




Page 78

crioet

SZy'L (41 0 €9 £eZ |10 1 SBl|IWe § UBIPHYD

i SHIOMIBU S,UBIPHUD
‘[poul 2j10eds 8JIAI9S € 0} 8010 JOUISIP 10 N0 (jo! Y} pue adnes s9doad

~padojaasp e wouj Aeme Buiaows s801AI9S jo uofelBaiul ybnong BunoA pue usipiy ayi o uonesbaul
Ajiny Jou sBumneg oafoy POABIYOE SBI0USIDIIT “8DIAIBS [0 UOREBINGLUOISY | §Z¥°L 6Zit €9 ez 19Uy ybnousy sapusye Buyers SOlWE P USIPHIYD|  8D01JBS SuUBIpIYD | GOt

ov 0 0 0 oy [BIOL SelIUNIWo? 1ojeg

{suonipuod elb

Ut p31EIS) SOA 01 JuesB sy woy Junowe awes AQ 8onpal
[HM G A "SWILD UINOA Ul 8SBaJ0U1 UL 1iNSD [HiM S
E2JE Yeom ADESIIE SI UoIuM HHOM UIDIA Ul Apejnoned
*AusAlBp -~ daueunopad SOA uo oeduit AlpaneBau pue Ajsnouas {ABejeng)

821A19S U0 edw) 1oefoy flim LoONPal sIY) ‘uodss uonoadsu; sansod Jusoay | oY SOA BU} UM JSOd JS3IOMA [B100S SOIUNWILLOY JOJeS| S 8ARNDSXT JBIYD| $9)

597 0 0 i1} ejo 1 J2pio

‘uotejost Jueaasd adA} siy) JO SSIIDE} {BIDDS "JBU00S
BIED [BIURISANS PEBU [{IMm 91doad swios ey} ueal
M sut dosp au) Ut 9180 sAlejuaAsId O 3oBT 1SSy
*$95€D ||E u) 8jgissod 8q

10U PINOM S1Y] JNG J0JOas Alejunioa au ul Ba seonies
19110 0} ajdoad J0a.ipas 0} SpELW 8q PINOM Sidwaly
*JOU PINOM BUIOS ‘BJINIDS B JO UOISIAOID BU} O BLISID
\$SB00Y Jie4, 198 PINOM BLUOS ISIIUAA sanuan) uj doiq
¥ 8} JO $H004 8y} uo d1doad QUG JSAD AjUBLIND aie
“Aisnyep 8Ja4 1 "8idoad JopIo Hel) SS9} IO} 3DINIBS SSI0E Usdo pastin sopun

801AJ8S U0 JoBdW) oley pessasse-uou ‘ AJoJme)s-uoy e aJe salue’ uj doia 9yl | §92 [ ovl SB4jUBD BWOS s,ul douqg SdO JO NSO BpI0 $80IAJBG [B100S| €91

0003
00.3 01/6002}000.3 60/2002}000.3 80/2002 Buines

" N 1oedwyssiouapuadag aaneinuing | anoqe pue | anoqe pue | snroqe pue mn.ww mmcww_m posodoud | peasBy-01q §0 SiieIoq
HBA0 1/010Z HBAO 01/600T 4900 60/8007 )

13A0 8071002

jun ssauisng ajei00a11q wayy

w

11/0102-80/2002
sjesodoid sbuineg maN pue pasiby-ald
3 xipuaddy AsBuuey jo ybnolog uopuoT]



Page 79

G0t
20/20/10 20°24
six sjusunssausBunesgpuegxdde Jouepgzoexsy

‘spuelliopad T
pue Aisaep aoIAIBG
BOIAIBS BUY-JUOY UO “BuiAes B Se paleyo aq PINeD SiYl OS PUB SARIAIDE LWRBASUIBW 1SS 9 wewdopasg| $,8/d0ad BunoA
jdasoy Bugsixa J0 uoneulpiood ybnoiy paseAlap aq m ajdoad BunoA 1oy Alaloe Hg yonlgz [+74 Aobuuey seneg|p woddng sseursng QUBPIYD! LI
“soueuuopad
pue Asnisp BOINIBG
BOJAIBS BUIFJUOY U0 188 ¥ swdoeasg| S21doad Bunos
ey oedul jewiu 10 ON Juswaind0id parosdw woly apew oq [im sBuines asay) 1eyy sjediogue ap iy % adueUSIURW BJempIBy | O)|p poddng sseuisng R UAPRUD! 0
‘goueLopad
pue Assaisp ‘sjuswdoraasp ERIIVETS
B2IAIBS BLY-UOY U0 yim o3ep 0} dn a1 fJeys sunsua 0 $e0p | 1ey) sHom pesyeads ay) 1o} 1eBpng Buies 1SSiiss 9 wowdopasg| S21doad Buno

daooy i i 'y poddng ssaursng R UBIPIYD
v 7

‘goveulopad ‘sauswiesfiou {
pue AlsAep Buiue) sipis pue Juswikoidwe Jo AieAiap auy uo Joedun Jayuny M 1 jng dn passyo swweiboad {ABajens)
SIS DUI-UOY UO 1qe ino uo joedul jiwm sy Buiuen Stins pue Juswikodwa ayy uonessuBoy S2AIN0OXY
ooy 1ordw [eUUI JO ON s pue juswhoidwe Buueayep sewwesBoid puny yojew oy Alge spun ay) ul HORONPaX (G4 Gl Ul UOHINPSY - NOILYHINIONY B Aonjod JTVo T
‘swwelbosd llews pue poddns sajeasiULPpE
‘aoueuopad SWeIB [lews Bul Ul IN0 JBULIN) . pU. Wes) oy} 0} HoddAS SANBASIUILIDE Ul LORIRPE: ut uoRonpad Jefipnq Jajeismau o4y
pue Asayep B SUBBW Ji 8J0ULBYLNS PapUN} 84 10U PINCD JOYSISMBU 10309S AUIBIUNOA i 4o sdnosb 30 vonerep 1ebpng Buiuies ay} Jo {ABajesg)
B0IIBS BUHUCH U Jo) Buiuien pue soejd 848) 10U PINOD oM JEJUBWAOIBABP Joj Uoddns jeuweIXs ‘PousiEaiy) | uonaiep 1ebpng Aousbuguod sy jo uonesusboy $,2ARN09X3
ooy 1oedul fewuiu Jo oON SI AjgeuIsnsS sy 210um Suoienys uaae o} Bupuny usnb 8q Jou aq pInoo sdnoso uonBIBA - HOLOIS ANVINAIOA  Aojod )

BDIOPHOM BU] JO LIOI0SS 0] HIuoad

‘souetiopad | 0f piey e uj serown; esiigels padiey sey Buiuies sis Juewebeuew sisum sJeBeuew oy} "JO}08S BIBD {BIV0S BY} §S0.08
pue Ausagep PpuE yElS B1e0 [e008 A paaiedal Aood aq o) Ajaxy st Syl Ajuo Buiuies) e(os 0} jenuesse voddns pue puads awiwesbosd {18Q0)
aoAes aul-uoy U0, 0 poddns pue puads awiwesBosd eonpes o) seoes eidoad JBPIO puE SINPY o) Loddns wswdoeaap pue Bujuiesy S, 3AIN0DXT
1dosoy eduwi [euwiuiw Jo ON|  JUBINSU0D JO uohesyeuoles pue s1ebpnq Buluies sies 1E1008 0 Bunuiomas ainbels M SIYL|eS (%94 papuny juesb uou o UoloNPSY 19ao0 BuD| 9
‘aoueuouad
pue Aieayep wes) poddns ssauisng g9 {19Q0)
B2IAITS BUIFIUOY UO JBQUIBLL Ul &3S T 1 | O} JuseAInba $,9AIN09XT
ydeooy B [BUILIW IO ON| BUIIUO0.) OF ABAISP S0IAIBS UO 10EdWI [IM SIY} JUN SSBUISNQ BU LILHM HOM JO UOIEIO)E-8Y |08 og - s824n0sas Bulyels ug sinD 200 Bl ¢
‘gouesuoued
pue Asnyep (1900)
BOIAIBS BUIFUIOY U0 JeLE}9108g S,9ANN08XT
ydenoy wedw [euuiL Jo oN| $98xX3 18140 pue sebeueus GO o SBUNES JBACD OS|E M 186pnq ssercudiy Ut uogonpal ayL gz e uoponpay 19bpng a0 BuD b
‘goueuuopad
pue Kaniep (1800)
BOIAIDS SUIFIUOIY UO “uoisinousd soales U0 oedw He1s 314 z o jusjeanbe S,8AN0BXT
a0y 10edu [eUNLILL JO ON B4} 40 JUN0JJE ¥e} 0] PBISNIDE B8] 0} PESU [IM YIS By AIBAIP BOIAAS JoRAUN 1M SIUL |20 19 - seaunosas Buyels u spo 900 PS¢
‘soueuuoped
pue Aseayep (1300)
80IAIBS BUY-IUOY LD . S,8AHN00XT
1deooy 1oedul [BUIURL JO ON ‘saunsesw Buyels pue sjnd 801AISS J0 UOEUIGUIOD YBNosY 186pNg Ul LoyoNpay (91 ol uonanpay 188png 900 eud!l 2z
‘@oueuuoped
pue Aonysp (1300)
801AI8S BUIHIUOY UD uossinoud Bugiels $,8ALN0AXT
ydeooy Joedu [BuiuiL Jo ON ‘PIONPEI 8Q M Stwesy sy jo Aoeded ay] log g 0} 510 Aq paraiyoe aq o) sbunes 1900 B!
000.3 04/600 J000.3 60/300Z J000,3 80/2002Z J000,3 £0/900Z Buireg
UORPUBIIIOsNY uosesy UONQE_\WQ_ch—v:&QWD BAHEMLINYD dAoQe pue |Aa0qge pue aaoqe pue |Aoqe pue yun ssauisng aerojdang wey)

doy, 99.16vy-91, 1e1a:
1310 111010z | 100 011600z | 190 608002 | 10m0 g0iz00z [PRSCE0d 1 PERIBY-21d J0 sitelag

{%2) siesodold Bulreg seypung
73 pusdy Aabuuey jo yBnosog uopuo



Page 80

g0z
£0/20/L0 20°2E
Sk sjusugseausBunesgpuBxdde Jguergzoexy

“ouwoped|
pue AsAye,
BOIAIES BUI-UOY L

Joedw jRwiu Jo 0

jdaooy

“BouruLopad
pue Asaysp

oedul jewuiw 1o oN |

‘souruLOpad
pue Aeagep
BIALBS BUY-ILOY U0

(40013) "ABojens Buuoissiwwos

Weoy | joedu jewnu Jo oN 18p.0 BouspIsel 8y i St BINssald jo BaIR tiepy “99j0Yo Jusweseld Jo uosuBIxg c_
“soueuLopad| !
pue Aieayep “1eah sy Buisq o awed Auo suosiroid mau|
BOAISS SUI-UOH U0, By se Buisu s ase 1sBpng SIU} 0} 81500 *20/90 w0 196png Bu Ul ¥egF Jo deb e EEIC
Jdenoy ordi [BUILIL IO ON| oY diysueipsend jepedg uondopy ay; Jepun segnp uoddns Aojniers mau jo uoisinalg s
“BOUBULIOUD!
pue Aonye)
BONIBS BUIHUOY U
_idaooy i weduw [ewu Jo oN - - (4493) fietioys sepnp 808740 uoisuepg 'y
| ‘eouBOpad |
pue Asnjep :
| BDIAIBS BUUOY U (umouniun3) gooz yodew Aa
1do00y | Yoeduwr jewui 1o ON| pajusweidu aq o} S24g woy souepinf Buiyemy 'sjpued mairey uieaq puy Joy Buipund ¢
‘goueuLopad|
pue Asaep; |
| BANBS BUMUCY Lo, |
ydaooy | edw jewiui 1o o (39e3) uogeonps ue B 981 J0U UBLP)IYD Ajuspl o) Ainp Aioime)s meu Joj Buipung -z
- T e e T T 080U Ueipiiyo Aggusp) o) Ainp Aioinjess mau b bl AN
‘soveunopad
pue BméwP
| DIAJBS BUYUOY UO .
yeooy | ordun [eusUIw 40 ON

‘soueutopad
pue s,

‘goueuLIopad |
pue Asanep |
B0IAIBS BUYUOY LD

80iAes Lo uondaosad pue uo Pedw!
Aew siyy shep g puofaq oy puewssp jo spousd ubiy Buunp yueweas 104 spouad e
PUBIXS 1M %02 Asewixocidde Aq USHELIBPUN SUBUAES (O [9AB] f|RIBA0 Bt 8ONpaI
“Papnoul jou Aouepunpal §0 1500 ‘suonEpUBWILDS,

1oued Aunnaig o) Ateijuoo st uononpay {OaN o1 uomppe uy) ease BWBYOS B WO MEIDYIM
0} paau Aew pue maina) ainbai m suspiem $0 wiswAoKap sjoup “sjonBd BouRINSSES,
SOIAIBS BUI-UOL U0 | PUB LOISIBAID 810 UG AAiDe 80npal M Ing uswlogus Bunteuspun ssoy; 89 jou i
0 81804 OO Aq papoddns jou sisod § 40 S80] pajoadxe 0) Lonippe Uy 84 {iIm uonanpey izg

O Ay 0013 Jo Sse0%® Ul S 80/ 404 {iBjloys pajoafoud sy assum 186png souemole

(4823} 0002 1Y uonoadsu; R UOREONPT BY) JBpUN SBIND MAU 40 aBuey punjoj '}

“SMOIj0} SE 186pNq 858q BU) UIYNM WO YoM 40 Sease |
MU 858} BpIAIdaI O MOY PUY O} SABY PINOM BOIAIBS BLYL UBISD SBOINIBS UBIPIYD |
00v JO 5SEBI5U 61 AQ P21aA0D B O) SWBY MBU JO UMOPXERI] & Buwmolo) aul ooy

2y} spoddns siepio essy; puny

'80/20 U1 Buines

JUBIS) SBOIAIDS UBIpIY;

4800 10JUOD 158 | JO $50

SUBDIEM JOBNS 7 J0 wwo.__

uBwedIoug |

s,01doayg m.::o>

ks cm‘.c._cni Vi

JUBILOIIAUT

9l

Gi

|
|

| 1SS ¥ wawdopas, f $,81dos, !

Moy Echul LI 10 ON; Se s sjedionue pinoo pue sseak snoiaud u) uey WOWINOB J0 SRS om0l oredonue S gL e ey S sowondourer|
“8ouewIOpRd | * | | |
g H i mgewﬂM
BAAIBS BUY-ILOY UO 48040 siy; jo Buines e Bupjew , i —— g cordonn oS

1deooy | JoEdW jeunLIw Jo oN | Agesey aaoe-0id uey JOUIE] pUBLIBD L0 UKEISURY) 180W BpIALd o} aBweyo pinos apn oy | i wonersue |52 wmosm:m,‘ > c@EEQ N
{%2) siesodosqg Bunes seuun
23 xipuaddy % id S =

AsBuue yo ybnwog vopuo



Giog
L0/20/10 20:21
six siusugsoausBuinesapuegxdde Louerezoexy

‘goueuLopad

suopdaoas spedouyoat pue 19404 BSNOH Mied Jonry V
‘(sigg)Ba1 o) Jusoelpe) seko} a8uad OIND By) woy sheidsip Jemoy / uerd s 850y PINOM

A A

suoheI0a(]

“ainssaud ueoyiubis Jepun
83 0} uUMoW 8SOU) 8pNOUI Jou op sBulpeay 1eBpng 958y "uogeyur jno Buidim Ajpapoaye
‘JUN $S0UBNG BY) ss04uE SBupesy 18Bpng Jued) uBis o} sBumes 9%z Bukidde Ag PaAsIyOY |

Jdanoy | peduwl i Jo oN

‘gaueuuopsd

pue Aisaep
BVIAIBS BUI-IUOI UO
| joedu jeunupu Jo oN

“olo0d sBuipiing jo Juswabeueyy sieiodion ey

ur sBujnes yuswanooid pauueyd ubnouwy sreak sojel ur siyp dnooa oy Aunpoddo ayy ym
8/£00T U BiqeABIYOE 81 BUIABS Op3 ‘sieek aimng o) sway swwesboud Buysixo Buiddys A
Hdad B} JBpUN epew ussq SARY $PIG pue ainssaid Jepun Afeieust s1196png Wy ay

ydaooy

_EO.H 1BIJBWWIOD pue Wi seoineg Auodosg

TR BUE WA seonos fyede

snouea - sJebpnqg ein _ucmaxmi

4o 9Bues € Bunui used] seonos fuedoid|

W 8 Y paunuelboid -

aoueuld| gz

goueuLopsd

“WBy) puny o} sjuednodo uo uopeiedxe Jojeaib e BQ PINOM 3B} JeLY) A |
B0E|d 952} JOU PINOM SYIOM JBU} JOUNS UBSW Pinom MOEF SIUL IO [RACWSY "0 S18x00s Bryd |
4O uoyesoas ‘sefueyo Buluonped Jo B9 suoiesmsye Joul puny o} pesn s 196png sy |

i
!

_ 8OIJBS BUIIFJUOY UO
| Joeduws jewiuiw Jo oN|

0g

‘soueuLoped

pue Assayep|
BOIAIBS QUI-IIOY coM "80/200Z Ul pied 8q 0} punyas e Ul nsei Ajey UBP I MBIAGI JBDA Z B L "BAISSBOXS 8q 0)|

weduwn feunuiw 1o oN| usacsd SBY 90/5002 Ut epew juatuhed juoly dn jenjoesuod Y} Jeye punjal Jo-auo B st Sy, L 11

jdanoy

*.
21

SuogeIslY - ABsjeng 0oy

Auedwod Bugpuey m_\:_m_c‘w
woJy puryal - 196png souRINSU]| soueuly sesodiony|

|
i {puokaq pue 60/8002) 184 1y & U 293 J0 19618} Iy o 1]

Page 81

SBOIAIBS [BIDOS BU) Ul | pUe Wes .L.
SWoISAS [BISUBULY BY) Ul | 'SISO

uojexe ]
51900 96esols Ul uoRoNPaY| oo 3 syeueg

SOIAISS BU-UO Uo| ‘paunber Buines sy anJes sy 1L -ebelojs saded ays
| ideooy edw [RUUIL SO oz~ ~HO pajwi poddns yw pue maines e Bumoy 0} pasines Buieq a.1e sainpacosd oAU Amenoigy
BOUBULIOWS T

2002 1Y woy 8AR0aYs WeisAS jusweBeuRW JUBLINOP J1UGHBIS poacsdu cm,
| BOISS BuluOy Us|  Jo uoneluBLIBIdUN BU) WOL PEALSP B fiM 1BL BNJEA pEppE pajradxa a4} 0} anp uonexey |
| yoeduwi jewnunu Jo on|  eoo pue SBUSE U0 Joedull eI BARY flim 51500 SATRASIUILIDE OM JO LOISND3S wc

‘saynbus |
Jowi0sno pue ‘suoneynsuod ym Bulesp sejnonsed u pue suoneoydde Buisseoosd 03 uaas
tuesB poddns Jo jaasy ey eonpai o3 8q | wesy poddns au; uo joedus ey sieak aumny
104 abriane Asnpui suy ueyy seybiy Apueoyiubis Buteq Apeasje aydsap ‘9,01 Aq aseasoul
im suaoo Bujuueld Bunsixe jo speopLiom BUi jew aq jm wiea) 9Q ey uo edwi vy} log

‘soueuLopad
pue Alsaiep
S0IAJRS BUI-UCY UD

‘soueutopad

i

|
|

‘s1s0d uoeSILILPE | uonexe :
P/ B|E0S OM] JO UOHBIB(] {8507 3 S}yOUL

Bupued / sourUBURW UO Bupuads |
JO MBINaI PUE SBPUBIOWS |RIouas |

0 8yj uiym pajojap aq fm|
1804 & ‘sseaf Jusnbasgns Jod ,Emw«_
foauos Juawdoaasp ay uim|

150d Jsoo Buiuueld Asesodws f‘ o0UBULONBY |

€ JO U0UBIap a4} 80//00Z JO-| B Aono ‘Buiuueid|

|
|
JUBSWIIOIIAUG ‘ 81

‘sease|
YN U1198}100 AjBI0S 0} aweyD:
dn Jesi Ayunwwio?) u uogonpay

‘ __ susosiodns|  uawuosnug] gy |
2002 Ul Auea omsmsmﬂ ;
aq 0} safiseyo pesodoud ayy|
180 sabreyd yuued Bupyed EEL

EmE:SS:wWi m

pue Asayep ‘spuswdwon
BOIIBS BUIUOY UO | PSHSIOSUN AUBW SDRIIE PUE Jf BA1908] OUM SJUBPISES By} Ag pasy Jsow s1 ey
waooy | Jorduws jewiun Jo ON suo By Algeqosd s 3 pue founog AsBuuel Aq papiacid seones 81 JO Jugey B Jo Wed Si gy
| ‘wocm:totmaw |
pue Aoagep
BOIAIBS BUI-UOY LU0 ‘parcsdde Buiaq ) uo yuspuadap pue |
jdeaoy - oedws feununu Jo oN sBiey [BUORIDDE PBS000Id Shy) UONRIBDISUOD Ojul BXE] O} sey seflieys Buped jo monay gey 081
Z3 xipusddy (%2) siesodosd Buireg Jaigng

AsBupey jo ybnosog uopuo




Giop
L0/20/10 20°2)
m_x.ﬂcmgwmémmm:_>wmmocmaxaawmocmsmmumxw

"B4jUR0 8 BINBYUCDRI 0} ‘PeABIYOR BQ JoULED|
‘goueuLIOped SUI0SUI FEUOIDPE BU} 4t ‘JusLuBINDDI BU) ©Q AEW BIBU} SIUI LIUIM 'S00Z sequisidag og
V pue am\,__mu", Aq 19A91 st 0} 186png esEQ BY) SBONPaS BuIAES SIYL 093 81 8.4U80 BU) 10} APISANS 10 [OAS
| 82188 BUIHUOY UO igeidende Uy 2873 ‘alojeiy) ‘sl ApIsans ami oY) Jual PEPUN} IBINDAD JO %0GT pue

I I
| 2007 $5quiaidas juiod| f
ﬂ UDISIDB(] '8AUBY 8INBYUCDaI JO | f

Apisans jo jons} siqejdesoe ue £_>>_

H

813U Busixe Jouyys 0} BAOW 0} Awmwon,(:

esodoud ;eoeid u sebueyo any mau; Ewswmm:ms; S,9MN08X3
dsoay | yoedun IBWHUNL JO ON | pJemio ALied 31113 SOPNow yoIym 3pees S S4ua) Aunuiuog ey Joy JeBpng Juewns ey 124 | - 00 uuey Jejempeoug, Buoueyug pooyInogqybieN
S et A I.mwcmm:d_ummﬁth‘:J‘..\:l.lé}-l S S T R Y O 0 1P0PNG Jueding ey ﬁl[ ﬂ ——t ;lfl,i‘l,[‘!JtJ.‘\..‘J.‘s\ b S o s —
pue Asaysp|

BIAISS BUN-UCH UO

| Buipuny jewsixe / yeig|

Juswebeuepy
jAousBy jo asn paonpai j0 |

pooyinogyBie)

s,eApndexg |
Jouo|

sauy Buipnfou

saueiqy fedioupd sy u £_.>> u:mi i Gmmou«?‘
wnasniy ases aong je sapiagoe| msammaL m.mé:owxw_
uoneraush awooul jeuo: EL 2 mmc@o_i PO ¢

‘souBwLIopad

pue Asnap

VIAIBS BUK-ILOY UO
Joeduw [eunui Jo oN

|

S9VUBIYT |RIBUSD JO ByoId=0Y |

DIIAIDG JOWOISND)

831088 BUI-JU0L Lo | Sonooxg
JoBdWI [BUUIL JO ON | i

Py 6e

11 9jesodior)

“aoueuLOped
pue Asajsp
B0IAIBS BUY-UOY UG

ieak [epueny]
S} UF 4063 st Buiaes ) o eseys seoinies S,UBIPIIYD “Siu} 0} UOWPPE Uj ‘20 Areruged|
woy winuue sad sasuel) g 0} BUIBYIS BY) Sonpal O} pauueid MU §1 ‘81BD [B120S pue
SOIIUWE) PUE UBIDIYY) SSOIIE SIOXIOM [BID0S JO} SUWIBYDS UORUSIS! PUE JUSLIINIOE B §f S

ve

Page 82

99UIRLJ MIOM [BI00S 8L} 8oNpoy
" —

19

|

pue Aangep

| f
BOIAIDS BUIHUO co‘ ‘ 1504 JO3O ma_cemctm& spoaN|
oedwi [eunu Jo c[f Buppom diysisuped snisusixe sso { 103 Aoueoea Buiueju @ ABsjens Buisnoy
T .Wg.mamtma T T e TP TETTEY T T T e T * e ——
pue Aanjep

‘stspjoy ysod z Buipuny; |
Apusuno ese am yoiym Jog 1sod L spoan
E uomsod juswhoidwe Bunosey Y 'y ABejeng Buisnoy

L T TR TSR ‘[\lg_

i Emm’c_ %mmz@
B0UBUIY BY} U} }50d & 8je0eA O |3 ABajeng Bu SNOH| SODINBS |B10g

| eowmss BUI-UOY Uo “Kianjap 8o1ues uo 1oedun aaeBau ou ym 186png uo Bunes e o _V
_’ 10edW [BUIUIW 40 ON | M weduy| uswesibe [Bba) ym Adwos oy soeyd uyjnd Bureq saunpacoud je uo Buipusdag|cg |

| RN ITET _ T w [[7_} —
pue Aseajep, ,f
BOIAIBS BUII-JUOY U | ;
joedul feuuy 4o oN|

LE

siaBeueyy 501MBS 0} HOAANS JO (A0 JBMO] B JAO {iM Wes |

suopoNpal
Aousroye snoinesd oy uonippe uy)| ‘
|weay lqeded sluncooy jequs) ay JUBWAINDAIY|
uiym sisod Jayung omj Jo uonsieq | ajesodion |

‘spuBwsAcidwl ssaooud pue ABojouyos; seyung Ag payeBnw aql
B0IAISS BUIHUOY U UBD %26 JO 10bie; e jsuiebe ‘%88 18 Buluun Agusiino st sjuswAed BOI0AUS U0 BoUBULIOPSd
Joedw jeuaui Jo oN! gy sAep og Aawiey ‘suusy peaibe o) seaioau Aed 03 Aige Jno uodn oedun Aepy Ly

jdasoy

‘SOUBULIOLD! “(Ajuo yeem Jod sawn €40 ¢ ssequaw pue sbupng |

pue Aaep Jsjjews ‘Aep Jad 8ouo pepsin sBulppng ulew yym ‘spunol 2 0} 8onpai pINopA “Aep 5& ;
BOIIBS BUIFUOY UO| 80U SiBquB pue sBUIPIng Jefjeuls ‘Aep sod a0 paysin sue sBuppng uiew iy "suea pue! |
danoy | Joduif [BUILIL JO ON |  SIOALD € - SPUNCI § Aguawung) ‘ssusalep 7 suondalo 1sod [BUIBIUI JO JBqUINU 8Y) S0NPaY lpe

podsuelf pu |
SBUBIES - S}S0d [BLIBJU| 90NPaY

7
|
|
,
i

mocmc_n_,i 62

$901A8G Apedoig

(%2) stesodoid Bumes seyung
23 xipuaddy AsBuuer jo ybnouog uopuo




siog
L0/20/10 20°Z1
m“x.wEmEﬁm;c_wm:_>mwmncmcx%mnocm3womxm

Page 83

oy
L e

. /Kz. o o
. A,c . . W D

Q . ,@i:

.

.
if\ ? E
Kx f\\ ws\\ M/A &

G

.
o
S

i
o i,»\/v }

e o

pue Aenyep
8J1AIBS BUIFUO] UO
1deooy 10U {BLIIL 1O ON|

Ammmouec
Juswebeueyy 7 S.OAINDEXS 7
poownoqyben |

syiLow g Ag isod aoueuyuiwpe|
| JO LUOySIp plemioy Suug

(%2} sEpsodaig Buneg Jeyng
23 xipuaddy AsBuiei jo ybnosog uopuoT




Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85

| S{0040S Aq Ajoalip Jow 80 03 posu Jim SIBLISS BY} BAOQE PUE JBAD 51800 AUy WNIog SI00U3g 8L} AQ PApUBLIWISa1 SE AJERUBO PaY o4 OF 818 SIBaR € 10} We'1 3 Jo 81500 Aed 0eq SNiEIS ebuUIS pajelinss EITH)

————— e T e e “So10N

9£0°682'9 | 8V0'215 | 886°/92°9 V.I0'PZS‘9 | LEB LIV (Ev1‘ab0‘9 LvL'€12'9 $68°001 1262'ZLL'8 £€89°6LY'ZL  (7/5'969°L iii'eziiol usweaiinbay 1obpng/osg [euoippy
| | | 0 | | |

i

PP S S R + : . ; N —
866919 Lﬂ. _feaigg0’t e [2OVOS0Y | Me0S'SOVY T Toos'sor't e T wicoupeal
- BN Y R S N U P T e —
o o .P,.\.,\.L,[.,\«.\ET; _ fooo'oze  JoooGes | S . HSI 0} S9SN 10} PayuSPI 89 O} BuipUny PioY AlleRUSD|
I R o @HUHHWMHMWMWMH,JHMHWHMW«M«HQHHHH (00'0s7) — Jloov'oss) | | Kousbupiog Ajnog ] [ERUBULS Ul SI00UDS, 0} UOHonpay
o fooozsy) T . Joouey) ooz T T o o ——
o e 0 L TTo00'szg) e ABORIS 301AIBG JAD I BUl Ui 19BPNG 55EQ 1o O ioonpoy|
0 | N Y B (%7 I 1 o e HOMIBN USIPIYD EIA UOREOOlly SISL0ERL
0 I s [ S U I _ . _Jlooo'0s) [{ooo’0s) e e URIPIND JO JOQUINU [ENJI YOJRW G 51509 PaOnpa - Alewlid DS d
o (000'00L) (o00'0on) | flovo'zse) (eoo'zee) | Jo —— T Kiepuooes Dsd|
0 0 _ [ Jlooooor) ooo'oor) | . Jtooo'oot) e WS NOIEYRY AlBpUoDRg|
o —Jlooo'osz)  [fooo'osz) T llooo'ozz) (oo (22 R | T Wea L Inoieyag Aeiliig
o 0 i 5} ] 0 H T " sBujaeg Aousioylg maN
I }ﬂ}u{ . - A »\.[.[‘LAll R N EJI[OI e —— »4 e B — - S r[\[[.w[}‘\t.m\m
ooo'szkTooo'ser Joo T o T ‘\JMMMM\Wu@%@ww\o‘o@@m@%@
[ 0 1 ooosa " Jooo'szi [ —f . BINBD WIOZ UpS Mal Buluado Uym pajEIOSSE SIS0 [BUORISUBIL 8l -p)

I ! 0005, 1000'G2 ! 00000} mooo.ooa i (83500 BnuBAal pue BuimoLog _m_EmuE&vJ:o_WSEaszﬂ@&ﬁ:&@@?&

0 e [ (51500 9n09Aal pue BUMOLIOG EfluapNi) UolsiAGIq WAy ouinoqsduie:

0 | ! SJUBLIISaAL] u::wi&..%mz

o ——— U 4 — :l:f!z[.i:[«: T T e DPTTERSEAL ITUOAD,

4]

(ooo ezl T ramresy b T

(0o0'szi)  [(ooo'sen) 000'sy) — [looo'sy) [ e suoisioid mali - Siabiadsy

| (ooo'szl)  [looo'ser) T Hlooo's) e sinoud mau - wspny |

L Heo0'0ze) ooo'ose) ~Jooo'oer) — Tlooooer) I e S¥800dnjas pue Buuiado aid - sius) wiog |

— ‘ N O . SJusunssAu| peaiby aig|

e R —— _ e Y e

— e T f L R . e 80/J002 BUNIBWIYOSY |4d JO 150D [EUGHIDPY

I —t esvee | lesver |  L0/900z Bupiewyausq |4 40 Aienosay o uonnauoD)|
o T R N R m ” ot — e —— e oot g1l aseaimul
0 L L I Jooo'zd)  flooouz) T e 9SESRUAF ©SQ 10/900Z
0 0 il m 000'0ZE  |000'ky looo'siz LORONPaI HSA L0/900Z J0 AeAcosy]|
R R R I _fooo'ies’s " looo'vsz —Jooo'seeT |  Buuel pasyieuosiad U] BUpN pexiewies 1o $89.1055] pesSEBIDU|
I S R o T T m@ﬂmﬁ%@ﬁuﬂﬁwﬁmM HHH,_:%HH«..,H,,,MHHM@@E@@@M@@&
b9zvss zezziz L JAe8'9T6  esyuoc  lwiesll i ese0s0’y | leoe'oso’l T DdNO)ymois gy
A A N R | e Jooooss | eion (roieunse) sisop st s
LLLwe0's  |eBL'9ES  [166'1Sr'v  |sso'tes’y  |evvzzs L0902 —{erseoy | m@lﬁV%ﬁp@ll@@ﬁml.1 ——— T el
- J[:\r[. T [.Tl.l T ‘};I,.].[_A,,[t[;.‘\.:.Jr;}s}:\il [ JJ[HJ J:.J.‘}.“J.‘\:[,;‘:‘\‘f\fli[iJ:\:e1;\&\:].\::JMMN..J&. Wuwmm@Wm&mwﬂm,

| |

Tveve  |mieide sevem  wEivs — lesssma—memer o

05y | eoleva [esEses’s  leiovess ievezs  (iveve  |iwide s lasgive— |esvsivar ST leLiizor T USES dv 396 esEaii]
S e e e e s R L e —— T

BE6'0LY'8/L | S¥2'6/0'22 | ¥6U'SEEVSL |206'529°69) 1261 8L50E  |S0LInGanT 629 101’69} [992°C46°LZ  £95'829'lhh  [£90°826°95) 2086602 [62¢'6z¢9¢L . SI5QUInU p33oipasd S33A YNM 80/200Z DS SARESIPU]

S T A E N R Sy S Y N
— e .l\ — e o 000'te9c  loooyez _j000'498' J,.:J‘,J;mﬁmm[m_..nmmmmw_wm\hwu%m%m@a%wﬁmzﬁm.ohmﬁw@mm%mw\ﬂ@
. | SN (S S R (1 i ) mmkwm.:J;,meﬁm,‘}‘.{mo@oﬁ\m;[é R . :\,[cﬁom_&@mu@mﬁ%@%ﬂwW&@_

o
0
E
0.

Lo |evoers | o felovese  essze  |evives's  [iw'eire  eesdzs  esguws | s | S20WN PaIBLINSS L0602 KIENUET e 95 Woy Saoioss: pasesidl
—t— T — [Pl jeeees  ziveees | siequnu iind 900z Aiender e 99 oy saiosa poscaintl
R et S— [ E—— R S i — T o]

|ooz'ss'sz1 ——— T hsa el

‘nd%ww..wmw.jm—.mmmgm.Zon.mmm.mi 628'L0L'ES)  |992'8v/ 0 |e95eatzr)  |28o'ssaos) [Lzgiveoz lieiarett  Jo00'eorvhi |008°056°81 ]
i , ! ! , (ooo'e6e) — [(00071) (000%6.2) spsunsnipe 9gq seak u

AU S N L D R (- B S —eeee e b . Swuswsnipe 55

| 0 | — fooov) ] 1eak uj
E0BSL96OL | 16192212 | 90L'66E'8Y)  [628'101€9] |997°6vI 0z 1805055 b1 289'928'06)  [11ep9'0z |Lieieroel  |o00zos vhi 008555 BE 100Z'L8L°5TL TR USED avs

0LLBIYZ  [o0viBile | 0004507 00072502 | 000'666'L 0006667 | _____speayiaady $j503 [ounoy sjesodion)|

R TNV TS 2 I [T BLte Ok

Nmo.mg.\.wphwmm.mgdp ,"won.mmm.wﬁm:.mwm.omr Gmm.mmm.wm
0 T T ) i

[£95'e58°2rL

R R T T 000°€0L'Zri _ |008'S96'9L 002 L£1'621 12jo1 gng
[ ] T

A I 5 ,, B S

Zievivs lzievivs || cecoors  leseoors [ esosesy lesosest seolvze  Jeedivze | [ T weuidoprag 3 jioddng ssausng
L85v2es  [dssveen | foszzizy  |oszeizh S 117 I ssgooe | | T e dddd
§98'8/2°S | goe'eie’s | L08'690°S1208°690°G __ feegeesy | ozz'eev'y  lozgeer'y | SOlIWES B UBIPIYD

T e T L R

2990207 | 299'9202 L1280 nyueds T 899°'€06’,  |g99'€05'L | v6L'GB6'L  |¥61°G86'Z

S SIS bkehedhccd A N4 4 % e, T SOlwEg R

uoisniou ¥ SpiepUElS joolos

90U'66ERYL soreecer, lessesezi eos'eseTyl  Diehaioer ieeren looziedsn _00z'iEr'szEL .! — T T(@si) sioou0S
3 L3 , 3 {3 3 3 , ¥ 3 . 3 3 e WWIYseD s0lAIRS Suaipjiyd)

| EloL | Tg@sidoN | @si | @el ___8SiuoN | as| } L 8sieN | @s  f T e
_9sa_ | lesa) | esa | o bsal 1 esa T sal | ssa e lesal e e o
eI sloouds pajedtpeg | | jueln sjoouos peteoipeq o NEOSI0WS Pojeapea | | weigsiooyospeleowsq | __ Sishieuy 10Bpng eoiaiss S Uapiyd

L1002 0L/600¢ 60/8002 80/.002
4 xipuaddy LL/0L0Z - 80/200Z Butuueid jeroueur - Juein sj00yag pajesipaq - soInIaS S UBIPIYD




Page 86

m_x.ox%m<mEocm_,mNomxm,mm888_599988Em:mncwméoomQmoms/moo-mms-vaz

(sgzy) (9z0°s) {(c105) (Lzsv) (zep's) (8£8°¢) 82upjbg Bujso|D pauupyy
ov/ {z1) (28%) (560°1) Sry 69% (£ pouad sp) saoupjog Jo 85N 184U
9dupbIpg vyH Buiuadp pnjpoy
HUBWIISNIDY IDS A IOl
(9z0's) (c10°s) {£zsv) (zsys) (828°¢) Smi 9oup|pg YYH Buluado pauunyy
ovL £57 (z1) viv (£8%) 809 (s40°1) (ovs’t) Svp 095 (s11) (8z2'2) UNODOY anUBAGY BUISNOH [DjO1
89¢°0L1 80§°C 098°201 sEV'T LZy'sol Yoy'Z £10°¢01 (095) £L5°S01 S0¢ TLT'E0L (ig1't) puads |pjo)
$88°G1 8ty LEV'SL Sey Z00's1 £y 64571 Ly 89171 8/5 065°¢1 665 $§s0D 9bibyD 9ojA1ag
G864 LY 096 yZo' Ly 56 680'9¥ €48 L1T'Sy S8/ zZEer'yy 91/ AV %4 1€ sabioyD Buounuy oudos
- - - - - - - - - - - (9sv) $3{0Q8Y UDY |0 150D ViH
122 - 1z - gL' (95) LLL°€ 612 855 (s6g) €56 (9%6) puads anusaay 18yi0
99¢°1Z S0S 1980z 67 0L£°02 Ly 668°61 {(£91) 99002 £0€ 65261 (sol) HUIDW @ slipday salsuodsay
&¥9 - 6v9 - 6v9 - &¥9 - 6¥9 - 6v9 - UoIsiACld jgaq pog
294'0C 665 19102 848 06561 £69 16881 {808'1) v0,'02 (106) S09°12 (126) $1500 juswivbouow Buisnoy
(8z9's01) (ssz'1) (s£8'201)  (p9s'1) (806’501} (9s2'1) (Zirvor)  (oss) (zei'sol) SST (£8e'g01)  (z65'1) dwoayj jpjoy
(594'8) (sv) (ozs'8) %4 (9£9'8) {ev) (e£9'g) (17) (z65'8) (zv) (055°8) (1) BSWODU| 28Iy
{z95y) (rr1) (81yy) {ov1) (6£Z'¥) {9e1) (ev1v) Sy {8657} 660°1 (£69°S) (£22) BUW0DU| 86104D 921A95 ployesnaT
(£4€°G) (1) (¥vz's) {6z1) (S11g) {sz1) (066'%) i) (9287} (L) (Svsv) ¥t Bwooy| 9b10yD 901AI88 PajubUS)
(222€1) 89/'1 (Sysst) 896"t {cotz1) 99671 (899'81) GES'L {coz0z) £9/'1 (996'12) Vid ApPISANS VYH
(zoe't) (8y) (F16°1) {¢ey) (£98'1) (97) (tzg't) (vv) {2221) {95) {tzz1) (1) spusy Buijlemg uoN
(s81'52)  (gs1°€) {zeo'zs) (£91°¢) (698'89) (zio€) {£58'59) los2'2) {980°c9) (6££7) (£0£°09) (ze1'z) SWOoDU]| [pjuy
1ebpng - | (aspemag) {8Bpng {ssoai00(g) i8bpng (aspsu05¢]) 186png 1 {asosinag) 156png (aspainag) 186png (aspai0aq)
HpIa 1 9spsou; Hoiq /8spaiou) Hoiqg /. 8spaioy; 1oiqg / espaioy; 4o / 9spaIou; HoIg /. 9spaiou]
zi/tioe 11/0102 01/5002 60/800Z 80/£00Z £0/9002 (VyH) JUno22Yy
anuenay BuisnoH Alewwng
9 xipuaddy Z1/110Z - 80/200Z 19Bpng vuH




Page 87

o xipuaddy

six oxddeyyH/0uerezosx3\G6£90000IV\E\6\S\so0qws)epuaby\jooxereabunzoo-Bew-ydiny

€6/ /A4 809 {ors 1) 096 suoyoUDA [DJO ||
GS0'e veL'e £581°C §8/°C 18€C $SO| ApIsgng
GOl 181 L/ (¥) Lz sAng o} Jybu jo Jopduyl
(298] (crge'e) (r99°¢) (voy'e) (26£7¢) (%0°G) aspoiouUl WU JUSY
(oot (oot) (0s) (665) z6T'1 UMoIB MaN
0 0 0 0 (et UIMoIB pooiBo ASnoIAsid
0 0 0 009 00€’ L juswisnipn sWoDUl ployesna
0 0 (93) 61T /81 Audxs 9507
415 AL 066’1 £06'1 8/E°C UolDUY|
0 0 0 0 (€1) awooU|
0 0 0 (000°1) (068) $OIOUSIOIS MON
0 0 0 {050'1) (£22'1) S8I0UBIDIYIE POBIBD ASNOIASI
0 0 0 (005) (000°1) uoONPal AousBuluo)
(espaioa(q) | (espaioaq] | [espaioaq] | [ospaioeq) | [espaioeq]
/ @spaiou) | /espeaioul | [/ espaloul | /aspaioul |/ asoaioy] SUOHDUDA VY¥H
ZL/1oz L1/0102 01/600Z 60/8002 80/2002

Z1/110Z - 80/.00Z }96png vyH



Page 88

o) xijpuaddy

(oo01) (004) (08) (660°L) 20y 1210} J9N
(001) (oo1) (0sg) (665) z62') SJUSWISIAU| MBN [EJOIqNS
0 0 0 (c2) [ suojesunWWo) siiedey 800 ¥ddd
0 0 0 (ost) 051 ABsjeng uoyEPOWOIdY 8020 Hdad
0 0 0 (9) 9 sdnoig snoo4 8020 Hdad
0 0 0 (o1) 0l Buiddoyg Ase1sAiy 8020 Udgd
0 0 0 (2£) 181 uawdojaAsq 1| 8020 Hdad
0 0 0 (02) 0z juswdojara( 8)SGOM 800 Hdad
0 0 0 (9g) 9¢ yaeannQ 80./0 ddad
0 0 0 (c21) el Juswdojaae( wie4 Jejempeolg 800 Hdgd
0 0 0 0 € Audtand 14 8020 Hdgd
0 0 0 0 ¥ Jourell || 800 Hdgd
0 0 0 0 [ 1ZSVO SouBUSIUIR eUONPPY - Aug J00Q 8020 dddd|
0 0 0 0 0} G0SV9 Adijod Buijohosy 800 Hdgd
0 0 0 0 8¢ 20SVYO 314 | Aq wea] Ajsjeg pue yjeay eseaiou] g0/0 Hddd
0 0 0 0 ¥ 80SVO Hels HiH 1o} apinb A1ajes 3 uyeaH 8020 ¥ded
(001) (o01) (oo1) (o04) 005 $ZSVYO ddueuBUE| SBD 80/0 Hd8d
0 0 0 0 g 90SVv9 (Buiess oxa) HjH Ui uoieipasdoe Ajlfenb jeuseixa 800 Udad
0 0 0 (2 ¢ £0SV9 #oueldwo)d 35d 8020 Hddd
0 0 0 0 9 ¥0SYS Ayoedea Buypne asnoy-u) 1S9 dojarsq 8020 Hddd
0 0 0S (ov) Zy 60SVO su0io9[3 pieog 8020 Hddd
0 0 0 0 S¥ Buiunid gniyg [euonippy 800 ¥dgd
SIUDWISBAUL MIN

0 0 0 (000°1) (068) S3JOUBIOL] MIN [eJoigns
0 0 0 (00G) 0 paynuapi aq o} sapualoy3
0 0 0 0 (12) SMBIABI WOJ) SOBUIABS JBYI0 - MBIASY VTS 80.0 Hdgd
0 0 0 (00%) 0 (snieday) Buineg uswaND0ig
0 0 0 0 (¥e) 21443 7900 - MaIARY VIS 8020 Hdad
0 0 0 0 (s1) 81443 salenb3 - meiney V1S 800 Hddd
Jo 0 0 0 (0g) 0213 SuoReOIUNWIIOY - MBIABY V1S 8040 Hd9d
0 0 0 0 (oot) 1443 Bupoud ;sseuped sjenobausy g0/0 Hddd
0 0 0 0 (9g) #0443 "sauoyd ajiqow % * | 1H ‘josAed ut suononpey 800 Hdgd
0 0 0 0 (£1) €043 60SVYD Ul 5100 JJO-8UO pPadNpay 800 Hddd
0 0 0 0 (6¢) 2043 Jels Jo/pue S}s0D SIS 8JejST pednNpay 800 HMdad
0 0 0 0 (v2) L0443 SWILIBAO paI-Spasu 2onpay 800 ¥dad
0 0 0 0 (¥2) Zh443 sanneniu) Buiohoay 8070 Hddad
0 0 0 0 (ov) $}094J0 sjueus) Jo [esods|p pue abeioig Jo uonesiieucley 800 Hdgd
0 0 0 0 (0s1) o119 jo no buiseyd 0.0 Hdgd
0 0 0 0 (c2) 51502 Buiuuns juawebeueyy BuisnoH ul saOUBILIYT 8070 Hddd
0 0 0 0 (s1) 80443 Jebeuew James y-0-0 819190 80/0 Hddd
0 0 0 0 (ost) 60443 sisod sdO G 818180 800 ¥dgd
0 0 0 0 (oz1) 9043 sisod 39S + 919180 800 Hddd
(osearsaq) | (oseasdsaq) (aseasnaq) | (eseasdaq) (aseasdaq) sbuiaes Aouaioiyo maN
] 9SeaIJU| | /OSe3IOU] | [ISBIIOU] | [OSE3IOU| | [ ISBOAIOU] ]
ZLLL0Z L1/010Z 01/6002 60/8002 80/200Z (ViH) Suid)| JUaLUISIAU[ / SDUIABS

ZL/1L102 - 80/2002 1390N4d ViH




Page 89

Capital Programme - Corporate Resources Bids Summary Appendix H
Capital Programme Forecast 2007/08 to 2010/11
Bids For Corporate Resources Funding
1 Capital Expenditure Forecast 2007/08 2008/9 2009/10  2010/11 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Capital Bids
Environment 4,843 3,713 2,950 2,522 14,028
Aduilt Social Services 320 320 320 320 1,280
Housing Strategy And Needs (Non HRA) 300 0 0 0 300
Chief Executive’s 2,700 2,720 1,920 1,330 8,670
Finance 1,750 1,870 500 0 4,120
Children & Young People 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total 9,913 8,623 5,690 4,172 28,398
Haringey Homes Ltd (ALMO - HRA) 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Bids 9,913 8,623 5,690 4,172 28,398
Financing
Use Of Capital Receipts (8,216) (8,432) (5,499) (3.981) (26,128)
Use Of Corporate General Fund (LPSA) (1,506) (1,506)
Use Of Corporate SCE(R) (191) (191) (191) (191) (764)
(9,913) (8,623) (5,690) (4,172) (28,398)
A Total Accepted Bids (Fully & Partly) 9,913 8,623 5,690 4,172 28398
et DAy 9P 4112 28,398
Total Rejected Bids 23,012 11,280 10,750 9,655 54,697
Total Capital Bids 32,925 19,903 16,440 13,827 83,005
2 Corporate Funding Resources 2007/08 2008/9 2009/10 2010111 Total
) £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
i Capital Receipts:
Capital Receipts opening balance 01.04.06 (8,517) (8,517)
carry forward commitments plus accruals from 05/06 4,952 4,952
2006/07 projected outturn variance (@ Dec 06) (566) (566)
total bfwd capital receipts (4,131) 0 0 0 (4,131)
i Estimated capital receipts received in year*:
general capital receipts (4,000) (3,000) (2,500) (2,500) (12,000)
strategic sites 0 (5,000) (5,000) 0 (10,000)
(4,000) (8,000) (7,500) (2,500) (22,000)
Total Capital Receipts (i+ii) (8,131) (8,000) (7,500) (2,500) (26,131)
iii Revenue Contributions To Capital 0 0 0 0 0
iv. Local Public Sector Agreement (LPSA) Grant (1,506) 0 0 0 (1,508)
v Corporate SCE(R):
Adults SCE(R)** (141) (141) (141) (141) (564)
Children's Services SCE(R)** (50) (50) (50) (50) (200)
** 07/08 figures only confirmed by Government in Dec 06
** 08/08 to 10/11 are estimated figures only @ Dec 06 (191) (191) (191) (191) (764)
B_Total estimated resotlirces available (itov 9,828 8,191 7,691 2,691 28,401
3 Application of Resources to Bids 2007/08 2008/9 2009/10  2010/11 Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Brought-forward resources (surplus)/deficit 85 517 (1,484)
B Total estimated resources (9,828) (8,191) (7,691) (2,691) (28,401)
A Total proposed expenditure 9,913 8,623 5,690 4,172 28,398
In-year (surplus) / deficit 85 432 (2,001) 1,481
Carry-forward resources (surplus)/deficit 85 517 (1,484) - 8) (3)

Exec23Jan07apprcapitalcorpbids.xls/Summary
Last Updated: 17.1.07




Page 90

H xipuaddy

Ejo 4

SPIg 80.0 tended sjeiodionysix:

L0°10°21 :pejepdn ise
spiadiodiepdeapxdde, Louerezoaxy

? i T T i 7 7 T T T
| | o I | | |
(ed yotew wze'o3 7 i | | { _ V 8 ; snedoy pojepossy | $a0IAIS H
1do0oe) - yed udesoy | seuag pue wg | oor't | oors | oovs ! oser | ot 006 | 006 | 006 | og8 _pue suopeidepy s0j08g wﬁh&l __sinpy J _eposypy | 1z
| JE008) - Med L | b | 0866 | oo F_oovt | i ! 20 8 |
‘M * V _ 7 * ‘ { aeIBold WA / m:oou; ;
Mooy | ¥0 0 Jﬁ 0| 000 | 000 | oooT | - L wwﬁoﬁ%wmfumm__lwomw\ne\,wwzoﬂrmo\cm@.wwmb&om Lfi-[wn,.cw_‘_u\; A
S T Ni\:i[_ [ | I i " swnasnyy i
| e oe | oz | oz | ooe | oy %lam,-.fﬁh.%,@l w ] - Hoding pupeols soueian 5 sy “sauesary Tw@uﬁm oMo | 6r
| B o A
i ! £y
| (6d i 03) yed ujydesoy X | ooz % 00z A .00Z_ f;\mom\ ;l oom;% o0z A_ Loz | S 4 .. Pwwesboig @mmm\vmcmi:‘mcwmmw\gm\ f #&J:h,m@_.ﬁ;&_ R
H 7 |
. Meoy |eHopedD | . T 004 "ﬂ«.@_‘ L ove .,s\ao \* _08 | o8 | . A6uiens Bupueig oo uonesiosy .F - Juediuanaug
i i i i ‘ 7 _ * | t44 7 opeufidn 1§ esiar) pue wmccﬁ 7
1daaoy | 1olhO pue mﬁ o | sz [vmm[i ves ,h‘vmm‘ g! 4ve | sevh | we lomhgﬂl.mm. [ 8¢ | |6 PHEd pallonuey - ueid Bupiied)  ausdsjeans | yueuoinuz
T T T T ; o | . sposN SOoIAISS
MBINS1 0} 103lqns - 1da00y T. .8 | o5 | .0 f&[os;l;,# 008 Wisjo.om\ el J|f [oi\.ﬁ.@m — J-J . S :c.afcnmm.m@mztmmxi a&mﬁwm@:.ohf _IBRog unpy gw\ b
i i i | i . ; s |
ey o | s | Low | o boz o [ % | wewseg o omewewsdu soveu sty | ooueus _ln
“ 7 ‘ | 7 ; ‘ ‘ v _ (swweAos feuopewnojsues | | ‘, ! i_
WL F pue wg L3 ‘seak H i | i ‘ i pue JusuiLIBACDS) i
| o3 we” Eﬂ@ﬁw@hﬂs swoii‘,.J.,Jo.:\;[mmmf mobi:@m 07;8@.: _M-‘@.NL;@N..,F: To.oofw. | osrz ,ﬁ i . Buweibaig epdes 1) 1) wsoeoo\s,il.wzhomm Fele) f £
i _ , i ; | _ 7 . * Auadoud jo EmEmmmcmi i ;
‘i i i ! i _ : | | ,, | s * Sjei0dioyy :eouendwos-tou ! | ;
. Wey ] w0 L o]«.‘,h«‘.g.ul\,f,l.o[;JE;IQ Ft@.h 000z o | 00§ ‘*‘Jo.mnl:wlomJ‘.,ﬁif-s[gBm_WBmchm&%m.ﬁcm[%mgf Seowes Ausdoig | ,Jmo.@ﬁl,i.‘s KA
Y ; _ * : “ I T I : ‘ i o | 0L0Z-2002 oWayds|  juswobeuey ;
T .. A am,.@mm]mo T -9 T L Iawwfj_lom‘iil;ﬁmw?. _ooe | o | oo | oob | oov ¢ 7T «ks.wf@@m@c&cm@mﬁ:%@@[mz Aﬁwamnmxwwl@cwﬂz\cr
T ]
; i | ! i . i (swed Beyy | i
(sseoh ¢) _ 7 _ ; i i | 7 . i 7 Vs Ai UsaI) lemeusy soeds cmaov; ; i
 ed Wez'03 - ed uy @&«L B < T }o.wL‘ \poml:i]oom. I Bm.;« Lo0gh | o o005 | oog + s . AT%EEWQ.@m@»@Er@w& L Honeeisy | wewwonuz | g
| T * ‘ I i i .T ! Jr seBwe) ALDD | A
Mopeiopdlansydeody | Mo | g 0 r:l. 9 loom\ 908 L,J.,b‘ . S | | N Jo uaneyeisuy Pueoseyoind  susosipong | o ke I
j | J. \4 i j ; . Ecwwbwiaas_ | i
| . | eumpnusesu) of payuy) ainyusny
i i i 7 i i ; ; , s 7 100x5/BueunSS) Aemgoo4 ! H
ed w13 - yed ujdoooy | o _ o | osee | st ﬂ..@hm\¥[ommzm\.w 052" mlﬁ 052" ml_: osLE | 08¢ .m\i S| ..@wml\ﬂmz[c@mhmwﬁmm@n&v \m.xwu‘ﬂm@@f\; | jusuomnuz | 8
\l,l.!J:v}!}:J.[ . T | 1 [ ] i i as Bwwesbold uswaoeidoy |
| °d W5, 03 - ped uy ﬁ‘wowﬁ S 000°¢ 4,.7 000'e | I Tooo‘,m,,‘ | ooo'g lﬁ.oo]om Loooe |77 [4; _Rojegemouoy Gugubiy pang) . PUBISBRAS ,ﬁ uewwouaug | 2
{setunosa; _. w i H ‘ lﬂ ; o6 | i O
812104100 Wal papuny | | { i WY - p
199) Buroueu495 10030y | o | o | Lo [ o f mos || omteyesmo, R pEa— M.Wéﬁm@n&.bi
e — I R I | e I R T joeloig]
ey veve | 0 | Iown[_e@mlw \vﬁ% LN WL S F.fomm[w:lﬁ;[m ‘m mJL EW:@ESB[&%MN_@\%;E_ L Uoueanvy \,;H&&M@;hm \“;[mfl
o T T T
H ‘ H ‘ i Suig Juswaordal pue suiq ! i ;
_,. 7 i i i ‘_ ! ) ; lleuonippe ‘meu Buumbes m«cmn.w@; : |
| | 7 | 7 ; w 10§ @SNjal 3RSBLUOP 10} SUIG | 7 ;
w00y oz | o | o6 | o6 | o5 | —0 | 0 | 06 | 06 | | poeownokdinsopmubnoog  ouooseess | wowvoinug |y
B - T T ! * I i o9 j 1o9f01¢f BWBAGIIW] Eacz
| wew  ewomeso| o | ow | o 1o [ o | ow oo Lo | % et e oo wowesey | wewoms | g |
n, i i i _ i w { i 02 | suonsay i i !
ey | W S ST T o L ew lown | | ousoisomunacs  suomeers | wewsewss oz
ﬁ, ! Lﬁ | \_ _AH i i ve ueld Juslwanciduy| 4 ;
1deooy { BUIO pue yo 0 Ly 0o | o 0 Ly 0 0 o5 | | PUNGIE) UOREBIDY Juowd uonesIey JUBWIOHAUT i
R S g,\ T _v A }f T \J_‘.\‘.\ R l.ﬂ‘\ o LJ‘\ mﬂn;v\e%m? Aifeiired 1 Aiing jo 17}
T e I N [q\.z‘ .,‘nﬁ} ‘ T Aﬁ.’ H ﬂv[ﬁﬁ»}lﬁl [.l,fmfr‘l‘ﬂ {oyes00s |~~~ T R .j!j.rji‘ T
i H ; i ; | v * i xew) aiodg ,
| aeyi0 7 | i _ | 7 | uopespuony | i |
uojjepusuiIcoay :u:m UO IO YD | felog 11-0102 | 01-600Z | 60-800Z | 20-200Z | g0 L Eir0i0Z | 01-6002 m?nocw 802002 V 1ende) ejog * OfiLL 398foiy _QEWU upy sssupsng | sjeiopalig  roN 9y
PO [Pus¥O 0 o603 T pra e | OF600Z | 60°8007 | 80-L002 |  IBIOL | 1i-0 SR [ B peioNd eyde) e SDTRTE L PIeloang  [oN ey
S S . oao.u\!,\.:..e@# 000.3 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 _ E@Pw\‘# 0003 | 0003 | *II — \4][ SR
Mﬁ (sreak 3) 7 ‘ pig , | ‘ i ;
| | suogesyiduwy | | s21nosey j i w ;
| anuoAsy uwou .ﬁ.amo ‘ sejesodion | [
| 80/L002 vl IBNfRIOL | [Ei0f el {%001) | 1Ej0g tesy pig Buipuny ! i
(244 Bupung  pelewigsy  p pejewsz | 000,3 1509 lendeg pejewnsy jejoy |y p 1S3 s 4 sjeiodio) jeuibug ;

+1/010Z 01 80/200Z Butpun sjesodios soj spig [epdes



Page 91

H xipuaddy

g0z 20°'40°21 ‘palepdn isey
SPIF 80,0 edeD sreiodiogysix spigdioojerideokxdde guers zoaxsy
T T _, | ,f ,ﬁ !
! ! 9t 1S 'g Hun, Buy
puny dWO - 100fey ¥o 0 0SZ 0 0 0 0sZ 0sZ 0 0 0 0sz 1f0Unog auy 4o Joos 8y o) suteday!  saoiag Apedoig 9dueuly oy
. souds 82140 ojut wAB peos suiLLg EERTNETY I
wafey O 0 051 0 0 0 01 ost 0 0 0 oSt Le ve aoeds oy} Jo uswidopaspey sunpy 11005 Unpy 6¢
oyopsod
e sBuiping uoessuwpe view
B 0} SWHIsAs Jonuoo ABisue
puny gWg - joefey ¥O 09- 001 0 0 0 004 001 0 0 0 004 __Panoiduil 4o uopeiuswald) | ssaineg Auedaid @oueuly 8¢
PECY UDIH $8Y, BUIBING PSUMO
8'c HOUNOD BUS JO SMOPUIM JBLLIBIXO
PNy giNg - ooy ¥0 0% 08 0 0 0 09 09 s 0 0 09 8y} J0 juowsoRidoysiedoy | $801M0S Apadoig soueuly £
8¢ oY UBIH 6£9, Buipiing paumo
© buny 9wy - eley ¥O 0 0S4 0 0 0 oSt oSl 0 0 0 ost 1ioUnog sy 4o joai 3y} 0} siledoy | seoeg Auadoid soueuly 9
suogdo [ (1dl)
Buspun; Jay30 Mot - 108loy HO 501 059') 0 0 00’4 0s2Z 059t 0 0 00b't 05z Auoydaia) g jo uol dwy ) 0 sanpnoex3 el | g
Bxsuuy i
oy Aempeoig, BuIpling peumo |
puny dino - 10afoy ¥O 0 09 0 0 0 09 09 0 0 0 09 1#UN0Y 1 40 J00s au o) siedoy | sa0iMeg Auadarg @dueuly e
. peoy
pury diND - Pafoy H0 s osy 0 0 0 0sy osy o 0 0 osy i Aing - weuysiginas sjzed fep suedsiaNg ewuaIAUT 23
. saipedold sengesiq $90IAI8S 1
puny dNg - 1eley e 0 061 ST sz sv s6 061 sz ST sb S6 vy Buiusea jo yuowysigingey SHnpY 1BI90S NPy 43
. SHIOM JOURY pUB Jofew SBoINIBG T
pun; vuH - Joofoy ¥O 0 008's 0S¥'L | 0S¥V | 0s¥'L | ost'L 008'S 0S¥'L | 0S¥l | o0svL | osp'L i 1og suogeydepy Joweg dlgng SHNpy 11003 ynpy g |
e jusuwebeuspy
13ley ¥o 0 002 0 5 0 002 002 0 0 0 002 JONBN peoy BquiodjoH | poownoqubleN | seapnoexa o | og
] suaLueAodLy ]
109fey ¥O 0 [e144 0 sz SL SL s22 0 A ) SL i BINONIISEIU| SJUBLIOIY uojeasoay juawuoNAUg 62
ve 1odeq peoy Asjysy
puny g0 - ofey O 0 seL 0 0 0 s€L seL 0 0 0 SeL 1e senyvey Jodep Gupesbidn suedsjPRlg JuBWILoAAUT 8z
. SWINSSNN
pUny giNO - 18feYy o) 0 o0s 0 0 s 0g 0§ o 0 0 05 s $5900v Aiiqesiq Areiqry a1eBuybi| ' soamory “soueiqr] | SPAMN9X3 oD | 47
. SSIY Swnasnpy
| puny diND - j00fey 18I0 puB HD 0 08 0 0 0 08 as 0 0 0 0g L8 Amgesig Aeigry sued eipuexely g soamosy ‘saueiqr] | seagnosxa e | gz
dn
P 19§ swayshs - Aing wewebeuepy
uoisiaosd jendes 1f (eseac HOMIBN Y007 10V juowebeusyy
Ul paIapISUoD 84 0} - Josfey 8O 291 oSy 0 0 0 os¥ osy 0 0 0 0S¥ ouey ( dojsaaq 11) s uBlwuoIAUY sz
puny (dNO) Apadarg e
jojuewebeusy areiodion ¥ 9seyd suogeidepe oy
Aq pasapisuco aq 0} - eley 0 0 0zi 0 4 0 ozi ozL 0 0 0 0z UoBEUILILOSIC) Agestcl) vaq| $eones Auedaig adueuLy ve
siesn
uoisiaoid fepdes i feseao '8 g2 03 1011d JusISSOSSE SIPUDq
ut paiBpisuo 8 o} - 198fey ¥ sz 201 0 0 0 204 201 0 0 0 104 Buppiom ajigows o uoisusix3| uogexe y syeusy soueuly €z
waysAs
uotstacud fepdes 1| jjpisao L L1 uswaBeurws ases pney Jysusq H
Ul PRIBPISU0ND 8 O ~ «uonmﬁ uo st Lo 0 0 ¢} {15 feing 0 0 0 &t €30 COEECQEQQE_ pue sseyoing uoyexe) g sjyausy BoUBULY KN
Spig pe15sley Jo 1517
{01 aiods i
Xew) 8103g
ELl o] uonesHuoLyg
uoyepusLILoIeYy pue ¥ 10 ¥p iejo4, 1ewy +1-0102 | 01-600Z | 608002 | 80-2002 el 11-010Z | 01-600Z | 608002 | 80-00Z | fende jejoy ap1). efoid jeydeny jun sseuisng 8jeiopeng  [ON ey
000.3 0003 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 000.3 000.3 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 000.3 ]
(s1e0k 4) « pig
suonesyduy |oInosSY
snusasy  }sou jepden ssjeiodion
| 80/2007 v BN [BI0L | jelo) JeeA (%001) B0} seap pig Bupuny |
_2dAj Buipung | pejewns3  p pejewnis3 | 0003 IS0 jedes peewnsg B0l b p Y ejesodion [eubug

11/010Z 03 80/200Z Bulpun ajelodio) Joj spig jeyden



Page 92

gsoe 20°10°24 pejepdn e
SPig 8020 feyde ajesodiodysix spiadioojeydeopxdde ouergzoax3

$60¢€8 128l | ObP 9L | £066F | SZT6CE |

76975 | G69'6 | 0SL0L | 08244 | TIOEC , spig ieudeg paoafey [Eio L
B6E'8T ZLVy | 069'S | tzo's | £16%6 (Apseg 3 Aynd) spig jended paidaddy jejol
| 1
0Z0°2" 18668 | 6v9 vl | ¥08Z)L | 615 1C | 600'SE | G60'€8 | I2B€l | OWP'9L | €066} | SC6CE Buipuny sasunossy ajeiodios 104 spig ended €101
JBpUS-al B suiq
JORIU0D JO) MBIAR - J0BlBY fie] 0 0002 0 008 00Z'} 0 0002 0 008 00Z'4 0 s popayM - ABajesg BuljpAoay ausosjPaNS WOWLOIAUT 85
[siesodsip woyy Buoueuy-jes St X901 PIOA OWV - P11
ajqissod ajenjens - afey S 9.5 ooy 0 0 0 ooy 00 0 0 0 ooy DILIOUODT-UON JO JUBWIYSIQNSY | AoBulieH Jo) sawoH | sewoH Asbuuen | /g
e BO/200Z JUNCO0Y SNUBADY
$1509 Buisnop aup vl Buwdxy sesea OWIY - B
{yo-suo punj 0} viiH - Joefey O 0 158 0 0 0 168 158 0 0 0 168 uud) Buo Joj ss00 uonepidenqi Aebuuey Joj sowol | sewol AefugeH | 9g
1oAB) saeak snotaeid oy (say OW1TV - P11
1e puny o} WH - 1afey 2] yi9°1- 00£'€ 006 058 008 0SL 00g'e 006 058 008 052 8WaY0G JUN0oSI( djqesajsuel | Aebuper J0f sawoH | sawon AsBuuey | 66
vz Jusuebeuey
woloy 0 0 000'9 0 0 0 000°9 000°9 0 0 0 0009 18WI0) SPIEAA | POOWINOQUBIBN | SANNDBXT JUD | S
¢z Bwweibosd spaeN EEIIIVETN
woloy S o 005 0 [} 0 008 008 9 0 0 005 d13H 01 210 AsBuuer| @ ABajeng Buisnol | 11008 Jinpy €5
&c SWwInasny
woloy ¥O 0 oce 0 ozt 01} oot ogE 0 ozl oLl 00} SjusWaAoIdW) SBUEIQI] 'R SBAINIIY "SBLEIGIT | SSANNDSXT JOT | 2§
P SanuURY SAIeS
yoafey 5] 0 001 0 0 0 001 00} ¢ ! 0 004 JBWOISTY p B4} JO JUDWIUSIGINDY | SOIIAIDS JOWIOISND | SPAINISXT JOIND | 15
uoisiacid jepdes 1} [fesano L'y
Ul pasapISLoD 8 o} - aley 5] oz 05 0 0 0 05 o 4 [\ 0 (] sopesfidn) Joniag [weang usm Sdd3d JOUOIAUT 05
osd jenden || jjesoa0 9L Pafoid
Ul pRIBPISUOD Bq 0} - JvfeY 5] oy 00t 0 0 0 001 00y 0 0 0 00} Buppiop 81Iqop sjonuod Butpiing Sdd3d JuswIuosAUY 24
&L SpeeN [ TINETS
woloy S} 0 00¢ 0 0 0 00g 00g 0 0 0 00¢ sieday dnous -~ easy jemousy | ABojeng Buisnoy | [B100G Hnpy 8y
oid epdes 1| jesao 8T JUBWBINO0IH
Ut PaJBPISU0D 9 0} - 1afoYy 2] oL 16 0 [ 0 16 16 0 0 0 18 2uempog A TN diogy oouguly Ly
(oo pIO)
Ve 1% Q0 pue axauuy Aempeolg
woloy 0 08 006 0 ooy 00€ 002 006 0 oo 00€g 002 WioJ) JEIS [10UNOY) JO UOKEDORY | $e0IMaS Apadolg aoueuly o
suonesydde
oxd eyded 1 jeseso e JuUBLIADIOS 10} SapeaBdn
U1 PAJSPISU0D 8 0f - 109fey 5] yel so¥ 0 0 0 S0y S0P 0 0 0 S0y woysAs pue Bunpom BIGON | JuBWeIouT JUBLIUOIAUT sy
woloy HO 0 004 0 0 0 004 004 o ] 0 00} et aAneniul Buppom sjqixeld | sedieg Aedaid @oueuly 44
ve (sOdv)
afay Jayi0 pue 3O 5 529 0 0 0sZ §L€ szy 0 0 0Ll 657 SPIUDIUBAUOY DN OREWOINY | BUBDSPNS JBLIVOIAUT £y
o't BujuoipuoD Jiy pue
punj ging - oefoy 0 0 LE8 0 0 0 L€ 18 0 0 0 1£8 Inoe — peoy puEpsqUNY o S9dIAIRS Ausdord soueuld 44
oud fejden 1 eoA0 9e JuswsADIduy S80IMBS
Ul PRJBPISUOD 84 0} - 1090y | JOUIO PUB O 0 1€ 0 0 0 i€ 2t 0 0 0 251 Z 9seyd 31809 ssousng ‘| Iewog unpy v
spig papelay jo 1517
{01 21098
X} 81008
B0 UOHESIIOH 4
uopepuslILoday PUE ¥)) O ¥ 1ejol lejor L1-0LOZ | 01-6002 | 60-800Z | 80-L00Z |  18JOL L1-010Z | 01-600Z | 60-800Z | 80-L00Z | [ENde] €101 opLL yseload ended Bun sseuisng ejeiopaia  [oN ey
000,3 000.3 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 0003 000,3 | 0003 | 0003 | 000
(s1eak p) pia
suonestduy 20inosey
anusAsy 1500 jenden sajeiodion
80/002 Ul JBN[EI0L | 12J0L JEBA (%004) 1e301 Jeap pig Bupuny
adfj Buipung  pejeluns3  p pejewysy | 000,37 1S00 feden p ns3 B0y v p i H diog jeuibuo

11/010Z ©3 80/2002 Butpung ajeiodio) 10} spig jeyided




Page 93
Appendix |

London Borough of Haringey
Capital resource allocation strategy

Following the introduction of the prudential regime in April 2004, councils have
had greater flexibility regarding capital expenditure. The removal of controls
on the levels of borrowing was helpful in terms of flexibility and local
autonomy, but that the key determinant is the affordability, which is still
effectively controlled by government. Allocations of revenue support for
capital expenditure are still be made by individual government departments.

In the light of this strategic context, the following resource allocation policy
was adopted by Executive on 21 October 2003:

e that the framework for determining the Council’s priorities, and
therefore resource allocation, will remain the Community Strategy,
given effect in the Council’s plans via the business planning
process;

e that housing and education will be allocated their (revenue support
derived) borrowing limits and ring-fenced grants;

* that other services are allocated their ring-fenced grants;

* that all other (revenue support derived) borrowing limits and grants
are allocated through the business planning process and the
corporate project appraisal framework;

o that PFl is retained as an option for delivering capital investment;

 that unsupported borrowing should be considered for * invest to
save’ proposals;

» that capital receipts are managed corporately and applied in
accordance with the business planning process;

* that best consideration will be sought for all disposals, except in the
case of agreed discounting to social housing providers;

* that the spending power derived from capital receipts is maximised
through the use of the offsetting provisions for pooled (non-right to
buy) housing receipts.



Page 94

Total Draft Capital Programme 2007/08 to 2010/11 Appendix J
Summary Capital Programme 200708 to 2010110~~~ [ T
Proposed| Indicative! Indicative Indicative
Budget| Budget Budget Budget
Expenditure Budget 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 201011 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Environment 17,930 10,019 9,264 9,236 46,449
Adult Social Services ) 1,046 820 820 820 3,506
Housing Strategy And Needs (Non HRA) 300 0 0 0 300
Chief Executive's 3,064 3,462 2,527 1,330 10,383
Finance 3,557 3,870 500 0 7,927
Children & Young People 52,909 62,260 59,060 31,539 205,768
Sub-total 78,806 80,431 72,171 42,925 274,333
Homes for Haringey 19,278 61,422 77,336 74,828 232,864
Sub-total 19,278 61,422 77,336 74,828 232,864
Total Capital Programme 98,084 141,853 149,507 117,753 507,197
Capital Financing
__1|Capital grants from central government departments (inc SCE(C)) 41,090 57,135 49,760 26,539 174,524
2 Grants from European Union Structural Funds 0 0 0 0 0
.3/ Grants and contribution from private developers & leaseholders 249 0 0 0 249
4 Grants & contributions from non-departmental public bodies 0 442 400 0 842
Capital grants from the National Lottery 290 300 207 0 797
5 Capital funding from GLA bodies 4,215 6,000 6,000 6,000 22,215
6|Use of capital receipts 10,216 8,432 5,499 3,981 28,128
Capital expenditure financed from the Housing Revenue Account 1,054 0 0 0 1,054
Capital expenditure financed by the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 11,991 12,133 12,366 12,644 49,134
Capital expenditure financed from the General Fund Revenue Account 4,721 2,806 814 822 9,163
7:8CE (R) Single capital pot 14,244 10,535 15,724 11,424 51,927
8| SCE (R) Separate Programme Element 9,422 44,070 58,737 55,951 168,180
Other borrowing & credit arrangements not supported by central government 592 0 0 392 984
Total Capital Financing 98,084 141,853 149,507 117,753 507,197
Notes
1 Include capital expenditure financed by capital grants from all central government departments.
Exclude capital expenditure financed by Major Repairs Reserve (MRR).
_21Include contributions from any European Union Structural Funds l.e. the European Regional Development Fund,
The European Social Fund, the European Agricultural Guidance and Guarantee Fund, and the Financial Instrument
for Fisheries Guidance. I |
i | i
3:Include contributions from private developers. Include leaseholders contributions made specifically towards the cost of capital works
on the premises of which the leaseholder's property forms part. | ‘
|
4 Include capital grants from all non-departmental public bodies such as the Sports Council, English Heritage, Arts Council,
Museums and Galleries Commission and the Countryside Agency.
~ 5linclude capital funding from the Greater London Authority (GLA), including capital funding from its four functional bodies B
L.e. TFL, London Development Agency, Metropolitan Police Authority and London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority.
S 1
6 |Include all capital expenditure financed by applying capital receipts (including any amount of PCL specified in Regulation33(2) | =~ .
as at 31 March 2004 treated as if it were a capital receipt. ‘
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Capital Receipts Funding Maximum (Corporate Resources Bids) (8,131) (8,000) (7,500) (2,500) (26,131)
Capital Receipts Funding Maximum (Children & Young People) (2,000) 0 0 (2,000)
Total (10,131) (8,000) (7,500) (2,500) (28,131)
. Use of capital receipts (forecast spend) 10,216 8,432 5,499 3,981 28,128
Variance 85 432 (2,001) 1,481 (3)
| | ]
7| SCE(R) Single Capital Pot - include capital expenditure financed by borrowing and other credit that will attract central government
support through RSG or HRA subsidy l.e. Supported Capital Expenditure (Revenue) - SCE(R) Single Capital Pot. |
! ! B}
8|SCE(R) Separate Programme Element | | ]
Include capital expenditure financed by borrowing and other credit that will attract central government support through RSG or
HRA subsidy l.e. Supported Capital Expenditure (Revenue) - SCE(R) Separate Programme Element I
T

Exec23Jan07CapitalappxJ xis
Lasted Updated: 12/1/07



Page 95

w_xﬁxaaw_s_am.ogcmﬂmmuwxw

r xipuaddy

6Yv'sy  _ evbov

9EZ'6 ¥9z's 610°0L 0E6°L1 0

juawuoliaug ejo |

| fove T onz
| |62v'e ezvz
Toos 005

BETTa—y

oz o
L PNFI 4
BET
_los  “"os
_loor " oop
| ,rpofm.w _ 009's
| ,]c@,nl ____booe
| j0s2  os
Isek sn
| 000" oo
_[00L o0t
| iev'z e
BETT.
|¥eL yeL

| {0008t ooo'st

0§ 0%
st gy
109 g
A - -
s s
| Jzev  zew
| Josy — osp
logy oy
| Isve spe

Iszs 52g

| puadg
180/200Z 4
| Bugpnjou)
| Imoy

o 08 08 08
¥65 y65 69 4vg
0 0 0 00§
0 0 0s¢ 2174
0 06 06 06

0 0 0 ocl
[¢] 0 S0 080'}
V] v 0 08
00k 00} 0ok 00k
oor'y 00v'L 00v'L oov'L
052 0SZ 0S4 0S4

2
o~
2
o
Lol
w0
N

=]
<
©
=1
<
©
(=}

414
0sy
oey
Syz
G529
Slg

00g
£€ee
5¢9

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
OGOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOODOOO
uy

OOOOOOOOOOOOQOO

000.3 000.3 000.3 0003 0003 |

LLIDLOZ - -0LI600Z - '60/800Z  80/100Z Z0'E-ie oL
9Bpng jobpng 1eBpng joBpng - dn puadg |
1euiBlo - jeuiBug. . jeuibug leubug . jejoy |
BANEIIPUL- - BAlEIIPUY aAeMpY] - pasodoig I

_epeibdn iy

T asnyai oiishiuop M jo Aiddns apim-
0 pliE punoibAgig Med sir

109l0.d JuswBAOIdU] L

10A281 apim 4BNo;

A0JdWY punois) togesio

M0 plie SAemuBiy “Speoy Ubi
ojes femaiisy Buiybry joan

S usdQ) auiwesboig ju
T ssweypg gL uoiIsg susosy

__{10) 410~ peoy suid

_OBIL Sone|Y Sueq Aingsi

SieH weyuayo] ‘eng g

ISUOD PUE UORES0}S
SSAU[ ainsia] ' pod

oIssiqng (i) velg awsAoidu je
PTR) S Hodsues] spuejesy] Aebupe
? Bupiied pajonion
(dI7) usuitonAug

(dI) sseusiemy [ores

—— __{dr) sueid jeaei] spopm
. (I sueig ea

ainmwny 199535/BuldBNS

d Juswadeday A

T (e Beiy Usaio em

Sil o [

pUNOY 4vS "HT100)

Ol M3U B JO uoponi

N4 BalY YmaIs 590q) Aien

T _..2Wlieiboly jusug

— 1
P

ge I

__{dI) Seuoz yduigg
_(dr) sswayog Aiojes (eooy

o fediound |
f,.\n\.‘\.l.lélznwfé\.v -
|
=TI
N
WweN | oN oy

awayog jeides J

LLI0L0Z ©} 80/200Z oiuieiBoig jejides

PauuLIaiap sainby) Buimouog pepoddnsum,,] |
T Bsjens Bugueg sl |
2 Uo7 Bubtied pajosiuc) - Ueid Bupiied| g
D0 MON JO UOIE|EISU) pUB dseiaing]
& Hed PoptEN| |
ybnoiog!
15800 ¢
og
9y Jollpg
ES peoy|
8 Sz

S|_vz
ed| ez
sens| 2z
S| iz
%

o 6
NI
S|4

L
H 61
iaid®l
vOvY4d|

I

|

2 _o,ozow,ﬁfJo.W o
(dI) senuag umay | |

—___(dr)Auougsng] 5
T (di) Aigisse03y dojg sn

) eNovbupko|
__(dr+NOT uoN Buieko]

(di7) Bupyep]

+

i

ﬂ SR

11/010Z 01 80/200Z swweiBouid jeydes fejo )




Page 96

sprxddeiendes ouerezosxa

r xipuaddy

4
126°L 126'L 0 00 0.8'¢ 185°¢ [ adueuLf [ejo ] -
0007~ ooo'z 0 0 000°} 000 o ___ dwwesboid WA 6%
‘.?N—‘ . 1745 0 [4) (4742 0 . , o SHSOHHY uch)mvnmﬁ,%_«QccEQ_aE: Sy o
B 0002 0 00§ 067 05/ B | Bopioeq @ aoueydwios - Auedoig 0 Juswebeuepy ﬁ@o&oom‘ i
| 08t 208 0 0 0007 2084 _ s1990oid ABayEng Uogepowwoady| gy
T - -~ o Ssueuig] ]
£8€°01 £9¢°01 0ge’L 1257 Z9¢'t ¥90'e 0 $,9MIN28X3 jaIy3 jejo] B
| 02 ouzy ogg 0ze 0zZ¢ 008 - uoddng punpiools seyeian| zy |
““““ 00L'L ooz 000t 005"} 00€°2 00e'z _ swuietbold feyded il 1y
|00 goe 0 001 004 00} B - dweyog juelg YOISd sbejoy ysibuz; oy
| %‘{F -7 0.7 209 ZrL yog B 85u8Q 810D 3M0ID BoMUE| 6E |
IR _ _ _ |
Bl $,9A3N29X3 JOIYY
908'c 208'c 0z8 0z8 0z8 ore'l 0 SPasN B ABajesjg BuISnoy ® SadjAIag [B190G JINPY [B10L B
oo " oog 0 0 0 00g _ ____uoisuedx3 suojstpiea| ge
o o - C:JOOO( w:c,w>mm mEm:OI C.O[Zv.w“u‘ww.Z[U:d\ >m®«m S D _‘m:OI,ﬂ* ]
905t 905°¢ 028 078 028 av0'L 0 eons]
LI )Y 0 0 0 e _ . CP®seydaiegs)  Jg |
9 59 0 0 0 9 o ___Soansg uuely Ayunuiwiog| g
_logz'e  osz'e 028 0z8 028 0z8 W »Siteday pajeioossy pue suongjdepy 10098 SjeAud | gg
Aﬁ i SedMSS EpOS Sanpy, |
o b —— . SSONSgEpOSSANDY
B T speaN  ABajens Buisnon B S90IMI0G [e100g Snpy| |
B e — ]
| (pajeys ejoy LHOLOZ - 01/600C  60/002 ~ ‘8074002 Z0°€LE OL] awayog Jeyde jo sweN|oN Joy
| alaym) 19bpng 1obpng 196png 18Bpng - dp puadg | :
; puadg lewlbuo - jeutbuo jewBug  fewnBug lejoy _
180/L00Z @1d SAREIIPUL - DANBIIPY| . 9AlJEDIPU] pasodoig [
W Buipnjou;
jejo1
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, B  11/010Z 9} 80/00z swiweiborg jenden| ]

11/010Z 03 80/200Z swwesboid jepde) |ejo)




Page 97

six‘rxddejended Louergzoexg

 xipuaddy

610°0vZ _ 891°S0Z .  6ES'LE 090°65 092'z9 60625 1sZ'ye 8jdoad Buno, g ua.pyJ €301
166'€6L 28z's9L 6£5'9Z 092'6y 122'6G Zhige 60462 (2amn4 8y} 4oy s100495 BUIPING J00LYS MBN 5 357 Liiog wgpudsgal 7.
Ziv's iY's 0 0 0 ziv'e 1 Ud S81UBT S,UAIPIND | |4
| g0 g0 0 0 0 £0Z - 2Z4dS supar) buiwes 3] gz
98¢ 9ge 0 0 0 9ee 01Z 4 'spdnd 10y sisindwiod| g9
%4} (545 0 0 0 1zl «{[euoisiraud) pun jepdel ynoA|  go
919's 919's 0 0 8082 8082 1eyded paapasgl s
432 26V 0 0 0 z6¥ — saBojouy9s 1be1enS/UORNGLUGS ASHIOZLAS AIAISBUUGS puEapeEsIg| g
08z 08z 0 0 ogl 051 wsany YIM siidngd o4 uoISIAQid JsyE9ads Keuiug suinogsduien]  gg
[b@nl.v-[g 008’y [4; 008’y [¢] 0 o sndwep bujwesy saisnidu] JMa| 49
S61 564 0 0 0L 7 suonesspa [0oyos 41| €9
8Ly gely (94 4 0eg sey [¢} Fousbunuod| zg
ST 15T £15'¢ ¥89'1 0 0 SUBWIWIWOD pasaN oiseg Joud| L9
vol i 0 [0} 08 8 (ueyu) 111 yd :uoisuedx3g Asanod| o9 )
0089 9/8's ¥s 006 2zy 005'S ¥Z9 uoisuedx3 obpiisio)| 65
L4 B i 0 8y 8y 8t Py 8oBWWOD B spaddod NSd;  8g
008‘s ovo'e 0 06 0S¢ 0042 0942 uoisuedxg umopiagie | zg |
005'S eve 0 € Lel 802 95L°g uolsuedx3 gplon;  og
001 0oL 0 0 0 001 (ur) 113 | yd uoistiedx3 Aisanon|  og |
ove ore [o] 0 01 01 OANBHIU) SS800Y | $G
8L gl 0 St i iy Mejes pue yesy uayopyl| g5 |
0o’y 0or's 0 0ov 00y 009 Areuwid ‘uopesjuispoly| zg
0L 73 0 0 0 (174 Aiepuooag :uogesitiiepopy| 1o
8€6°L 8€6°} 005 00S 00S 8EY weweoeidey IPN pauleld| 0g
00¢ 0 001 001 004 tende) Alewud sabieysey sjesodion| gy B
0 0 0 ge suogeweblewy| gp
009} oov Q0¥ 00y 00 ooueusjuely g siiedey| /¢
ajdoag Bunop 3 uaipiyd
000.3 0003 000.3 0003 0003 000.3 000.3 N
(paeys LN 8 LL0K0Z 01/6002 60/8002 - '80/L002 - L0°€’4L OL awaYyag fede) jo awieN|"ON Jay
aleym) jafipng jebpng jabpng 19bpng . dn puadg
puadg 1euiblo - jewibuo - ewiblo - lewBUO - (ejoy
80/200T did SARRIIPUL - BAIRDIPUL | SARDIPUL - pesodoig
Buipnjou;
1ejo]

1L1/010Z ©} 80/200Z dwwieiBoid feyded

11/010Z 03 80/200Z swiweiboud jeyde) jejo)




Page 98

sixrxddejenden ouergzosxa . v

g1 buipung “ssjewnss aie{,) pased sewsyog

Syb'ivs 461405 €62°M4L  l0S'6WL - £68'LPL . ¥80'86 162%¢ awweiBoug jeyide) jejo 1
¥98'2e  $98'ZcT - 828'%L geeisL ZZF'L9 81261 0 Aabuliey 10} sawoy
pso'L PS0°'L 0 0 0 ¥50°4 uonessuabay ss0|D weneg!  gg
X $78 0 0 0 ferdel 80/20 suonepideyq pjoyeses buol| /g
0SE'S 0SE's 051 0s¥'L 0S¥'L 000°} 80/20 suonerdepy|  gg
0s¢ 0sz 0 0 0 05z . (sai) sweyog junoosiq sigeissuei] | 68
vr2'8sL  vkT'8s) 166'56 1£2'8% 950'ey 008 «(+60/80 40} Dg) Bulpun) g0/.0 BWUIRIBOIH SBWOH JUBSsQ| g
8.0°g 8108 0.9' 26£'7 6512 258 80/40 ®ouBUSIUIEI pauuBld| ¢g
00521 008°L1L 000'6 0006 000's 008'z 80/£0 swuweiBold SuoRe100a( lewsxd| 28
00z} 00Z't 00g 00e 00¢ 00e 80/.0 Uojeaasuo) ABieuz| g
916°C 9162 vy vz 422 A 80/20 SYOM [eude |euess3]  0g
z58°%¢ z58'v¢ gll'g eil'e £1L'8 €128 80/20 sauejes g sypom pesyended; 6/
| 0sL qQsL 0 0 0 052 puemIof 14bnoiq £0/90 Butwweiboidienrg| g/
| oy i 0 0 0 av 20/90 SYOM |eampnig| 7/
B 0 0 0. 9 £0/90 Swwewanoidwi sjeysy g7 |
£6¢ £6¢ 0 0 0 £6¢ 20/90 seaneg Buiping) G/
8L1 8t} 0 0 0 gLl 20/90 duwiwesboid suogesodeq ewaixy| L
Z6¥°L 6L 0 0 0 Z6Y'L PEOY HI04NS ‘asNOH J9oMe] JUBDIIW ‘SUIGqoy Weuuay | ¢/

AaBuliey 10§ sawioy

saodinag Buisnoy

000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3
(pojels B30 LLIOLOZ - 0L/600Z  '60/800Z 80/00Z - L0°CLE OL awayog |ende jo aweN|oN Joy
asaym) jebpng jabpng j9bpng j9bpng - dn puadg
puadg leuibuo - jeulBug - jewiBug - jeuibuo g0y

180/L002 2id ARDIPU] - BAREDIPY] . AEDIPYL - pesodold

Buipnjouy
ejo1

L1/0L0Z 0} 80/200Z swweiboid jendes

r xipuaddy 11/0L0Z 01 80/200Z dwweiboid [eyde) jejoy




Page 99

six pxddeieyded uergzosxy

6vv oy evv'op 1ye8 [0 0 et 0 0 [320°%1 lsiz'ze 1e1'g jusliuoliAug j230 |
(Aug Aq pautuiisiap senby) bumoiioq psuoddnsun,,
ove ove 0 0 0 0 0 0 ove 0 0 Abajens Bupuelg ear) | p¢
621'T 62b'T 0 0 0 Lz 0 0 881°L 0 0 speibdn 1| e9IND pue suoZ Bupped PaioNuoy - UBld BUPIEY | gF
00s 008 4] 0 0 0 0 0 00s 0 0 Seiswien ALDD MON JO UoREjBISul pue eseydingd|  zg
S90°1 590°1 0 0 0 0 0 0 Szy 0 0¥9 108014 Juswidojenspay] Med peipep e
0.z 0. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0z 0 0 8SNjaJ MSBLIOP JOj SUIq pajaaym jo Addns epim-ybnoiog| pg
ozl ozt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0zl 0 0 13lo1d Juswaacidw] GinoA pue puncibAeld sHed sintiseys 6z
syl S8yl 0 0 0 0 0 0 S8b'L 0 0 SUoRIRHOD BuioRoB apim ybnosog| gz
0S 0S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0S 0 0 UBld JuBwian0idil punolg) uoyesiosy uolljed| 7z
00V ooy o 0 0 0 0 0 cov 0 0 swieiboid Ajeg peon| oz O
009‘s 009'S 0 0 0 0 0 0 009°s 0 0 aunyuiny 19as/buroepnsas Aemoo pue skemybiy ‘speoy ybnolog| ¢z
000°¢ 000°¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 000°'¢ 0 0 swuwiesBolq juawedeiday Asjes lemeusy Bug bt 1eang|  pz ]
0SSz 0sz 0 0 0 0 0 0 0S. 0 0 (suied bel4 usalg jemoudy soedg uadQ) swiweibold usiaaoidi] syed: ¢g
B sl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SLt SSW8YOS 90| UORIDS Buads)eang|  zz
000y 000y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [ 000’y () 410 - peoy sudg| 17 ]
001 001 00} 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0811 SOB|UY Yed Aingsuid| o2
[ %4 [R%4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1194 (z punoy 3vo '9100) oeH wellusyol ‘sus 19 61
S81°L S8y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S8L°L (pun4 ealy ymaip 9300) Kienpioli mal & J0 UGRINISUOI PUE UOTBS0RY | §]
¥EL veL yEL 0 0 0 [o 0 0 0 4] wOWLWeIBoId JuBURSaAY] ainsio] B podg| /)
000°81 00081 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000°8} 0 uoIssigns (d17) ueld yusweaoidu) o] gj
0s 0S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 08 0 (d7) Apnig piodsues] spuefiiesy] Aebuuen|  gi |
SL SL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S/ 0 (dI7) sauoz Bupied pagoiiuon | pi B
09 09 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 09 0 (din) yuswuonauy 'vovad,  ¢)
s¢ s¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Ge 0 (di7) ssauaiemy ereL | zi |
S ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S 0 (di) sueid jenei] spop | 11
[4:14 [4:14 0 4] 0 0 0 0 4] [4:14 0 (di) sueid joAel] jooyds| gL
0sy oSy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0S¥ 0 (di)senquag umoy g
ogy oy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [ 0 (ar) Muoug sng| g
sve Sve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S¥e 0 (dI7) Amaqisseooy dojg sng. 7
T4 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 628 0 (dIM) +NOTBuPAS| g B
Sl¢ Sig 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |628 0 (d1) +NOTUON BuippAn | g .
sz [ 0 lo 0 0 0 0 0 lsz 0 (dry) Budjem| ¢
00S 00S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00$ 0 (diy seuoz yduigz| ¢
[ 24X |g2e 0 lo 0 0 [0 0 0 £2e 0 (dI) sewisydpg Aejes jeao]]  z
529 s29 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 529 0 (din) eoueus)UiE ¥ [EMBUBY peoy [edpuug I
; f ﬂ
_ ! juswuonAug
| 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 0003
puadg jejoL JuaWILIBAOD) wsweg  |jod jejides | junoooy (NuW) VH woid | sidiasay saipog sjuern awayog [ejide) jo aweN|"oN ‘joy
80/,002 fenuag Ag swweboid 9|buig anuaAay 8m9say | Budueury reyden | yio woig jenden !
aid papoddng joN | ajeiedag ) ans pung syeday Jo osn Buipung
Buipnjouy sjpuswabuelry (¥) 308 felauag liofep woiy feyde)
ejoy, Jpaio woiy4 Buroueury
9 Buimosiog Bugoueui4
BYI0
(s1eak §) a2inog Buipung jejol L1/0102 03 80/200Z dwwreibolg jepdes| 1

r xipuaddy

11/010Z 03 80/200Z swiwieiboid |eydes jejor




Page 100

sixrxddeiendes/ouerezoaxa

126°L 1126°L 0 |0 0 [£10's adueury [e}o) —
000Z 0007 |0 0 o oo0t oUW WAA OF |
0z} [} 10 0 o |0 e ISOD}JUSWAR Jo Uopejuslueldily| gy
0007 0007 o o o 90z Portaeq 3 soueydivos - Aadoig jo uswabieuen eieiodios yy |
208t lz08°¢ 0 [0 0 |08 siooefoid ABejeng S_ﬁuossooo&, (54
._ - | e SRR TOOIEAS UOREPOWIWIOODY | g
i - Awﬂi\x JL! - T I\,[ o ) I T Tesueury,
| i | S — oot - N
€8£°0L  esc'0L lo 0 Y9L 00¢ W Samnoex3jemygjeor|
L I | S I — ]
0z losz 10 o fooe 1 S } J,‘m&@.wlué&wmmmmm@l‘\N«w\«
00Kz 0oLz Jo 792 0 o owuebugpmydes i |y
00e 00¢ 0 . 0 | o o USRS WBID VOISd aBellie ysibug, oy
TN 0 0 | o . BUSD 8I00 Sr0I9 0G| BE
B - ‘ T Y TV -7 = J T 7o) B
| ;,, W F—— e SSAORXZRND
908°¢ 1908 |0 [0 's9 SpasN 3 Abajeng Buisnoy g S9JIAIRg [BID0G JNpY j)0 |
| | ; R
0g 00g 0 0 o
o ,_ ) o -
| I T ]
905°c 190s'e 0 0 S9 ejoigng ]
214 181 10 0 o R - . CP®sBYdamps g |
59 s9 lo 0 |99 . _ ____SS9Inag ulely Ayunwiwiod| ge
082'¢ 08z’ 0 o 0 +Siteday pajeroossy pue suopeidepy 10199 SleAlid. og |
[ I N | — . eomssEROSSIRY |
| f M, | I
, | ﬂ — T spaaN '@ ABajelis Buisnoy 3 sadlaleg (€008 siinpy.
m 1 H- S S, AC S bt it et "B L —
| H : S W H - L { et U N
0003 | 0003 | 000.3 0003 | 0003 Jﬁ} 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 J, 000.3 [ e } ——
pusds | jejoy | 18A09 | ) 13 30d jeided | junosoy f (MuW) | vuH woug ["sidiasey | “saipog | swein awayog jede) Jo sweN ‘oON joy
80/2002 , V fejuan Ag | aunueiboig . 9bulg | enusrsy | antesay | Bupueury | fepdes | vio woug ‘ jenden ; *
atd | papoddng joN i ajesedes | (w)aons | pung | suedoy ! | jJoesn | Buipungy ! i i
Buipnjouy i | syuswebueiry 7 (@308 | ‘ jelauag To.:ws. woid| , [eyde) i i
1ejoy | Hpa1y ! i | woiy ! Bupueury i
g Buimosiog - Bupsueuiy
Yo | | : : | ,
- J - _____(sieehp) adinog Buipund jejo L _ 11/0102 O} 80/2002 SwikieiBoxd jepdeg| |

I xipuaddy

L1/010Z 0} 80/L00Z swwieiBoid jepde) |ejo)



Page 101

spepxddegendes guerezooxg L

610°'0¥C (892502 |0SL 9eb'0lL l1gz'ez [2ov'vor | 8jdosd BunoA 3 usipjyd ejo)

—————

| "
_9vr'esl | (@ining sy ioj SIo0L0S BUpINg 100U3S MeN 8 21US) WIOH Wig PUNISA| 722
e T T iUd Senusy SUSIIND] s
g0z g0z o T g N |£0Z 1 —— . _czlasSWpaidbuiestal o
oce Teee o |0 S SR (- R R ) o8 _ 01z 4S 'sydng ioj sieindwod |59 |
zr T ) 'o E SR [ T T o ﬁmr B «(leuoisinoid) pung jepded yinox| g9
919°'s j919's o lo |0 ﬁ , |
zer e o o g
08T ,cww\ ; 1347

o8z o8z lost o oer
oosy 00y o o looey - . sndwepbuiliesTonsmRUi M8 o
sb  sek o o T SUONEIDS 00YSS 4OL|  £9

8Lt sesi 0 o el o 0 Tl lo Aousbupuog| zg ]

166°c6L  |z8z'aol |0 jger’ol o
ziv'e [ziv'e 0 ‘o

_ -

_2zldS Spain m:_E‘mM,.M_.eI .

Tegs e PPN PUnd euded yinoA| g9

1eyded paadasal Lo

, _ saiBojouio3 | oiBeenS/UoRNamUG ASH 0710 ‘KuAgoaUlio] pueqpedig] g9
lo | wisny i siidng 104 UGISIAOIL JsieIadS Alelilig stinogsdwes| 59

snduwied buwes sASnOU] Jg po

ssTs gszs o o lsrs oo lo 0 T siwoujuuio pesN ose@sovdyo
T 7 TS 10 | | 10 | e .,.‘L,,rmmp_._Euhm_mfc&Pm.ﬁ&@%
00s's  Jos8's o o A \f\‘ e UoIsuedx3 sBpusiod)| ;

\ Py 22J3WI0Y g SpaddoD Sy

vl Iz 0 O 7 N R N B N R
J.l;[szJ;[_,oJeJ.,\s;\i\ . Y S

008 lovo'e o T S [ [ S N - T vosued unopioweL 45 |
00§'s e 0 0 | i 0 uosuedx3 fejplod|  gg

T — ) S T 11O T
ove — Tove 1o N - :..\?B.I,‘[aﬁ.l;Jr;J.,\‘.IW.‘\;J, o oMiEjuisseody| pg |
Lr e o o — T AeespUE yiesH US| g5 |
0¥’y j00v o o Toos ] o9 G T Rewq UONBSILIBPON| 25

o0 o o o o - 7

T uaWiBoEday I nw:cmE%Jmm@

o0e oo
2 R—
009t foost o

texded Kewyg sabieyssy sjesodiory|

BT T R R— R R— o
T S — R [ A — - Y - 1. v
lo | sz m w o N e L

suogewebieuy] gy |
.J,,chm.c%c._g, ,.mlmm_gmm_: .\m.v\

SO L — [.,,}Vlli\ er\‘.

_— -

~@dosd Bunoy g uai

S S S S I W —— | N
!:Jn[..;)%ls[ I L.J‘ i) — . e T e e SN AU S e |
0003 | 0003 | 0003 o003 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 | 0003 S

n:&mwﬁﬁm U.Q_Elge[eT Jusuisiy Jrom iedes | EéS«Wﬁ. (W) | vaH woly | s)diaday | seipog | swep | aways jeyde) yo awieN|oN Joy
80/200Z f |esnuan Ag i awweibold | abuig f“ anusAay * antesay , Bupueury | jepden ,730 woid | jeyden ‘ i
aid ; ; pauoddng joN i ajeredag f (9398 | pung | sijeday | i J0 9sn f Buipung * ¢ !
Buipnjou; | | sjuewsbueny | (¥) 3o0s * ferauan  |rofep EEL | i jeyden | *
leror | | wparp 7 | woid | Bupueury |

| g Buimossog |  Bupueury ,

BUIG

I T _{sieakp) eoinog Buipung jeo) T 0} 807/.0¢

_LL/0L0Z 03 80/00Z duweiBoid jeiide?

r xipuaddy L1/0102 03 80/.00Z swwieibo.d [eyided jejo)




Page 102

six rxddejended ouerezosxa

gl buipun "ssjewnss aie (,) poxiew sswsyog

Yy LyS 161208 86 081°891 12618 £91°'6 vEL'sy $50°L 821'82 Si2'ee Ziv'all awiueiboid [eyde) e)o 1

198°2e¢ 98°2¢2 0 brL'isL 286'v2 0 pEL6Y $S0°'L 0 1] 0 AaBuliey 10} sawoH
ys0°L $50°L 0 0 0 4] 0 $S0°'L 0 0 0 uopeseuabay eso|p wenes| gg
[14°] §28 0 0 0 0 ir4°] 0 0 0 0 80/.0 suonepideyq pjoyssea] Buov, /g
0s¢g's 0s€°s 0 0 0 0 0se’s 0 0 0 0 80/£0 suojejdepy| 98
106¢ 0seT 0 0 0 0 062 0 0 0 0 (sal) sweyog junoosig ajqessjsuel]l| g8
yvz'sst  vrTesk 0 yyi'L6L 0 0 00S 0 0 0 0 +(+60/80 40§ 081 Buipund) go/20 ewwieiboid saWOH JUs2eq| 18
8.0°e 8.0'8 0 0 0 0 820'8 0 0 0 0 80/L0 ®OUBUBJUIBIN pBUUR|d| €8
00821 005°LL 0 0 0 0 00521 0 [¢] 0 0 80/.0 dwweibold suonesodaq jewsixg; g8
00Z'L 00Z'} 0 0 0 0 002’} 0 0 0 0 80/40 uonensssuod ABieuz| 1g
916 9162 0 0 0 0 9162 0 0 0 0 80/.0 SHOM jENdeD [enusssy|  og
z58'ye z288've 0 0 2£6'vZ 0 026’6 0 0 0 0 80/.0 S3ueles g yom pasiepded| 6/
0S84 0S. 0 0 0 0 064 0 0 0 0 pJemio) Jybnolq 20/g0 Buiwesboudionp! g2
9y 9 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 £0/90 SHOM jeamonnig /)
9¢ 9¢ 0 0 0 0 9¢ 0 0 0 4] 20/90 sjuswoanoidwy yes3| 92
£6¢ £6¢ 0 0 0 0 £6¢ 0 0 0 [¢] £0/90 seoinBg Buiping| 62
8Ll 8L 0 0 0 0 8Ll 0 0 0 0 20/90 swuieiboid suojesodad [pwexa|  yL
[ 34 342 0 0 0 0 z6y'L 0 0 0 0 PeOY HOPNS ‘9snoH 1jedmed JUSOliK ‘suiqqoy yieuuad! ¢/

Kaburiey 1o} sawoyH

SadIA98 Buisnoy

000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
puedg jejoy JUBLILLIBAOS) juswelg  jod jenden | junoooy My ViH woig  sydisoay sapog sjueic) awayog jeyde) Jo aweN|‘ON “Joy
80/200Z jenuan Ag owweibolyg a|buig anusAsy | aAiesay | Bupueury fepden |y woi4 | jepden
did pauoddng joN | 9jesedag (¥ 398 pung saedoy jooesn Buipung
Buipnjou} sjuswabuelry (¥) 308 fesoua liofew woig fende)d
jejo) npoain woid4 Bujoueui4
w9 Buimosiog Bupsueuly
BYO
(sieak y) adinog Buipund (ejol 11/010Z ©1 80/200Z duiweiBold jeyden

r xipuaddy

1110102 01 80/2002 dwweiboid jeyides jejoy




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Page 103
APPENDIX K

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
Introduction

The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations requires the
Council to ‘have regard to the Prudential Code and to set Prudential
Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. We have also set
out our Prudential Indicators for year four of our financial planning process.

The Act therefore requires the Council to set out its treasury strategy for
borrowing and to prepare an annual investment strategy (as required by
Investment Guidance issued subsequent to the Act); this sets out the
Council’'s policies for managing its investments and for giving priority to the
security and liquidity of those investments.

The suggested strategy for 2007/08 in respect of the following aspects of the
treasury management function is based upon the Council’s Treasury officers’
views on interest rates, supplemented with leading market forecasts provided
by the Council’s external treasury advisor. This strategy covers:

e treasury limits for 2007/08 to 2010/11, which will limit the treasury risk and
activities of the Council;

prudential indicators

the current treasury position and borrowing requirement;

prospects for interest rates;

the borrowing strategy;

the extent of debt rescheduling opportunities: .

the annual investment strategy including the treasury management policy;

e & & o o o

It is a statutory requirement under Section 33 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, for the Council to produce a balanced budget. In
particular, Section 32 requires a local authority to calculate its budget
requirement for each financial year to include the revenue costs that flow from
capital financing decisions. This, therefore, means that increases in capital
expenditure must be limited to a level whereby increases in charges to
revenue from: -

1. increases in interest charges caused by increased borrowing to finance
additional capital expenditure, and
2. any increases in running costs from new capital projects

are limited to a level which is affordable within the projected income of the
Council for the foreseeable future.

Treasury Limits for 2007/08 to 2010/11

It is a statutory duty under S.3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and
supporting regulations, for the Council to determine and keep under review
how much it can afford to borrow. The amount so determined is termed the
“Affordable Borrowing Limit” (also referred to as “Authorised Limit”).



2.2

2.3

3.2

3.3

Page 104

The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the
Authorised Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital
investment remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact
upon its future council tax and council rent levels is ‘acceptable’.

Whilst termed an “Authorised Limit”", the capital plans to be considered for
inclusion incorporate financing by both external borrowing and other forms of
liability, such as credit arrangements. The Authorised Limit is to be set, on a
rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and two successive financial
years.

Prudential Indicators for 2007/08 — 2010/11

The following prudential indicators are relevant for the purposes of setting an
integrated treasury management strategy.

The Council is also required to indicate if it has adopted the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Treasury Management. This was adopted in May 2002 by the
Council.

The actual capital expenditure that was incurred in 2005/06 and the estimates
of capital expenditure to be incurred for the current and future years that are
recommended for approval are:

Capital Expenditure
2005/06 | 2006/07 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Actual Estimate Revised Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Estimate

General Fund 89,229 87,091 99,266 78,806 80,431 72,171 42,925
HRA 24,087 18,094 18,136 19,278 61,422 77,336 74,828
Total 113,316 105,185 117,402 98,084 141,853 149,507 117,753
Funded by
Credit
approvals/supported
borrowing 35,576 39,394 21,177 23,666 54,605 74,461 67,375
Unsupported
borrowing 6,059 715 594 592 0 0 392
Capital receipts 13,912 11,288 15,746 10,216 8,432 5,499 3,981
Government grants 42,367 46,031 66,373 41,090 57,135 49,760 26,539
Revenue and other
contributions 15,402 7,757 13,512 22,520 21,681 19,787 19,466
Total 113,316 105,185 117,402 98,084 141,853 149,507 117,753




3.4

Page 105

and future years and the actual figures for 2005/06 are:

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for the current

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

2005/06
£000
Actual

2006/07
£000
Estimate

2006/07
£000
Revised
Estimate

2007/08
£000
Estimate

2008/09
£000
Estimate

2009/10
£000
Estimate

2010/11
£000
Estimate

GF
HRA

22.55%

8.16%

7.86%
33.03%

7.24%
33.27%

7.04%
33.41%

6.75%
34.08%

6.65%
35.20%

6.93%
36.57%

Combined

6.34%

6.14%

5.65%

5.55%

5.33%

5.22%

5.47%

3.5

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the
proposals in this budget report and elsewhere on the agenda.

The actual capital financing requirement for 2005/06 and estimates of the
capital financing requirement for the council for the current and future years

are:

Capital Financing Requirement

2005/06
£000
Actual

2006/07
£000
Estimate

2006/07
£000
Revised
Estimate

2007/08
£000
Estimate

2008/09
£000
Estimate

2009/10
£000
Estimate

201011
£000
Estimate

GF
HRA

256,080
358,681

279,009
358,489

256,215
364,914

258,103
371,147

251,049
420,436

250,498
485,406

246,061
547,590

Total

614,761

637,498

621,129

629,250

671,485

735,904

793,651

3.6

3.7

3.8

The capital financing requirement (CFR) measures the authority’s underlying
need to borrow for a capital purpose. The Council has, at any point in time, a
number of cashflows both positive and negative, and manages its treasury
position in terms of its borrowings and investments in accordance with its
approved treasury management strategy and practices.

The CFR is planned to increase significantly from 2008/09 onwards primarily
because of the additional supported investment in respect of the Arms Length

Management Organisation (ALMO) decent homes that will be funded by
supported borrowing.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the
following as a key indicator of prudence:

“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a
capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that net external borrowing
does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing



3.9

Page 106

requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital
financing requirement for the current and next two financial years.”

The Council will meet this requirement. This view takes into account current
commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget report and
elsewhere on the agenda.

Net borrowing and Capital Financing Requirement
2006/07 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Estimate Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate | Estimate
Estimate

Gross borrowing 619,874 640,162 635,291 677,526 741,945 799,692
Investments (60,000) {(60,000) (30,000) (30,000) {(30,000) {(30,000)
Net Borrowing 559,874 580,162 605,291 647,526 711,945 769,692
Capital Financing 637,498 621,129 629,250 671,485 735,904 793,651
Requirement

3.10

3.1

3.12

The proposed operational and authorised limits for 2007/08 take account of
the additional £17m borrowed in 2006/07 as reported to Executive on 31
October 2006. Our external treasury advisers, Sector, alerted the Council to
the opportunity to take up some long term borrowing at very advantageous
rates (4.10%). The additional borrowing is part of approved plans of
supported funding for next years capital programme and therefore this fitted in
with the Treasury Management Strategy approved by Council on 6 February
2006. The Acting Director of Finance has delegated authority to approve
treasury management decisions. A delegated decision was made on 26
September 2006 to take out long term loans for £17m to secure these
advantageous rates. As this relates to financing for the capital programme in
2007/08 this went above the operational boundary for borrowing in 2006/07
and therefore the Council approved an increase in this limit for 2006/07. This
additional early borrowing was still within the Council’'s authorised limit for
2006/07. These limits are part of the prudential indicators included in the
approved Treasury Management Strategy.

In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the Council approve the
following authorised and operational limits for its total external debt for the
next four financial years. These limits separately identify borrowing from
other long-term liabilites such as leases. The operational boundary
represents a key management tool for in year monitoring by the Acting
Director of Finance. The operational boundary excludes the additional
headroom included within the authorised limit to allow for example for unusual
cash movements, and equates to the maximum of external debt projected by
this estimate.

The Council is asked to approve the following limits and to delegate authority
to the Acting Director of Finance, within the total limit for any individual year,
to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and
other long term liabilities, in accordance with option appraisal and best value



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Page 107

for money for the authority. Any such changes made will be reported to the
Council at its next meeting following the change.

Authorised Limit for External Debt
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 201011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Borrowing 663,561 705,561 770,561 827,561
Other long term liabilities 5,439 5,439 5,439 5,439
Total 669,000 711,000 776,000 833,000

The proposed authorised and operational limits for external debt in 2007/08 to
2010/11 are consistent with the authority’'s current commitments, existing
plans and the proposals in this budget report for capital expenditure and
financing, and with its approved treasury management policy statement and
practices. They are based on the estimate of the most likely forecast position,
but with sufficient headroom over and above this to allow for operational cash
flow management.

Operational Boundary for External Debt
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000 £000 £000
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Borrowing 638,561 680,561 745,561 802,561
Other long term liabilities 5,439 5,439 5,439 5,439
Total 644,000 686,000 751,000 808,000

The Council’s actual external debt at 31 March 2006 was £587.2 million and
is currently £634.2 million including approved borrowing undertaken in
2006/07. It should be noted that actual external debt is not directly
comparable to the authorised limit and operational boundary, since the actual
external debt reflects the position at one point in time.

In taking its decisions on this budget report, the Council is asked to note that
the authorised limit determined for 2007/08 (see paragraph 3.9 above) will be
the statutory limit determined under Part 1 s.3 (1) of the Local Government
Act 2003.

The Band D Council Tax that would result for the Council for 2007/08 from
the totality of the capital and revenue plans recommended in this budget
report and elsewhere on the agenda is £1,127.83.

Forward estimates for the Band D Council Tax for 2008/09, 2009/10 and
2010/11 are £1,161.66, £1,196.51 and £1,232.41 respectively. These
forward estimates are not fixed and do not commit the Council. They are
based on the Council’s existing commitments, current plans and the totality of
the approved capital and revenue plans.

With respect to the HRA, the average weekly rent that would result for
2007/08 from the totality of the capital and revenue plans is £75.49.

5



3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

Page 108

Forward estimates for housing rents for 2008/09, 2009/10 and 2010/11 are
£79.26, £83.22 and £87.38 respectively. Again, these forward estimates are
not fixed and do not commit the Council. They are based on the Council’s
existing commitments, current plans and the totality of the approved capital
and revenue plans.

Consideration of options for the capital programme

In considering its programme for capital investment, the Council is required
within the Prudential Code to have regard to:

Affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax

Prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external borrowing
Value for money, e.g. option appraisal

Stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning

Service objectives, e.g. strategic planning for the authority
Practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plan.

A key measure of affordability is the impact on the Council Tax, and the
Council could consider different options for its capital investment programme
in relation to their differential impact on the Council Tax. The Council
considers future capital investment options through its business planning
process including the pre-business plan reviews.

Treasury management

It is recommended that the Council set upper limits on its fixed interest rate
exposures as follows: 2007/08 £635 million, 2008/09 £677 million, 2009/10
£741 million and 2010/11 £799 million.

It is recommended that the Council set upper limits on its variable interest rate
exposures as follows; 2007/08 £190 million, 2008/09 £203 million, 2009/10
£222 million and 2010/11 £239 million.

It is recommended that the Council set upper and lower limits for the maturity
structure of its borrowings during 2007/08 as follows:

Amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period as a
percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate at the start of the
period.

Upper limit Lower limit
under 12 months 20% 0%
12 months and within 24 months 20% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 40% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 75% 0%
10 years and above 100% 0%

There are currently no proposals for the Council to invest sums for periods
longer than 364 days. Any future proposals will be considered in line with the
Treasury Management Strategy.




Page 109

3.26 The capital finance regulations contained in the Local Government Act 2003

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

do not deal with investments and this has been dealt with through guidance
from the ODPM.

The Current Treasury Position and Borrowing Requirement

The Council's treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2006 comprised:

Principal sum | Average rate
Debt £m %
Fixed Rate Funding PWLB 462.2
Market 125.0
587.2
Other long term liabilities 54
Total Debt 592.6 7.35%
Total Investments 279 4.66%
Current net borrowing 564.7

The capital financing requirement (CFR) is planned to increase in 2007/08 by
£8.1 million as a consequence of capital expenditure.

The CFR is planned to increase significantly from 2008/09 onwards primarily
because of the anticipated additional supported investment in respect of
Housing — Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO) decent homes —
potentially up to £158m of capital investment in housing stock from 2008/09 to
2010/11. This will be financed by supported borrowing. The supported
borrowing in revenue impact terms will be in the housing revenue account.
The costs of borrowing will be met by actual government support and this will
be kept under close review. The total bid for investment funding for the decent
homes scheme is £228m over the duration of the whole scheme.

Children and Young People’s Service — Building Schools for the Future (BSF)
— A total of £194m is planned to be spent on BSF (made up of £179m of
central government resources, £10m from the Learning Skills Council
contributing towards the cost of the new 6" form centre and revenue
contributions from the DSG).

In the Council's 2007/08 to 2010/11 budget plans the capital programme is
mainly based on the amount of supported borrowing and grant from central
government and a projection of potential capital receipts. However there are
three relatively small unsupported borrowing schemes with spend totalling
£984k that will be funded within available resources and are ‘spend to save’
projects. Therefore there is no increase in council tax or housing rent to fund
a higher level of spend above the level of resources available.



Page 110

4.6  Council's estimated borrowing requirement in future years as set out in the
prudential limits is as follows:
2007/08 2008/09 | 2009/10 2010/11
£m £m £m £m
New borrowing 8.1 422 64.4 57.7
Alternative financing 0 0 0 0
arrangements
Replacement borrowing 0 0 0 0
Totals 8.1 42.2 64.4 57.7
4.7  As reported in paragraph 3.10 the above new borrowing requirement for
2007/08 was borrowed in 2006/07 due to the opportunity to take up some
long term borrowing at very advantageous rates.
4.8  Although there is no scheduled replacement borrowing in the period as shown
above, there are some LOBO option start date reviews on existing borrowing
in 2007/08 to 2010/11 where replacement borrowing may be required
depending on the outcome of those reviews.
5. Prospects for interest rates
5.1 The Council appointed Sector Treasury Services as its treasury adviser and
part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest
rates. The following table gives the forecast, which is Sector’s central view.
5.2 Sector View: Interest rate forecast — January 2007 with a current base rate
of 5.25%.
QBT | QE2 | QB3 TQES [QET | QE2 | QE3 | OF4 [ QET | O O O Q/ET
2007 2007 | 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010
% % % % % % % % % % % % %
Bank rate 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.25 5.00 4.75 4.75 4.75 4.75 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Syr PWLB | 5.25 5.25 5.00 4.75 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
rate
10yr PWLB | 5.00 5.00 4.75 4.75 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
rate
25yr PWLB | 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
rate
50yr PWLB | 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25
rate
9.3  Sector's reviews of economic background during 2006 and looking forward
through 2007 and into 2008 for UK, US and EU are as follows.
5.4 UK economic background
5.4.1 Gross domestic product (GDP) growth is on the upswing of the economic

cycle from a low point reached in June 20
continue for a little lon
2.5%, 2007 2%

05. Robust growth is expected to
ger but a modest cooling is expected in 2007 (2006
) and to continue at below the trend rate thereafter. The




5.4.2

5.4.3

5.4.4

545

5.4.6

5.4.7

6.1

6.2

Page 111

recovery in consumer spending and retail sales has underpinned this upswing
in GDP.

The housing market has proved to be more robust than expected with house
price inflation over 8% per annum. Increases in Bank Rate in August 2006,
November 2006 and January 2007 are likely to dampen the housing market
and also increases in unsecured borrowing.

Higher than expected immigration from Eastern Europe has strengthened
growth and dampened wage inflation.

The Bank of England’s monetary policy committee (MPC) raised Bank Rate to
5% in November 2006 and to 5.25% in January 2007 to bring inflation down
to the 2% target level two years ahead. The MPC has been concerned that
short term price increases could feed through into wage settlements in the
next pay round.

The public sector real increase in expenditure per annum is anticipated to
weaken to 2.5% over the next few years from 3% average between 2000 and
2005.

US and EU economic positions and outlooks have also been reviewed and
taken into account in formulating a view on interest rates.

The forecast within this strategy statement has also taken account of data
from a variety of forecasts published by a number of institutions.

Borrowing Strategy
The Sector forecast is as follows: -

The 50 year PWLB rate is expected to remain flat at 4.25%. As the Sector
forecast is in 25bp segments there is scope for the rate to move around the
central forecast by +/- 25 basis points without affecting this overall forecast.

The 25-30 year PWLB rate is expected to remain at 4.5% for the foreseeable
future.

The 10 year PWLB rate will remain at 5% until Q3 2007 when it will fall to
4.75% and then fall in Q1 2008 to 4.50% and remain at that rate for the
foreseeable future.

5 year PWLB rate will remain at 5.25% until Q3 2007 when it will fall to 5%. It
is then expected to reduce to 4.75% in Q4 2007 and then reduce again to
4.5% in Q1 2008 and remain at that rate for the foreseeable future.

This forecast indicates that the borrowing strategy for 2007/08 should be set
to take very long dated borrowing at any time in the financial year. Variable
rate borrowing and borrowing in the five year area are expected to be more



6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

Page 112

expensive than long term borrowing and will therefore be unattractive
throughout the financial year compared to taking long term borrowing.

The main strategy to minimise debt interest costs is as follows:

With 50 year PWLB rate at 4.25%, borrowing should be made in this area of
the market at any time in the financial year. This rate will be lower than the
forecast rates for shorter maturities in the 5 year and 10 year area. A suitable
trigger point for considering new fixed rate long term borrowing, therefore,
would be 4.25%.

Against this background caution will be adopted with the 2007/08 treasury
operations. The Acting Director of Finance will monitor the interest rate
market and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances, reporting
any decisions as required by the policy.

Sensitivity of the forecast - the main sensitivities of the forecast are likely to
be the two scenarios below. The Council officers, in conjunction with the
treasury advisers, will continually monitor both the prevailing interest rates
and the market forecasts, adopting the following responses to a change of
sentiment:

» if it were felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp rise in long and
short term rates, perhaps arising from a greater than expected increase in
world economic activity or in increases in inflation, then the portfolio
position will be re-appraised with the likely action that fixed rate funding will
be drawn whilst interest rates were still relatively cheap.

« if it were felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp fall in long and short
term rates, due to e.g. growth rates weakening, then long term borrowings
will be postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into
short term funding will be considered.

Debt Rescheduling and restructuring

As the first fall in Bank Rate is expected in Q4 2007, it is therefore expected
that there will be a sharp difference between higher shorter term rates and
cheaper long term rates in quarters 2 to 3 of 2007. Later on in 2008, this
advantage will diminish once Bank Rate, and short term rates generally, start
falling. There will therefore be an opportunity during quarters 2 to 4 of 2007 to
restructure shorter term debt into long term in order to optimise the potential
savings achievable in the financial year 2007/08. Any positions taken via
rescheduling will be in accordance with the strategy position outlined in
paragraph 6 above.

In addition, the Council will actively give consideration during the year to
taking advantage of small movements in PWLB rates to reduce the cost of
existing debt in the portfolio by reborrowing at lower rates without making
significant changes to the type of debt (fixed / variable) or maturity periods.



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Page 113

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:

¢ the generation of cash savings at minimum risk;

* in order to help fulfil the strategy outlined in paragraph 6 above; and

* enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or
the balance of volatility).

CIPFA issued a draft accounting standards document (SORP 2007) on 18
October 2006 which includes major potential changes in the treatment of the
valuation of debt and investments, the calculation of interest and the
treatment of premia and discounts arising from debt rescheduling. There will
be a three month consultation period before proposals are finalised. It is also
expected that these proposals, once finalised, may make necessary the issue
of legislation by the Government to take effect from 1 April 2007. The
Authority’s treasury management strategy will be reviewed once the final
decisions in this area are known to see whether any changes will be required
in borrowing, investment or debt rescheduling strategies.

All rescheduling will be reported as required by the policy.

Profile of long term debt maturity as at 31 March 2006 is as follows. Currently

debt maturing within 5 to 10 years is relatively high. This is monitored as part
of our continual review of our debt profile with our advisors to ensure that a
balanced portfolio is maintained that takes due account of risk.

Outstanding debt as at March 2006 7

| 1-2 2-5 5-10 10-15 15+

Maturing within (years)

8.1
8.1.1

Annual investment strategy
Investment Policy

The Council will have regard to the ODPM'’s Guidance on Local Government
Investments (“the Guidance”) issued in March 2004 and CIPFA’s Treasury
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA Treasury Management Code”). The Council’s
investment priorities are: -

* the security of capital and
» the liquidity of its investments.



8.1.2

8.1.3

8.1.4

8.1.5

8.1.6

8.1.7

8.1.8

8.2

8.2.1

Page 114

The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return on its investments
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.

The borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is
unlawful and this Council will not engage in such activity.

Specified Investments. (All such investments will be sterling denominated,
with maturities up to maximum of 1 year). Investment is permitted with the
following organisations registered in the UK, European Union or North
America, up to the following investment limits.

Counterparty
limits £m
All banks authorised under the Banking Act 1987 which have an 10
acceptable rating in the rating matrix
The Council’s banker (currently Co-operative Bank PLC) 7
All building societies which have an acceptable rating in the rating 10
matrix
Local Authorities 10
HM Government 20
Money Market Funds 10

The ratings matrix referred to in the above table is prepared by the Council’s
treasury advisors. The Council uses Fitch ratings to derive its criteria. Where
a counterparty does not have a Fitch rating, the equivalent Moody’s (or other
rating agency if applicable) rating will be used. All credit ratings will be
monitored on an ongoing basis. The Council is alerted to changes in Fitch
ratings through its use of the Sector creditworthiness service. If a downgrade
results in the counterparty/investment scheme no longer meeting the
Council's minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be
withdrawn immediately.

Possible review of the types of specified investments permitted will be

discussed with Sector and reported back should any changes in policy be
proposed.

The Council’s current policy is not to deal in non-specified investments (i.e.
cash investments longer than 1 year). Possible review of this policy will be
discussed with Sector and reported back for approval should any changes in
policy be proposed.

The Treasury Management Policy document is included at Section 9.

Investment Strategy
In-house funds
Based on its cash flow forecasts, the Council anticipates its fund balances in

2007/08 to range between £0m and £100m, however, cashflow variations can
sometimes occur where this may vary.

12



8.2.2

8.2.3

8.2.4

8.2.5

8.2.6

8.2.7

9.1

9.2

9.3

Page 115

Investments will accordingly be made with reference to the core balance and
cash flow requirements and the outlook for interest rates (i.e. rates for
investments up to 12 months and beyond 12 months).

Giving due consideration to the Council’s balances over the next 4 years, the
need for liquidity, its spending commitments and provisioning for
contingencies, the Council has determined that some of its overall fund
balances could possibly be prudently committed to longer term investments
(i.e. those with a maturity exceeding a year). This will be reviewed in
consultation with Sector.

Interest Rate Outlook

Sector advise that the base rate is expected to rise again to 5.50% in Q1
2007, then fall to 5.25% in Q4 2007, reduce to 5% in Q1 2008 and then to
4.75% in Q2 2008. Then base rate is expected to increase to 5% in Q2 2009.
We are advised to lock in longer period investments at higher rates before
this fall starts for some element of our investment portfolio which represents
our core balances. For 2007/08 we are advised to budget for a cautious
investment return of 5%.

Attractive trigger rates for 1-year lending will be kept under review in
consultation with Sector. 5.60% is identified as the current attractive rate.

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its

business reserve accounts and short-dated deposits (overnight to 3 months)
in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.

End of year Investment Report

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment
activity as part of its outturn report.

Treasury Management Policy

Introduction

This policy is prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Treasury
Management in Local Authorities, published by CIPFA (‘the Code’). In
adopting the Code, the following policies have been agreed.

The Council adopts the key recommendations of CIPFA's Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the Code), as
described in Section 4 of that Code.

Accordingly, the Council has created and will maintain, as the cornerstones
for effective treasury management:

* a treasury management policy statement, stating the policies and
objectives of its treasury management activities

13



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

Page 116

* suitable treasury management practices (TMP's), setting out the manner
in which the organisation will seek to achieve those policies and
objectives, and prescribing how those activities will be managed and
controlled.

The content of the policy statement and TMP's will follow the
recommendations contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the code subject only to
amendment where necessary to reflect the particular circumstances of this
organisation. Such amendments will not result in the organisation materially
deviating from the code's key recommendations.

The Council receives reports on its treasury management policies, practices
and activities, including, as a minimum, an annual strategy in advance of the
year, and an annual report after its close, in the form prescribed in its TMP's.

The Council delegates responsibility for the monitoring of the implementation
of its treasury management polices and practices to the Lead Member. The
Council delegates the execution and administration of treasury management
decisions to the Acting Director of Finance, who will act in accordance with
the organisation's statement and TMP and CIPFA's Standard of Professional
Practice on Treasury Management.

Definitions

The Code defines treasury management as:

“‘the management of the local authority’s cash flows, its borrowings and its
investments, the management of the associated risks, and the pursuit of the
optimum performance or return consistent with those risks”.

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of
risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury
management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and
reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk implications
for the organisation.

The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide
support towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is
therefore committed to the principles of achieving best value in treasury
management, and to employ suitable performance measurement techniques,
within the context of effective risk management.

Approved activities
The approved activities for the treasury management function are:

borrowing
lending
debt repayment and rescheduling

consideration, approval and use of financial instruments and treasury
management techniques

14



9.1

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

9.18

Page 117

e managing the underlying risk associated with the Council’s capital
financing and cashflows
¢ leasing.

Strategy

An annual strategy report will be presented to Council. The report will set out
projections of treasury management activity for the year and for subsequent
years and propose actions to be taken.

The strategy will consider:

interest rate prospects

borrowing strategy

annual investment strategy

debt rescheduling

any other treasury management activity

The strategy will further set out:

» the Council’s Prudential Indicators for the following 4 financial years
* the Council's current portfolio position and borrowing requirement

Approved methods and sources of funding

Borrowing is raised in accordance with the Local Government and Housing
Act (1989) and is permitted via the following instruments:

overdraft

short term loans

Public Works Loan Board loans
other loan instruments.

Investment Policy

The Council will have regard to the ODPM’s Guidance on Local Government
Investments (“the Guidance”) issued in March 2004 and CIPFA’'s Treasury
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA Treasury Management Code”). The Council's
investment priorities are: -

* the security of capital and
* the liquidity of its investments.

The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return on its investments
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.

The borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is
unlawful and this Council will not engage in such activity.

Specified Investments. (All such investments will be sterling denominated,
with maturities up to maximum of 1 year). Investment is permitted with the

I5



9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

Page 118

following organisations registered in the UK, European Union or North
America, up to the following investment limits.

Counterparty
limits

£m
All banks authorised under the Banking Act 1987 which have an 10
acceptable rating in the rating matrix
The Council’s banker (currently Co-operative Bank PLC) 7
All building societies which have an acceptable rating in the rating 10
matrix
Local Authorities 10
HM Government 20
Money Market Funds 10

The ratings matrix referred to in the above table is prepared by the Council’'s
treasury advisors. The Council uses Fitch ratings to derive its criteria. Where
a counterparty does not have a Fitch rating, the equivalent Moody’s (or other
rating agency if applicable) rating will be used. All credit ratings will be
monitored on an ongoing basis. The Council is alerted to changes in Fitch
ratings through its use of the Sector creditworthiness service. If a downgrade
results in the counterparty/investment scheme no longer meeting the
Council's minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be
withdrawn immediately.

There are no suggested changes to the types of specified investments
permitted, but a review will be carried out during the year with Sector and will
be reported back for approval during the year should any changes be
proposed.

The Council’s current policy is not to deal in non-specified investments (i.e.
cash investments longer than 1 year). Possible review of this policy will be
discussed with Sector and reported back for approval should any changes in
policy be proposed.

Investment Strategy
Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow
requirements and the outlook for interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up to

12 months and beyond 12 months).

Attractive trigger rates for 1-year lending will be kept under review in
consultation with Sector.

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its

business reserve accounts and short-dated deposits (1-3 months) in order to
benefit from the compounding of interest.

16



9.25

9.26

9.27

9.28

9.29

9.30

9.31

Page 119

Brokers and advisors
The following brokers are approved for open market transactions:

ICAP PLC

Prebon Marshall Yamane (UK) itd
Tradition UK Itd

Sterling Brokers Itd

The Co-operative Bank PLC
Martins Brokers (UK) PLC

The following brokers are approved for leasing transactions:

* Sector Leasing Services Itd
¢ Unilink
» Dovetail solutions Itd.

The Acting Director of Finance is authorised to deal with other brokers or
agents, from time to time, when the Acting Director of Finance considers it to
be beneficial to the Council.

The Council’s treasury management advisor is Sector.
External managers

The use of external managers is not permitted.

Delegation

The following delegations will apply for treasury management:

Executive
Annual review of policy
Consideration of the strategy

Acting Director of Finance

Implementation of the policy and strategy, including the authority to raise
loans, enter into leases and make investments. In each case this will be in
accordance with procedures determined by the Acting Director of Finance as
set out in the Treasury Management Practices.

Any decision to invest in specified investments not currently used or in non-
specified investments will be made following advice from Sector.

Reporting
The Acting Director of Finance will:

® Prepare an annual strategy report and review of the policy for the
consideration of Executive:



Page 120

report annually to the Executive on the achievement of the previous year’'s
strategy;

report relevant, key details of the treasury management activities to the
Lead Member.



Page 121 Agenda ltem 12

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 1
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

Chair: Deputy Chair:
Councillor George Meehan Councillor Lorna Reith
INTRODUCTION

1.1

1.2

We reported to the Council on 8 January on three matters for decision which we
considered at our meeting on 19 December 2006. We now report for information on other
items considered at that meeting. For ease of reference the Report is divided into the
Executive portfolios.

We trust that this Report will be helpful to Members in their representative role and
facilitate a fruitful dialogue between the Executive and all groups of Councillors. These
reports are a welcome opportunity for the Executive on a regular basis to present the
priorities and achievements of the Executive to Council colleagues for consideration and
comment. The Executive values and encourages the input of fellow members.

ITEMS OF REPORT

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Finance
FINANCIAL PLANNING 2007/08 — 2010/11

We reported to the Council on 8 January on the key financial planning issues which
faced the Council and proposed a process for detailed consideration of four year budget
options. The Council will recall that the existing budget plans for the four year period
2007/08 to 2010/11 would result in a budget gap of £13.6 million, with assumed council
tax increases of 2.5% in each of the four years. This also assumed existing planned
savings of £8.2m were achieved.

We considered a report which provided an update following the draft settlement from
Government and was in seven sections:

government support

budget changes and variations

savings and investment options

council tax

children’s services budget (dedicated schools grant)
housing revenue account budget

capital programme.

The report was supported by three appendices which set out the gross budget trail;
tracked the resource shortfall through the financial planning process; and set out the
draft position for children’s services and the dedicated schools grant.

We noted the draft local government settlement and the overall resource shortfall, prior
to our final budget package which is the subject of a separate report to the Council and
we approved budget changes and variations which were proposed to us. In addition we

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 122

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 2
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

also noted issues in respect of the council tax, the children’s services budget, the
Housing Revenue Account budget and the capital programme.

Organisational Development and Performance

3. THE COUNCIL’S PERFORMANCE - OCTOBER 2006

3.1 We considered a report which set out the routine financial and performance monitoring
for October 2006 in the balanced scorecard format. In summary, the balanced scorecard
showed that for the excellent service perspective 68% of indicators were on target or
close to the end of year target at the end of October. For 25 of the 36 (69%) customer
focus measures, performance targets were being met or close to being met. For financial
health 25 of the 32 measures traffic lighted achieved amber or green status meaning for
78% of indicators performance levels were achieving target or being maintained at an
acceptable level. Our organisational development /capacity indicators including staff
survey results showed that for 17 of the 18 (94%) measures, performance was at or
close to expected levels. Overall 73% of indicators were achieving or close to achieving
target. In addition 73% of indicators had maintained or improved performance since the
end of last year.

3.2 We noted that the scorecard appendix also now included some estimated top quartile
data (All England) so that progress could be assessed not only against the targets we set
but in terms of how we compared with others and how close we were to attaining what
we ultimately were aiming to achieve. With regard to finance and in summary, based on
the October position, the revenue budget showed a balanced position.

3.3 We were advised that Financial Regulations required proposed budget changes be
subject to our approval. We approved those shown in the table below which fell into one
of two categories:

o budget virements, where it was proposed that budget provision be transferred
between one service budget and another. Explanations were provided where this
was the case;

o Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification had been
received in-year of a change in the level of external funding such as grants or
supplementary credit approval.

3.4 Under the Constitution, certain virements are key decisions. Key decisions are:

o for revenue, any virement which results in change in a directorate cash limit of
more than £250,000; and

o for capital, any virement which results in the change of a programme area of more
than £250,000.

Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table.

[Period| Service |Key| Amount | Fullyear | Description

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 123

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 3
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

current year Amount
(£°000) (£°000)

7 Children Rev 173 Inclusion of agreed asylum grant
allocations and spend within the Leaving
Care Team.

7 Children, Rev 115 172 Transfer of salaries for the Children &

Social Families Contract team.
Services
7 Social Cap* 1,300 Additional budget to reduce the
Services adaptations backlog that is funded from
capital receipts and was approved by
Executive on 12 September.
7 Children, Rev 80 Children & Families contribution towards
Social the cost of E. Care Business Support
Services Team.

7 Children Rev* 322 Contribution to offset pressure on the
SEN budget due to placements of
children with autism.

7 Chief Rev* 200 200 Transfer of Bernie Grant Centre Budget

Executives from OD&L to Chief Executive’s budget.

7 Chief Rev 20 20 Adjustment of voluntary sector recharge

Executives to the Greek Cypriot Womens Centre.
7 Chief Rev* 471 471 BSC/ASB grant is no longer receivable in
Executives the Strategy budget.
7 Chief Rev 169 Inclusion of SSCF Community
Executives Empowerment Networks spend that is
funded from grant by GOL.
7 Chief Cap* 259 Reduced HERS 2 and 3 funding following
Executives mid year appraisal.
7 Chief Cap 54 Reduced THI funding for Bruce Grove
Executives following mid year appraisal.
7 Chief Rev 34 Additional grant funding from GOL for
Executives domestic violence re Haringey
Hearthstone nightline.
7 Chief Rev 30 Additional grant funding from the London
Executives Development Agency for the ULVP
Research & Management project.
7 Chief Rev 5 8 Reversal of virement from Legal to
Executives Customer Services as Customer Services
are not going to be dealing with
Citizenship Ceremonies questions and
booking appointments.

7 Chief Rev 37 55 Transfer of budget from Home

Executives, Connections to Customer Services to pay
Housing for services to be provided.

7 All Rev 135 Reallocation of some NRF budgets to
reflect over and under spends.

7 Chief Rev 30 Transfer of budget from member Services

Executives to IT.
7 Chief Rev 161 Reallocation of some NRF Well Being
Executives, budgets.
Finance

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 124

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 4
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

7 Environment |Cap* 389 Additional TFL funding re school travel
plans

7 Environment | Cap 81 £51k Section 278 funding re Lordship
Lane Health Centre and additional TFL
funding re Travel awareness (£30k).

7 Environment | Rev 54 Additional HLF related spend re Finsbury
Park that is funded from income
generated from activities in the park.

7 Environment |Rev* 931 931 Revisions to Highways budgets within
approved cash limit to reflect current
structure and activity.

7 Environment | Cap 35 TFL funded scheme for Wood green
Station access development.

7 Environment |Cap* 300 Reduced GAF funding re Hornsey
Mortuary relocation to reflect current
spend profile.

7 Environment |Rev* 1,684 1,684 Budget adjustment to reflect the recycling
contract coming back in house.

7 Chief Rev 17 17 Transfer of non Members Allowances

Executives elements back to Members Services.

4,

4.1

4.2

4.3

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT — OCTOBER 2006

The Council will be aware that the programme is the vehicle for the delivery of
corporately significant projects and projects that are key political priorities. It underpinned
the Council’s corporate planning process, ensuring that the projects undertaken reflected
and helped to deliver Community Strategy and corporate priorities.

The report provided an opportunity to monitor, challenge and support the Council’s key
projects to ensure that they finished on time, to budget and deliver the outcomes for the
community. We considered a report which provided details of all the Council’s corporately
significant projects, covering the period up to the end of October 2006.

We were informed that a key driver in developing the programme structure had been to
improve financial oversight of the Council’s key corporate projects. Accordingly, projects
were required to report detailed financial information in their project highlight reports
each month. In receiving the report we noted that the key areas of financial concern as at
the end of October had been —

e Primary Schools —Concerns about the current programme and finances would be
addressed as part of the overall capital programme for the Council. This would be
reported to us in January 2007.

e Children’s Centres — detailed work was underway to identify how the 2005-06
overspend would be contained within 2006-07 and to ensure the detailed
spending plan for delivery of the new centres could be funded within the available
budget.

e Procurement — this project had a target of £2m of savings, equally split over
2005/06 and 2006/07. Only £1.2m had been identified with projects implemented,

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923




Page 125

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 5
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

so there would be a shortfall of £0.8 million against the target in 2006/07. A
review of further potential projects was underway jointly with all departments.

N.B. These highlight reports reflected the position of some of the Council’s corporately
significant projects as at 31 October 2006 and might have changed in the meantime.

Health and Social Services

5. ADULT SOCIAL CARE ANNUAL REVIEW LETTER AND STAR RATING FOR 2005/06

5.1  We considered a report which advised us that the Commission for Social Care Inspection
(CSCI) produced on an annual basis the Record of Performance Assessment (ROPA) for
Adult Social Care commonly known as the annual review letter. We were informed that
the ROPA outlined the authority’s strengths and weaknesses and provided the evidence
on how CSCI had reached their judgement for that authorities star rating.

5.2 We were informed that analysis of the ROPA indicated that the primary reason for the
drop in Haringey’s Adult Social Care Star Rating related to poor performance in relation
to a few key performance indicators that measured both customer care and quality of
service provision. The summary of areas for improvement outlined in the report provided
a more detailed profile of the weaknesses that lead to this judgement. We were also
informed that CSCI star rating was based on a scale of zero to three stars and that the
ratings aimed to improve public information about the current performance of services
and the capacity for improvement.

5.3  We report that we noted the annual review monitoring letter and that the Council had
moved from two stars in 2004/05 to one in 2005/06. We also noted a summary of
improvements achieved by the Council as well as a summary of areas for improvement
both of which are detailed below -

Summary of Improvements Achieved

e A clear strength for Haringey was the development and production of relevant
commissioning strategies that were based on relevant local data around the
needs of the local community.

e The Council was effective at engaging local communities, service users and
carers in forming these strategies and involving them in service improvements.

e The financial position of the Council had now been aligned to that of comparator
authorities and finished the year with a balanced budget. It was positive that the
Council reviewed and re-allocated expenditure to reflect national and local
priorities.

e The Council had a well developed equalities strategy, which underpinned fair
access to care services. This was followed up with some good examples of
outcomes given around improved access to and provision of services to targeted
BME groups who had been underrepresented in those areas.

e Work around adaptations and delivery of equipment had been highlighted a
number of times as an area demonstrating good improvement. As this was an
outcome of using the best value techniques it reflected that the Council could
identify poor performance and take appropriate action to turn this around.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 126

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 6
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

e The Council continued to support high numbers of adults with physical disabilities
and older people to live at home, with consistent achievement in these client
groups.

Summary of Areas for Improvement

e Older people were waiting too long for an assessment of their needs — waiting
times needed to be reduced.

e Although the reviews conducted were compliant, with Fair Access to Care
guidance, performance in this area had declined notably.

e 70% of Statement of need were issued to service users which was well below the
London average.

e We needed to generally reduce the number of service users placed permanently
in residential/nursing care - with a particular focus on learning disabilities.

e Work on improving the number of adults with learning disabilities and mental
health problems to live at home should be a priority for 2006/07.

e The level of services for carers was well below the comparator average which was
something we needed to tackle.

e We needed to reduce the number of patients experiencing delays in being
discharged from hospital who require social care services.

e We were out of time for the Electronic Social Care Record but needed to compile
with the outstanding targets as quickly as possible.

e Unit Costs needed to be stabilised and preferably brought in line with our
comparator authorities.

Housing
HOMES FOR HARINGEY QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Council will be aware that Homes for Haringey Arms Length Management
Organisation (ALMO), was launched in April 2006. An ALMO is a company set up by the
Council to mange, maintain and improve its housing stock. Local authorities who have
pursued this option can secure additional capital funding if the new arms-length body has
received a ‘good’ rating i.e., 2 stars, from the Audit Commission’s Housing Inspectorate.

The Council retains the status of landlord and tenants remain secure tenants of the
authority. The Council are therefore required to closely monitor the activities of the ALMO
to ensure contract compliance, adherence to regulations and guidance of good practice,
and the delivery of services that when inspected will secure at least 2 stars rating.
Homes for Haringey’s performance is formally monitored by way of monthly and quarterly
meetings.

We considered a report which provided us with an update of the progress made In
relation to key targets and objectives and which summarised main issues discussed at
the quarterly performance monitoring meeting held in November 2006. We noted that
Homes for Haringey had seen some improvements in performance and were confident
that recent progress and ongoing intervention would deliver the planned outcomes in the
Delivery Plan. We will continue to monitor performance closely through the monthly and
quarterly performance meetings in addition to which the Leader of the Council and the

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 127

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 7
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Executive Member for Housing will be sent regular performance reports and areas of
concerns fed back through the performance meetings. The quarterly meetings will
continue to be the forum to discuss any areas of concern.

Enterprise and Regeneration
UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN — ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT

The Council will be aware that the Haringey Unitary Development Plan (UDP) which was
adopted in July 2006 deals with development and use of land in Haringey, and contains
information on the Council's policies and proposals. The UDP Review was developed
under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Town and Country Planning
(Development Plan)(England) Regulations 1999 and it was subject to three statutory
public consultation stages and a public inquiry. The UDP inquiry ran from April to
September 2005 and the Council received the Inspector’s report in January 2006. In
response to the Inspector’s report, we approved modifications to the UDP in March 2006.

The revised Local Development Scheme (LDS) was then submitted to the Government
Office for London. The LDS is a three-year project plan, which sets out a programme for
replacing the UDP policies with Local Development Documents. The Annual Monitoring
Report monitored progress on the LDS. For 2005/06, the key milestones of which were
the commencement of the UDP inquiry and the modifications stage. The first Annual
Monitoring Report for 2004/05 was submitted to the Government Office for London in
December 2005 and presented available statistical data relating to Haringey’s emerging
UDP policies and information on the Council’s development control performance.

We considered a report which took forward many of the indicators used in the first report
and addressed more core indicators as identified by the Government. We noted that it
included some significant effects indicators which assessed the significant social,
environmental and economic effects of policies and that these indicators were linked to
objectives for the sustainability appraisal of Local Development Documents. We also
noted that a full set of sustainability objectives and indicators would be developed for the
Local Development Framework.

The Annual Monitoring Report submitted covered the period April 2005 to March 2006
and had to be submitted to the Secretary of State by 31 December 2006. The publication
of the Annual Monitoring Report was also subject to a Best Value Performance Indicator
(BV 200c). We were informed that the Government was also intending to allocate
Planning Delivery Grant for 2007/08 to authorities that demonstrated performance in
housing delivery, plan-making and sustainable development as identified by core
indicators in the Annual Monitoring Report.

The Annual Monitoring Report was used for information purposes to assess the
performance and effectiveness of planning policies. It presented available statistical data
relating to the planning policies in Haringey’s adopted Unitary Development Plan and
emerging Local Development Framework. It contained a monitoring framework that
identified targets and indicators, which would be used to assess the performance and
effectiveness of Unitary Development Plan objectives and key policies. The Report also
identified ongoing issues of data collection and analysis.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 128

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 8
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

7.6

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

We report, for information, that we approved the Annual Monitoring Report for
submission to the Government Office for London.

FURTHER ALTERATIONS TO THE LONDON PLAN

We considered a report which advised us the London Plan was adopted in February 2004
and set the strategic spatial development priorities and policies for London until 2016 as
well as underpinning much of the work of the Greater London Authority. The Mayor of
London had a legal duty to keep the London Plan under review and up-to-date as well as
to ensure that the Mayor’s strategies were consistent with each other. In December 2005,
the Mayor published a Statement of Intent which set out the scope of the further
alterations to the Plan. A public consultation version of the draft alterations was produced
in September 2006, which was accompanied by a sustainability appraisal report. The
public consultation period ran until 22 December 2006. The Examination in Public and the
Panel’s report was timetabled for Summer 2007 and it was intended that the altered
London Plan would be published in early 2008.

In October 2005, the Mayor published for public consultation early draft alterations to the
London Plan on housing supply, waste and minerals. These matters had been subject to
an Examination in Public and the Panel Report was published in September 2006. The
early alterations would come into effect from April 2007 and were included in the further
alterations version of the Plan. The Mayor’s responses to the Panel’s report had been
included in the Further Alterations. However, they remained subject to final approval and
the receipt of no direction from the Secretary of State. In many cases, the Panel’s
recommendations had resulted in further alterations. In December 2005, the Mayor of
London published a Statement of Intent on the review of the London Plan. The Statement
set out the scope of the alterations to the London Plan.

We noted that the draft Further Alterations to the London Plan constituted a first review of
the Mayor’s London Plan, which was adopted in February 2004. They include previously
published Early Alterations which related to housing supply, waste and minerals. The
aims and objectives of the original London Plan remained largely unchanged and the
further alterations focus on themes identified in a Statement of Intent published in
December 2005. We also noted that the draft Further Alterations extended the timeframe
of the original Plan from 2016 to 2025/6 and focussed on strengthening some of the key
policy areas which had developed since the publication of the original London Plan,
including climate change, London’s geography and its suburbs.

The draft further alterations were accompanied by a sustainability appraisal report, a
scenario testing report and an equalities impact assessment. The draft Further Alterations
had been published for public consultation and the closing date for comments was 22
December 2006. The London Plan now formed part of Haringey’s statutory development
plan and its spatial strategy, growth assumptions and targets would shape Haringey’s
Local Development Framework, which was required to be in general conformity with the
London Plan. Therefore, it was important that the Council commented on the alterations
and scrutinised the evidence and growth assumptions. The further alterations and
supporting evidence would be debated at a Examination in Public and the Council would

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 129

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page 9
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007

8.5

8.6

9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

have the opportunity to provide further representations to support its submitted
comments.

The draft Further Alterations were generally welcomed, particularly the focus on climate
change and London’s suburbs. However, there were some key concerns regarding the
sustainability of the plan to 2026 and the interrelationship between housing and
employment growth and transport, community and utility infrastructure, the deliverability
of affordable, energy efficient homes, particularly family housing and whether alterations
gave sufficient attention to outer London boroughs like Haringey. There were also sub-
regional issues, particularly waste apportionment and a new sub-regional structure which
would require further discussion with sub-regional borough partnerships and a
coordinated response for the Examination in Public.

We report that we agreed a response to the draft Further Alterations to the London Plan
and authorised their submission to the Mayor of London.

Community Involvement
LIBRARIES, ARCHIVES AND MUSEUM SERVICE - RESTRUCTURE

We considered a report which advised us that the current structure of the Libraries,
Archives & Museum Service was established in 2001 and reflected the need for
professional qualifications and expertise within the service. However, since then, the
Service had developed extensively. The increased use of technology had enabled the
Service to streamline and centralise processes and procedures associated with the
selection, acquisition, cataloguing and processing of stock had been minimised, with
much of the work being undertaken by suppliers rather than in-house personnel. The
reservation process had been re-engineered to take full advantage of our automated
library management system and one member of staff was now responsible for document
delivery from external sources, rather than staff in each branch.

Automation had improved the circulation system relating to the issuing and renewal of
stock and the automated telephone system now catered for the renewal of approximately
75,000 loans each year while the self-issue and returns system took in the region of 70%
of issues, so reducing the requirement for “counter” staff undertaking transactions on the
issue desk. Services to children and young people represented a significant part of our
service delivery but these services were not fully co-ordinated as the current Principal
Librarian for Children Services did not have line management responsibility for the
children’s staff in Libraries. Enquiry and reference work had also altered with
improvements in information technology and paper-based reference works were now
being replaced by e-resources, eliminating the tedious and time-consuming task of
updating.

We noted that the restructure of the Service proposed reflected the centralisation of
support services, the ability of automation to reduce the need for staff to carry out routine
duties, the need to place greater emphasis on helping the customer to obtain the best
from the services available and the need for local accountability. The proposed structure
reduced the number of staff devoted to backroom activities, with a corresponding
increase in staff available to offer customer facing services. It also strengthened the role

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 130

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007 10

9.4

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

of library managers and tasked them with the role of performance management and
achieving targets for their particular library. We also noted that the proposals were
designed to achieve a savings target of approx £200,000 from financial year 2007/8
onwards.

Accompanying the report were comments from UNISON on the restructure proposals
and we also received a deputation from that trade union concerning the proposals.
Having noted that consultation would be ongoing with the staff group early in the New
Year to discuss and achieve the new structure and savings target of £200,000, we report
that we agreed the proposed structure as a basis for formal consultation with affected
staff and we delegated to the Assistant Chief Executive (Access) or Director of Adults,
Culture and Community Services, in consultation with the Executive Member for
Community Involvement, authority to agree the structure following consultation with staff.

Children and Young People

DELIVERING EARLY CHILDHOOD SERVICES IN HARINGEY: MEETING THE
CHALLENGE OF THE CHILDCARE ACT, 2006

We considered a report which advised us that the Childcare Act 2006 had introduced
new statutory duties for local authorities. The emphasis was on effective early childhood
services for all children under 5, in particular addressing the needs of the most
vulnerable young children. The report addressed the challenge of developing a children’s
centre service by increasing the number of children’s centres from 10 to 18 by March
2008. This would enable the Council and its partners to deliver integrated early
childhood services to at least 14,759 young children under 5.

The report proposed support for the development of a robust and sustainable early
childhood service and identified 8 potential Phase |l children’s centres in order to deliver
integrated early childhood services to 14,759 children in Haringey by March 2008.

We noted that from the initial expressions of interest (24) and early feasibility studies, 8
centres were recommended which would meet the overall target of 18 for March 2008.
The proposal would bring the total number of centres in place by March 2008 to: 4 in the
West Network; 5 in the North Network; 9 in the South Network. These centres would
enable Haringey to reach the DfES target of 14,759 children (under 5) by 2008.
Considerable consultation had taken place at a local level in all proposed areas with the
engagement of governing bodies, parents and a wide range of stakeholders.

Two further wards with levels disadvantage would need to be addressed between 2008-
2010; Fortis Green and Crouch End. Alexandra ward would also need addressing in
order to reach all under 5’s in Haringey. It was anticipated that there would be a Phase
[Il development in order to move to universal provision and fulfil the Government’s
commitment to a children’s centre in every community by 2010. However, at this stage it
was not clear what additional funding would be available. We also noted that having
undertaken detailed capital feasibility studies, the proposed Centres for Phase Il were:

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 131

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007 11

10.5

11.

North Children’s Network — Bounds Green Children’s Centre (based at Bounds Green
Primary School)

West Children’s Network — Campsbourne Children’s Centre (based at Campsbourne
Primary School), Highgate Children’s Centre (based at Highgate Primary School)
together with a main satellite at Rokesly Infants School

South Children’s Network — Harringay Children’s Centre (based at South Haringey
Infant School); Downhills Children’s Centre (based at local sure start programme base
working in partnership with Downbhills Primary School); Seven Sisters Children’s Centre
(based at Seven Sisters Primary School); Earlsmead Children’s Centre (based at
Earlsmead Primary School); Welbourne Children’s Centre (based at Welbourne Primary
School).

We report for information that we approved the 8 identified children’s centres for
development in Phase |l to meet a total of 18 centres in place for March 2008.

ADMISSIONS TO SCHOOLS - APPROVAL TO CONSULT

We considered a report which advised us that Section 89 of the School Standards and
Framework Act 1998, as amended by the Education and Inspections Act 2006 and
associated Regulations required admission authorities to consult annually on their
admission arrangements for the following academic year. We noted that Haringey
Education Services gave advice to governing bodies who were the admission authorities
for other maintained primary and secondary schools in Haringey (i.e. voluntary aided
schools and Greig City Academy). Consultation for all admission authorities had to be
completed by 1 March 2007, and determined by 15 April 2007. The new arrangements
would then come into effect from the September 2008 intake.

The Education Act 2002 required Local Authorities to introduce co-ordinated
arrangements for admission to Year 7 for all maintained secondary schools in their area
from September 2005. Haringey was part of the Pan-London System which was first
introduced for the September 2005 intake and which had enjoyed considerable success
for secondary school admissions in the Borough. The Pan-London System was now into
its third successful year and the report recommended that these arrangements should
continue for the 2008/09 school year.

The report included proposed admission arrangements for admission to sixth forms in
Haringey community schools and the Haringey Sixth Form Centre and we were also
asked to consider whether to approve the arrangements, in particular proposals from the
Fortismere Governing Body for sixth form admission arrangements for the 2008/09
school year.

We noted that the first successful co-ordinated system of admission to reception classes
had been undertaken last year and that it was recommended that similar arrangements
were carried forward to the 2008/09 school year. We also noted that the Haringey
Admissions Forum was due to meet on 25 January 2007 to consider these proposals
and that the proposed arrangements took into consideration the requirements of the new
DfES School Admissions Code currently under consultation.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 132

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007 12
11.5 During the course of our deliberations concern was expressed about the proposals from

12.

12.1

the Fortismere Governing Body for sixth form admission arrangements for the 2008/09
school year, and we were advised that while the Council would consult on the proposals
it did not necessarily support them. There would be a press release which invited people
to comment and that following the consultation the Schools Admissions Forum (SAF)
would consider and advise and the matter would return to us for decision. Clarification
having been sought of the proposed arrangements for admission to the Haringey Sixth
Form Centre, we were advised that these matters would need to be taken away for
further consideration.

We report that we approved the proposed admission arrangements proposed in the
report for consultation for all community primary and secondary schools and St Aidan’s
Voluntary Controlled Primary School. We also approved the proposed admission
arrangements for consultation for sixth form provision in Alexandra Park School, the
Highgate/Hornsey Consortium. We delegated authority to approve the proposed
arrangements for consultation for the new Sixth Form Centre to the Director of the
Children and Young People’s Service in consultation with the Executive Member for
Children and Young People subject to clarification of the points raised at our meeting.

We granted approval to the proposed admission arrangements for consultation put
forward by Fortismere School Governors that would change their entry arrangements to
the Sixth Form from 5+ A*- C to 5+ A*-B grades and to the proposed consultation for
Qualifying Schemes for the co-ordination of arrangements for admission to reception
classes in all maintained primary and secondary schools in Haringey and in so doing
noted that at secondary level, this would entail the Council’s continued participation in
the Pan-London Scheme.

Leader
ACTIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURES

We were informed of the following action taken by a Directors in consultation with an
Executive Members.

Employment and Pensions Agreement — Alexandra Palace

Approval to the final version of the Employment and Pensions Agreement which was
an addendum to the Master Agreement for Alexandra Palace.

13. DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS

13.1

We were informed of significant actions which involved expenditure of more than £50,000
taken by Directors under delegated powers.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 133

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 12/2006-07 Page
COUNCIL 5 FEBRUARY 2007 13

Assistant Chief Executive Access
Application Approval — Projects in Tottenham & Seven Sisters Area Assembly.
Project Appraisal Services for the Bridge NDC.

Variation to the Public-1 web casting contract to increase the hours available for
multimedia material.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 8 January 2007
	11 To receive the Executive report number 13-2006/7 - Financial Planning 2007/08 to 2010/11
	CNCL_2007.02.05_Executive report 13_Appendices part 1
	CNCL_2007.02.05_Executive report 13_Appendices part 2

	12 To receive the Executive report number 12-2006/7:

